
 
 
 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  Contact: Harry Blake-Herbert 

Governance Officer 
  Direct: 020-8132-0807 
Tuesday, 19th September, 2023 at 7.00 pm  Tel: 020-8379-1000 
Conference Room, Civic Centre, Silver 
Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA 
 
 

 
 

 Ext: 0807  
  
  
 E-mail:  Democracy@enfield.gov.uk 

             

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
MEMBERS 
Councillors: Sinan Boztas (Chair), Mahym Bedekova (Vice-Chair), Josh Abey, 
Kate Anolue, Lee Chamberlain, Peter Fallart, Thomas Fawns, Ahmet Hasan, 
Bektas Ozer, Michael Rye OBE, Jim Steven, and Eylem Yuruk. 
 

 
N.B.  Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by 

contacting Democracy@enfield.gov.uk before 10am on the meeting date latest 
 

 
AGENDA – PART 1 

 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES   
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 
3. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT (Pages 1 - 

4) 
 
 To receive and note the covering report of the Head of Development 

Management.  
 

4. 20/01982/FUL - LAND REAR OF ELLINGTON COURT, SOUTHGATE N14 
6LB (Pages 5 - 46) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  

1. That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT 
planning permission subject to conditions. 
2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Democracy@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/
mailto:Democracy@enfield.gov.uk


authority to agree the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in 
the Recommendation section of original report dated 18 July 2023 and set 
out in this report. 
 
WARD: Southgate 
 

5. 20/03011/FUL - MOORFIELD FAMILY CENTRE, 2 MOORFIELD ROAD, 
ENFIELD, EN3 5PS (Pages 47 - 114) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions and the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement 
2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated 
authority to finalise the wording of the S106 Agreement and agree the final 
wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation 
section of this report. 
 
WARD: Southbury 
 

6. 22/04095/RE3 - LAND ADJACENT TO THE NEW RIVER EXTENDING 
FROM TENNISWOOD ROAD TO BULLSMOOR LANE (Pages 115 - 198) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  

1. That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992 the Head of Development Management be 
authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions. 
2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated 
authority to finalise the wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the 
Recommendation section of the original report dated 18 April 2023. 
 
WARD: Town, Whitewebbs, Southbury 

 
7. 23/00770/FUL - 55 EVERSLEY PARK ROAD, LONDON N21 1NR (Pages 

199 - 236) 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT 
planning permission subject to conditions. 
2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated 
authority to agree the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in 
the ‘Recommendation’ section of this report. 
 
WARD: Southgate 
 

8. 23/01144/FUL - 59 LANGHAM GARDENS, LONDON N21 1DL (Pages 237 - 
256) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  

1. That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT 
planning permission subject to conditions. 



2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated 
authority to agree the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in 
the ‘Recommendation’ section of this report. 
 
WARD: Grange Park 
 

9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 
 To note that the dates of future meetings are as follows:  

 
Tuesday 17th October 2023  
Tuesday 7th November 2023 (provisional)  
Tuesday 21st November 2023  
Tuesday 19th December 2023  
Tuesday 9th January 2024 (provisional)  
Tuesday 23rd January 2024  
Tuesday 13th February 2024 (provisional)  
Tuesday 20th February 2024  
Tuesday 5th March 2024 (provisional)  
Tuesday 19th March 2024  
Tuesday 23rd April 2024  
 
These meetings will commence at 7:00pm and will be held in the Conference 
Room at the Civic Centre 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
London Borough of Enfield 

 
 
 
 

Report Title Report of Head of Development Management  

Report to Planning Committee 

Date of Meeting 19th September 2023 

Cabinet Member Councillor Susan Erbil 

Executive Director 
/ Director 

Brett Leahy – Director of Planning & Growth 
Sarah Cary – Executive Director Housing, Regeneration 
& Development 

Report Author Andy Higham 
andy.higham@enfield.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected All 

Key Decision 
Number 

Non Key 

Classification Part 1 Public  
 

 
 

 
Purpose of Report  
 
1. To advise members on process and update Members on the number of 

decisions made by the Council as local planning authority. 
 
Recommendations 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

I. To Note 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3

mailto:andy.higham@enfield.gov.uk


 

 

 
Background  
 
2. Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the 
 Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
 development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other 
 material considerations.  Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by the 
 Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making any 
 determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
 development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan 
 unless the material considerations indicate otherwise.   
 
3. The development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the London 
 Plan (March 2015), the Core Strategy (2010) and the Development 
 Management Document (2014) together the London Plan 2021. Other 
 supplementary documents material to the assessment are identified in the 
 individual reports. 
 
4. Other background papers are those contained within the file, the reference 
 number of which is given in the heading to each application, and which 
 can be viewed via the online planning register on the Council’s website. 
 
Main Consideration  
 
5. On the Schedules attached to this agenda, recommendations in respect of 
 planning applications and applications to display advertisements are set 
 out. 
 
6. Also set out in respect of each application a summary of any 
 representations received. Any later observations will be reported verbally 
at  your meeting. 
 
7 In accordance with delegated powers, 135 applications were determined 
 between 22/08/2023 and 05/09/2023, of which 98 were granted and 34 
 refused. 
 
8. A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library. 
 
Relevance to Council Plans and Strategies 
 
9. The determination of planning applications supports good growth and 
 sustainable development. Depending on the nature of planning 
 applications, the proposals can deliver new housing including affordable 
 housing, new employment opportunities, improved public realm and can 
 also help strengthen communities 
 
Financial Implications 

 
10. None 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

Legal Implications  
 
11. None 
 
Equalities Implications  
 
12 None 
 
 

 
Report Author: Andy Higham 
 Head of Development Management  
 andy.higham@enfield.gov.uk 
 020 8132 0711 
 
Date of report: 08.09.2023 
 
 
 
Appendices 
 
None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
To be found on files indicated in Schedule. 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

  PLANNING COMMITTEE Date: 19 September 2023 

  Report of 

  Director of Planning and Growth 
  Brett Leahy

  

Contact Officers: 

Michael Kotoh-Mortty  
Claire Williams 

Category 

Full Application 

  Ward 

  Southgate 

  Councillor Request 

  Yes 

  LOCATION:  Land rear of Ellington Court, Southgate N14 6LB 

  APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/01982/FUL 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a residential building (use class C3) with associated amenity 
space, landscaping, disabled car parking, cycle parking and associated works. 

   Applicant Name & Address: 

  Akelius UK Twelve Ltd 

  c/o Agent 

Agent Name & Address: 

Mr Julian Sutton 
JMS Planning & Development Ltd 
Build Studios 
203 Westminster Bridge Road 
London 
SE1 7FR 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning
permission subject to conditions.

2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to agree
the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation
section of original report dated 18 July 2023 and set out in this report.

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



Ref: 20/01982/FUL LOCATION: Land Rear Of Ellington Court , High Street, Southgate, N14 6LB

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Scale 1:1250 North

Page 6



1.0 Note for Members:    

1.1 This application was first considered by the Planning Committee on 18 July 2023. At 
this meeting Members agreed that a decision on the application be deferred until a 
site visit is undertaken on the grounds that it would help members to take into 
account the context of the site, the conservation issues, the issues of overlooking 
and the loss of the garden space. The member site visit will be held on 16 September 
2023. 

1.2  A Member update on the representations received was provided at the July 2023 
planning committee meeting and Members raised queries regarding the consultation 
of the application. Although a re-consultation on the amended scheme was not 
undertaken due to the reduction in scale, following the queries raised at the 
committee meeting a re-consultation was undertaken. In addition, Historic England, 
The Gardens Trust and the National Amenity Societies - the Georgian Group and 
Twentieth Century Society were consulted on the application. A total of 11 neighbour 
comments along with comments from the Southgate Green Association were 
received and are summarised below:  

• The proposal would directly impact Arnoside House and Essex House which are 
Grade II* listed buildings as well as Old House which are heritage assets. The 
scheme would be within 5m of the Grade II* listed rear wall at Arnoside House. 

• The applicant should not be permitted to build against a Grade II* listed boundary 
wall. 

• Impact of overlooking and privacy to the rear gardens of nearby Grade II* listed 
buildings from the upper floor south facing windows and balconies of the proposal. 

• Concerns that the applicant could have permitted development rights to add an upper 
floor to the scheme. 

• Impact on listed buildings, amenities and trees. 
• The proposal would compromise the existing communal garden at Ellington Court 

and impact the footpath at Walkers Cricket Grounds as well as Walker School. 
• Inaccurate block plan. 
• Conflict with local and national policy. 
• Loss of trees and ecological impact. 
• Out of keeping with character of Conservation Area. 
• Strain on community facilities. 
• The proposal would set an adverse precedent for the Conservation Area. 
• Siting a building at the rear of Ellington Court would Impact access at the site. 
• A four storey building that was proposed two years ago was rejected. 
• Jarring and unsuitable backfill development. 
• Building too close to Ellington Court and the windows have to be obscured. 
• There is no additional parking planned for the proposed flats. 
• Insufficient information given and overdevelopment within Conservation Area. 
• Overlooking into the garden at Walker School. 
• Loss of children’s playground at Ellington Court. 
• The Southgate Green Association object to the proposal on the grounds of impact 

on nearby listed buildings, design, the transport assessment and usable green space 
at the site. 
 

 

Page 7



 

1.3  The following bodies/ groups also responded to the consultation: 

Historic England – No comments to make on the application.  

The Georgian Group – No comments to make on the application.  

Twentieth Century Society – No objection to the revised scheme.  

 

1.4  Officer response: 

• There is a distance of 74m between the rear boundary of the site and the rear 
elevation of 4 and 5 The Green (Grade 2 star listed properties). The new building will 
also be set away from the rear boundary by approximately 5 – 6.5 metres. Policy 
DMD10 requires a distance of 30 metres between 2 storey buildings, the proposal 
would significantly exceed this distance and therefore would not result in inadequate 
daylight/sunlight or privacy to the properties to the rear of the site.  

• With regard to the Grade II* listed rear wall at Arnoside House, there is no proposal 
to alter the wall and the applicant is unable to alter or demolish the wall without Listed 
Building Consent. 

• Parking surveys have been undertaken and showed that 11 spaces are available in 
the existing car park out of 33 spaces. The Transportation team have confirmed that 
car parking provision is acceptable, and the agent has confirmed that the existing 
units could be redistributed to the new residential units. A parking layout condition 
would be required to demonstrate the location of the parking spaces for the new flats. 

• Policy DMD7 – Development of Garden Land, section e of the policy requires that an 
adequate amount of garden space is retained within both of the individual plots in 
accordance with the minimum amenity space standards – Policy DMD9 Amenity 
Space. The proposal would occupy approximately 697 square metres of the existing 
communal garden space which measures 2469 square metres, the remaining 
communal space is more than adequate for existing and future residents. The 
remaining communal garden space would be shared by existing residents and future 
occupants of the proposed development at the site and would accord with the 
requirements of DMD9. A communal garden management plan condition would also 
be required.  

• A condition would be attached to any permission to remove permitted development 
rights for additional units to be added on top of the new block of flats.  

• The proposal would not have a negative impact on Walker Cricket Ground and 
Walker Primary School, furthermore they were consulted on the application and 
raised no concerns with the proposal.  

 

2.0  Conclusion  

2.1  The starting point for the determination of any planning application is the development 
plan. Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and the application of the tilted balance means 
that planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so 
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against 
the policies in the Framework taken as a whole, which also includes the Development 
Plan. Moreover, planning permission should be approved unless “the application of 

Page 8



policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed”. 

 
2.2 The development would provide additional residential units at the site. This would 

contribute towards the Borough’s strategic objectives in terms of delivering new 
homes. The quality of accommodation that the proposed 6 unit residential block would 
provide is acceptable. The development would not result in harm to the amenity and 
living conditions of the occupants of neighbouring residents or impact on the character 
and appearance of the Southgate Green Conservation Area or any other heritage 
assets. 

 
2.3 It is considered that the form, design and appearance of development would not be 

significantly dissimilar to the host residential block at Ellington Court and thus the 
proposed scheme would acceptably relate with the character of the surrounding 
Conservation Area. 

 
2.4 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions and the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development it is considered that the benefits of 
the development would outweigh any identified impacts. When assessed against the 
suite of relevant planning policies, it is considered that planning permission should be 
granted subject to conditions.  

 
2.5 The report should be read in conjunction with the report prepared for the Planning 

Committee on 18 July 2023 which is appended to this report.  
 
3.0 Recommendation 

3.1 That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning 
permission subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Time limit 

2. Approved Plans 

3. Details of external materials  

4. Detailed drawings of external materials to scale of between 1:20 and 1:1  

5. No additional fenestrations 

6. Details of levels  

7. Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 

8. Water consumption 

9. Energy statement 

10. EPC 

11. Cycle parking details 

12. Refuse details 

13. Construction Management Plan 

14. Tree Protection 

15. Tree replacement  

16. Soft Landscaping 

Page 9



17. Boundary treatment 

18. Biodiversity Enhancements  

19. Installation of green roof  

20. Hard Surfacing 

21. External lighting  

22. Details of levels  

23. M4(3) Building regulations  

24. Details of 1x disabled parking space  

25. Communal garden management plan 

26. Removal of PD Rights 

 

2.2      That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to agree 
the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation 
section of this report. 

 

Page 10



 
 

 
 LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

 
   PLANNING COMMITTEE Date: 18 July 2023 

 
   Report of 
    
  Director of Planning and Growth 
– Brett Leahy 

 
       Contact Officers: 
 
     Michael Kotoh-Mortty 
     Claire Williams 
 

 
Category 
 
Full Application 

    
   Ward 
 
   Southgate 

        
      Councillor Request on 28.08.20 
 
       Cllr Derek Levy  
 

 
  LOCATION:  Land rear of Ellington Court, Southgate N14 6LB 

 
 
   APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/01982/FUL 

 
PROPOSAL: Erection of a residential building (use class C3) with associated amenity 
space, landscaping, disabled car parking, cycle parking and associated works. 
 

 
 Applicant Name & Address: 
 

Akelius UK Twelve Ltd 
 
c/o Agent 

 
Agent Name & Address: 
 
Mr Julian Sutton 
JMS Planning & Development Ltd 
Build Studios 
203 Westminster Bridge Road 
London 
SE1 7FR 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning 

permission subject to conditions. 
 

2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to agree 
the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation 
section of this report. 

 

 

Page 11



Ref: 20/01982/FUL LOCATION: Land Rear Of Ellington Court , High Street, Southgate, N14 6LB

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Scale 1:1250 North

Page 12



1.0 Note for Members:    

1.1 Although an application of this scale and nature would normally be determined under 
delegated authority, the application has been reported to committee for determination 
at the request of Councillor Derek Levy due to the level of local interest.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning 
permission subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Time limit 

2. Approved Plans 

3. Details of external materials  

4. Detailed drawings of external materials to scale of between 1:20 and 1:1  

5. No additional fenestrations 

6. Details of levels  

7. Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 

8. Water consumption 

9. Energy statement 

10. EPC 

11. Cycle parking details 

12. Refuse details 

13. Construction Management Plan 

14. Tree Protection 

15. Tree replacement  

16. Soft Landscaping 

17. Boundary treatment 

18. Biodiversity Enhancements  

19. Installation of green roof  

20. Hard Surfacing 

21. External lighting  

22. Details of levels  

23. M4(3) Building regulations  

24. Details of 1x disabled parking space  

25. Communal garden management plan 

26. Removal of PD Rights 

 

 

Page 13



2.2      That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning        
            permission subject to conditions. 
 
            That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to agree 

the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation 
section of this report. 

 

3.0 Executive Summary 

3.1 The applicant seeks permission to erect a two storey residential building with a flat 
roof at the rear of Ellington Court to accommodate 6 flats with associated amenity 
space and parking.   

3.2  There were several objections and concerns regarding the initial submission which 
detailed a three storey residential development that entailed 9 units. However, the 
scheme has been amended to acceptably overcome previous concerns. The revised 
scheme includes a reduction in the height of the proposed building by one floor to 
realise a two storey development at the site to provide 6 units. 

3.3 The scheme is considered acceptable for the following reasons: 
 

1) The proposal would add six new residential units of accommodation to the 
Borough’s housing stock. 

2) The scheme would provide 4x3bed family units, 1x1 bed unit and 1x2bed unit.  
3) The quality of accommodation that would be provided is of an acceptable 

standard.  
4) There is no identified adverse impact on neighbouring residential amenity or 

the Conservation Area. 
5) There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation. 

 
 

4.0 Site and Surroundings 

4.1 The application site comprises 1-49 Ellington Court which is a four-storey residential 
block that accommodates   49 residential flats. Communal gardens are located to the 
rear of the site and measures approximately 2,469 square metres. 

4.2  The building was designed by renowned architect Sir Frederick Gibberd and is sited 
within the Southgate Green Conservation Area. The Character Appraisal indicates 
that Ellington Court dates between 1936-1950 and the property is identified as a 
neutral building. Owing to its demonstrable architectural interest as an inter-war Art 
Deco structure and its association with the pioneer of British modernist apartment 
buildings, Sir Frederick Gibberd, the site can be considered as a Non-Designated 
Heritage Asset (NDHA). 

4.3  The development pattern within the vicinity features a variety of build forms, scale 
and designs. The rear boundary of the site abuts Walker Primary School to the west, 
alongside Walker Cricket Ground which is a designated Local Open Space. To the 
north is a row of two storey residential properties and a block of flats. There are a row 
of two storey residential properties to the east which partially screen off Ellington 
Court from views along the High Street. The south of the site is bounded by a group 
of terraced residential properties that are three storey in height.   

 

Page 14



 

  

  

Figure 1: Site context 

Page 15



 

 

 
 
5.0 Proposal 
 
5.1 The applicant seeks permission to erect a two storey residential building with a flat roof 

to accommodate 6 flats at the rear of Ellington Court with associated car and cycle 
parking alongside amenity spaces. The new building would be sited to the south 
western corner of the existing communal garden that serves the residential court. The 
proposal would occupy approximately 697 square metres of the existing communal 
garden space which measures 2469 square metres. The remaining communal garden 
space would be shared by existing residents and future occupants of the proposed 
development at the site. 

 

5.2  The building would measure approximately 7.13 metres in height and have a 
maximum width of 24.59 metres and depth of 23.50 metres. It would be set away 
from the existing building by approximately 10.74 metres. The building would 
comprise the following: 

 Ground Floor 

 Unit 1 – 3b5p 

 Unit 2 – 3b6p 

 Unit 3 – 2b4p 

 First Floor 

 Unit 4 – 3b5p 

 Unit 5 – 3b6p 

 Unit 6 – 1b2p 

 
5.3  Cycle parking is proposed to the north of Ellington Court together with a new pedestrian 

access that leads to the proposed residential development at the rear garden space of 
Ellington Court. The Agent has clarified that there are 37 existing unallocated car 
parking spaces at the frontage of Ellington Court and these parking spaces could be 

Page 16



utilised by the future occupants of the proposed residential development. One new 
disabled parking space is sited to the front of the site.  

 

 

Figure 2: Proposed Block Plan and scale. 

Page 17



 
 
5.4   The initial proposal detailed a flat roofed three storey 9 unit residential development 

and following discussions with the agent regarding the scale and impact of the proposal 
on the setting, the scheme has subsequently been revised to feature a scale-down to 
6 units by removing the initially proposed second floor. Hence, the design of the revised 
scheme is now a two storey residential development. 

 
 
6.0 Relevant Planning History  

6.1 19/00494/FUL - Refurbishment and improvement of existing building and grounds, 
including new windows, entrance doors, boxing to conceal pipework on primary 
elevation, new access doors and terraces to ground floor flats, landscaping works 
and front/street wall.: GRANTED with Conditions on 03.04.2019. 

 
6.2 19/00475/PREHER - Proposed extension to existing building to create 13 residential 

units.: Pre-application advice given on 13.09.2019. 

Page 18



7.0 Consultation 
 

Public 
 
7.1  A site notice was put up as the application falls within the Southgate Green 

Conservation Area. The proposal was also advertised in the Enfield Independent. 
 
  
Number notified 102 
Representations made 2 
Objections  2 
Other / support comments  0 

  
 

In summary, the objections raise the following concerns: 
 
•  Impact on existing rear communal space; little space would be left for residents. 
 
• The site is already densely populated with 40 flats. 
 
• Impact on existing rear trees which sustain wildlife. The application site is not a 

wasteland. 
 
7.2  An objection was received from Cllr Levy stating that the initial proposal had several 

concerns on policy grounds and that it was a departure from the Local Plan. The 
case was therefore called in to committee should Officers be minded to approve the 
proposal. 

 
7.3  Officer response: The concerns will be discussed in more detail in the analysis 

section of the report.  
 
            
 
 Internal and third-party consultees 
 
7.4 

 
   

Consultee Objection Comment 
 
Conservation Officer 
 

 
No 
 

 
Objections removed following receipt of 
revised plans. Materials conditions 
suggested. 
 

 
Traffic and Transportation 
 

 
No 

 
Objections removed following receipt of 
revised details. 
 
 

 
Tree Officer 
 

 
No 

 
Objections removed following receipt of 
revised details. Condition suggested. 
 
 

Page 19



8.0 Relevant Policies 
 
8.1 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the Committee 

have regard to the provisions of the development plan so far as material to the 
application: and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be made in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate  otherwise. 

 
8.2 For the purposes of Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004, the development plan in force for the area comprises the Enfield Core Strategy 
(2010); the Enfield Development Management Document (2014); and The London 
Plan (2021).  

 
 National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 
8.3 The National Planning Policy Framework sets out at Paragraph 11 a presumption in 
 favour of sustainable development. For decision taking, this means: 
 
 “(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to date 
 development plan without delay; or 
 

(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which  are 
most important for determining the application are out-of-date (8), granting 
permission unless: 

 (i) the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of 
 particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development 
 proposed; or 

(ii) any adverse impacts of so doing would significantly and demonstrably  outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole. 
 

8.4 Footnote (8) referenced here advises “This includes, for applications involving the 
provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot 
demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, 
as set out in paragraph 74); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates  that the 
delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the  housing 
requirement over the previous 3 years.” 

8.5 In the three years to 2021 Enfield only met 67% of its housing requirement and this 
means we now fall into the “presumption in favour of sustainable development” 
category. 

8.6 This is referred to as the “tilted balance” and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) states that for decision-taking this means granting permission unless any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole – 
which also includes the Development Plan. Under the NPPF paragraph 11(d) the 
most important development plan policies for the application are deemed to be ‘out of 
date’. However, the fact that a policy is considered out of date does not mean it can 
be disregarded, but it means that less weight can be applied to it, and applications for 
new homes should be considered with more weight (tilted) by planning committee. 
The level of weight given is a matter of planning judgement and the statutory test 
continues to apply, that the decision should be, as section 38(6) of the Planning and 

Page 20



Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires, in accordance with the development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

8.7 Paragraph 197 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that: 

 

“In determining planning applications, local planning authorities should take account of: 

●   The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage     assets 
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 

●   The positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and 

●   The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character 
and distinctiveness.” 

 

Furthermore, at Paragraphs 199 and 200, it states: 

“When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a 
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation 
(and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or 
less than substantial harm to its significance.” 

 

“Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its 
alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear 
and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of: 

a) grade II listed buildings, or grade II registered parks or gardens, should be 
exceptional; 

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck 
sites, registered battlefields, grade I and II* listed buildings, grade I and II* registered 
parks and gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.” 

Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage 
asset or development within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any 
harm or loss should require clear and convincing justification. 

 

 The London Plan (2021) 
 
8.8 The London Plan is the overall strategic plan for London setting out an integrated 
 economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the development of 
 London for the next 20-25 years. The following policies of the London Plan are 
 considered particularly relevant: 

Page 21



 
GG1 Building strong and inclusive communities 

 GG2 Making the best use of land 
 GG3 Creating a healthy city 
 GG5 Growing a good economy 
 GG6 Increasing efficiency and resilience 
 D1 London’s form, character and capacity for growth 
 D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach 
 D4 Delivering good design 
 D6 Housing quality and standards 

D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency 
 D12 Fire safety 
 D14 Noise 
 H1 Increasing housing supply 
 HC1 Heritage conservation and growth 
 SI12 Flood risk management 
 T2 Healthy Streets 
 T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts 

T5 Cycling 
T6.1 Residential parking 

 
Core Strategy (2010) 

 
8.9 The Core Strategy was adopted in November 2010 and sets out a spatial planning 

framework for the development of the Borough through to 2025. The document 
provides the broad strategy for the scale and distribution of development and 
supporting infrastructure, with the intention of guiding patterns of development and 
ensuring development within the Borough is sustainable. The following is considered 
particularly relevant: 

 
       CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes  
       CP4 Housing quality 
       CP5 Housing types 
       CP6 Meeting particular housing needs 
            CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure 
            CP21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage infrastructure 
            CP22 Delivering sustainable waste management 
       CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists 
       CP28 Managing flood risk through development 
       CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment 
       CP31 Built and Landscape Heritage 
       CP32 Pollution 
            CP36 Biodiversity 
       CP46 Infrastructure contributions 
 

Development Management Document (2014) 
 

8.10 The Council’s Development Management Document (DMD) provides further 
 detail and standard based policies by which planning applications should be 
 determined. Policies in the DMD support the delivery of the Core Strategy. 

The following local plan Development Management Document policies are 
considered particularly relevant: 

 

Page 22



DMD3 Providing a mix of different sized homes 
DMD6 Residential character 
DMD8 General standards for new residential development 
DMD7 Development of Garden Land 
DMD9 Amenity space 
DMD10 Distancing 
DMD37 Achieving high quality and design-led development 
DMD38 Design process 
DMD44 Preserving Heritage Assets 
DMD45 Parking standards and layout 
DMD46 Vehicle Crossovers and Dropped Kerbs 
DMD47 Access, new roads and servicing 
DMD49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements 
DMD50 Environmental Assessment Methods 
DMD51 Energy efficiency standards 
DMD53 Low and Zero-Carbon Technology 
DMD56 Heating and cooling 
DMD58 Water efficiency 
DMD59 Avoiding and reducing flood risk 
DMD60 Assessing flood risk 
DMD 61 Managing surface water 
DMD 68 Noise 
DMD78 Nature Conservation 
DMD80 Trees on development sites 
DMD81 Landscaping 
 
 

8.11 Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 2021 
Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS, 2015) 
London Plan Housing, Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016) 
Southgate Green Conservation Area Character Appraisals 
Southgate Green Conservation Area Management Appraisals 
Manual for Streets 1 & 2 
Revised Technical Standards for Footway Crossovers 2013 
Enfield ‘Waste and Recycling Storage’ Planning Guidance (2019) 

 
Enfield Local Plan (Reg 18) (2021)  

 
8.12     The Reg 18 document sets out the Council’s preferred policy approach together with 

draft development proposals for several sites. It is Enfield’s Emerging Local Plan. 
 
8.13     As the emerging Local Plan progresses through the plan-making process, the draft 

policies within it will gain increasing weight, but at this stage it has relatively little           
weight in the decision-making process. 
 

8.14    Key local emerging policies from the plan are listed below: 
 
  
 SE1 Responding to the climate emergency 
 SE2 Sustainable design and construction 
  
 SE4 Reducing energy demand 

SE5 Greenhouse gas emissions and low carbon energy supply 

Page 23



SE6 Renewable energy development  
            SE7 Climate change adaptation and managing heat risk 
 SE9 Protection and improvement of watercourses 

SE10 Sustainable drainage systems 
BG2 Protecting nature conservation sites 
BG3 Biodiversity net gain, rewilding and offsetting 
BG7 Watercourses 
BG8 Urban greening and biophilic principles  

            BG11 Blue and green infrastructure plans 
DE1 Delivering a well-designed, high quality and resilient environment 
DE13 Housing standards and design 
D3: Inclusive design 
T1: Promoting sustainable transport 
ENV1: Local environmental protection 
D1: Securing contributions to mitigate the impact of development 

 
 
9.0  Assessment  
 
            The main issues arising from this proposal to consider are: 
 

1. Principle of development 
2. Quality of accommodation 
3. Character and appearance within the Conservation Area 
4. Impact upon the amenity of neighbours   
5. Parking and cycle parking 
6. Trees 
7. Biodiversity  
8. SuDS 

 
  Principle of development 
 
9.1 Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and the application of the tilted balance means that 

planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the 
policies in the Framework taken as a whole, which also includes the Development 
Plan. Moreover, planning permission should be approved unless “the application of 
policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed”. The NPPF and 
London Plan advise that local authorities should seek to deliver a wide choice of high-
quality homes, widen opportunities for home ownership and create sustainable, 
inclusive and mixed communities. Policy GG1 of the current London Plan recognises 
the need for more homes in London to promote opportunity and choice in ways that 
meet their needs at a price that is affordable. Policy GG4 of the London Plan also 
encourages the Council to provide a range of housing choices in order to take account 
of the various groups. Housing should be provided across a range of different sizes 
and types taking account of the requirements of different user groups.  

 
9.2  Policy CP 5 of the Core Strategy seeks to ensure that new developments offer a range 

of housing sizes to meet housing needs whilst ensuring that the quality and character 
of existing neighbourhoods is also respected. There is greatest need in the Borough 
for family sized housing with 3+ bedrooms, however the Borough requires housing of 
all sizes and six additional flats would add to the Borough’s housing stock and would 
contribute to the strategic objectives of the Borough.  

 

Page 24



9.3  Policy DMD7 (Garden Land) specifies that all new residential development must meet 
the following criteria: 
 
a. The development does not harm the character of the area; 
 
b. Increased density is appropriate, taking into account the site context in terms of its 
location, accessibility and the provision of local infrastructure; 
 
c. The original plot is of a sufficient size to allow for additional dwellings which meet the 
standards in DMD8 'General Standards for New Residential Development', (and other 
design policies); 
 
d. The individual plot sizes, orientation and layout created are appropriate to, and would 
not adversely impact on the residential amenity within the development, or the existing 
pattern of development in that locality; 
 
e. An adequate amount of garden space is retained within both of the individual plots 
in accordance with the minimum amenity space standards (DMD 9 'Amenity Space'), 
and the role of each space is enhanced to contribute towards other plan objectives 
such as biodiversity; green corridors and networks; flood risk; climate change; local 
context and character; and play space; and 
 
f. The proposals would provide appropriate access to the public highway. 

 

9.4  The proposed two storey residential development would sit at the rear garden of the 
four storey existing residential block at Ellington Court and the proposal would not be 
visible at the front street. This aspect of the proposal would accord with DMD6, 
DMD10, DMD37, DMD44 with no visual damage on the streetscene.  The revised 
scheme features brickwork and fenestrations that would appear sympathetic to the 
character of the host property and therefore the proposal alongside with the reduced 
scale would not be conspicuous at this location in view of policy DMD6. The scheme 
would be well embedded at the rear elevation of the host residential block with no 
significant visual impact to the character of the Conservation Area, having regard to 
policy DMD44. Furthermore, the retained rear garden space at Ellington Court would 
be sufficient to provide communal amenity to both existing and future occupiers of the 
new development in view of policy DMD7 and in this regard, the proposal would not 
compromise amenity provision at the site. The other aspects of DMD7 will be 
discussed in more detail in other sections of this report.  

 
9.5  Significant weight must be attributed to the presumption in favour of approving 

sustainable residential development and the planning merits of providing new homes. 
However, these planning merits must be balanced against all other relevant planning 
considerations which seek to ensure that appropriate regard is given to design, 
impact on the character of the area, residential amenity, traffic generation and 
highway safety and acceptability with regards to sustainability and flooding. 

 
 
  Housing Mix  
 
9.6  The revised scheme features 4 x 3b units, 1 x 2b unit, 1 x 1bp unit respectively which 

would provide a mix of housing types at this location with a greater number of three 
bed family units which is welcomed and thereby contributing towards the Council’s 
housing targets. 

Page 25



 
 
 
 
  Unit sizes and quality of accommodation 
 
9.7  Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) Table 3.1 refers to the Technical Housing 

Standards - nationally described space standards, which stipulates the minimum 
space  standards for new development. The proposed dwelling would be expected to 
meet and where possible exceed these minimum standards and those contained within 
the Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance SPG (March 2016). 

 
   

Unit Dwelling type 
(bedroom 
(b)/persons-
bedspaces (p)) 

Required GIA 
(sq.m) in London 
Plan 

GIA (sq,m) 

Flat 1 3b5p 86 93 
Flat 2 3b6p 95 96 
Flat 3 2b4p 70 85 
Flat 4 3b5p 86 93 
Flat 5 3b6p 95 110 
Flat 6 1b2p 50 56 

 
 
9.8  The submitted plans indicate that the gross internal areas of the proposed units would 

accord with policies D6 of the London Plan (2021), CP4 of the Core Strategy and the 
Technical Housing Standards – Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015). 
It should also be noted that any area with a headroom of less than 1.5 metres is not 
counted within the Gross Internal Area unless used solely for storage. A section 
drawing has been provided on the submitted plans which shows the internal height of 
the residential block would be 2.46m on both floors and therefore the stated head 
height would accord with the minimum requirement of 2.3m in line with policy D6. The 
submission shows that there would be reasonable space to stand in the main areas of 
the new dwelling, dual aspect units are proposed, and the habitable rooms would gain 
sufficient natural lighting. The proposal would therefore realise good quality 
accommodation that would contribute towards the Council’s housing stock. 

  
 
 
  Amenity space 
 
9.9  DMD9 of the Development Management Document seeks to ensure that new 

development retains sufficient amenity spaces. The submitted floorplans indicate that 
the proposed amenity space for the development would be the following: 

 
 

Unit Dwelling type 
(bedroom 

(b)/persons-
bedspaces 
(p)) 

Minimum required 
amenity 
space in 
policy  

DMD 9 (sq,m) 

Poposed amenity 
space 
(sq,m) 

Flat 1 3b5p 8 31 
Flat 2 3b6p 9 48 

Page 26



Flat 3 2b4p 7 31 
Flat 4 3b5p 8 8 
Flat 5 3b6p 9 10 
Flat 6 1b2p 5 8 

 
 
  The above arrangement would accord with the minimum requirements under policy 

DMD9 of the DMD. 
 
  Design and Impact on Conservation Area 
 
9.10 Policy DMD6 of the DMD provides standards for new development with regard to scale 

and form of development, housing quality and density. Policy DMD8 provides general 
standards for new residential development and reiterates the requirement for a 
development to be of an appropriate scale, mass and bulk, provide high quality amenity 
space and provide access to parking and refuse areas. DMD37 encourages achieving 
a high quality and design led development, which is reiterated within policies D4 and 
D8 of the London Plan (2021). 

 
9.11 The existing development pattern on the streetscene features a variety of properties 

that generally maintain a uniformity in scale and character.  

9.12 Earlier concerns were raised by the Heritage Advisor and Cllr Levy regarding the 
impact of the proposal on the Conservation Area. These concerns have now been 
addressed under the revised scheme through a reduction in the scale of the proposal 
from the initial three storey 9 unit development to a two storey six unit development 
and in this regard, the revised scheme would be more of a subservient addition to the 
rear garden of the host property at Ellington Court, thereby seamlessly assimilating 
into the existing development pattern within the Conservation Area and the revised 
proposal would accord with policies DMD6 and DMD44.  

 
9.13 The proposed two storey residential development would sit at the rear garden of the 

four storey existing residential block at Ellington Court and the proposal would not be 
visible at the front street. This aspect of the proposal would accord with DMD6, 
DMD10, DMD37, DMD44 with no visual damage on the streetscene.  The revised 
scheme features brickwork and fenestrations that would appear sympathetic to the 
character of the host property and therefore the proposal alongside with the reduced 
scale would not be conspicuous at this location in view of policy DMD6. The scheme 
would be well embedded at the rear elevation of the host residential block with no 
significant visual impact to the character of the Conservation Area, having regard to 
policy DMD44. Furthermore, the retained rear garden space at Ellington Court would 
be sufficient to provide communal amenity to both existing and future occupiers of the 
new development in view of policy DMD7 and in this regard, the proposal would not 
compromise amenity provision at the site. 

 
9.14  Appropriate conditions relating to external materials will be attached to the permission 

to ensure that a high quality design is achieved on the site.  
 

 Impact upon the amenity of neighbours 

9.15 Policies DMD8 and DMD10 of the Development Management Document refer to 
neighbouring amenities and distancing standards. DMD10 sets out minimum 
distances between rear windows however given the siting of the new building. 

Page 27



However the most appropriate standard would be the minimum separation distance 
between windows and side boundaries of 11m. 

9.16 The proposed east facing flank windows of the scheme would retain some 13-15m 
separation to the rear façade of the host property at Ellington Court and this would 
accord with policy DMD10 and would be sufficient spacing to ensure the proposal does 
exacerbate any impacts of overlooking, sense of enclosure or privacy at this location. 

9.17 A daylight/sunlight report was submitted and assessed against the widely recognised 
standards set out in BRE’s Daylight, Sunlight, and Overshadowing assessments to 
quantify the potential daylight and sunlight affect to the neighbouring residential 
properties in respect of the three storey building. The report has been undertaken by 
constructing a detailed 3D model of the existing and proposed development sites and 
surroundings, then using specialist computer software, daylight and sunlight 
simulations and numerical calculations are run within the 3D model environment. 

9.18 The report concludes that the findings indicate that the development is not of an 
excessive scale for the immediate surrounding area in daylight and sunlight terms 
and will broadly meet the intentions of the BRE guide. It should be noted that the 
scale and massing of the building has been reduced by removing a storey so that the 
building comprises two stories rather than three which would further reduce any 
impact on the existing flats at Ellington Court. Consequently, it is considered that the 
proposal would meet the aims of the BRE Guidelines and would not impact on 
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of light. 

 

 Transportation, servicing and parking 

9.19 The London Plan, Core Strategy and DMD policies encourage and advocate 
sustainable modes of travel and require that each development should be assessed 
on its respective merits and requirements, in terms of the level of parking spaces to 
be provided for example. 

9.20  There are 33 existing car parking spaces on the site. The agent has clarified that only 
22 of the existing 33 parking spaces are in use at the site. There are therefore 11 
unallocated parking spaces at the site which could be utilised by the occupiers of the 
proposed development. 

9.21  The PTAL of the site is 4, and it is a close to Southgate tube station (approx. 600m). 
This is an acceptable walking distance according to “Journeys on Foot” (Institute of 
Highways and Transportation) and therefore a relaxation of the parking standards 
could be permitted. The Transport Statement includes a parking survey on surrounding 
roads. It suggests that parking is approaching saturation with on average only five 
spaces being available over two nights. However, parking surveys were also 
undertaken and showed 11 spaces available in the existing car park out of 33 spaces. 
The Transportation team have confirmed that car parking provision is acceptable, and 
the agent has confirmed that the existing units could be redistributed to the new 
residential units. One disabled parking space is proposed and the exact location of this 
space will be conditioned.  

9.22 A new pedestrian path is proposed which is welcomed to improve connectivity across 
the site. With regard to servicing the site can be serviced from within the existing site 
car park.  

9.23 A total of 18 cycle spaces will be provided for the six units. There are also 48 spaces 
approved as retrospective provision for the existing units. This is welcomed and 
ensures cycle parking for both existing and proposed meets London Plan standards. 

Page 28



The location of cycle parking and refuse storage provision has been provided however 
full details have not been submitted and therefore this will be requested and secured 
through conditions.  

 
 
 Impact on trees at the site 

9.24   The submitted details indicate that 5 individual trees and 2 groups of tress would be 
removed to facilitate the proposal and these trees are T3 (category U), T9 (category 
B1), T12 (category U), T13 (category U), T14 (category U) and group  of trees  G1 and 
G2 (category C), where category U refers to a tree that is Unsuitable for Retention, 
category C refers to a tree that is of Low Quality and Value  whereas category B1 
refers to a tree of Moderate Quality and Value. The submitted Tree Survey indicates 
that 14 individual trees would be retained at the site.  

9.25  The initial proposal sought to retain tree T9, however, given that this tree would touch 
the proposed residential block, the Tree Officer recommended a removal of tree T9. 
The agent has agreed that this removed tree could be replaced elsewhere at the site 
by way of a tree condition and associated landscape condition. The Tree Officer has 
therefore recommended a condition to ensure that suitable replacement trees and 
landscaping are implemented at the site in line with policies DMD80 and DMD81. 

9.26 The proposed loss of trees is not significant and clearly no significant or high value 
trees or quantity of trees are being removed.  All other trees and vegetation can be 
retained. The Council’s Tree Officer has reviewed the arboricultural report and is 
satisfied that the approach to the trees on the site is the correct one and has no 
objection. 

 

 Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 
 
9.27 London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13 require the consideration of the effects of 

development on flood risk and sustainable drainage respectively. Core Policy 28 
(“Managing flood risk through development”) confirms the Council’s approach to flood 
risk, inclusive of the requirement for SuDS in all developments. Policy DMD59 
(“Avoiding and reducing flood risk”) confirms that new development must avoid and 
reduce the risk of flooding, and not increase the risks elsewhere and that planning 
permission will only be granted for proposals which have addressed all sources of flood 
risk and would not be subject to, or result in unacceptable levels of flood risk on site or 
increase the level of flood risk to third parties. 

 
9.28  DMD61 (“Managing surface water”) requires the submission of a drainage strategy that 

incorporates an appropriate SuDS scheme and appropriate greenfield runoff rates. 
The scheme proposes a permeable pedestrian path and a green roof to the new two 
storey building. To fully ensure that the scheme accords with policy requirements a 
SuDS condition is recommended in view of policies DMD59 and DMD61 to ensure that 
the development is safe from flooding and does not increase the risk of flooding 
elsewhere. 

 
Biodiversity  
 

9.29  In accordance with policy requirements the scheme will need to incorporate 
biodiversity enhancements. If approved, conditions will be attached to ensure details 

Page 29



of ecological enhancements such as bat/bird boxes and appropriate landscaping are 
planted. 
 

 
Sustainable Design and Construction 

9.30 Policy DMD49 states all new development must achieve the highest sustainable 
design and construction standards and include measures capable of mitigating and 
adapting to climate change to meet future needs having regard to technical feasibility 
and economic viability. Policy DMD51 states further energy efficiency standards and 
that all developments will be required to demonstrate how the proposal minimises 
energy- related CO2 emissions which must adhere to the principles of the energy 
hierarchy in the policy. This follows policy CP20 of the Core Strategy which states that 
the Council will require all new developments, to address the causes and impacts of 
climate change by: 

 
• minimising energy use;  
• supplying energy efficiently; and  
• using energy generated from renewable sources in line with the London Plan 

and national policy.  
 

9.31 An energy statement has been submitted which sets out that a minimum of 35% 
reduction of carbon emissions will be achieved and an air source heat pump will be 
incorporated within the scheme. To ensure the scheme achieves no less than 35% 
reduction in carbon emissions a condition will be attached to any permission.   
 
Accessibility  

9.32 Internally each floor will be served by an easy rise staircase and passenger lift. All 
dwellings are proposed to be designed to meet building regulation Part M4(2), with 1 
no. Ground floor unit (Unit 3) is designed to meet Part M4(3) wheelchair 
adaptable/accessible units which is in accordance with policy requirements and will be 
secured through conditions.  

   
 
10.0 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  
 
10.1 The proposed development would create new residential units and would therefore 

be liable to pay CIL at borough and mayoral levels, the applicable borough CIL Zone 
is the Higher Rate Eastern Zone (£120 per sqm) and Zone 2 for Mayoral (MCIL2, £60 
per sqm). The Enfield CIL will be approximately £73,863.60 and the Mayoral CIL will 
be £36, 931.80. 

 
11.0 Public Sector Equalities Duty 
 
11.1 In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to the 

need to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. Section 149 of the Act requires public authorities 
to have due regard to several equality considerations when exercising their functions 
including decision making on planning applications. These considerations include: 
Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act; Advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic (explained in detail below) and persons who 

Page 30



do not share it; Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
11.2 The main objective of the duty has been to ensure public policies and programmes are 

implemented fairly, in particular with regard to their impact on the protected 
characteristics identified above. In making this recommendation, due regard has been 
given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant protected characteristics (age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage / civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation). 

 
11.3 When determining the planning application (and thereby accounting for the 

representations resulting from public consultation), the Council has considered the 
potential effects of the proposed development on those with protected characteristics 
as defined under the Equality Act 2010. In doing this, the Council has had due regard 
to equality considerations and attribute appropriate weight to such considerations. In 
providing the recommendation to Members that planning consent should be granted, 
officers have considered equalities impacts in the  balance, alongside the benefits 
arising from the proposed development. The Council has also considered appropriate 
mitigation to minimise the potential effects of the proposed development on those with 
protected characteristics.   

 
11.4 There are no statutory or regulatory requirements for the form or content of an 

equalities assessment. The scale and significance of such impacts cannot always be 
quantified, and it is common to address this through descriptive analysis of impacts 
and identifying whether such impacts are adverse or beneficial. The key elements of 
the Proposed Development which have an impact that could result in an equalities 
effect include the design and physical characteristics of the proposals subject to the 
planning application.  Officers do not consider there would be a disproportionate 
equalities effect.  

 
11.5 In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a 

way which is incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention 
on Human Rights. The human rights impact has been considered, with particular 
reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of property), Article 8 (Right to 
respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) of the 
Convention.  

 
11.6 The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions 

and enforce laws as deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is 
considered appropriate in upholding the council's adopted and emerging policies and 
is not outweighed by any engaged rights.  

 
12.0 Conclusion and Recommendation 
 
12.1 The starting point for the determination of any planning application is the development 

plan. Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and the application of the tilted balance means 
that planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so 
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against 
the policies in the Framework taken as a whole, which also includes the Development 
Plan. Moreover, planning permission should be approved unless “the application of 
policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 
provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed”. 

 
12.2 Having regard to the assessment in this report, the development would provide 

additional residential units at the site. This would contribute towards the Borough’s 

Page 31



strategic objectives in terms of delivering new homes. The quality of accommodation 
that the proposed 6 unit residential block would provide is acceptable, based on the 
up-to-date housing quality standards outlined in The London Plan (2021). The 
development would not result in the harmful overlooking of neighbours nor would it 
result in harm to the amenity and living conditions of neighbours or the Southgate 
Green Conservation Area. 

 
12.3 It is considered that the form, design and appearance of development would not be 

significantly dissimilar to host residential block at Ellington Court and thus the 
proposed scheme would acceptably relate with the character of the surrounding 
Conservation Area. 

 
12.4 The above assessment against the development plan policies has produced the 

following conclusion: 
 

- The proposal would provide 6 new flats with an acceptable standard of 
accommodation that would contribute to the housing stock in the borough. 

 
- The proposed development is considered appropriate in form and design and 

would not result in detrimental harm to the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area. 

 
- The proposal, by virtue of its form and small scale, would not harm the amenity of 

occupying and neighbouring residents. 
 

- There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation. 
 

- The reasons for the objections to the initial planning application have been 
acceptably overcome by the revised scheme. 

 
12.5 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions and the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development it is considered that the benefits of 
the development would outweigh any identified impacts. When assessed against the 
suite of relevant planning policies, it is considered that planning permission should be 
granted subject to conditions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 32



EXISTING
FLAT NO. 1 - 49

ELLINGTON COURT

HIG
H STREET

TH
E G

R
EEN

THE WALKER GROUND

WALKER PRIMARY SCHOOL

25

23

21

19

15

17

7

5

DESTA
COURT

12

27

29

31

FONTAINE 
COURT

30

32

SHAKESPEARE
HOUSE

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

INFORMATION 

KEY PLAN 

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.

This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

2.5 5 12.5 m

Scale (1:500)

P011 : 500 at A3

ELC- LGA- 00- XX- DR- A- 0101

PLANNING

Existing Site Plan

Ellington Court

Scale - 1 : 500
Existing Site Plan1

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review

P
age 33



UP

A
0600

B
0601

C
0602

1
0603

2
0604

Kitchen/Living

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 2

Unit 02 Terrace

Kitchen/Living

Bedroom 1Bedroom 2

En Suite

Store

Bathroom

Bedroom 1Bedroom 2Bedroom 3

Kitchen/Living

En Suite

Store

Store

Plant

Communal Entrance
Bathroom

Unit 01
3B5P
92.5m²

Unit 02
3B5P
89.1m²

Unit 03
2B4P Acc.
84.7m²

Unit 01 Terrace

31m²

40m²

EXISTING 
FLAT NO. 1 - 49 

ELLINGTON COURT

ENTRANCE

ENTRANCE

Bin Store

Existing garden fence

Communal 
Landscaped 

Garden

Communal garden path

Unit 01 Terrace

48m²

Access to site from street

Site boundary

Cycle Parking

Plant

Post 
Boxes

Bedroom 1

31m²

Unit 03 Terrace

Bathroom En Suite

Store

Key

1B 2P Unit

2B 4P Unit

3B 5P Unit

Circulation Zone

Private Terrace

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

INFORMATION

KEY PLAN

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.

This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

0.25 0.5 1.25 m

Scale (1:25)

P061 : 100 at A1

ELC- LGA- 00- 00- DR- A- 0200

FOR INFORMATION

Proposed Ground Floor
Plan

Ellington Court

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review AB

P02 02/06/20 Issued For Planning CR

P03 22/01/21 Issued For Review CR

P04 04/02/21 Updated to planners
comments

CR

P05 13/02/23 Note to tree amended CR

P06 03/05/23 Note to tree amended CB

Tree to be removed in accordance 
with the Tree Officer's comments 
and replacement trees to be 
provided.

P
age 34

MKOTOHMORTTY
Distance Measurement
Distance:
5.00 m 



01

05 06

Oriel windows: 
obscured  to East, 
opaque openable 

panel to South, 
transparent glazing 

to North

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

04

Material Key

Buff multi waterstruck brick with red/yellow tones in stretcher 
bond. Light colour mortar.01

Buff multi waterstruck brick with red/yellow tones in stretcher 
bond. Dark colour mortar.02

Precast lintel in white/grey tone03

Precast coping in white/grey tone04

Powder coated metal frame window in brown-grey finish05

Powder coated metal frame glazed door in brown-grey finish06

Powder coated steel frame louvred door in brown-grey 
finish. Slim horizontal louvres.07

Powder coated metal frame glazed entrance door in 
brown-grey finish08

Powder coated metal balustrade – finish to match 
window/door frames09

Obscured glazingO

GROUND FLOOR

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

INFORMATION

KEY PLAN

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.

This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

1 2 5 m

Scale (1:100)

P04

ELC- LGA- 00- XX- DR- A- 0702

PLANNING

Proposed North
Elevation

Ellington Court

1:100 @ A1

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review AB

P02 02/06/20 Issued For Planning CR

P03 04/02/21 Updated to planners
comments

CR

P04 03/05/23 Note to tree amended CB

Tree to be removed in accordance with the Tree 
Officer's comments and replacement trees to be 
provided.

P
age 35



P
age 36



02

03

01

01

S
IT

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

04

05

O

Material Key

Buff multi waterstruck brick with red/yellow tones in stretcher 
bond. Light colour mortar.01

Buff multi waterstruck brick with red/yellow tones in stretcher 
bond. Dark colour mortar.02

Precast lintel in white/grey tone03

Precast coping in white/grey tone04

Powder coated metal frame window in brown-grey finish05

Powder coated metal frame glazed door in brown-grey finish06

Powder coated steel frame louvred door in brown-grey 
finish. Slim horizontal louvres.07

Powder coated metal frame glazed entrance door in 
brown-grey finish08

Powder coated metal balustrade – finish to match 
window/door frames09

Obscured glazingO

GROUND FLOOR

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

INFORMATION

KEY PLAN

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.

This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

1 2 5 m

Scale (1:100)

P04

ELC- LGA- 00- XX- DR- A- 0703

PLANNING

Proposed West Elevation

Ellington Court

1:100 @ A1

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review AB

P02 02/06/20 Issued For Planning CR

P03 04/02/21 Updated to planners
comments

CR

P04 03/05/23 Note to tree amended CB

Tree to be removed in accordance with the Tree 
Officer's comments and replacement trees to be 
provided.

P
age 37



CR

P
age 38



FLAT NO. 1 - 49
ELLINGTON COURT

HIG
H STREET

TH
E G

R
EEN

MEADWAY

THE WALKER 
GROUND

WALKER PRIMARY 
SCHOOL

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

INFORMATION 

KEY PLAN 

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.

This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

6.25 12.5 31.25 m

Scale (1:1250)

P011 : 1250 at A3

ELC- LGA- 00- XX- DR- A- 0100

PLANNING

Existing Location Plan

Ellington Court

Scale -1 : 1250
Existing Location Plan1

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review

P
age 39



A
0600

B
0601

C
0602

1
0603

2
0604

Kitchen/Living

Bathroom

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 1

Store

Store

Kitchen/Living

Bathroom TerraceBathroom

Store
Store

Store

WC

Bedroom 1Bedroom 2Bedroom 3

Kitchen/Living

Terrace

Terrace

Store

Unit 04
3B5P
94.1m²

Unit 05
3B6P
105.1m²

Unit 06
1B2P 
55.8m²

EXISTING 
FLAT NO. 1 - 49 

ELLINGTON COURT

Riser

7.8m²

10m²

8.1m²

En Suite

Store

Bedroom

Key

1B 2P Unit

2B 4P Unit

3B 5P Unit

Circulation Zone

Private Terrace

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

INFORMATION

KEY PLAN

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.
This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

1 2 5 m

Scale (1:100)

P041 : 100 at A1

ELC- LGA- 00- 01- DR- A- 0201

FOR INFORMATION

Proposed First Floor
Plan

Ellington Court

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review AB
P02 02/06/20 Issued For Planning CR
P03 22/01/21 Issued For Review CR
P04 04/02/21 Updated to planners

comments
CR

Extent of tree canopy

P
age 40



A
0600

B
0601

C
0602

1
0603

2
0604

Green Roof

EXISTING 
FLAT NO. 1 - 49 

ELLINGTON COURT

AOV

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

INFORMATION

KEY PLAN

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.

This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

1 2 5 m

Scale (1:100)

P021 : 100 at A1

ELC- LGA- 00- 03- DR- A- 0203

PLANNING

Proposed Roof Plan

Ellington Court

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review AB

P02 02/06/20 Issued For Planning CR

P
age 41



T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9
T11

T10

T12
T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G2

T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9
T11

T10

T12
T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G2

T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9
T11

T10

T12
T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G2

T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9
T11

T10

T12
T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G2

T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9
T11

T10

T12
T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G2

T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9
T11

T10

T12
T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G2

T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9
T11

T10

T12
T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G2

T1

T2T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T9
T11

T10

T13 T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

EXISTING
FLAT NO. 1 - 49

ELLINGTON COURT

HIG
H STREET

TH
E G

R
EEN

THE WALKER GROUND

WALKER PRIMARY SCHOOL

25

23

21

19

15

17

7

5

DESTA
COURT

12

27

29

31

FONTAINE 
COURT

30

32

SHAKESPEARE
HOUSE

FLAT NO. 1 - 9
ELLINGTON COURT

0

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING 

DATEREV. DESCRIPTION

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

PROJECT 

REV.

For general enquires:  studio@lyndongoode.com

INFORMATION 

KEY PLAN 

Do not scale from this drawing. Contractor to check 
and verify all building and site dimensions, levels and 
sewer invert levels at connection points before work 
starts.

This drawing is to be read and checked in conjunction 
with information provided by the engineers and other 
specialists.

© 2019 Lyndon Goode Architects Ltd.

2.5 5 12.5 m

Scale (1:500)

P021 : 500 at A3

ELC- LGA- 00- XX- DR- A- 0102

PLANNING

Proposed Site Plan

Ellington Court

Scale - 1 : 500
Proposed Site Plan1

Cycle 
Store

P01 22/05/20 Issued for Stage 2 Review
P02 02/06/20 Issued For Planning

P
age 42



P03 04/02/21Updated to planners 
comments

FOR INFORMATION

CR

P
age 43



BRW

CONC

TMAC

FB

GRS

FB

FB

TMAC

FB

FB

GRS

BPAV

FBBRW

FB

MPAV

FB

BRW

BRW

BRW

CPAV

FB

GRS

CPAV

FB

FB

BRW

CBF

TMAC

CBF

FB

FB

FB

CPAV

FB

CONC

FB

GRS

CPAV

FB

FB

FB

TMAC

TMAC

CONC

FB

FB

FB

MPAV

MPAV

FB

TMAC

GRS

FB

FB

FB

FB

FB

CONC

FB

FB

FB

FB

CONC

CONC

WMF

FB

GRS

GRS

WMF

WMF

WMF

CBF

GRS

GRS

CONC

FB

GRS

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T16

T17

T18

T19

G1

G2

SCRUB/OVERGROWN

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R
R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R
R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

R

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

G2

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

G2

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

G2

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

G2

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

G2

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

G2

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T8

T9T11

T10

T12

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

G2

T1

T2

T3

T4

T5

T6

T7

T9T11

T10

T13

T14

T15

T17

T19

G1

2No. AME LAM

2No. AME LAM

1No. PRU AVI

2No. PRU AVI

2No. SOR AUC

3No. BET PEN

2No. PRU AVI

300No. BUX SEM
PROPOSED FORMAL HEDGE TO BOUNDARY

10L POTS, PLANTED SINGLE ROW 5 PER LINEAR
METRE

1No. CAR BET

1No. SOR AUC
'STREETWISE'

1No. CAR BET

1No. CAR BET

2No. PRU AVI

1No. SOR AUC
'STREETWISE'

2No. PRU CER

2No. PRU CER

1No. SYR VUL

1No. SYR VUL

3No. BET JAQ

1No. AME LAM

1No. AME LAM

13No. VIB DAV

13No. CHO SUN
18No. HEB RAK

13No. BER PUR

10No. EUO AUR

13No. CHO AZT

13No. SPI GOL

13No. CEA REP

18No. EUO GOL
15No. VIB DAV

8No. CHO SUN

10No. HEB MET
13No. BER PUR

10No. EUO AUR

10No. CHO SUN

14No. HEB MET 18No. CEA REP

18No. EUO GOL

21No. EUO GOL

13No. VIB DAV

8No. HEB RAK

8No. EUO AUR

7No. HYP HID
6No. AUC VAR

8No. CEA REP

18No. AUC VAR

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 18m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

18No. CEA REP
18No. COR ALB
18No. EUO AUR

8No. CHO SUN
12No. VIB DAV

8No. EUO AUR

6No. CHO SUN

6No. HYP HID
8No. AUC VAR

6No. CEA REP

8No. EUO AUR

10No. VIB DAV

6No. CHO AZT

9No. BER PUR

7No. HEB MET

17No. EUO GOL 20No. HEB MET

11No. BER PUR

7No. EUO AUR

7No. HEB MET

27No. AUC VAR

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 37m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

27No. CEA REP
27No. COR ALB
26No. EUO AUR

27No. BER PUR

26No. HEB MET
26No. VIB DAV

48No. CHO AZT

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 77m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

48No. CEA REP
48No. COR ALB
48No. EUO AUR

48No. CHO SUN

48No. HEB MET
48No. SPI GOL
48No. VIB DAV

7No. AUC VAR
7No. HYP HID

8No. CHO SUN

10No. VIB DAV

10No. EUO GOL

17No. VIB DAV

20No. HEB MET

34No. AUC VAR

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 48m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

34No. CEA REP
34No. COR ALB
34No. EUO AUR

34No. BER PUR

34No. HEB MET
34No. VIB DAV

30No. AUC VAR

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 19m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

30No. CEA REP
30No. COR ALB
30No. EUO AUR

30No. BER PUR

30No. HEB MET
30No. VIB DAV

27No. AUC VAR

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 27m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

27No. CEA REP
27No. COR ALB
27No. RUS ACU

55No. CHO AZT

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

55No. CEA REP
55No. COR ALB
55No. SAM NIG
55No. ROS CAN
55No. RUS ACU

55No. AUC VAR

EXISTING RETAINED VEGETATION

7No. BER PUR

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 7m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 3.

7No. CEA REP
7No. HEB MET
7No. VIB DAV

13No. CHO AZT

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

13No. CEA REP
13No. COR ALB
13No. SAM NIG
13No. ROS CAN
13No. RUS ACU

PROPOSED NATIVE HEDGE TO BOUNDARY 151 Lin m

106No. ACE CAM

529No. CRA MON
106No. LIG VUL
106No. ROS CAN

106No. CAR BET

106No. VIP OPU
90 TO 120cm HIGH BR,
PLANTED IN DOUBLE
STAGGERED ROW,
7 PER LINEAR METER

8No. HEB RAK

1No. AME LAM

13No. CHO AZT

15No. CHO SUN

1No. AME LAM

PROPOSED MARGINAL PLANTING 16m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5 @ 5/m2.

10No. CAL PAL
10No. EUP CAN
10No. IRI PSE
10No. LYT SAL
10No. MEN AQU
10No.  POT NAT
10No. RAN AQU
10No. FIL ULM

1No. AME LAM

23No. AUC VAR

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 57m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

23No. CEA REP

23No. COR ALB
23No. EUO AUR

23No. BER PUR

23No. HEB MET

23No. VIB DAV
23No. SAM NIG

23No. CHO AZT
23No. CHO SUN

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 96m2

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 24m2
13No. AUC VAR

Bin Store

Plant Room

10No. CHO AZT

PROPOSED SHRUB PLANTING 17m2

SPECIES TO BE PLANTED IN GROUPS OF AT
LEAST 5.

10No. CEA REP
10No. COR ALB
10No. SAM NIG
10No. ROS CAN
10No. RUS ACU

10No. AUC VAR

12No. SPI GOL

12No. HEB MET

12No. COR ALB

12No. COR ALB
10No. CHO SUN

10No. CEA REP

5No. VIB DAV
6No. HEB MET

6No. EUO GOL

2No. AME LAM

1No. AME LAM

1No. AME LAM

10No. HED HEL

15No. HED HEL

4No. PHO JES

PROPOSED TREE PLANTING

PROPOSED DECORATIVE
SHRUB PLANTING

PROPOSED AREA
OF GRASS

PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
GRAVEL
Product: Butterscotch
Supplier: Sureset
Finish: 3mm

PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
GRAVEL
Product: Barley Butter
Supplier: Sureset
Finish: 3mm

PROPOSED PLAY AREA
Play Area to be finished in a Wet Pour
Surface surrounded by Bow Top Railings

PROPOSED MACADAM
Proposed macadam to road surface

PROPOSED GRAVEL EDGE
3-6mm Gravel to the edges of the building
edged with a tarnished timber edge

PROPOSED TIMBER BENCH
Product: Type 2 Backless Bench
Supplier: Woodscape
Size: 2500mm length

EXISTING VEGETATION
To be retained

EXISTING TREES
To be retained

PROPOSED CONCRETE
PAVING TO REAR GARDENS
Product: Standard Flags
Supplier: Tobermore
Colour: Buff
Size: 400x400x40mm

PROPOSED NATIVE HEDGE

EXISTING TREES
To be removed

PROPOSED SHRUB
PLANTING AREAS

PROPOSED MODULAR
SEATING
To Akelius Specification.

PROPOSED CLIMBING
PLANT

Note:
The material contained in this document has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map with
permissionof the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. Crown Copyright Licence number AL100035542

N

project

title

drawing number

scale

revision

checked

date

drawn

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DWG   I   DRAWING SUBJECT TO COPYRIGHT©

Gloucester House
399 Silbury Boulevard
Milton Keynes
MK9 2AH
T  01908 303701
W  www.enplan.net

revision / date / description / drawn

client

Ellington Court, Southgate
London, N14 6LB

Detailed Soft
Landscape Proposals

06-807-701

1:250 @ A1

LB

08.09.2018

RH

C

Rev A, 21.11.2019, updated for tender queries, LB

Rev B, 31/03/2020, updated with new buildings, LB

Rev C, Updated to comments received, LB

Brooks Murray Architects

OUTLINE SPECIFICATION

TREE PROTECTION
Existing trees and shrubs to be retained shall be protected in accordance with the current British Standard 'Trees in relation to construction', generally fencing shall be a 1.2m
high cleft chestnut or 1.8m 'Herras' type fencing secured and maintained in position for the duration of construction.
GENERAL
All planting work & plants shall be in accordance with all approved current/relevant horticultural & British Standard specifications including 'Nursery stock', 'Landscape
Operations', 'Trees in relation to Design, Demolition & Construction', 'Tree Work' and the latest National Building Specification, National Plant Specification & HTA 'Handling &
Establishing Landscape Plants. Herbicides, pesticides and other chemicals may only be used with the approval of the CA. Use of chemicals shall be in accordance with all
relevant guidelines and the manufacturers recommendations. Imported topsoil shall be a minimum specification of General purpose grade, unless otherwise instructed. 1 cu.m
approved compost/organic material/soil ameliorant per 20 sq m shall be cultivated into topsoil before planting. Peat shall not be used. Following planting all shrub beds shall be
treated with an approved granular fertiliser at rates recommended by the manufacturer. All ornamental planting beds shall be mulched with 50mm depth medium grade
ornamental bark mulch. All hedge and native planting shall be mulched with 75mm depth mushroom compost.
TOPSOIL
Existing topsoil should be stripped before building works begin. Imported topsoil shall be a minimum specification to current British Standard Multi purpose grade from an
approved source in accordance to the above specification, unless otherwise instructed. 1 cu.m approved compost/organic material/soil ameliorant per 20 sq m shall be cultivated
into topsoil before planting. Peat shall not be used.
MAINTENANCE
The defects liability period for planting shall be 12 months from completion of the works, to the current British Standard. During this period, any plant which is found to be dead,
dying or otherwise defective shall be replaced at the expense of the contractor during the next planting season. The contractor shall make maintenance visits as required to
ensure the successful establishment of the planting and maintain all shrub areas in a weed free condition. Regular visits (minimum 8 No.) required, to maintain all planted areas
in a weed and litter free condition using a combination of chemical spray and hand weeding to be agreed with the CA. Maintenance to include watering, pruning, pest and
disease control and re-mulching as required to current British Standard. Final visit to be immediately prior to handing over and to include a fertiliser treatment of Enmag (6:20:10)
at 100g/m2 and 25mm depth bark mulch top up to all ornamental planted area. Amenity grass mowing at two week intervals during growing season, meadow grass maintained
in accordance with seed suppliers recommendation. Maintenance to be carried out in years 2-5 to be agreed.
PLANT SCHEDULE
Trees - Trees planted into tree pits 75mm deeper than the root system and wide enough to accommodate roots when fully spread. Root balled trees to be dug 500mm wider and
same depth as the rootball. If the site is on an uncultivated site or where  clay soils could get waterlogged the tree pits should be 2-3 times the size of the rootball. Hedges =
Planted into 450mm depth topsoil. Specimen Shrubs - Planted into 450mm depth topsoil. Ornamental Shrubs / Groundcovers - Planted into 450mm depth topsoil. Climbers -
Planted into 450mm depth topsoil as indicated. Support to be provided as required. Grass area - 100mm depth topsoil
TREE PLANTING
All trees are to be planted as shown ensuring a minimum of 5 metres from buildings and 3 metres from drainage. Tree pits to have suitable topsoil to the current British Standard
to a suitable depth, with irrigation, drainage, root protection, aeration, root cells as required to suit ground conditions, as approved by CA
PLANT MATERIAL TREATMENT
NB: All to be British grown stock and fully hardened off. Root Dip - Proprietary Root Dip applied to all bare rooted stock (1) at time of lifting at nursery and (2) prior to planting.
Anti-Desiccant - Proprietary anti-desiccant to be applied to foliage of all containerised / root balled material in leaf, specimen conifers and evergreen etc., (1) prior to
transportation and (2) during any delay in planting. Pruning - Allow for pruning of all deciduous trees and shrubs by 1/3rd following planting at Landscape Architects instruction or
as indicted in the planting schedule. Tree stakes and ties stakes to be pressure treated, round, smooth and peeled larch or chestnut, not less than 100mm in diameter.
Advanced nursery stock - double staked with cross bar.

Page 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.587 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
69.855 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
71.802 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
69.284 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
69.513 

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
69.540 

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
69.362 

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
69.200 

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
71.838 

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
69.132 

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
69.059 

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
69.191 

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
69.120 

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
69.215 

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
69.172 

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
69.182 

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
69.148 

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
CL-69.112 

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
69.183 

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
69.132 

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
69.108 

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
73.108 

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
69.193 

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
69.273 

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
69.194 

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
69.319 

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
69.319 

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
CL-69.297 

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
69.437 

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
69.293 

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
69.247 

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
69.296 

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
69.386 

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
69.309 

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
69.364 

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
69.432 

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
69.446 

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
69.465 

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
69.478 

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
77.052 

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
71.893 

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
72.532 

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
71.719 

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
71.157 

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
PK2

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
69.235 

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
69.431 

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
69.401 

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
69.433 

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
69.325 

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
69.319 

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
69.304 

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
69.404 

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
69.314 

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
69.299 

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
69.463 

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
69.331 

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
69.276 

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
69.292 

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
69.291 

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
69.296 

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
69.300 

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
69.333 

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
69.384 

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
69.405 

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
69.236 

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
69.282 

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
69.254 

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
69.311 

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
69.398 

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
69.296 

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
69.210 

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
69.289 

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
69.231 

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
69.285 

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
69.227 

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
69.301 

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
69.296 

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
68.794 

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
68.884 

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
69.144 

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
69.299 

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
69.338 

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
69.358 

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
69.311 

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
69.299 

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
69.304 

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
69.237 

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
69.351 

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
69.364 

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
69.421 

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
69.237 

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
69.433 

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
69.444 

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
CL-69.319 

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
72.953 

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
73.048 

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
72.471 

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
72.462 

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
72.465 

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
71.058 

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
71.154 

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
69.877 

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
69.654 

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
81.509 

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
75.099 

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
77.710 

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
81.137 

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
69.257 

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
69.267 

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
69.278 

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
69.261 

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
69.229 

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
69.244 

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
69.287 

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
69.301 

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
69.316 

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
69.359 

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
69.334 

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
69.258 

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
69.244 

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
69.184 

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
69.220 

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
69.305 

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
69.250 

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
69.188 

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
69.130 

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
69.062 

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
68.979 

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
69.031 

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
69.090 

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
69.122 

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
69.187 

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
69.185 

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
69.282 

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
69.141 

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
69.142 

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
69.134 

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
69.128 

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
69.178 

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
69.064 

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
69.134 

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
68.788 

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
68.822 

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
69.109 

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
69.094 

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
69.126 

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
69.162 

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
69.160 

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
69.115 

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
69.141 

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
68.795 

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
68.835 

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
69.137 

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
69.144 

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
69.084 

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
69.162 

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
69.200 

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
69.237 

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
69.155 

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
69.130 

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
69.196 

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
69.333 

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
69.276 

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
69.254 

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
69.206 

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
69.198 

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
69.302 

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
69.444 

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
69.315 

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
69.210 

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
69.254 

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
69.307 

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
69.372 

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
69.247 

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
69.257 

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
69.347 

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
69.350 

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
69.272 

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
69.288 

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
69.333 

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
69.423 

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
69.368 

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
69.370 

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
69.471 

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
69.450 

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
1311

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
69.238 

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
SIGN17

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
71.255 

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
69.091 

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
69.084 

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
69.032

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
69.057 

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
69.091 

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
69.099 

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
69.074 

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
69.068 

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
69.287 

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
69.007 

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
69.054 

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
69.060 

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
69.056 

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
69.044 

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
69.041 

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
69.010 

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
69.065 

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
69.062 

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
69.089 

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
69.114 

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
69.047 

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
69.053 

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
69.066 

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
69.054 

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
69.132 

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
69.032 

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
69.043 

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
69.084 

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
69.080 

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
69.094 m

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
69.090 

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
69.105 

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
69.069 

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
69.110 

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
69.126 

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
69.123 

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
69.108 

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
69.062 

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
69.120 

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
69.093 

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
69.151 

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
69.023 

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
69.194 

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
69.064 

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
69.030 

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
69.080 

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
69.062 

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
69.098 

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
69.078 

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
69.106 

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
69.118 

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
68.980 

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
69.009 

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
69.060 

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
69.034 

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
69.059 

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
69.053 

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
69.051 

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
69.070 

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
69.071 

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
69.068 

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
68.988 

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
68.932 

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
68.793 

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
69.017 

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
69.044 

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
69.061 

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
69.081 

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
69.088 

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
69.102 

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
69.077 

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
69.045 

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
69.017 

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
69.089 

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
69.174 

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
69.461 

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
69.230 

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
69.280 

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
69.306 

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
69.180 

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
69.196 

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
69.042 

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
69.070 

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
68.989 

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
69.077 

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
69.027 

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
68.859 

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
68.848 

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
69.135 

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
69.142 

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
69.139 

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
69.186 

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
69.214 

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
69.087 

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
69.552 

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
69.291 

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
69.020 

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
69.068 

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
69.072 

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
69.098 

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
68.999 

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
69.011 

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
69.080 

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
69.065 

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
69.066 

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
69.089 

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
69.090 

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
69.139 

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
69.131 

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
69.107 

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
69.090 

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
69.083 

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
69.049 

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
69.099 

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
69.113 

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
69.098 

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
69.137 

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
69.082 

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
69.097 

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
69.113 

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
69.086 

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
69.032 

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
69.044 

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
69.280 

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
69.227 

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
69.077 

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
69.109 

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
69.087 

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
69.082 

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
69.069 

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
69.063 

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
69.034 

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
69.068 

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
69.033 

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
69.024 

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
69.049 

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
69.061 

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
69.071 

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
69.068 

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
69.035 

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
69.044 

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
69.037 

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
69.031 

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
69.026 

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
69.067 

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
69.095 

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
69.114 

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
69.086 

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
69.074 

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
69.085 

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
69.095 

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
69.089 

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
69.015 

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
69.129 

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
69.079 

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
69.031 

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
70.149 

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
81.151 

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
81.135 

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
68.449 

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
69.244 

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
68.887 

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
68.869 

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
68.897 

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
68.733 

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
68.756 

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
68.750 

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
68.736 

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
68.739 

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
68.744 

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
68.747 

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
68.885 

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
68.912 

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
68.865 

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
68.897 

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
68.900 

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
68.917 

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
68.905 

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
69.203 

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
69.199 

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
69.177 

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
69.181 

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
69.327 

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
69.337 

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
69.272 

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
69.179 

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
69.231 

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
69.205 

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
69.207 

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
69.154 

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
69.097 

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
69.197 

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
69.157 

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
69.142 

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
68.983 

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
68.961 

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
69.043 

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
69.060 

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
69.092 

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
69.101 

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
69.125 

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
69.089 

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
69.050 

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
69.110 

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
69.103 

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
69.092 

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
69.064 

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
69.041 

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
69.228 

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
69.027 

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
69.109 

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
69.034 

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
68.995 

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
69.049 

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
69.069 

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
69.104 

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
69.022 

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
71.106 

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
71.140 

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
69.347 

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
69.475 

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
69.333 

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
69.195 

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
69.113 

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
69.200 

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
69.203 

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
69.199 

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
69.248 

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
69.158 

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
69.163 

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
69.154 

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
70.978 

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
71.101 

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
69.317 

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
69.169 

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
69.152 

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
69.200 

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
69.166 

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
69.159 

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
69.130 

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
69.147 

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
69.157 

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
69.193 

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
69.210 

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
69.171 

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
69.136 

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
69.127 

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
69.105 

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
69.334 

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
69.335 

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
69.443 

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
69.346 

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
69.210 

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
69.226 

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
69.177 

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
69.180 

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
69.200 

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
69.153 

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
69.124 

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
69.126 

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
69.164 

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
69.092 

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
68.856 

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
68.858 

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
69.066 

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
69.089 

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
69.008 

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
69.204 

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
69.189 

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
69.151 

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
69.146 

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
69.176 

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
69.184 

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
69.108 

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
69.126 

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
69.096 

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
69.136 

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
69.133 

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
69.147 

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
69.099 

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
69.024 

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
69.112 

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
69.122 

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
69.137 

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
69.144 

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
69.120 

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
69.127 

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
71.333 

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
69.898 

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
71.332 

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
72.235 

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
72.272 

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
71.586 

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
68.740 

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
68.513 

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
68.505 

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
68.677 

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
68.593 

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
68.448 

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
68.572 

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
68.764 

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
68.677 

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
68.591 

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
68.602 

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
81.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
81.139 

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
78.057 

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
69.287 

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
69.223 

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
69.056 

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
69.074 

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
69.042 

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
69.149 

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
69.149 

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
69.102 

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
69.152 

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
69.185 

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
69.168 

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
69.246 

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
69.254 

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
69.274 

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
69.298 

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
69.314 

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
69.260 

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
69.228 

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
69.279 

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
69.265 

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
68.463 

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
68.723 

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
WIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
69.069 

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
68.554 

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
68.529 

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
68.564 

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
68.656 

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
68.523 

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
68.549 

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
68.564 

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
68.571 

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
68.564 

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
68.579 

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
68.614 

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
69.080 

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
69.000 

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
68.998 

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
68.988 

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
69.039 

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
69.204 

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
69.156 

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
69.250 

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
69.357 

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
69.310 

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
69.300 

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
69.360 

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
69.280 

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
68.972 

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
69.148 

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
69.073 

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
69.187 

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
69.218 

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
69.222 

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
69.267 

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
69.199 

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
69.097 

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
69.091 

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
69.178 

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
69.148 

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
69.168 

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
69.137 

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
69.175 

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
69.161 

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
69.168 

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
69.184 

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
69.170 

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
69.183 

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
69.285 

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
69.255 

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
69.258 

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
69.255 

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
69.203 

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
69.214 

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
69.267 

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
69.293 

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
69.296 

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
69.224 

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
69.258 

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
69.253 

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
69.269 

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
69.266 

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
69.169 

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
69.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
69.068 

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
69.130 

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
69.187 

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
69.219 

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
69.184 

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
69.186 

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
69.169 

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
69.247 

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
69.276 

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
69.257 

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
69.227 

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
69.292 

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
69.238 

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
69.235 

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
69.215 

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
69.210 

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
69.184 

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
69.087 

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
69.197 

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
69.249 

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
69.094 

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
68.931 

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
68.801 

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
68.802 

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
69.054 

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
69.129 

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
69.150 

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
69.178 

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
69.207 

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
69.248 

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
69.234 

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
69.280 

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
69.256 

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
69.271 

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
69.266 

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
69.284 

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
69.293 

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
69.161 

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
69.109 

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
69.021 

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
68.973 

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
68.930 

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
68.833 

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
68.812 

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
68.899 

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
69.011 

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
69.022 

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
69.067 

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
69.203 

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
69.172 

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
69.159 

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
69.125 

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
69.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
69.191 

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
69.246 

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
69.096 

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
69.146 

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
69.078 

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
69.180 

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
69.147 

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
69.118 

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
69.016 

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
69.105 

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
68.996 

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
68.947 

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
68.975 

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
68.905 

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
68.711 

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
68.597 

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
68.553 

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
68.675 

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
68.676 

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
69.005 

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
69.024 

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
69.000 

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
68.945 

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
68.934 

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
68.908 

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
69.293 

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
69.264 

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
69.277 

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
69.237 

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
69.204 

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
69.220 

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
69.225 

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
69.180 

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
69.113 

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
68.935 

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
69.816 

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
69.947 

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
69.912 

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
69.801 

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
69.752 

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
71.544 

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
71.075 

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
TOF

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
69.882 

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
69.793 

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
TOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
PK1

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
69.180 

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
2.82/9

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
2.27/9

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
0.16/1

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
0.16/1

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
0.25/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
0.69/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
1.57/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
0.31/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
0.31/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
YEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
1.57/6

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
0.94/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
CL-69.346

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
CL-69.317 

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
CL-69.301

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
CL-68.570 

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
CL-68.574

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
WIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
CL-68.714

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
CL-68.727

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
CL-68.734

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
3.20/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
Bin

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
PRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
0.79/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
CL-69.118

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
UNK

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
1.98/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
CL-68.283

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
CL-69.182

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
CL-69.170

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
SYC

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
2.80/6

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
CL-69.255

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
CL-69.254

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
CL-69.133

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
CL-69.147

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
CL-69.187

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
CL-69.197

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
CL-69.189

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
CL-69.181

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
CL-69.198

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
CL-69.168

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
CL-69.160

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
CL-69.215

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
CL-69.174

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
CL-69.254

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
CL-69.253

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
0.16/1

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
CL-69.296

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
CL-69.298

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
CL-69.289

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
CL-69.257

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
CL-69.299

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
MPO

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
CL-69.096

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
CL-69.129

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
CL-69.088

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
CL-69.158

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
CL-69.140

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
CL-69.113

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
PNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
0.31/2

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
LIM

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
4.07/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
CHY

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
0.28/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
0.63/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
CYP

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
3.41/7

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
CYP

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
1.26/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
0.31/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
0.31/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
CHY

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
0.50/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
CL-69.185

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
CL-69.199

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
CL-69.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
CL-69.096

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
110mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
110mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
920

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
CL-69.112 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
CL-69.297 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
WIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
CL-68.570 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
CL-68.574

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
EIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
WIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
CL-68.714

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
CL-68.727

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
CL-68.734

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
CL-69.118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
CL-68.283

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
CL-69.182

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
CL-69.170

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
CL-69.255

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
CL-69.254

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
CL-69.133

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
CL-69.147

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
CL-69.187

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
CL-69.197

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
CL-69.189

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
CL-69.181

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
CL-69.198

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
CL-69.168

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
CL-69.160

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
CL-69.215

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
CL-69.158

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
CL-69.140

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
CL-69.113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
CL-69.185

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
CL-69.199

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
CL-69.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
CL-69.096

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
IC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
Actual Crown Spread of measured trees & groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
U Category Trees - REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
Root Protection Area for A, B & C category trees/groups

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
C Category Trees - LOW QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
B Category Trees - MODERATE QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
A Category Trees - HIGH QUALITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
TREE CONSTRAINTS PLAN - AS EXISTING Always re-produce this drawing in colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
DRAFT ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
KEY:



P03 04/02/21Updated to planners 
comments

P03

FOR INFORMATION

CR

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

 
   PLANNING COMMITTEE Date: 19th September 2023 

   
    Report of 
    Director of Planning &  
    Growth - Brett Leahy 

 
       Contact Officers: 
        Eloise Kiernan 
        Claire Williams 
 

 
Category 
Major 

    
   Ward     Southbury 

        
      Councillor Request      No 
 

 
  LOCATION: Moorfield Family Centre, 2 Moorfield Road, Enfield, EN3 5PS 

 
 
   APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/03011/FUL 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of the existing building and the erection of a new residential 
development (Class C3) with associated works including hard and soft landscaping, 
car and cycle parking and amenity space. (Revised Description) 
 

 
 Applicant Name & Address: 

   Social Housing plus Moorfield Road  
   71-75 Shelton Street 
   Covent Garden 
   London 
   WC2H 9JQ 
 

 
Agent Name & Address: 

  Mr Matthew Lloyd-Ruck 
  Savills, 33 Maragret Street 
  London 
W1G 0JD 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

1. That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions and the completion of 
a S106 legal agreement  
 

2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to 
finalise the wording of the S106 Agreement and agree the final wording of the 
conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation section of this report.   

 

Page 47 Agenda Item 5



Ref: 20/03011/FUL LOCATION: Moorfield Family Centre, 2 Moorfield Road, Enfield, EN3 5PS

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Scale 1:1250 North

Page 48



2 
 

 
1. Note for Members 

 
1.1 This application was first considered by the Planning Committee on 29 March 2022. 

Members supported the officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission for 
the reasons set out below. Following the March 2022 planning committee, the applicant 
has sought to address the four reasons for refusal and has held extensive discussions 
with the Local Planning Authority on a revised scheme.  
 
1. The development by virtue of its size, bulk, massing, proximity and siting to 

neighbouring occupiers would give rise to an unneighbourly loss of sunlight and 
daylight and unneighbourly sense of enclosure, as perceived from neighbouring 
properties including Nos.4 – 16 Moorfield Road, 1 to 43 Moorfield Road and 253 
to 273 Hertford Road, causing harm to the occupiers residential amenity, which 
having regard to housing need, the presumption in favour of approving sustainable 
development and the tilted balance would not be outweighed by the public benefits 
of delivering new residential accommodation including affordable residential 
accommodation, contrary to Policies D3 of the London Plan (2021), CP4 and CP30 
of the Enfield Core Strategy (2010), DMD8, DMD10 and DMD11 of the Enfield 
Development Management Document (2014) and the policies of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2021 taken as a whole.  
 

2. The proposed development, by virtue of its siting, bulk, mass, lack of defensible 
space, poor quality outlook and proximity to existing and proposed replacement 
trees represents an overdevelopment of the site and having regard to housing 
need, the presumption in favour of approving sustainable development and the 
tilted balance, fails to satisfactorily integrate with its surroundings negatively 
impacting on the enjoyment, function and safety of surrounding spaces, detrimental 
to and out of keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area 
which would not be outweighed by the public benefits of delivering new residential 
accommodation including affordable residential accommodation. would 
cumulatively result in substandard accommodation and be harmful to the amenities 
of future occupiers, contrary to Policy D6 of the London Plan 2021, the Nationally 
Described Space Standards 2015, Policies CP4 and CP30 of the Enfield Core 
Strategy 2010, Policy DMD6, DMD8 and DMD37 of the Enfield Development 
Management Document 2014.  

 
3. The proposed development, in the absence of a legal agreement securing 

contributions to the extension of the controlled parking zone, would contribute 
unacceptably to parking congestion in the surrounding area which would give rise 
to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of vehicular traffic and 
pedestrians, and promote the use of non-sustainable modes of transport, contrary 
to Policies T6 of the London Plan 2021, Policy CP25 of the Enfield Core Strategy 
2010, Policies DMD45, DMD47 and DMD48 of the Enfield Development 
Management Document 2014.  

 
4. The proposed development, by reason of its impact upon the preserved trees and 

the loss of B category trees at southern end of the application site would result in 
harm to amenity which having regard to housing need, the presumption in favour 
of approving sustainable development and the tilted balance would not be 
outweighed by the public benefits of delivering new residential accommodation 
including affordable residential accommodation contrary to Policies DMD37 and 
DMD80 of the Enfield Development Management Document (2014), CP30 of the 
Enfield Core Strategy (2010), G7 of the London Plan (2021), the National Planning 

Page 49



3 
 

Policy Framework 2021 as a whole and the British Standard for Trees in relation 
to design, demolition and construction (BS 5837:2012). 

 
2. Executive Summary 
 
2.1 This report seeks approval from Members for the demolition of the existing building on 

the site, a former NHS practice, and redevelopment of the site to provide a part 3, part 
8 and part 12 storey building (including ground floor), delivering 100 residential units 
at social rent, equivalent to 60% of market rent. 
 

2.2 Compared to the previous scheme, the revised development has a slightly lower 
number of units (100 instead of 106), continues to provide 100% affordable housing, 
addresses the loss of existing trees, and includes 9 car parking spaces. The number 
of car parking spaces has not been changed compared to the previous scheme. 
However, the appearance and height of the building has changed significantly.  
 

2.3 The scheme presented to committee in 2022 was a monolithic 9 storey building, whilst 
the revised building, with its staggered approach, is of higher design quality and, on 
balance, does not unduly harm the townscape character of the locality, sufficient to 
outweigh the benefits of the proposal. 
 

2.4 Overall, the bulk and massing of the building has improved. The staggered approach 
gives interest to the design, while ensuring that there will not be harm to the residential 
amenity of neighbouring occupiers, with regards to loss of sunlight and daylight, and 
sense of enclosure. This is a significant improvement on the 2022 scheme and 
addresses reason for refusal no. 1.  
 

2.5 The 3 and 8 storey elements are considered appropriate and make a positive 
contribution to the townscape. The 12 storey element, when viewed in the wider 
context, complements the height of Hastings House without appearing overly tall. 
Closer views show that this element will inevitably be perceived as prominent in the 
local context, especially since this is a corner location. However, the constraints of the 
site do not allow a larger set back from Carterhatch Lane without negatively affecting 
the scheme. 
 

2.6 The siting of the building has been re-positioned to the south-west to address officers’ 
concerns raised with the previous scheme. The applicant has demonstrated that, due 
to the physical constraints of the site, an alternative footprint that retains the existing 
trees on Carterhatch Lane and with a larger buffer from the site’s boundaries, would 
result in significantly fewer residential units, an increased percentage of small units, no 
M4(3) compliant units and no 2 bed units (4 people) that would comply with the 
Nationally Described Space Standards. For this reason, and in the context of the 100% 
affordable housing offer, which is given significant weight, the 12 storey element of the 
proposal is considered acceptable, on balance. This addresses reason for refusal no.2.  
 

2.7 Should Members be minded to pass a resolution to grant planning permission, a legal 
agreement will be signed to secure an extension of the controlled parking zone in the 
area, as well as contributions towards the local public transport and cycling 
infrastructure, and other items. This addresses reason for refusal no.3 of the previous 
scheme.  
 

2.8 The siting of the building leads to the loss of several category B trees fronting 
Carterhatch Lane. Whilst this is regrettable and was a reason of concern in the 2022 
scheme, the applicant has been able to demonstrate that an alternative siting would 
not be desirable. The Arboricultural Officer confirmed that, subject to conditions, they 

Page 50



4 
 

are satisfied that the proposed footprint of the building will protect the retained trees 
(including 5 TPOs) and that the replacement provision is satisfactory. This addresses 
reason for refusal no.4 of the previous scheme.  
 

2.9 This is a brownfield site which has been vacant for the past 6 years. It is now boarded 
up, to avoid instances of vandalism and anti-social behaviour. The 2022 Committee 
Report confirmed that, taking into account both the housing need of the Borough 
together with the track record of delivery against target, the Council must seek to 
optimise development on brownfield sites, particularly those that are currently 
underused and not delivering any benefit to the wider area, such as 2 Moorfield Road. 
 

2.10 The delivery of housing on underutilised brownfield sites in sustainable locations 
(despite the low PTAL rating, the site is well connected to bus services) and within 
close proximity to a designated local centre (in this case, Enfield Highway Local 
Centre), has strong planning policy support and is afforded substantial weight in the 
planning balance. 
 

2.11 Developing existing brownfield land can help in safeguarding greenfield and greenbelt 
land, thus preserving this important characteristic of Enfield and is supported at all 
planning policy levels, nationally, London-wide and within Enfield’s adopted 
development plan policies. 
 

2.12 The proposal would support London Plan policies, which seek to increase housing 
supply and optimise site capacity. Although the site has a PTAL score of 2, the site is 
considered to be in a location suitable for delivery of new high-quality housing.–. 
 

2.13 The proposed development includes 100 new residential units, 100% social rent 
(equivalent to 60% market rent), with a unit mix which is supported by the Housing 
Officer. This would contribute high quality housing stock to the Borough to meet 
housing need, which continues to rise in the Borough. 
 

2.14 There is a pressing need for housing, including affordable housing, within the Borough, 
and Enfield has an extremely challenging 10-year housing delivery target. Past delivery 
against housing targets accentuates this need and taking account of the presumption 
in favour of approving sustainable development and the tilted balance which currently 
applies, it is considered that the proposed development would deliver a high quality 
residential development on existing brownfield land,– in a location suitable for the 
proposed use.  
 

2.15 Overall, the proposal would make a meaningful contribution towards Borough and 
wider London housing needs, helping Enfield to support its growing population. 
 

3. Recommendation  
 

3.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions and the completion of a 
S106 legal agreement.  
 

Conditions: 
 
1. Time limit – 3 years 
2. Approved plans 
3. Materials – drawings, samples and sample panels 
4. Boundary Treatment/s 
5. Playspace Design 
6. Landscaping – details and management plan 

Page 51



5 
 

7. Public realm strategy 
8. Biodiversity enhancements 
9. Rainwater harvesting details 
10. Secure by Design 
11. Inclusive Design - M4(2) and M4(3) - include percentage 90% and 10% 
12. Sustainable Drainage Strategy 
13. Sustainable Drainage Strategy - Verification Report 
14. Lighting Details / Plan (Building & Communal Amenity Space) 
15. Site Waste Management Plan 
16. Acoustic Report 
17. Noise Mitigation Measures (future occupants) 
18. Disabled Parking 
19. Car Park Management Plan (Final) 
20. Details of Cycle Parking 
21. Delivery and Servicing Management Plan (operational) 
22. Construction Logistics Management Plan (CLMP) 
23. Construction Resource Management Plan (CRMP) 
24. Arboricultural Method Statement with Tree Protection Plan 
25. Habitat Survey (Phase 1) 
26. Contaminated Land – Remediation 
27. Contaminated Land – Verification 
28. Energy Statement – management and maintenance 
29. Thermal Comfort – further details of wind effects and related mitigation 
30. Green Procurement Plan – details for how the procurement of materials for 

development will promote sustainability 
31. Details of any Rooftop Plant, Extract Ducts and Fans incl. Plant Ac. Report 
32. Details of any rooftop plant, extract ducts and fans (appearance) 
33. Fire evacuation lift (details / management) 
34. Electric vehicles 
35. Taxi stand details 
36. PD restriction on satellite equipment 
37. No plant equipment to be fixed to external face of building 
38. No roller shutters to be fixed to external face of buildings 

 
3.2 That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to finalise 

the wording of the Section 106 Agreement and agree the final wording of the conditions 
to cover the matters listed above. 
 

4. Site & Surroundings 
 
4.1 The site occupies a prominent position at the junction with Hertford Road, Carterhatch 

Lane and Moorfield Road. The site comprises a two-storey rectangular building, set 
back from Hertford Road and Carterhatch Lane with a car park to the rear off Moorfield 
Road. 
 

4.2 The existing site building is rectangular in form and utilitarian in appearance, with 
several recessed elements and a central lightwell. 
 

4.3 The existing building is now vacant, having previously been occupied by the Barnet, 
Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust, a local authority children services team and 
a GP Practice, all likely within Use Class E(e) - Commercial, Business and Service.  
The site was sold by the NHS as surplus to requirements. 
 

4.4 The site is now boarded up, to avoid instances of vandalism and anti-social behaviour. 
Prior to the building being closed off to the public, the building was largely obscured 

Page 52



6 
 

from public view, given its siting set back from the road and the presence of trees, 
several of which are the subject of tree preservation orders (TPO), and vegetation 
located on boundary, particularly along Hertford Road and Carterhatch Lane. Vehicular 
access to the site is via Moorfield Road, whilst pedestrian access is primarily via 
Carterhatch Lane.   
 

4.5 The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 2 (poor). It is 
located a 20 minute walk to Brimsdown railway station to the east and Southbury 
Overground station to the south. Despite the low PTAL rating, the site is well connected 
to bus services that serve the local area, and provide links to Central London. There 
are bus stops within 100m of the site on Hertford Road and Carterhatch Lane, with 
buses running every 3-5 minutes. There are also bus stops further to the west, on 
Great Cambridge Road, some 900m from the site.  
 

4.6 The building is located within a busy mixed-use area, north-west of the Enfield Highway 
Local Centre, on Hertford Road (A1010). Despite the current poor PTAL level, it is 
noted that Hertford Road is becoming increasingly urban in character, being a main 
thoroughfare running north to south, where local centres and concentrations of activity, 
including a range of social and community uses such as schools, GP surgeries, open 
space and small parades of shops are located surrounded by built up neighbourhoods.  

 
4.7 To the north of the site are the neighbouring properties of Nos. 4 -16 Moorfield Road, 

a two storey row of dwellings, the rear elevations and gardens of which, face onto and 
are contiguous with the full extent of the site. 
 

4.8 To the east of the site is Hertford Road, beyond which are Nos. 233 - 249 Hertford 
Road (set to the north of Carterhatch Lane) and 253 - 273 Hertford Road  (set to the 
south of Carterhatch Lane), a variety of building typologies from single to four storeys 
in height, primarily consisting of commercial activities at ground floor level with 
residential activities at upper floor levels, except No.241 Hertford Road, a purpose built 
residential block on the corner with Cedar Avenue.  
 

4.9 To the south of the site is Carterhatch Lane, beyond which is No.43 – 45 Carterhatch 
Lane, one of several four to five storey purpose built residential blocks, along with a 
greened apex, consisting of several trees, at the junction with Hertford Road 
Carterhatch Lane. 
 

4.10 To the west of the site is Moorfield Road, beyond which is No.1 – 43 Moorfield Road, 
one of several four to five storey purpose built residential blocks.  
 

4.11 It is also worth noting that there is a 14 storey building to the south-west of the site, 
built in the 1980s, known as Hastings House. The building, located on 2 Sherbourne 
Avenue, is set back from Carterhatch Lane and is a prominent feature in the local 
townscape. Further towers can be found on Eastfield Road, some 10 minutes’ walk to 
the north-east of the site and on Ordnance Road further to the north.  
 

4.12 The site is neither located in or adjacent to a conservation area. The site is neither 
statutorily nor locally listed. 
 

4.13 The following policy designations / characteristics apply to the site/adjacent to the site: 
• Southbury Ward. 
• Flood Defence 100 year - 1000m. 
• North East Enfield Area Action Plan. 
• Tree Preservation Order (TPO) (ref:403/2018): there are five trees sited along 

Page 53



7 
 

the boundary with Moorfield Road and Hertford Road. 
• Enfield Highway Local Centre. 

 
5. Proposal 

 
5.1 The description of development is:  

 
‘Demolition of the existing building and the erection of  100 new affordable 
residential development (Class C3) with associated works including hard 
and soft landscaping, car and cycle parking and amenity space.’ 

 
5.2 The proposal seeks the following: 

• The demolition of existing two storey centre for the provision of medical and/or 
health services (1300sqm).  

• The redevelopment of the site to form a part 3, 8 and 12-storey residential block 
(including ground floor, height 41.90m / 28.40m / 12.15m respectively) 
consisting of 100 flats in the following arrangement: 

o 42 x 1 Bedroom 2 Person (of which 12 would be WC)            
o 2 x 2 Bedroom 3 Person  
o 38 x 2 Bedroom 4 Person            
o 18 x 3 Bedroom 5 Person                  

 
 

5.3 The redevelopment would include: 
• 100 flats which would be 100% Affordable Housing at social rent, equivalent to 

60% market rent  
• 9,262sqm of residential floorspace (GIA) 
• 51.8sqm for the internal refuse facility at ground floor level (18 x 1100 litre 

Eurobins)  
• 108.2 sqm for the internal plant/servicing facilities at ground floor level  
• 140.5 sqm for the internal cycle parking facilities at ground floor level (180 cycle 

spaces) 
• 5 external Sheffield stands to the west of the site (10 cycle spaces) 
• 2 car parking areas to the west of the site, accessed via Moorfield Road provide 

space for 9 vehicles. 
• The north and south rooftop (12th and 3rd floor level) would provide 2 separate 

communal amenity spaces, including play areas for children below the age of 
5, for approximately 720sqm. 

• Private communal amenity space of circa 499sqm is proposed along Hertford 
Road, in addition to policy compliant balconies for each apartment.  

• The middle roof (8th floor level) will include air source heat pump plant, whilst 
PVs will be located on the top roof, above the lift overrun and adjacent pergola. 

• Access to the building would be via two entrances, on Carterhatch Lane and 
Hertford Road, each set within canopies.  

 
5.4 The detailed design of the building comprises three elements:   

• A 3 storey block located to the north of the site, facing 4 to 16 Moorfield Road 
and 253 to 273 Hertford Road.  

• An 8 storey element sitting in centre of the building, narrower than the 3 and 12 
storey blocks. 

• A 12 storey element located to the south of the site fronting Carterhatch Lane 
and Hertford Road.  

5.5 The building would be clad in red brickwork with green accent details, to reflect those 
surrounding buildings that have been used for design cues. The ground and first floor, 

Page 54



8 
 

and the top floors will be clad in darker brick, whilst the central floors will be a slightly 
lighter tone brick, adding definition to the appearance of the building. There will also 
be complementary muted green projecting balconies and window frames, along with 
light grey metal copings. 
 

5.6 The site contains 23 trees in total (five of which are covered by a TPO (T1, T3, T14, 
T15 and T20 - as referenced in the Arboricultural Report). The proposal would require 
the removal of 16 trees (including one grouping), with 7 trees requiring pruning, 
reducing and lifting crowns, including all trees covered by a TPO.   
 

5.7 It is proposed to plant 20 new trees along the western, northern and eastern 
boundaries of the site. Perennials, shrubs and grass comprise the soft landscaping 
across the site, with ornamental planting specifically located along the southern 
boundary (Carterhatch Lane) where a number of trees will be lost. 
 

6. Relevant Planning History 
 
Application site 
 

6.1 TP/03/0128 - Demolition of existing Health Centre and construction of Primary 
 Care Resource Centre (Outline Application). Granted with Conditions on 
 20.06.2003.  
 

6.2 TP/94/0911 - Alterations to ground floor envisaging infilling existing open  ground 
floor space, to provide additional health centre facilities. Granted with Conditions on 
20.12.1994.  
 

7.  Consultation 
  
 Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees 

 
Highways 

7.1 The provision of 9 car parking spaces could be a problem if there is demand for the full 
10% of dwellings to have a disabled parking space.  However, the London Plan 
requires only 3% of the dwellings with a Disabled Parking Bay (DPB) at the outset but 
the applicant ought to provide a parking management plan that addresses how up to 
10% of dwellings can be provided with DPBs onsite if required. 
 

7.2 The officer has a concern that the cycle stands are now located to the rear of the site, 
remote from the site entrances, whereas in the previous proposal, they were on the 
Hertford Road frontage next to the main entrance, in a well overlooked area accessible 
to visitors, which was much more appropriate and in accordance with London Cycle 
Design Standards (LCDS) requirements. 
 

7.3 Regarding Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ), there are now more comprehensive 
costings for CPZs. A larger CPZ that would cover 10 streets or 1000 homes would 
costs £56500.  The scope of the CPZ would need to be discussed.  The CPZ would  
be essential to this scheme as without it, significantly more car parking would be 
required. 
 

7.4 It is not appropriate to have just one of the three areas with non racked spaces.  Each 
cycle parking area should have at least two Sheffield stands, appropriately located so 
that a minimum of four modified cycles can be parked in each cycle store.  It should 
also be noted that where racked spaces are provided, they need to have a minimum 

Page 55



9 
 

of 2m behind each racked space in order for the top row of spaces to be able to be 
accessed. 
 
Flood risk 

7.5 The design flood event that needs to be assessed is the 1 in 100 year + (17%) climate 
change event. The pluvial flood extent for this event covers much of the western half 
of the site. Based on the design flood event, the following information is still required. 
 

7.6 Finished floor level (FFL) must be at least 150mm above the 1 in 100 year (plus climate 
change) surface water flood depth. The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) must be 
updated to assess the site with the latest climate change allowances. These levels 
must be reflected on the plans and sections for the site. 
 

7.7 The development must not reduce flood storage on site – therefore level for level flood 
compensation will be required where land is being raised and /or buildings are located 
in the areas that flood. The FRA references raising FFL but no flood compensation has 
been provided. 
 

7.8 A Flood Management/Evacuation Plan must be provided demonstrating that the 
evacuation route is in the “Very Low Hazard Level” according to FD2320. 
 

7.9 Flood resistant and resilient measures must be incorporated where relevant. 
 
Drainage 

7.10 The greenfield runoff rates calculated for the site have used the whole site area 
(0.295ha) whereas they should be calculated with the contributing impermeable area 
for the proposed development. The proposed discharge rate is therefore above the 
correct greenfield QBAR rate for the site. 
 

7.11 Source control SuDS measures must be used extensively for the hardstanding and 
roof areas. It appears much of the hardstanding areas are not drained via source 
control SuDS measures.  
 

7.12 RWPs must discharge on the surface of source control SuDS feature rather than into 
the sub-base, as this will cause siltation. 
 

7.13 Cross sections, sizes and specifications of the proposed SuDS features must be 
provided. 
 

7.14 Overland flow routes for exceedance events including spot levels must be included on 
the drainage plan or more detail.  
 
Commercial Waste 
 

7.15 The walking distance from where the bin is sited on a property and the nearest 
practicable position that the refuse collection vehicle can stop must not exceed 10 
metres. 
 

7.16 Bins must be stored on a hard surface or in a storage cupboard. 
 

7.17 Footpaths between the container housing and the nearest vehicular access should be 
free from steps or kerbs, have a solid foundation, have a smooth solid surface, be level 
ad have a gradient no more than 1:12 and a minimum width of 2 meters. 

7.18 The Council is to be indemnified against any damage to road surface and under ground 
apparatus before bin delivery and collections if roads are not adopted. 

Page 56



10 
 

 
7.19 Access and turning circles, length, width, height and weight of the vehicles need to be 

considered at the design stage. Turning circle 18.5 m to 21 m; length 9.25 m plus 1m 
for bin lift; width 2.53m, height 3.4m and gross weight 26 tonne. 
 
Designing out Crime 

7.20 The Metropolitan Police note that the intention to construct a housing development 
within an area that is a crime hotspot, is a concern particularly because there has not 
been consultation with them in regards to how safety, security and crime prevention 
will be designed into the build nor does the Planning statement or the DAS mention 
these points. 
 

7.21 The Metropolitan Police Service is not able to support the development as it been 
presented and they have concerns that the design could contribute to and may 
increase the opportunity for crime and Anti-Social Behaviour at this location, putting 
the new and existing residents at risk, They question how lone women, vulnerable 
people, children & young people are being protected from high harm offences, and the 
lack of compartmentation assists with the free movement through the communal parts 
which is a key factor in domestic violence offences. They encourage the Design team 
to contact them so that crime preventative mitigation can be reviewed. 
 

7.22 In summary they have site specific comments in relation to the following items. This 
list is not exhaustive and acts as initial observations from the Plans. Site specific advice 
may change depending on further information or site limitations as the project 
develops: 
• Door/window specifications 
• Access Control- type, UL 293 rated 
• Postal/Parcel Strategy 
• Landscaping- inc street furniture 
• Boundary Treatments 
• Emergency Services Egress 
• Refuse Storage 
• Bicycle Storage 
• Car Parking 
• Roof access 
• Climbing Aids/Balcony details 
• Airlock/Compartmentation 
• Lighting 
• CCTV 
 

 
7.23 However, they advise that should the project receive planning permission they would 

recommend a Secured by Design condition be applied.  If the Conditions are applied, 
we request the completion of the relevant Secured by Design application forms at the 
earliest opportunity. 

 
Officer comment: The issues highlighted by the Police are matters that are covered by 
planning conditions as recommended above.  
 
 
 
Public 

 

Page 57



11 
 

 Pre-Submission 
 
7.24 Prior to submission of the revised scheme, the applicant distributed fliers on 14th July 

to local residents and businesses, covering an area up to approximately 160m to the 
west (up to the railway tracks), 220m to the east, 115m to the south. During the 
consultation, the consultation area was increased in the northern direction up to Crest 
Drive (approximately 550m) at the request of officers. The fliers include a summary of 
the proposal, a phone number and email address to contact for queries and feedback, 
and details of a website with additional information about the proposal.  
 

 Planning Application 
 

Re-consultation letters dated 16 August 2023 were sent to 694 neighbouring and 
nearby properties. Notice was also displayed at the site (dated 06/10/2020) and 
published in the local press (dated 14/10/2020).  
 
In response 2 representations were received which in summary, raise the following 
points. 

 
Summary of responses 

• Neighbourhood re-consultation failed to provide any detail of the proposed 
construction. 

• Local schools and NHS services do not have the capacity for this 
development.  

• The maintenance of the properties and the safety of the area is poor and the 
development will worsen the situation. 

• More investment should be made into the existing community.  
• Some residents did not receive the consultation letters and therefore were 

not informed of the development. 
• There is an insufficient amount of parking and residents of the development 

will park their cars in front of the development. 
• There is only one access to the estate which will cause more problems. 
• Having so many more people will cause a strain on the local schools and 

surgeries. 
 

Officers' response 
The matters raised are assessed in the ‘Analysis’ section of this report.  

 
8. Relevant Planning Policies 

 
8.1 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the Committee 

have regard to the provisions of the development plan so far as material to the 
application: and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be made in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
National Planning Policy Framework 2021  
 

8.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) introduces a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development. In this respect, sustainable development is identified as 
having three dimensions - an economic role, a social role and an environmental role. 
For decision taking, this presumption in favour of sustainable development means: 
 

a) an economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right 

Page 58



12 
 

places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved 
productivity; and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure;  
b) a social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by 
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet 
the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed 
and safe built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect 
current and future needs and support communities' health, social and cultural 
well-being; and  
c) an environmental objective – to contribute to protecting and enhancing our 
natural, built and historic environment; including making effective use of land, 
helping to improve biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising 
waste and pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including 
moving to a low carbon economy.  

 
8.3 The NPPF recognises that planning law requires that applications for planning 

permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF does not change the statutory 
status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making. 
 

8.4 In relation to achieving appropriate densities, paragraph 124 of the NPPF notes that 
planning policies and decisions should support development that makes efficient use 
of land, whilst taking into account:  

a) the identified need for different types of housing and other forms of 
development, and the availability of land suitable for accommodating it;  
b) local market conditions and viability;  
c) the availability and capacity of infrastructure and services – both existing and 
proposed – as well as their potential for further improvement and the scope to 
promote sustainable travel modes that limit future car use;  
d) the desirability of maintaining an area's prevailing character and setting 
(including residential gardens), or of promoting regeneration and change; and  
e) the importance of securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places.  

 
8.5 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF details when weight may be given to relevant emerging 

plans. This guidance states that the stage of preparation, the extent to which there are 
unresolved objections and the degree of consistency of relevant policies to the 
Framework are relevant. 
 
Housing Delivery Test / Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development: 
 

8.6 The NPPF sets out at paragraph 11 a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. For decision taking this means:  

"(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to date development 
plan without delay; or  
(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out-of-date (8), granting 
permission unless:  

I. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development 
proposed (7); or  

II. any adverse impacts of so doing would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the 
Framework taken as a whole.”   

 
8.7 Footnote (8) referenced here advises "This includes, for applications involving the 

provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot demonstrate 

Page 59



13 
 

a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, as set out in 
paragraph 74); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of 
housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement over the 
previous 3 years."  
 

8.8 In summary, the presumption in favour of sustainable development applies in two 
situations – where a Council is unable to demonstrate a five-year housing land supply, 
and when a Council fails to achieve 75 per cent or more in the Housing Delivery Test. 
 

8.9 Enfield Council currently fails against both criteria – and is therefore subject to the most 
severe government sanctions which impact the Council’s consideration of housing-led 
planning applications.  

 
8.10 5-year housing land supply: Members will be aware of the need to be aware of the 

Council’s housing land supply – and how it impacts on decision making. When there is 
not an up-to-date Local Plan and 5-year housing land supply cannot be demonstrated 
then this has a significant impact on the weight given to material planning 
considerations. The NPPF presumption, or ‘tilted balance’, applies in Enfield due to the 
Council’s inability to demonstrate the required five-year housing land supply. The 
Council is unable to demonstrate a 5-year supply of deliverable housing sites and this 
impacts on the status of its Local Plan policies. 
 

8.11 Housing delivery test: The NPPF presumption, or ‘tilted balance’, also applies in Enfield 
because Enfield is one of 51 Councils which have achieved below 75 per cent against 
the Housing Delivery Tests – it is therefore also subject to the Housing Delivery Tests 
most severe government sanction, the NPPF’s presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  
 

8.12 The Housing Delivery Test (HDT) is an annual measurement of housing delivery 
introduced by the Government through the NPPF. It measures the performance of local 
authorities by comparing the completion of net additional homes in the previous three 
years to the housing targets adopted by local authorities for that period. 
 

8.13 Local authorities that fail to meet 95% of their housing targets need to prepare a 
Housing Action Plan to assess the causes of under delivery and identify actions to 
increase delivery in future years. Local authorities failing to meet 85% of their housing 
targets are required to add 20% to their five-year supply of deliverable housing sites 
targets by moving forward that 20% from later stages of the Local Plan period. Local 
authorities failing to meet 75% of their housing targets in the preceding 3 years are 
placed in a category of "presumption in favour of sustainable development”. 
 

8.14 The Council's recent housing delivery has been below our housing targets. This has 
translated into the Council being required to prepare a Housing Action Plan in 2019 
and being placed in the "presumption in favour of sustainable development category" 
by the Government through its Housing Delivery Test. This status has recently been 
confirmed for the period 2022-23. 
 

8.15 The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities has not published the 
latest Housing Delivery Test measurement for 2022.  Based on the Enfield Authority 
Monitoring Report 2021/22 published in February 2023, betweeen 1st April 2019 and 
31 March 2022, Enfield delivered 2,350 homes of the 3,216 required, achieving 73% 
of its homes target. The Council therefore remains in the “presumption in favour of 
sustainable development”. 

8.16 Based on the Enfield Authority Monitoring Report 2021/22 published in February 2023, 
there is an estimated supply of 5,676 net new homes in the next five years. This is 

Page 60



14 
 

equivalent to 3.80 years housing land supply when measured against the London Plan 
requirement and taking into account backlog need and a 20% buffer due to the failure 
of Housing Delivery Test. 
 

8.17 This is referred to as the "tilted balance" and the NPPF states that, for decision-taking, 
this means granting permission unless any adverse impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the 
policies in the Framework taken as a whole – which also includes the Development 
Plan.  
 

8.18 Under the NPPF paragraph 11(d) where the most important development plan policies 
for the application are deemed to be 'out of date', planning permission should be 
granted. That does not mean out of date policy can be disregarded, but it means that 
less weight can be applied to it, and applications for new homes should be given weight   
by the Planning Committee when undertaking their assessment taking account of the 
“tilted” balance that applies. The level of weight given is a matter of planning judgement 
and the statutory test continues to apply, that the decision should be, as section 38(6) 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires, in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
The London Plan 2021  
 

8.19 The London Plan together with Enfield’s Local plan forms the Development Plan for 
this application. It is the overall strategic plan for London setting out an integrated 
economic, environmental, transport and social Framework for the development of 
London for the next 20-25 years. The following policies of the London Plan are 
considered particularly relevant: 

• GG1 Building strong and inclusive communities  
• GG2 Making the best use of land  
• GG3 Creating a Healthy City 
• D1 London’s form, character and capacity for growth  
• D2 Infrastructure requirements for sustainable densities  
• D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach  
• D4 Delivering good design  
• D5 Inclusive design  
• D6 Housing quality and standards  
• D7 Accessible housing  
• D8 Public Realm 
• D11 Safety, Security and Resilience to Emergency 
• D12 Fire safety  
• D13 Agent of Change 
• D14 Noise  
• H1 Increasing housing supply  
• H4 Delivering Affordable Housing 
• H6 Affordable housing tenure 
• H10 Housing size mix  
• G1 Green Infrastructure 
• G5 Urban greening  
• G6 Biodiversity and access to nature  
• G7 Trees and woodlands  
• S4 Play and Informal Recreation 
• SI 1 Improving air quality 
• SI 2 Minimising greenhouse gas emissions  

Page 61



15 
 

• SI3 Energy Infrastructure 
• SI4 Managing heat risk 
• SI5 Water infrastructure 
• SI6 Digital Connectivity Infrastructure 
• SI7 Reducing Waste and Supporting the Circular Economy 
• SI 8 Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency 
• SI12 Flood Risk Management 
• SI13 Sustainable Drainage 
• T1 Strategic Approach to Transport 
• T2 Healthy Streets 
• T3 Transport Capacity, Connectivity and Safeguarding 
• T4 Assessing and Mitigating Transport Impacts 
• T5 Cycling 
• T6 Car Parking 
• T6.1 Residential parking  
• T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction 
• T9 Funding Transport Infrastructure Through Planning 
• DF1 Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations 

 
Local Plan - Overview  
 

8.20 Enfield's Local Plan comprises the Core Strategy, Development Management 
Document, Policies Map and various Area Action Plans as well as other supporting 
policy documents. Together with the London Plan, they form the statutory development 
plan for the Borough. Enfield's Local Plan sets out planning policies to steer 
development where they align with the NPPF and the London Plan 2021. Whilst many 
of the policies do align with the NPPF and the London Plan, it is noted that these 
documents do in places supersede the Local Plan in terms of some detail and as such 
the proposal is reviewed against the most relevant and up-to-date policies within the 
Development Plan. 
Enfield Core Strategy: 2010 
 

8.21 The Core Strategy was adopted in November 2010 and sets out a spatial planning 
framework for the development of the Borough through to 2025. The document 
provides the broad strategy for the scale and distribution of development and 
supporting infrastructure, with the intention of guiding patterns of development and 
ensuring development within the Borough is sustainable. 

• CP 2 Housing Supply and Locations for New Homes 
• CP 3 Affordable Housing 
• CP 4 Housing Quality 
• CP 5 Housing Types 
• CP 9 Supporting Community Cohesion 
• CP 17 Town Centres 
• CP 20 Sustainable Energy Use and Energy Infrastructure 
• CP 21 Delivering Sustainable Water Supply, Drainage Sewerage Infrastructure 
• CP 24 The Road Network 
• CP 25 Pedestrians and Cyclists 
• CP 26 Public Transport 
• CP 28 Managing Flood Risk Through Development 
• CP 29 Flood Management Infrastructure 
• CP 30 Maintaining and Improving the Quality of the Built and Open 

Environment 
• CP 32 Pollution 

Page 62



16 
 

• CP 34 Parks, Playing Fields and Other Open Spaces 
• CP 36 Biodiversity 

 
Development Management Document (2014)  
 

8.22 The Council's Development Management Document (DMD) provides further detail and 
standard based policies by which planning applications should be determined. Policies 
in the DMD support the delivery of the Core Strategy. 
 

8.23 The following local plan Development Management Document policies are considered 
particularly relevant: 

• DMD 1 Affordable Housing on Sites Capable of Providing 10 units+ 
• DMD 3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes 
• DMD 6 Residential Character 
• DMD 8 General Standards for New Residential Development 
• DMD 9 Amenity Space 
• DMD10 Distancing 
• DMD 28 Large Local Centres, Small Local Centres and Local Parades 
• DMD 37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 
• DMD 38 Design Process 
• DMD 43 Tall Buildings 
• DMD 45 Parking Standards and Layout 
• DMD 47 New Road, Access and Servicing 
• DMD 48 Transport Assessments 
• DMD 49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements 
• DMD 50 Environmental Assessments Method 
• DMD 51 Energy Efficiency Standards 
• DMD 52 Decentralized Energy Networks 
• DMD 53 Low and Zero Carbon Technology 
• DMD 54 Allowable Solutions 
• DMD 55 Use of Roof Space / Vertical Surfaces 
• DMD 56 Heating and Cooling 
• DMD 57 Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste Minimisation 
• DMD 58: Water Efficiency 
• DMD 59: Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk 
• DMD 60: Assessing Flood Risk 
• DMD 61: Managing surface water 
• DMD 62: Flood Control and Mitigation Measures 
• DMD 64: Pollution Control and Assessment 
• DMD 65: Air Quality 
• DMD 66: Land Contamination and instability 
• DMD 68: Noise 
• DMD 69: Light Pollution 
• DMD 70: Water Quality 
• DMD 71: Protection and Enhancement of Open Space 
• DMD 72: Open Space Provision 
• DMD 73: Child Play Space 
• DMD 77: Green Chains 
• DMD 79: Ecological Enhancements 
• DMD 80: Trees on Development Sites 
• DMD 81: Landscaping 

 

Page 63



17 
 

Other Material Considerations 
 

8.24 The following guidance is also considered particularly relevant: 
• National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
• North East Area Action Plan  
• Enfield Climate Action Plan (2020) 
• Enfield Housing and Growth Strategy (2020) 
• Enfield Intermediate Housing Policy (2020) 
• Enfield Biodiversity Action Plan 
• Enfield Characterisation Study (2011) 
• Enfield Local Heritage List (May 2018) 
• Enfield S106 SPD (2016) 
• Enfield Decentralised Energy Network Technical Specification SPD (2015) 
• Making Enfield: Enfield Heritage Strategy 2019-2024 SPD (2019) 
• The Setting of Heritage Assets – Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in 

Planning: 3, Historic England (2017) 
• London Councils: Air Quality and Planning Guidance (2007) 
• TfL London Cycle Design Standards (2014) 
• GLA: Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal Recreation SPG (2012) 
• GLA: Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and Context SPG (2014) 
• GLA: The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition 

SPG (2014) 
• GLA: London Sustainable Design and Construction SPG (2014) 
• GLA: Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment SPG (2014) 
• GLA: Social Infrastructure SPG (2015) 
• GLA: Housing SPG (2016) 
• GLA: Homes for Londoners: Affordable Housing and Viability SPG (2017) 
• Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2018) 
• GLA Threshold Approach to Affordable Housing on Public Land (2018) 
• Healthy Streets for London (2017) 
• Manual for Streets 1 & 2, Inclusive Mobility (2005) 
• Report of the Examination in Public of the London Plan (2019) 
• National Design Guide (2019) 

 
Enfield Local Plan (Reg 18) 2021 

 
8.25 The Reg 18 document sets out the Council’s preferred policy approach together with 

draft development proposals for several sites. It is Enfield’s Emerging Local Plan.  
 

8.26 As the emerging Local Plan progresses through the plan-making process, the draft 
policies within it will gain increasing weight, but at this stage it has relatively little weight 
in the decision-making process. 
 

8.27 Key local emerging policies from the plan are listed below: 
• Policy DM SE2 – Sustainable design and construction  
• Policy DM SE4 – Reducing energy demand 
• Policy DM SE5 – Greenhouse gas emissions and low carbon energy supply 
• Policy DM SE7 – Climate change adaptation and managing heat risk 
• Policy DM SE8 – Managing flood risk 
• Policy DM SE10 – Sustainable drainage systems 
• Strategic Policy SPBG3 – Biodiversity net gain, rewilding and offsetting 
• Policy DM BG8 – Urban greening and biophilic principles 

Page 64



18 
 

• Policy DM DE1 – Delivering a well-designed, high-quality and resilient 
environment 

• Policy DM DE2 – Design process and design review panel 
• Policy DM DE6 – Tall buildings  
• Policy DM DE7 – Creating liveable, inclusive and quality public realm 
• Policy DM DE10 Conserving and enhancing heritage assets 
• Policy DM DE11 – Landscape design 
• Policy DM DE13 – Housing standards and design  
• Policy DM H2 – Affordable housing 
• Policy DM H3 – Housing mix and type 
• Policy DM T2 – Making active travel the natural choice  
• Strategic Policy SP D1 – Securing contributions to mitigate the impact of 

development   
 

9.  Analysis 
 

9.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 seek to establish that planning decisions are taken in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Furthermore, 
paragraph 11 (c) of the NPPF goes on to state that development proposals that accord 
with the development plan should be approved without delay. 
 

9.2 As explained at Section 8, the Council is subject to the “tilted balance” and the NPPF 
states that for decision-taking this means granting permission unless any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole – which also includes 
the Development Plan. Under the NPPF paragraph 11(d) the most important 
development plan policies for the application are deemed to be ‘out of date’. However, 
the fact that a policy is considered out of date does not mean it can be disregarded, 
but it means that less weight can be applied to it, and applications for new homes 
should be considered with more weight (tilted) by planning committee. The level of 
weight given is a matter of planning judgement and the statutory test continues to 
apply, that the decision should be, as section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 requires, in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
9.3 This report sets out the analysis of the issues that arise from the proposal when 

assessed against the development plan and the NPPF. 
 

9.4 This application has been subject to extensive negotiation to address the concerns 
raised by officers and local residents through the consultation process.  
 

9.5 The main considerations of the development are the following: 
• Principle of Development  
• Land Use 
• Housing Need, Mix and Delivery 
• Affordable Housing  
• Character and Design  
• Neighbouring Residential Amenity  
• Quality of Accommodation 
• Trees and Landscaping 
• Biodiversity 
• Access, Traffic and Parking 

Page 65



19 
 

• Flood Risk and Drainage 
• Carbon Emissions and Sustainability  
• Health  
• Environmental Considerations 
• Education  
• Fire Safety 
• Secure by Design 
• Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
• S106 Heads of Terms  
• Public Sector Equality Duty 

 
10.  Principle of Development 

 
10.1 The principle of development had already been established with the original 

submission, where officers acknowledged that the redevelopment of the site would 
contribute substantially to the Council’s housing delivery targets, which is welcomed 
and supported.  
 

10.2 2 Moorfield Road is a brownfield site located in a residential area, close to amenities 
and abutting a major thoroughfare: Hertford Road. Optimising a brownfield site for 
residential site, in a suitable location, is considered appropriate.  
 

10.3 The following paragraphs set out the planning policy context relevant to the principle 
of development.  
 

10.4 The NPPF and London Plan advise that local authorities should seek to deliver a wide 
choice of high-quality homes, widen opportunities for home ownership and create 
sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities.  
 

10.5 The Borough’s current target for the plan period is for a minimum of 12,460 net housing 
completions between 2019/20 – 2028/29, as set out in the London Plan 2021. In the 
event that the proposed development was acceptable in all other respects, the 
proposed 100 new dwellings would make a positive contribution towards meeting the 
strategic housing needs of Greater London and increasing the housing stock of the 
Borough in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the 
Policy CP5 of the Enfield Core Strategy (2010).  
 

10.6 As was the case in 2022, the Council has failed the most recent Housing Delivery Test 
and, therefore, residential development is subject to the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. The tilted balance therefore has to be applied in assessing 
and weighing up the benefits of the scheme and whether on balance the impacts of 
granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole. 
 

10.7 To conclude, not only is the principle of development considered acceptable and policy 
compliant, but it will also contribute to alleviating the housing shortage experienced by 
the Council.  
 

11. Land Use 
 

11.1 The proposed change of use was addressed as part of the original submission. Officers 
confirmed that the proposed change of use is acceptable, as explained below.  
 

Page 66



20 
 

11.2 Policy S1D of the London Plan indicates that “Development proposals that seek to 
make best use of land, including the public-sector estate, should be encouraged and 
supported. This includes the co-location of different forms of social infrastructure and 
the rationalisation or sharing of facilities.” The proposal and the evidence submitted 
appears to meet the aims of making best use of land.  
 

11.3 Policies (DMD17) seek to resist the loss of existing social infrastructure while DMD17 
sets out the approach to protection of community facilities. Taking each part of DMD17 
in turn, part (a) indicates that proposals involving the loss of community facilities will 
not be permitted unless “a suitable replacement facility is provided to cater for the local 
community that maintains the same level of public provision and accessibility”.  
 

11.4 The former medical facility on the site was closed in 2017, and the site sold for 
alternative development. This followed a decision by the local NHS on the future 
delivery of health care facilities in the Borough and the transfer of services to Riley 
House. However, while it is noted that the former practice boundary is not covered in 
its entirety by the practice boundary of the new facility at Riley House,  given the wider 
evidence provided by the NHS with respect to the need for consolidation of buildings, 
the accessibility of the alternate facility to the local community and the surgery at Brick 
Lane having  spare capacity for c. 1,200 additional patients, it is considered this 
alternative methodology is acceptable to justify the loss of the existing medical facility. 
 

11.5 It is accepted the new facility appears to be served by the same bus links and officers 
are also satisfied that disabled car parking levels are as a minimum the same as 
provided at the former facility. Consequently, while there is a change in accessibility, 
and Part A of DMD17 is not fully met, with reference to housing need and the tilted 
balance, it is considered this issue given the overall availability of health care services 
is not of sufficient concern to justify a ground for refusal. 
 

11.6 Part B of DMD17 requires evidence to be submitted that demonstrates “there is no 
demand for the existing use or any alternative community use” if part A cannot be met. 
3.1.1 sets out a range of alternative community facilities which could include:  

• Recreation, leisure, culture and arts facilities, including theatres;  
• Libraries; adequate justification  
• Outdoor and indoor sports facilities;  
• Schools and other educational and training institutions;  
• Facilities for early years provision; -  
• Health facilities;  
• Day centres vulnerable adults and carers;  
• Community halls and centres;  
• Places of Worship;  
• Emergency service and policing facilities, accessible to the public.  

 
11.7 Part G of the London Plan also indicates that “Redundant social infrastructure should 

be considered for full or partial use as other forms of social infrastructure before 
alternative developments are considered, unless this loss is part of a wider public 
service transformation plan (see Part F2).”  
 

11.8 At the time of first submission, the applicant suggested that the marketing through 
ePIMS to other public sector bodies demonstrates there is no demand for alternative 
community uses. However, officers noted that some of the facilities listed above would 
not be exclusively provided by public sector landowners, (i.e. places of worship). 
 

Page 67



21 
 

11.9 A Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment, including a letter from Allsop, was then 
submitted to demonstrate that the site has been considered for use as other forms of 
social infrastructure, which would not be suitable on this site or required in the local 
area. It should also be noted that the originally submitted scheme did include 
community space at ground floor but following negotiations as to review viability and 
maintain housing numbers, it was accepted that the ground floor community space 
could be removed from the scheme.  
 

11.10 For the reasons considered above, applying weight to the fact that the health facility 
was relocated in 2017, and in the context of the Council’s most recent Housing Delivery 
Test results, on balance the proposed development would be acceptable. The 
proposed development would therefore be acceptable when balanced against Policies 
DMD17 of the Development Management Document 2016 and S1 of the London Plan 
2021. 
 

12. Housing Need, Mix and Delivery 
 

12.1 The current London Plan sets a target for the provision of 52,287 new homes each 
year. In addition, the London Plan identifies a need for a minimum of 1,246 dwellings 
per year to be delivered over the next 10-years in the Borough, based on the Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment (SHMA): an increase over the current target of 798. 
Whilst Enfield's 2019 Housing Action Plan recognises that the construction of more 
affordable, high-quality homes is a clear priority, only 51% of approvals in the Borough 
have been delivered over the previous 3-years. 
 

12.2 Enfield's Housing and Growth Strategy (2020) was considered by Cabinet in January 
2020 and approved at February's Council meeting (2020) and sets out the Council's 
ambition to deliver ambitious adopted London Plan targets. 
 

12.3 Policy CP5 outlines that the Council will seek a range of housing types in the 
intermediate sector and that the mix of intermediate housing sizes will be determined 
on a site by site basis. It should also be noted that the evidence base to support Core 
Policy 5 dates from 2008. The Local Housing Needs Assessment 2020, which informs 
the emerging draft Local Plan for Enfield, is a more up to date evidence base. Hence, 
it carries weight in the assessment.  
 

12.4 The Local Housing Needs Assessment (LNHA) 2020 identifies that among those on 
the Council’s housing register waiting list, 14.7% need one-bedroom, 35.3% need two 
bedroom, 42.3% need three-bedrooms, and 7.7% need four or more bedrooms.  
 

12.5 The LNHA (2020) has informed emerging Policy H3 of the Draft Local Plan for Enfield 
(2021). Table 1 below is an extract from Policy H3, which outlines priority types for 
different-sized units across different tenure. The focus of affordable ownership 
provision (social/affordable rented) should be on two-bedrooms and 3 bedrooms units. 
It is noted that the Draft Reg 18 Local Plan was published in June 2021 and is at an 
early stage of preparation. Although this draft policy in the emerging plan carries limited 
weight now, it is used to illustrate the most up-to-date housing need in Enfield.  
 

Page 68



22 
 

 
Table 1 - Extract from Policy H3, Table 8.4: Dwelling size priorities, Enfield Local Plan 
(Reg 18) 2021 
 

12.6 The 2022 Committee Report confirmed that, taking into account both the housing need 
of the Borough together with the track record of delivery against target, it is clear that 
the Council must seek to optimise development on brownfield sites such as this, 
particularly those that are currently underused and not delivering any benefit to the 
wider area, such as 2 Moorfield Road. 
 

12.7 The current scheme proposes 100 residential units. Compared to the previous 
scheme, the proposed amendments have resulted in a reduction in number of units 
from 106 to 100. Although this is regrettable, it has also resulted in a number of 
improvements that help make the proposal acceptable, on balance. 
 

12.8 Table 2 below shows a comparison between the housing mix of the current and 
previous schemes.  
 
Comparison of Dwelling Size Mix 
 Proposed Scheme Previous Scheme 
Dwelling Size  Number of 

Units Percentage Number of 
Units Percentage 

1B2P 42 42% 41 38% 
2B3P 2 2% 0 0% 

2B4P 38 38% 51 48% 

3B5P 18 18% 14 13% 

TOT 100 100% 106 100% 

 
Table 2 - Proposed and Previous Schemes, Unit Mix  
 

12.9 As already explained, the offer is for 100% social rent units, which is supported by the 
Housing Officer and well above policy requirements. 
 

12.10 Officers welcome the increase in 3 bed units from 13% to 18%. However, as was the 
case for the previous scheme, the proposed mix is significantly weighted towards 1 
and 2 bedroom units (82%) and the number of family units (18%) falls short of the 
Council’s preferred unit mix, as set out in Policy CP5, Policy H3 of the Draft Local Plan 
for Enfield and London Plan Policy H10.   
 

12.11 Nonetheless, the Housing Officer has commented that whilst the demand remains for 
family housing, the priority is for supply across all bedroom sizes. In the case of this 
highly constrained site, the Officer noted that an increase in family housing will not only 

Page 69



23 
 

reduce the footprint and quantum of units, but may impact further on social 
infrastructure.  
 

12.12 Family units are provided at ground floor to the seventh floor, which is supported as 
family housing as height creates less quality accommodation for young children and 
occupants in the block. The majority of the 3bed+ units are provided at ground floor 
which allows for access to outdoor space/garden, which is also supported.  
 

12.13 The provision of 38% of 2b4p, and only 2% 2b3p, is welcomed as it would provide 
quality accommodation for a couple with children. The space standards would be 
appropriate and not overcrowded at first let.  
 

12.14 Taking into account the Housing Officer’s comments, the housing delivery test, the 
presumption in favour of approving sustainable development and the balance in favour 
of approving schemes for residential development, it is considered the low percentage 
of family housing can be accepted, but only in the context of the location and the 100% 
social rent (equivalent to 60% market rent) affordable housing offer which would be 
secured through a legal agreement. The current offer of 100% affordable housing at 
social rent is significant and can be attributed significant weight in the assessment. 
 

13. Affordable Housing  
 

13.1 The NPPF must be taken into account in the preparation of local plans and is a material 
consideration in planning decisions. The NPPF defines Affordable Housing as “housing 
for sale or rent, for those whose needs are not met by the market (including housing 
that provides a subsidised route to home ownership and/or is for essential local 
workers)”. London Plan Policy H4 sets out a strategic target for 50% of all new homes 
delivered across London to be genuinely affordable. 
 

13.2 Enfield sets a Borough-wide affordable housing target of 40% in Core Policy 3 but 
acknowledges the appropriate figure will need to take into account site-specific land 
values, grant availability and viability assessments, market conditions, as well as the 
relative importance of other planning priorities and obligations on the site. 
 

13.3 DMD 1 supporting text notes that affordable housing comprises three tenures: social 
rent, affordable rent, and intermediate housing. Enfield’s Development Management 
Document Policy DMD 1 (Affordable Housing) states that development should provide 
the maximum amount of affordable housing with an appropriate mix of tenures to meet 
local housing need. 
 

13.4 The proposal includes 100 residential units, 100% affordable housing with all the units 
available at social rent in excess of policy requirements. 
 

13.5 Due to the 100% affordable offer, Policy H5 (Threshold approach to applications) 
identifies this as a fast track application. Fast tracked applications are not required to 
provide a viability assessment at application stage. 
 

13.6 A qualifying criterion does require the local planning authority to be satisfied regarding 
the tenure mix with Policy H5 stating: “Developments which provide 75 per cent or 
more affordable housing may follow the Fast Track Route where the tenure mix is 
acceptable to the Borough or the Mayor where relevant”. 
 

13.7 Policy H6 of the London Plan (Affordable Housing Tenures) advises that the following 
split of affordable products should be applied to residential development: a minimum 
of 30 per cent low-cost rented homes, as either London Affordable Rent or Social Rent, 

Page 70



24 
 

allocated according to need and for Londoners on low incomes a minimum of 30 per 
cent intermediate products which meet the definition of genuinely affordable housing, 
including London Living Rent and London Shared ownership the remaining 40 per cent 
to be determined by the Borough as low-cost rented homes or intermediate products 
(defined in Part A1 and Part A2) based on identified need. 
 

13.8 The 2017 SHMA shows London’s significant need for low-cost rental housing which is 
reflected in priorities for our own Borough. There is therefore presumption that the 40 
per cent to be decided by the Borough will focus on Social Rent and London Affordable 
Rent given the level of need for this type of tenure across London. 
 

13.9 In this instance, the tenure mix of 100% social rent is acceptable. The London Plan is 
committed to delivering genuinely affordable housing and within the broad definition of 
affordable housing, the Mayor’s preferred affordable housing tenures includes London 
Affordable Rent. 
 

13.10 LAR is for households on low incomes where the rent levels are based on the formulas 
in the Social Housing Regulator’s Rent Standard Guidance. The rent levels for Social 
Rent homes use a capped formula and London Affordable Rent homes are capped at 
benchmark levels published by the GLA. Rents are significantly less than 80 per cent 
of market rents, which is the maximum for Affordable Rent permitted in the NPPF. 
 

13.11 The proposal provides social rent with an equivalent to 60% of market rent (i.e discount 
of 40%).  
 

14.  Character and Design  
 

14.1 According to Section 12 of the NPPF (2021) the Government attaches great 
importance to the design of the built environment, with good design being a key aspect 
of sustainable development. Paragraph 126 confirms that “The creation of high-quality 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process 
should achieve” and that “Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, 
creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development 
acceptable to communities”. London Plan Policy D3 expects “all development must 
make the best use of land by following a design-led approach that optimises the 
capacity of sites, including site allocations. Optimising site capacity means ensuring 
that development is of the most appropriate form and land use for the site. The design-
led approach requires consideration of design options to determine the most 
appropriate form of development that responds to a site’s context and capacity for 
growth, and existing and planned supporting infrastructure capacity”. 
 

14.2 Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy requires new development to be of a high-quality 
design and in keeping with the character of the surrounding area. This is echoed in 
Policy DMD8 which seeks to ensure that development is high quality, sustainable and 
has regard for and enhances local character.  
 
Character and Townscape 
 

14.3 The application site is rectangular in shape and located to the north of the Enfield 
Highway Local Centre. It is evident there is a variety of buildings in age, design and 
materiality within the vicinity of the site. It is bounded by Carterhatch Lane, Hertford 
Road and Moorfield Road. The site is located on a prominent corner of a busy junction. 
The trees around the perimeter largely obscure views into the site. The site itself is 
covered by a large rectangular two storey building and single storey ancillary structure. 
Although large, it has a relatively low-key appearance within the townscape. The site 

Page 71



25 
 

also has specific constraints, most notably in terms of its narrow shape and tree Root 
Protection Areas. This site-specific constraint has influenced the form of the 
development, from inception through the design changes that led to the current 
proposal.  
 

14.4 The Enfield Characterisation Study identifies that the buildings in linear centres also 
lack the cohesiveness of the more mannered ‘Metroland centres’. Enfield Highway 
Local Centre has elements which were built as part of interwar redevelopment. It is 
evident the centre features a variety of building types and periods. This gives 
considerable variety in scale, materials and details, within proximity to the application 
site. The Study notes that there are some areas of modern development around Enfield 
Highway Local Centre, including clusters of towers at Eastfield Road and the western 
end of Ordnance Road. Therefore, taller buildings are an architectural feature already 
present in this character area, albeit in the form of 1980s blocks with little design merit.  
 

14.5 The existing buildings on the site are considered post war and of little architectural 
merit. These buildings are not designated heritage assets (neither being listed). There 
is no objection to their demolition and replacement, subject to appropriate design. 
 

14.6 The proposal would involve the redevelopment of the site and the construction of a 
building comprising 3 elements, that would be 3, 8 and 12 storeys high (including 
ground floor). The staggered approach will add interest to the appearance of the new 
building and is considered an improvement on the previous proposal, a monolithic 9 
storey block.  
 

14.7 By breaking down the mass and appearance of the building, the relationship between 
neighbouring properties has been improved. The 3 and 8 storey elements are more 
appropriate in the local context than the previous 9 storey block, and will make a 
positive contribution to the local townscape. Their height complements that of 
neighbouring buildings on Moorfield Road and Hertford Road without appearing 
overbearing, thanks to a series of set-backs which ensure sufficient distance from all 
sides.  
 

14.8 The smaller, 3 storey element has been located to the north of the site, facing 4 to 16 
Moorfield Road and 253 to 273 Hertford Road, who are some of the most sensitive 
neighbours in terms of potential daylight, sunlight and overshadowing impact.   
 

14.9 The 8 storey block sits in centre of the building and is narrower than the 3 and 12 storey 
blocks. The same approach to setting back the central part of the building was adopted 
in the previous scheme; the proposed lower height protects the residential amenity of 
1 to 43 Moorfield Road.  
 

14.10 The 3 and 8 storey elements are considered appropriate in the local context and are 
supported. The proposed design is high quality and will make a positive contribution to 
a local townscape, already characterised by a variety of scales, materials and details.  
 

14.11 The section of the proposed building fronting Carterhatch Lane will be 12 storeys high. 
A comparison between the current and previously proposed elevations show that 2 to 
4 storeys (depending on the elevation viewpoint) have been added on Carterhatch 
Lane, in order to redistribute the massing of the building and ensure that the number 
of units is not significantly reduced.  
 

14.12 The visualisations provided within the Design and Access Statement (DAS) show that 
the proposed 12 storey element, when viewed in the wider context, appears to 
complement the height of Hastings House without appearing overly tall. Closer views 

Page 72



26 
 

show that this element will inevitably be perceived as prominent in the local context, 
especially since this is a corner location. However, the constraints of the site don’t allow 
for a larger set back from Carterhatch Lane, without negatively affecting the scheme. 
 

14.13 The proposed 12 storey element will therefore change the local townscape character. 
This is addressed in the following paragraphs, which analyse the implications of the 
proposed siting of the building; of an alternative footprint; and  delivering a taller 
element in the local context.   
 
Proposed siting of the building  
 

14.14 The siting of the building has been subject to extensive discussion with officers prior to 
the submission of this revised scheme.   
 

14.15 As was the case of the previous proposal, the siting of the building has been adjusted 
to facilitate continuation of a green buffer along roads to minimise the impact on the 
existing trees. As a result, the building does not align with the existing street pattern 
and sits at an angle compared to the buildings along Hertford Road.  
 

14.16 The DAS shows a comparison between the siting of the previously proposed building 
and the current scheme, showing how the proposed footprint has been shifted in a 
south-west direction.  
 

14.17 Whilst the 50cm shift of the south-east corner and western building line is a negligible 
distance, the proposed 2.28m shift along the eastern boundary is welcomed, as it 
increases the distance between the proposed building and 253 to 273 Hertford Road, 
sensitive neighbours in terms of potential daylight, sunlight and overshadowing impact. 
This also allows the building to avoid impacting on the Hertford Road Root Protection 
Areas (RPAs) and tree crowns.  
 

14.18 The central element of the proposal is narrower than the other two blocks. The same 
approach to setting back the central part of the building was adopted previously, 
however, the proposed lower height now protects the residential amenity of 1 to 43 
Moorfield Road.  
 

14.19 The proposed building will be located 2.1m to 3.2m from the red line boundary to the 
south, and 4.78m to 6m from the kerb. This relationship is not unusual in the locality 
and would have possibly raised no concerns on a different site. It is acknowledged that 
Carterhatch Lane is wider than Hertford Road, which offers a small degree of visual 
mitigation in the local townscape. However, this is a prominent corner site and a further 
set back from Carterhatch Lane would have been preferable, as it could have softened 
the impact of the proposed building on the townscape.  
 

14.20 Officers discussed this at length with the applicant’s team. Prior to re-submission, a 
plan (ref. SK230602 Footprint Study) was produced which demonstrates that it would 
not be possible to achieve a smaller footprint without a significant reduction in housing 
numbers, with a higher percentage of small units. The plan also shows that it would 
not be possible to deliver 2 bed units (4 people) that comply with the Nationally 
Described Space Standards, or to deliver M4(3) compliant units.  
 

14.21 To conclude, taking into account the benefits resulting from the proposed footprint 
alterations and the tilted balance in favour of approving schemes for residential 
development, it is considered that the proposed building footprint is acceptable and in 
line with Policies CP30 and DMD8, but only in the context of the location and the 100% 
social rent affordable housing offer which would be secured through a legal agreement. 

Page 73



27 
 

Considerations on Height and Tall Buildings  
 

14.22 The proposed building includes: 
• A tall element: 12 storeys. This measures 41.90m at the lift overrun, and 39.50 

at the parapet. 
• A lower element, still taller than the average in the local area: 8 storeys. This 

measures 28.40 at the plant enclosure, and 26.30 at the parapet. 
• A low element: 3 storeys. This measures 12.15 at the plant enclosure, and 

10.60 at the parapet. 
 

14.23 The proposed 12 storey element is clearly a tall building within the context of adopted 
policy and would represent a significant addition to the built environment. The 8 storey 
element falls short of the definition of tall buildings, but still needs careful consideration.  
 

14.24 The NPPF at Para 119 states that “Planning decisions should promote an effective use 
of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and 
improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions ….., in a 
way that makes as much use as possible of previously-developed or ‘brownfield’ land”. 
Para 124 of the NPPF also states that planning decisions should support development 
that makes efficient use of land, taking into account: 

a) the identified need for different types of housing and other forms of 
development, and the availability of land suitable for accommodating it; 

b) local market conditions and viability; 
c) the availability and capacity of infrastructure and services – both existing and 

proposed – as well as their potential for further improvement and the scope to 
promote sustainable travel modes that limit future car use; 

d) the desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing character and setting 
(including residential gardens), or of promoting regeneration and change; and 

e) the importance of securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places.” 
 

14.25 The London Plan advises that while high density does not need to imply high rise, tall 
buildings can form part of a plan-led approach to facilitating regeneration opportunities 
and managing necessary future growth, contributing to new homes and economic 
growth, particularly in order to make optimal use of the capacity of sites which are well-
connected by public transport and have good access to services and amenities. Tall 
buildings can help people navigate through the city by providing reference points and 
emphasising the hierarchy of a place such as its main centres of activity, and important 
street junctions and transport interchanges. It is also considered that tall buildings that 
are of exemplary architectural quality and in the right place, can make a positive 
contribution to London’s cityscape. Many tall buildings have become a valued part of 
London’s identity. However, they can also have detrimental visual, functional and 
environmental impacts if in inappropriate locations and/or of poor quality design. 
 

14.26 London Plan Policy D9 states that Boroughs should determine through their local plan 
if there are locations where tall buildings may be appropriate and proposals should 
take account of, and avoid harm to, the significance of London’s heritage assets and 
their settings. Tall buildings should only be developed in locations that are identified as 
suitable in Development Plans. The current development plan for the Borough does 
not identify suitable locations for tall buildings pursuant to the requirements of London 
Plan Policy D9. It can be noted that the Council’s draft Reg18 local plan does not 
identify this land as an appropriate location for tall buildings. 
 

14.27 Policy DMD 43 classifies a tall building as over 30m as does the London Plan. The 
proposed development would rise up to 12 storeys with a maximum height of 41.90m 

Page 74



28 
 

(lift overrun). DMD Policy 43 (Tall Buildings) is a criteria-based policy for considering 
tall buildings, which justifying text (para. 6.4.1) defines as those “that are substantially 
taller than their surroundings, cause a significant change to the skyline or are larger 
than the threshold sizes set for the referral of planning applications to the Mayor”. It 
states that tall buildings will not be acceptable in areas classified as inappropriate 
unless it can be demonstrated how the proposal avoids the negative impacts 
associated with the sensitive classification. 
 

14.28 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that “Planning policies and decisions should ensure 
that developments are, C) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the 
surrounding built environment and landscape setting…; and d) establish or maintain a 
strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building types and 
materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit”. 
 

14.29 Both the London Plan and DMD tall building policies are relevant to the proposed 
development. As was the case for the previous scheme, the policies can be distilled 
into two questions: 

a) is the proposal in the right location? 
b) is it of high quality? 

 
14.30 These questions are addressed in the following paragraphs.  

 
14.31 Acceptability of a taller building in a particular location will be dependent on the detailed 

local context, including the design of the building, the relationship to neighbouring 
properties, the relationship with any heritage assets and the impact on any views 
including those to and from historic buildings over a wide area. This requires careful 
consideration that should be given to the potential negative impact introducing a taller 
building might have. As always, it is necessary to assess and evaluate the merits of 
individual proposals and exceptionally it may be possible for an applicant to 
demonstrate that an exemplary designed taller building is acceptable within or close to 
nationally or locally designated heritage assets. 
  

14.32 Importantly, recent case law indicates that, notwithstanding the plan led approach of 
London Plan Policy D9, the land does not have had to be identified as appropriate for 
tall buildings, as long as it is appropriate for its location in terms of its design.  
 

14.33 The previous Committee Report noted that the site is not located in a town centre but 
on the edge of a local centre, and has reasonable public transport accessibility. The 
Urban Design Officer raised concerns previously as to whether this location for a tall 
building is appropriate, questioning the justification on the basis of townscape legibility 
and its role as a focal point for development at this junction. In this regard, the balance 
is whether the benefits of the proposal in terms of housing delivery and provision of 
affordable housing, outweigh the visual concerns associated with the 12 storey height 
of the development as proposed, and whether this would have a negative impact on 
the legibility of the locality, when experienced as part of the Borough’s existing 
townscape. 
 

14.34 The predominant height in the locality is 4 storeys. The 2012 Report on Tall Buildings 
(which forms the evidence base for DMD policy) assesses Hastings House as 
“Inappropriate Location, Inappropriate Building” (No. 30 Existing Tall building 
assessment map, pp 11.). However, Hastings House clearly forms part of the visual 
context for development when viewed from both Hereford Road and Carterhouse 
Lane. 
 

Page 75



29 
 

14.35 It should be noted that since 2012, Hertford Road has become increasingly urbanised, 
public transport links have improved, and the Enfield Highway Local Centre increased 
the shops and services. Therefore, this is an appropriate location for a taller residential 
building, in the context of the pressing local housing need.  
 

14.36 The 2022 Committee Report concluded that the resultant bulk and massing of the 
development, particularly to the northern end, resulted in unacceptable impacts to the 
residential amenities of neighbouring properties.    
 

14.37 By reconfiguring the design into three elements of varying heights, the applicant has 
addressed concerns raised previously. The staggered building heights represent an 
important improvement in both the impact on the local townscape and residential 
amenity. The proposed shift of the building footprint to the south-west also improves 
the impact on neighbouring residential amenity.  
 

14.38 Specifically, the bulk and massing to the northern end has been significantly reduced, 
from 9 to 3 storeys. This element is representative of the height and scale of local 
buildings, with no detrimental impact on the residential amenity of 4 to 16 Moorfield 
Road and 253 to 273 Hertford Road. 
 

14.39 Officers would prefer a slightly lower height building, with a greater set back from 
Carterhatch Lane, which would have lessened the impact on local views and on 
pedestrians’ visual experience. The applicant has submitted information to 
demonstrate this would result in a series of drawbacks, including and a reduction in 
number of units and non-policy compliant floorplans. Given the local housing need, the 
tilted balance and the requirement to deliver high standard homes, an alternative 
proposal would not be desirable.  
 

14.40 The Wind Microclimate Report confirms that wind conditions within the surrounding 
areas at ground level are expected to remain suitable for at least leisurely strolling 
along thoroughfares and for short periods of standing at entrances, conditions 
therefore remain suitable for existing and proposed pedestrian users.  
 

14.41 To conclude, whilst London Plan Policy D9 and Policies DMD 43 and 8 are noted, on 
balance the proposed improvements to the scheme, the tilted balance in favour of 
approving schemes for residential development, it is considered that the proposed 
height is acceptable, in the context of the location and the 100% social rent affordable 
housing offer (which would be secured through a legal agreement.) 
 

14.42 Overall, the 100% affordable housing at London Affordable Rent is attributed 
significant weight in the assessment.  
 
Detailing and materials  
 

14.43 Amendments to the colour and details of the scheme have been sought, with the 
brickwork cladding changed to a darker terracotta colour, with green accent details, 
referencing the local buildings of the highest architectural quality, such as the Enfield 
Highway Carnegie Library and Southbury Overground Station. A similar brick colour 
can also be found along the Hertford Road Local Centre.  
 

14.44 The ground and first floors; the top floors of the south and central blocks will be clad in 
darker brick. The central floors will be clad in a lighter brick, adding definition to the 
appearance of the building.  This will be complemented by muted green projecting 
balconies and window frames, along with light grey metal copings. 
 

Page 76



30 
 

14.45 The quality of brickwork, balcony detailing windows and surrounding lintels appears to 
be of a high quality and appropriate in the surrounding context. Officers support the 
proposed material palette, in line with Policies DMD8, DMD 37 and CP30. A condition 
has been attached that requires materiality details to be submitted to the Council for 
approval. 
 

14.46 The previous scheme proposed 2no. main entrances, both fronting onto Hertford Road. 
The revised scheme proposes  one on Carterhatch Lane and one on Hertford Road, 
activating both frontages of the site and promoting pedestrian activity. This is supported 
and is a welcome improvement.  
 

14.47 The Carterhatch Lane entrance has been revised to include a protruding canopy; 
lighter brick at ground and first floors, with distinctive paving and signage to provide 
visible legibility to pedestrians.   

 
14.48 The Hertford Road entrance is more modest in size and detailing, replicating the 

architectural style of this elevation. This is an appropriate approach for a secondary 
entrance.  
 

14.49 The Wind Microclimate Report advises that the two entrances to the site are recessed 
and sheltered from prevailing winds channelling along Hertford Road and Carterhatch 
Lane. As such, these entrances are expected to be suitable for standing and thus for 
comfortable pedestrian ingress / egress.  The proposed entrances are considered to 
comply with Policies DMD8, DMD 37 and CP30. 
 

14.50 The proposed route between the lobbies is well designed. The building adopts a 2-
core approach which is welcomed. It allows for a lower number of homes per floor / 
core, and a greater sense of security and ownership, and contributes to fire safety.  
 
Conclusion of Character and Design  
 

14.51 The character and design of the proposal have been subject to extensive discussion 
with officers, given that the previous proposal was considered to represent an 
overdevelopment of the site, which led to reason for refusal no. 2. 
 

14.52 The proposed building, with its staggered approach, is of higher design quality and, on 
balance, does not unduly harm the townscape character of the locality sufficient to 
outweigh the benefits of the proposal. The current offer of 100% affordable housing at 
London Affordable Rent is significant and is attributed considerable weight in the 
assessment.  Reason for refusal no.2 is considered successfully addressed. 
 

15. Neighbouring Residential Amenity 
 
BRE Guidance - Daylight and Sunlight 
 

15.1 London Plan Policy D6 notes that development proposals should provide sufficient 
daylight and sunlight to new and surrounding housing that is appropriate for its context, 
whilst avoiding overheating, minimising overshadowing and maximising the usability of 
outside amenity space. Policy CP30 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure that new 
developments have appropriate regard to their surroundings, and that they improve 
the environment in terms of visual and residential amenity. Lastly Enfield Policies DMD 
6 and 8 seek to ensure that residential developments do not prejudice the amenities 
enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties in terms of privacy, 
overlooking and general sense of encroachment.  
 

Page 77



31 
 

15.2 In general, for assessing the sunlight and daylight impact of new development on 
existing buildings, Building Research Establishment (BRE) criteria is adopted. In 
accordance with both local and national policies, consideration has to be given to the 
context of the site, the more efficient and effective use of valuable urban land and the 
degree of material impact on neighbours. 
 

15.3 BRE Guidelines paragraph 1.1 states: “People expect good natural lighting in their 
homes and in a wide range of non-habitable buildings. Daylight makes an interior look 
more attractive and interesting as well as providing light to work or read by”. Paragraph 
1.6 states: “The advice given here is not mandatory and the guide should not be seen 
as an instrument of planning policy; its aim is to help rather than constrain the designer. 
Although it gives numerical guidelines, these should be interpreted flexibly since 
natural lighting is only one of many factors in site layout design…”. 
 
BRE Guidance - Daylight and Sunlight to Existing Surrounding Buildings  
 

15.4 The BRE Guidelines stipulate that… “the diffuse daylighting of the existing building 
may be adversely affected if either: the VSC [Vertical Sky Component] measured at 
the centre of an existing main window is less than 27%, and less than 0.8 times its 
former value the area of the working plane in a room which can receive direct skylight 
is reduced to less than 0.8 times its former value”. (No Sky Line / Daylight Distribution).  
 

15.5 At paragraph 2.2.7 of the BRE Guidelines it states: “If this VSC is greater than 27% 
then enough skylight should still be reaching the window of the existing building. Any 
reduction below this level should be kept to a minimum. If the VSC, with the 
development in place is both less than 27% and less than 0.8 times is former value, 
occupants of the existing building will notice the reduction in the amount of skylight. 
The area lit by the window is likely to appear more gloomy, and electric lighting will be 
needed more of the time”.  
 

15.6 The ‘Comparative Impacts and Overshadowing to Neighbouring Assessment’ has 
suggested that a reduced measure of VSC, as opposed to 27%, should be used when 
considering this scheme, citing two recent appeal decisions. Officers agree that VSC 
results in the mid-high teens and low twenties are frequently considered to be 
acceptable in an urban context with neighbouring buildings in close proximity.  
 

15.7 Officers also agree, in principle, that the site is uncharacteristically underdeveloped for 
this urban location, and that the VSC method would tend to over-emphasise the scale 
of changes. Nonetheless, the impact of the proposed development should not be 
detrimental to the amenity of existing residents.  
 

15.8 In making assessments, a judgement is made as to the level of impact on affected 
windows. Where there is a less than 20% change in VSC the effect is judged as to not 
be noticeable. Between 20-30% it is judged to be minor adverse, 30-40% moderate 
adverse and over 40% major adverse. All these figures will be impacted by factors 
such as existing levels of daylight and sunlight and on-site conditions. The judgements 
that arise from these percentages do not form part of the BRE Guide and have become 
part of an industry standard utilised by Daylight and Sunlight specialists. It is for the 
Local Planning Authority to decide whether any losses result in a reduction in amenity 
which is or is not acceptable, depending on a number of circumstances.  
 

15.9 The Comparative Impacts and Overshadowing to Neighbouring Assessment confirms 
that all windows that are flush with facades in the surrounding buildings  achieve values 
within this range (late teen/ early twenty). Where VSC values are dropped below these 
levels, they are all located within overhanging walkways (50-56 Carterhatch Lane and 

Page 78



32 
 

23-43 Moorfield Road), next to projecting wings and/or under balconies (Narev Court). 
These windows already have VSC values around or below 10% because of their 
location within the building.  
 

15.10 The BRE acknowledges that existing windows with balconies above them typically 
receive less daylight, as a balcony and/or overhang cuts out light from the top part of 
the sky, even a modest obstruction opposite may result in a large relative impact on 
the VSC, and on the area receiving direct skylight. The Assessment concludes that in 
these instances, it is the overhang, rather than the proposed scheme, that is resulting 
in low VSC values. Officers agree with this statement.  
 

15.11 The Assessment and the additional ‘Moorfield Road daylight, sunlight and the level of 
VSC change for neighbouring buildings’ note submitted during the pre-submission 
discussion, confirm that 14 windows (8%) will experience a change of 40% or more, 
considered as ‘major adverse, and 12 windows (7%) will experience a change of 30 to 
40%, considered as ‘moderate adverse’. However, a number of these windows are 
located beneath an access deck, whilst the remaining windows serve dual aspect 
rooms, or bedrooms and kitchens where it is acknowledged that daylight is of less 
importance.  
 

15.12 Even when the VSC change will be beyond 30%, the rooms will retain VSC levels of 
late teen/ early twenty as a minimum.  
 

15.13 To conclude, it is considered that the impact of the proposal on the daylighting of the 
existing buildings is acceptable taking into account the following circumstances:  

• The urban nature of the location.  
• The uncharacteristically underdeveloped nature of the application site.  
• The degree of flexibility afforded by BRE Guidance when assessing windows 

with balconies or under overhangs.  
• The tilted balance in favour of approving schemes for residential development.  

 
15.14 With regards to sunlight, the proposed scheme will result in full BRE compliance and 

thus the sunlight to adjoining properties will not be adversely affected by the 
construction of the Proposed Scheme.  
 

15.15 Loss of sunlight and daylight and unneighbourly sense of enclosure, as perceived from 
neighbouring properties, was part of the reason for refusal no.1. Therefore, the current 
proposal is a significant improvement on the previous scheme from a daylight and 
sunlight perspective.   
 
BRE Guidance – Overshadowing to Existing Surrounding Buildings  
 

15.16 BRE guidance recommends that for it to appear adequately sunlit throughout the year, 
at least half (50%) of a garden or amenity area should receive at least two hours of 
sunlight on 21 March. If, as a result of new development, an existing garden or amenity 
area does not meet the above and the area which can receive 2 hours of sun on 21 
March is less than 0.8 times its former value, then the loss of sunlight is likely to be 
noticeable. 
 

15.17 All gardens at 4-16 Moorfield Road will achieve BRE compliance for overshadowing. 
This is a significant improvement on the former scheme, where the gardens of nos.8, 
10 and 12 would have seen losses of 100% of their former value.  
 
 

Page 79



33 
 

Overlooking / Loss of Privacy / Overbearing  
 

15.18 The Mayor of London’s Housing SPG does not support adhering rigidly to visual 
separation measures as they can limit the variety of urban spaces and housing types 
in the city. Standard 28 of the Mayor of London’s Housing SPG states that design 
proposals should demonstrate how habitable rooms within each dwelling are provided 
with an adequate level of privacy in relation to neighbouring property, the street and 
other public spaces. 
 

15.19 Adopted Enfield Policies DMD 6 and 8 seek to ensure residential developments do not 
prejudice the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties 
and Policy CP30 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure that new developments have 
appropriate regard to their surroundings, and that they improve the environment in 
terms of visual and residential amenity. Adopted Enfield Policies DMD 6 and 8 seek to 
ensure that residential developments do not prejudice the amenities enjoyed by the 
occupiers of neighbouring residential properties in terms of privacy, overlooking and 
general sense of encroachment. Adopted Enfield Policy DMD10 is silent on this type 
of relationship, but requiring that development not compromise adjoining sites. 
 

15.20 This new proposal has been designed to minimise issues of overlooking and loss of 
privacy, which, to certain extent, are typical of an urban environment. Thanks to the 
staggering approach and the proposed set backs, the relationship between the 
proposed building and neighbouring properties has improved.  
 
Noise and Disturbance  
 

15.21 Guidance relevant for the assessment of noise affecting new developments is given in 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). Paragraph 185 sets out that that new 
development should be appropriate for its location, taking into account the likely effects 
(including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural 
environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts 
that could arise from the development. In doing so they should seek to a) ‘mitigate and 
reduce to a minimum, potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from new 
development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and 
the quality of life’. 
 

15.22 Meanwhile Policy D14 of the London Plan sets out that in order to reduce, manage and 
mitigate noise to improve health and quality of life, residential… development 
proposals should manage noise by, amongst other things: ‘3) mitigating and minimising 
the existing and potential adverse impacts of noise on, from, within, as a result of, or 
in the vicinity of new development without placing unreasonable restrictions on existing 
noise generating uses’, and ‘4) improving and enhancing the acoustic environment and 
promoting appropriate soundscapes…’. Lastly, the London Plan introduces the 
concept of ‘Agent of Change’ which places the onus on the new development to ensure 
adequate noise mitigation measures are in place if their development will be close to 
a noise generating use. 
 

15.23 The proposed residential development is consistent with the existing prevailing 
residential use in the area, and it is therefore unlikely that any unacceptable levels of 
noise will be generated as result of the residential element of the development. 
 
Conclusion on Neighbouring Residential Amenities 

15.24 The relationship between the proposed building and neighbouring properties, in terms 
of daylight and sunlight, overlooking and privacy has significantly improved, compared 
to the 2022 scheme.  

Page 80



34 
 

15.25 Some level of overlooking remains, but this is considered inevitable in an urban 
location, and especially since the previous NHS building was of a small scale.  
 

15.26 Taking into account the high quality design that makes a positive contribution to the 
area, the improvements compared to the 2022 proposal, and the tilted balance in 
favour of approving schemes for residential development, it is considered that the 
proposal’s impact on the neighbouring residential amenity is acceptable. 
 

16. Quality of Accommodation 
 
Compliance with Nationally Described Space Standards 
 

16.1 The NPPF (Section 12) identifies good design as a key aspect of sustainable 
development, stating that “the creation of high-quality, beautiful and sustainable 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process 
should achieve”. 
 

16.2 Policy D6 of the London Plan sets out housing quality and design standards that 
housing developments must take into account to ensure they provide adequate and 
functional spaces; sufficient daylight and sunlight; avoid overheating; and maximise 
the provision of outside space. 
 

16.3 The Policy notes that design must not be detrimental to the amenity of surrounding 
housing. Table 3.1 sets out the internal minimum space standards for new 
developments and Table 3.2 of the London Plan provides qualitative design aspects 
that should be addressed in housing developments. Despite the adoption of the 
London Plan 2021, the Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance Document (2016) 
remains an adopted document and a material consideration in decision making. The 
DMD contains several policies which also aim to ensure the delivery of new housing of 
an adequate quality, namely Policy DMD8 (General Standards for New Residential 
Development), DMD9 (Amenity Space) and DMD10 (Distancing). 
 

16.4 The table below illustrates the compliance of the proposed units with national 
floorspace standards. 
 

Unit Size Floorspace provision 
range Minimum expected Accordance 

with criteria 

1B2P 51.1 to 62.3  50sqm  Y 
2B3P 69.2 61sqm Y 
2B4P 70.2 to 74.1   70sqm Y 
3B5P 88.1 to 92.6  86sqm Y 

 
Table 3 – Compliance with national floorspace standards. 

 
16.5 The plans submitted confirm that the proposed units will also comply with national 

floorspace in terms of bedroom and storage size, and floor to ceiling height. 
  
Dual Aspect  

16.6 Dual aspect accommodation in the interests of outlook and ventilation should be sought 
for all accommodation as a minimum, and this scheme fails to provide it in this instance, 
as was the case for the 2022 proposal. Instead, the scheme utilises the same approach 
as the previous proposal, by providing ‘enhanced’ single aspect accommodation by 
virtue of large windows and balconies.  

Page 81



35 
 

16.7 The level of dual aspect accommodation is 64%, a slight improvement on the previous 
62.2%, which is welcomed. There is no minimum number specified in London Plan 
Policy D6, which requires the provision of dual aspect homes to be maximised in 
developments. Although it would be desirable to have a higher number of dual aspect 
accommodation, this would result in fewer units, due to the constraints of the site. 
Therefore, given the tilted balance that applies, it is considered the scheme is 
acceptable and no grounds to refuse planning permission could be sustained on this 
point alone.  
 

16.8 The table below shows the analysis of dual aspect through the scheme. 
 
 
Floor Dual Aspect  Single Aspect  Total  
GF 4 (57%) 3 (43%) 7 
1F 7 (50%) 7 (50%) 14 
2F 7 (50%) 7 (50%) 14 
3F 6 (67%) 3 (33%) 9 
4F 6 (67%) 3 (33%) 9 
5F 6 (67%) 3 (33%) 9 
6F 6 (67%) 3 (33%) 9 
7F 6 (67%) 3 (33%) 9 
8F 4 (80%) 1 (20) 5 
9F 4 (80%) 1 (20) 5 
10F 4 (80%) 1 (20) 5 
11F 4 (80%) 1 (20) 5 
Total  64 (64%) 36 (36%) 100 

 
Table 4 - Dual aspect analysis.  
 
Accessibility  
 

16.9 Policies D5 and D7 of the London Plan set out that new developments are required to 
support mixed and inclusive communities, which includes provision for wheelchair 
accessible and wheelchair adaptable units, as well as an environment that is 
welcoming and accessible by all. Policy D7 of the London Plan sets out that in order to 
provide suitable housing and genuine choice for London’s diverse population, including 
disabled people, older people and families with young children, residential 
development must ensure that: 

1) 1. At least 10% of dwellings meet Building Regulation requirement M4(3) 
‘wheelchair user dwellings’, 

2) 2. all other dwellings meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2) 
‘accessible and adaptable dwellings.’ 

 
16.10 Local Plan DMD Policy 8 has similar policy objectives. 

 
16.11 The proposal includes 12% Wheelchair Adaptable units of which 10% are Wheelchair 

Accessible part M4(3) compliant. All other units will be designed in accordance with 
Building Regulation Standards M4(2), ‘Accessible and adaptable dwellings’. to provide 
for other types of access needs and potential future requirements. A condition will be 
attached that requires the proposed development to comply with the above outlined 
standards. 
 

 

Page 82



36 
 

Private amenity space 
 

16.12 Local Plan Policy DMD 9 outlines minimum private outdoor amenity space provision 
standards. London Plan Policy D6 states that, where there are no higher local 
standards, a minimum of 5sqm should be provided for 1-2 person dwellings and an 
extra 1sqm should be provided for each additional occupant. The London Plan Housing 
SPG indicates that where it is not possible to provide private outdoor amenity, a 
proportion of dwellings may instead be provided with additional internal living space 
equivalent to the area of the private open space requirement.  
 

16.13 The proposal includes policy compliant balconies for all the upper floors, and policy 
compliant ground floor amenity spaces.  
 

16.14 Previously concern was expressed about the lack of defensible space and possible 
requirement for privacy screens (1.8m) and obscure glazing. The revised scheme has 
increased the provision of soft landscaping, includes higher quality ground floor private 
amenity (to include paved and green areas) and defensible space around the 
residential units, which is welcomed. 
 
Communal Amenity Space and Play Area 
 

16.15 The applicant is proposing to deliver approximately 499sqm communal amenity space 
on ground level, fronting Hereford Road. This is an improvement on the 364sqm 
previously proposed, which is welcomed and supported by officers. 
 

16.16 The Wind Microclimate Report confirms that wind conditions at all thoroughfares within 
the site are expected to be suitable for at least leisurely strolling throughout the year 
and thus for comfortable pedestrian access to and passage through the site. 
 

16.17 Policy S4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that development proposals include 
suitable provision for play and recreation, and incorporate good-quality, accessible 
play provision for all ages, of at least 10 square metres per child. Core Policy 34 and 
Policy DMD 73 state that development with an estimated child occupancy of ten 
children or more will be required to incorporate on-site play provision to meet the needs 
arising from the development.  
 

16.18 To meet policy requirements play space on the two green roofs (3rd and 12th storeys) 
that will be aimed at ages 0-4, with adjacent seating space for carers, is included. The 
roof terraces will have around 720sqm of playable area that will be designed on the 
theme of sensory play. Older children will also be able to use the space informally. 
 

16.19 This supplements the existing play space to the north-west of Moorfield Road, to the 
north-west of Lambard Avenue, to the north of St George’s Field and to the southern 
side of Carterhatch Lane. These four sites offer play space to a range of age groups 
and are all within a 10 minute walk from the site. The GLA population yield calculator 
indicates that 34 children below the age of 5 will live at the development. the proposed 
play area comfortably exceeds policy requirements.  
 

16.20 TA Wind Microclimate Report accompanies this submission, which confirms that the 
presence of the 1.1m tall and 1.6m tall parapets around the terraces would be expected 
to result in comfortable wind conditions for short-term sitting or better throughout the 
terraces from spring to autumn; conditions are thus expected to be suitable for 
proposed recreational use.  
 

Page 83



37 
 

16.21 The wind conditions at the balconies throughout the proposed development are 
expected to be suitable for at least short periods of sitting in summer and thus for the 
intended use. 
 

16.22 Whilst officers would have preferred suitability for sitting for longer periods of time in 
all seasons, the constraints of the site are such that larger balconies would appear 
inappropriate, and there is no alternative location for play space. In light of these 
considerations and the tilted balance which currently applies, it is considered that this 
element of the proposal is appropriate. Details of hard and soft landscaping will need 
to be submitted for approval in writing. 
 
Internal Daylight and Sunlight  
 

16.23 The Internal Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing Report shows that 226 (82%) of 
the 276 rooms assessed will achieve the minimum levels of spatial Daylight Autonomy 
(sDA) recommended within the UK National Annex for residential buildings. The Report 
comments that compliance would reach 91%, should the 150 lux recommended for 
living rooms be considered acceptable, instead of a higher level for combined 
Living/Kitchen/Dining rooms.  
 

16.24 Officers consider that, taking into account the housing delivery test, the presumption 
in favour of approving sustainable development and the tilted balance in favour of 
approving schemes for residential development, it is acceptable to use the lower lux 
level suggested in the Report.  
 

16.25 The rooms that experience lower levels of light are either located on the lower floors 
and provided with balconies, have good access to sunlight, or fall short only marginally 
of the daylight levels suggested for living rooms or bedrooms. Therefore, the proposed 
internal level of daylight and sunlight is considered acceptable.  
 

16.26 Officers also note that 99% of the windows that qualify for sunlight assessment will 
meet BRE Guidance. The only unit falling short of guidance does so only marginally 
and, owing to its north-west orientation, has a naturally lower expectation for direct 
sunlight in mid-season. 
 
Overshadowing: Public and Communal Amenity Areas (Sunlight on the Ground) 
  

16.27 An overshadowing assessment has demonstrated that the communal area will 
meet BRE Guidance. 
 
Outlook  
 

16.28 The 2022 Committee Report expressed concern about the outlook afforded to a 
number of flats facing onto trees, as this relationship would not be beneficial for 
functioning residential accommodation and would place future pressure on the trees’ 
retention. The flats that were most affected by this relationship were the ones facing 
the eastern boundary of the site.  
 

16.29 There is a 2.28m shift in the building footprint to the south-west direction, thus these 
apartments will enjoy a larger gap with the existing trees to be retained along Hertford 
Road. This is welcomed by officers.    
 

Page 84



38 
 

16.30 Although a larger distance between the building and the retained trees would have 
been preferable, Officers acknowledge that this cannot be delivered without 
significantly affecting the design and the delivery of affordable homes. 
 

16.31 With regards to future pressure on the trees’ retention, this could be addressed as part 
of the Landscape Management Plan, to be secured via condition. The Plan will need 
to ensure, among other points, that the trees are pruned at appropriate intervals (see 
Tree section in this Report) and the ground floor communal area is cleaned regularly.  
 

16.32 Given the above considerations and the tilted balance that applies, it is considered the 
outlook for prospective residents is acceptable and no grounds to refuse planning 
permission could be sustained on this point alone. This positively addresses reason 
for refusal 2.  
 
Noise 
 

16.33 With regards to noise impact to future occupiers of the Development, the 2022 
submission documents include an Environmental Noise Assessment. This is also 
relevant to this scheme, and it recommends mitigation measures are implemented to 
address ground borne noise and vibration impact, including suitable glazing. In order 
for noise and vibration levels to remain at an acceptable level, a planning condition has 
been recommended to secure this, in line with relevant policy and guidance as outlined 
above. 
 

16.34 With regards to occupier amenity, it is recognised that most developments in urban 
areas will be subject to noise levels above the BS8233 recommended levels for 
balconies. However, it is reasonable to assume that future occupiers would prefer the 
option to have a noisier balcony as opposed to having no balcony at all. 
 

16.35 Furthermore, it is acknowledged that there are no other noise mitigation measures 
available for balconies other than fully enclosing them (i.e. ‘winter gardens’), which 
essentially changes the balconies into internal rooms. On this basis the development 
is considered acceptable in relation to noise levels in external to private amenity areas. 
 
 Air Quality / Pollution  
 

16.36 This submission is accompanied by an updated Air Quality Assessment, which 
demonstrates that the proposed development is suitable for this site, and that the 
scheme has been assessed as air quality neutral. The mitigation measures detailed 
within the report have been conditioned, to ensure that impacts to sensitive receptors 
are minimised during the construction stage.  
 
Conclusion on Quality of Accommodation  
 

16.37 The proposed quality of accommodation has significantly improved, compared to the 
2022 scheme. Whilst both buildings would comply with Nationally Described Space 
Standards, the current proposal benefits from improved private and communal amenity 
provision, defensible space and outlook. Daylight and sunlight levels and 
overshadowing have been tested, and are considered acceptable.  
 

16.38 Taking into account the improvements compared to the 2022 proposal, and the tilted 
balance in favour of approving schemes for residential development, it is considered 
that the proposal’s quality of accommodation is acceptable. 
 

Page 85



39 
 

17. Trees and Landscaping  
 

17.1 Policy DMD 80 requires the retention and protection of trees of amenity and biodiversity 
value on a site and in adjacent sites that may be affected by proposals. Policy DMD 
81 ensures development must provide high quality landscaping that enhances the local 
environment. 
 

17.2 The site contains 23 trees in total (five of which are covered by a TPO (T1, T3, T14, 
T15 and T20 - as referenced in the Arboriculture Report), with prominent trees along 
both Carterhatch Lane and Hertford Road. The proposal would require the removal of 
16 trees (2no. Category B trees, 11no. Category C trees, 1no. Category C tree group 
and 2no. Category U trees), with 7 trees requiring pruning, reducing and lifting crowns 
of trees including all trees covered by a TPO.  
 

17.3 It is proposed to fell two Category B trees fronting Carterhatch Lane, T8 and T12. As 
part of the discussion for the previous scheme, the applicant was advised that the 
felling of these two trees was cause of concern, due to the visual impact upon the local 
street scene. However, the applicant’s team has now been able to demonstrate that, 
although their loss is regrettable, a scheme that retains the Category B trees would not 
be desirable.  
 

17.4 The updated Arboricultural Impact Assessment confirms that the proposed 
amendments to the footprint of the building will ensure that the impact of pruning 
required has now lessened. The root protection areas of the retained trees will be 
protected, thanks to the erection of protective fencing and the creation of a 
Construction Exclusion Zone. ‘No-dig’ construction methods will also be utilised and, 
where necessary, arboricultural supervision will be employed when construction 
activities may impact on trees and their root protection areas. 
 

17.5 20 new trees are proposed, along the western, northern and eastern boundaries of the 
site. The trees chosen include flowering and fruiting varieties which will benefit local 
biodiversity. 
 

17.6 As the impact on trees was considered unacceptable in the previous scheme, leading 
to reason for refusal no. 4, the Arboricultural Officer has liaised closely with the 
applicant’s team to ensure that the proposed felling, replacement trees, and impact of 
the proposed works on the retained trees is acceptable.  
 

17.7 The Arboricultural Officer confirmed the proposed footprint of the building will protect 
the retained trees (including 5 TPOs) and that the replacement provision is satisfactory, 
subject to conditions. This addresses reason for refusal no.4 of the previous scheme. 
 

17.8 With regards to landscaping, a revised strategy has been submitted, which is an 
improvement. More soft landscaping is now proposed, and the proposed Planting 
Strategy shows a variety of species that will deliver a high quality environment for future 
residents.  
 

17.9 Perennials, shrubs and grass comprise the soft landscaping across the site, with 
ornamental planting specifically located along the southern boundary (Carterhatch 
Lane) where a number of trees will be lost. 
 

17.10 A Landscape Management Plan will be secured via condition. The Plan will need to 
ensure, among other points, that the trees are pruned at appropriate intervals and the 
ground floor communal area is cleaned regularly.  

Page 86



40 
 

18. Biodiversity  
 

18.1 The London Plan, the Core Strategy, and the DMD seek to protect and enhance 
biodiversity. Policy DMD 79 states that developments resulting in the creation of 100m2 
or more, or the creation of one or more net dwellings should provide on-site ecological 
enhancements and Policy DMD 81 states that development must provide high quality 
landscaping that enhances the local environment. Most developments can provide 
ecological enhancements to improve the biodiversity offer on that site. Enhancements 
could range from anything such as bird boxes to wildlife friendly landscaping or green 
roofs, but enhancements should be scaled to reflect the size and scale of the proposed 
development. 
 

18.2 Policy DMD 55 requires all major developments to use as much roof space and vertical 
surfaces as technically and economically feasible for the installation of zero carbon 
technologies, green roofs, and living walls. Such measures will also contribute to flood 
risk management. Any proposal should also demonstrate how it conforms to the 
Drainage Strategy. 
 

18.3  This submission is accompanied by an updated Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and 
Bat Survey, which confirms that the site is not subject to any statutory or non-statutory 
nature conservation designations. No impacts are envisaged on statutory or non-
statutory designated sites due to the scale of the proposed works.  
 

18.4 Furthermore, no evidence of roosting bats was recorded within any of the buildings on 
site during the inspections or emergence survey. The report concludes that the 
proposals are unlikely to impact the low numbers of foraging bats using the site, 
provided sensitive artificial lighting is employed during the construction and operational 
phase of development.  
 

18.5 The DAS explains that the scheme has been designed to make use of the existing 
mature trees and will incorporate opportunities for habitat creation, with bird and bat 
boxes as well as the introduction of bug hotels and log piles. There is a diagram 
showing the locations of new biodiversity clusters across the site, and further details 
will be secured via condition.  
 

18.6 The Proposed Development will not result in the disturbance of any existing habitats 
biodiversity gain.  
 

19.  Access, Traffic and Parking 
 

Trip Generation  
 

19.1 A Transport Addendum has been submitted, which confirms that the movements 
generated by the proposed development would be slightly lower than those generated 
by the 2022 proposal. Overall, the anticipated trip generation is not considered to be 
significant and would not have a material impact on the operation of the surrounding 
highway network or public transport loading.  

 
Car and Cycle Parking  
 

19.2 London Plan Policy T1 and the Mayor’s Transport Strategy set out an ambition for 80% 
of journeys to be made by sustainable transport modes – that is by foot, cycle or public 
transport – by 2041. In keeping with this approach, it is accepted that proposed 
development should support this aim by making effective use of land, reflective of 

Page 87



41 
 

connectivity and accessibility by sustainable travel modes. Meanwhile, the Mayor’s 
‘Healthy Streets’ driver looks to reduce car dominance, ownership and use, whilst at 
the same time increasing walking, cycling and public transport use. 
 

19.3 London Plan Policy T2 requires development to facilitate and promote short, regular 
trips by walking or cycling and reduce car dominance. Policy T6 sets out the 
requirement for car-free development to be the starting point for all sites well connected 
by public transport. Policy T9 notes that where development is car free, provision must 
be made for disabled persons parking and adequate space for deliveries and servicing 
and, in instances where a car-free development could result in unacceptable impacts 
off-site, these should be mitigated through planning obligations. 
 

19.4 Core Strategy (2010) policies aim to both address the existing deficiencies in transport 
in the Borough and to ensure that planned growth is supported by adequate transport 
infrastructure that promotes sustainable transport choices. Specifically, Core Policy 25 
requires development to prioritise pedestrian and cycle public realm improvements that 
contribute to quality and safety; Core Policy 24 requires development to deliver 
improvements to the road network, and Core Policy 26 requires development to ensure 
a safe, accessible, welcoming and efficient public transport network. The underlying 
approach is to ensure that travel choice across the Borough is enhanced so as to 
provide everyone with the opportunity to decide how they choose to travel, be that by 
car, public transport or walking and cycling. Development Management Document 
(2014) Policy DMD 45 Parking Standards and Layout states that the Council aims to 
minimise car parking and to promote sustainable transport options. 
 

19.5 The site is located on the corner of Carterhatch Lane and Hertford Road, and was 
previously in use as a medical centre, but this has since closed. Vehicular access is 
currently and is proposed to remain from Moorfield Road, which is an adopted 
unclassified road accessed from Carterhatch Lane. This was also the case for the 
previous proposal.  
 

19.6 Hertford Road and Carterhatch Lane are both classified roads with double yellow lines 
preventing parking at any time, and there is a zebra crossing to the immediate south 
of the site on Carterhatch Lane. 
 

19.7 The site has a PTAL of 2, which is low. There are double yellow lines along much of 
Moorfield Road at the London Fire Brigade request, as there was already an issue with 
parked vehicles blocking access. This has further reduced the available on-street 
space for any off-site parking or servicing. 
 

19.8 The Transport Addendum and Car Park Management Plan that support the scheme 
confirm the provision of 9 car parking spaces, which include:  

• 3 disabled bays.  
• 1 car club bay. 
• 2 electric vehicle charging bays (the other 8 would have passive electric 

charging capabilities).  
• 3 standard parking bays. 

 
19.9 The 9 car parking spaces would mean that this development would be considered as 

‘car free’. 
 

19.10 Given the low PTAL of this site, a car-free development would only be suitable in this 
location if a Car Parking Zone (CPZ) was implemented, and occupants of the new 
development are exempted from being eligible for residential permits for that or any 

Page 88



42 
 

future CPZ. In order to establish the CPZ, the Council would require £56,500 towards 
consultation and implementation of a CPZ. The Transport Assessment submitted in 
support of the previous scheme states that the CPZ would be created and funded by 
the applicant, which is still the case. The scope of the CPZ will need to be agreed with 
officers.  
 

19.11 The proposed car free development can only be supported with the CPZ, 
improvements to the local cycling offer and general Sustainable Transport 
contributions in line with our contributions calculator. This is expected to equal £43,371, 
to be paid towards sustainable transport measures. 
 

19.12 The Car Park Management Plan submitted states: 
• Parking spaces would be leased to those with the most genuine need and 

demand for each type of bay would be monitored.  
• The car park would be managed by an external management company to 

prevent any misuse of parking bays, with all necessary signage and lining 
maintained in perpetuity.  

• Additional disabled car parking provision could be achieved through the 
conversion of other parking bays in the future, if there was an identified need.  

 
19.13 The number of car parking spaces is reduced from 10 to 9, to avoid detrimental impacts 

to root protection areas. Therefore, an updated Car Park Management Plan has been 
requested via condition to reflect this.  
 

19.14 The proposal provides 180 long-stay and 10 short-stay cycle parking spaces, which 
exceeds the London Plan requirement of 179 long-stay and 4 short-stay spaces.  
 

19.15 As explained in the 2022 Committee Report, due to the low PTAL there would also be 
an expectation that significant improvements to the cycling offer to the local community, 
further our Healthy Streets team stated that there is an ambition to improve the 
crossing opposite the site on Carterhatch Lane, as well as the cycle lane width on the 
northern side adjacent to the development. Since the standard contributions expected 
from a scheme of this size towards Cycle Enfield would be in the region of £31,460 
(based on our contributions calculator) this could take the form of a sliver of land on 
the Carterhatch Lane / Hertford Road frontages being contributed, and money towards 
the works required. 
 

19.16 Officers have raised concerns about the design of the cycle parking spaces. Therefore, 
a condition will request the detailed design of all cycle parking areas, to address 
officers’ comments.  

 
Delivery and servicing 

19.17 The proposal includes a lay-by and is supported by a Delivery and Servicing Plan 
(DSP) submitted for the previous scheme.  
 

19.18 With regards to servicing, we are concerned that the development places the burden 
of this onto Moorfield Road, by creating an on-street servicing layby on the public 
highway. Again, it is considered that in order to avoid disbenefit to the public, we would 
require that land to the front of the site on Carterhatch Lane / Hertford Road is passed 
to the Healthy Streets team to allow for further improvements to the highway and cycle 
infrastructure around the site. 
 

19.19 If an on-street bay is created, it is important to maintain the footway around it, which 
does appear to encroach into the red line of the site. Officers require the applicants to 

Page 89



43 
 

fund the construction of the bay and the required orders for the double yellow line 
markings that would ensure the bay could only be used for loading and drop off / pick 
up. 
 
Waste Management  
 

19.20 London Plan policy SI 7 seeks to promote a more circular economy that improves 
resource efficiency, recycling and reductions in waste going for disposal. Referable 
applications should promote circular economy outcomes and aim to be net zerowaste. 
Core policy 22 of the Core Strategy states that the Council will: 

• encourage on-site reuse and recycled materials, 
• encourage on site reuse and recycling of construction, demolition and 

excavation waste; 
• require appropriate provision to be made for on site waste treatment, storage 

and collection throughout the life time of the development. 
 

19.21 The plans submitted show that refuse and recycling will be located at ground floor level. 
Adequate storage space for refuse bins will be available. A condition has been 
attached requiring details of refuse storage to be submitted to the Council and 
approved in writing. The applicant would need to demonstrate that the capacity of the 
refuse bins to meets the requirements of ENV08/162. 
 

19.22 The applicant updated the Circular Economy Statement, which demonstrates that the 
proposed development has applied circular economy principles in line with the above 
London Plan policy. Officers are satisfied with the findings of this report. 
 

19.23 A Waste Management Plan has been submitted, in line with Policy DMD 57, setting 
out the following:  

• Suitable waste storage arrangements are incorporated within the site and 
would be maintained in perpetuity. These provide sufficient storage capacities 
and convenient access routes;  

• An 11.0m refuse vehicle represents the largest vehicle anticipated at the site, 
which would be used infrequently (once per week) and could safely and 
conveniently access the site within 10m of the bin store;  

• Waste would be collected by the Council as part of an existing route;  
• The building management company would have overall responsibility for 

enforcing this Management Plan and would liaise accordingly with relevant 
stakeholders;  

• The bin store would be maintained in a clean and clear manner, with separate 
waste and recycling streams clearly labelled.  

 
20.  Flood Risk and Drainage 

 
20.1 This submission is accompanied by an updated Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage 

Strategy.  
 

20.2 Policy DMD59 states that new development must avoid and reduce the risk of flooding, 
and not increase the risk elsewhere. Policy DMD 61 states that a drainage strategy will 
be required for all development to demonstrate how proposed measures manage 
surface water as close to its source as possible and follow the drainage hierarchy in 
the London Plan. The policy requires that a development such as the one proposed 
must achieve greenfield run off rates and must maximise the use of SuDS by including 
several treatment phases. 
 

Page 90



44 
 

20.3 It is proposed that surface water runoff from the block will discharge via a green roof 
with permavoid storage to the proposed surface water network, and on to the existing 
Thames Water surface water network. All surface water runoff from the parking and 
access routes will be discharged via permeable paving, and sub base storage will 
provide online attenuation for large storm events, up to and including the 1 in 100 year 
+ 40 climate change. This SuDs scheme takes in to account the Pluvial flood risk and 
mitigates the affects the development may have on the surrounding area.  
 

20.4 Peak foul flow rate from the proposed site is predicted to be 4.63 l/s. Wastewater from 
the block will be collected and conveyed via gravity to the existing foul sewer in north 
west of the site. An agreement with Thames Water will need to be in place prior to a 
connection being made to their network. 
 

20.5 SUDs Officers advised that the design flood event that needs to be assessed is the 1 
in 100 year + (17%) climate change event, and that the proposed discharge rate is 
above the correct greenfield QBAR rate for the site. 
  

20.6 Accordingly, additional information has been requested, including: 
• Re-calculating finished floor level (FFL), to be at least 150mm above the 1 in 

100 year (plus climate change) surface water flood depth. 
• Further details of level flood compensation.  
• Further details of SuDS measures.  

 
20.7 Officers noted that, in principle, a suitable flood risk and drainage scheme can be 

achievable on this site.  A condition will be attached to request a detailed drainage 
strategy for approval pre-commencement of any development. 
 

20.8 The applicant confirmed that officers’ comments can be addressed and that this will be 
done as part of a Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy Update. Officers will review the 
Update and their comments will be reported to the Planning Committee as an 
Addendum to this Report before the meeting. Furthermore, conditions will be added, 
as required, to ensure that the proposed flood risk and drainage strategy is acceptable 
and that it is implemented in accordance with the submitted details.  

 
20.9 Existing surface water sewers which cross the site will need to be protected or diverted 

in accordance with Thames Waters requirements.  
 
20.10 Thames Water have confirmed that they have no objections to this updated proposal. 

 
21.  Carbon Emissions and Sustainability  

 
Operational carbon emissions 
 

21.1 Policy DMD 49 states all new development must achieve the highest sustainable 
design and construction standards and include measures capable of mitigating and 
adapting to climate change to meet future needs having regard to technical feasibility 
and economic viability. Policy DMD51 states further energy efficiency standards and 
that all developments will be required to demonstrate how the proposal minimises 
energy- related CO2 emissions which must adhere to the principles of the energy 
hierarchy in the policy. This follows policy CP20 of the Core Strategy which states that 
the Council will require all new developments, and where possible via retrofitting 
process in existing development to address the causes and impacts of climate change 
by: minimising energy use; supplying energy efficiently; and using energy generated 
from renewable sources in line with the London Plan and national policy. The adopted 

Page 91



45 
 

policies require that new developments achieve the highest sustainable design and 
construction standards having regard to technical feasibility and economic viability. A 
35% CO2 reduction is required for new residential units. 
 

21.2 An updated Energy Strategy Report demonstrates the use of passive design 
measures, provision of energy efficient servicing systems and specification of low and 
zero carbon energy sources would result in a significant reduction in regulated 
domestic carbon dioxide emissions for the proposal. There will be an overall 
improvement in emissions over the Building Regulations Part L standards for regulated 
emissions of 72%, which exceeds policy requirements and is supported by officers. A 
condition requires the development to be implemented in accordance with the 
submitted Energy Strategy Report. 
 

21.3 Two forms of renewable technology are proposed for the scheme – Air Source Heat 
Pumps (ASHPs) and photovoltaics (PVs). A communal ASHP system will serve the 
thermal loads of the apartments. A 17.75kWp PV installation is also proposed on the 
roof of the development. 
 

21.4 A communal heat network is proposed as part of the development proposals to 
facilitate the future connection of the scheme to any potential future district heating 
network in the vicinity of the development. 
 
Overheating 
 

21.5 The Energy Strategy Report explains that passive overheating mitigation measures 
have been implemented, including but not limited to sensible glazing provisions, solar 
control glazing and recessed windows.  
 

21.6 The strategy applies to both apartments that will be able to open their windows to 
mitigate overheating risk and for apartments that won’t, because of acoustic 
constraints.  
 
 
Water efficiency 
 

21.7 As noted in the 2022 Committee Report, details of water efficiency measures would 
also need to be provided to demonstrate water consumption per person per day equal 
to or less than 105 litres. A condition requiring compliance with these details has been 
imposed.  
 
Climate Change 
 

21.8 The updated Whole Life Carbon Assessment demonstrates that the proposed 
development would be consistent with GLA standards. 

 
22. Health 

 
22.1 The proposed development would be expected to result in the provision of housing, 

additional local spending by residents of the new development, and the provision of 
private amenity space. Taking the above into consideration, overall it is considered that 
some positive environmental effects on socio-economics would arise as a result of the 
development. 
 

Page 92



46 
 

23. Environmental Considerations 
 

23.1 Environmental Health have reviewed the application and have no objections subject to 
conditions pertaining to noise from plant and Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM). 
 

23.2 The officer also confirmed that there are no concerns regarding contaminated land and 
air quality subject to the attachment of conditions. 

 
24. Education 

 
24.1 The scheme will be liable for education and childcare contributions for the net increase 

of units on site, in accordance with the adopted s106 SPD. These contributions will be 
secured via an s106 legal agreement. 
 

25. Fire Safety 
 

25.1 In accordance with Policy D12 ‘Fire safety’ of the Mayor’s London Plan, the applicant 
has submitted a Fire Statement addressing Building Regulations and London Plan 
Policies, and the requirements of Planning Gateway One, produced by a third party 
suitable qualified assessor. Information is provided on means of escape, features to 
reduce risk to life such as sprinklers and access for fire service personnel. 
 

25.2 The building is served via three stairs that are non-accessible to each other on the 
upper floors. One set of stairs is located within the 3 storey block, whilst the other two 
are in the 12 storey block. Meeting regulations, one of two stairs will be a dedicated 
firefighting stair, and the other a protected scape stair.  
  

25.3 There will also be three passengers lift, one will be a dedicated firefighting lift (within 
the 12 storey block) and the other two are dedicated evacuation lifts.   
 

25.4 The design of Moorfield Road residential development, with regard to fire safety, has 
been developed to exceed the minimum requirements of Part B of the Building 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and the London Plan Policies D5(B5) and D12. 
 

25.5 A detailed review of the external wall details proposed has been undertaken, and the 
major components have been specified to exceed the minimum required by Building 
Regulation 7(2).   
 

25.6 All apartments are to be provided with fire detection, alarm systems and sprinkler 
systems. Ground floor ancillary spaces will also have dedicated fire detection and 
alarm systems installed.  
 

25.7 Fire service access into the building will be from the outside of the building via one of 
the two stairs from Moorfield Road. The maximum horizontal distances from the fire 
service vehicle parking position on Moorfield Road are well within the limits provided 
in BS 9991.  
 

26. Secure by Design 
 

26.1 The Designing Out Crime Officer is unable to support the scheme, raising concerns 
that the design could contribute to and might increase the opportunity for crime and 
anti-social behaviour at this location, putting the new and existing residents at risk, if 
further information is not provided. In order to manage this risk, a prior to occupation 
condition has been suggested, that requires Certificate of Compliance to the relevant 
Secure by Design Guide(s) or alternatively achieve Crime Prevention Standards 

Page 93



47 
 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in conjunction 
with the Metropolitan Police.  
 

27. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 
Mayoral CIL 

 
27.1 Mayoral CIL is collected by the Council on behalf of the Mayor of London. The amount 

that is sought for the scheme is calculated on the net increase of gross internal floor 
area multiplied by an Outer London weighting (increased to £60per sqm as of 1st April 
2019). 
 

27.2 Although the proposal would be Mayoral CIL liable, as all the units proposed are social 
housing it would benefit from relief and no CIL would be payable. 
 
Enfield CIL 
 

27.3 The Council introduced its own CIL on 1st April 2016. Enfield has identified three 
residential charging zones, and the site falls within the lower rate charging zone 
(£40/sqm). 
 

27.4 As explained above, although the proposal would also be Enfield CIL liable, as all the 
units proposed are social housing it would benefit from relief and no CIL would be 
payable. 
 

28. Public Sector Equality Duty 
 

28.1 In accordance with the Public Sector Equalities Duty, an equalities impact assessment 
has been undertaken. It is considered the proposal would not disadvantage people 
who share one of the different nine protected characteristics as defined by the Equality 
Act 2010 compared to those who do not have those characteristics. 

 
29. Conclusion 
 
29.1 2 Moorfield Road is a brownfield site which has been vacant for the past 6 years. It is 

now boarded up, to avoid instances of vandalism and anti-social behaviour. Despite 
the low PTAL rating, the site is well connected to bus services, within 20 minutes walk 
from the nearest railway and Overground stations, and at the edge of Enfield Highway 
Local Centre.  

 
29.2 The principle of development, demolition of the former NHS building and 

redevelopment of the site for residential use, was established with the previous 
proposal and is fully supported by officers.  

 
29.3 This is the second time a scheme for this site is presented before Planning Committee. 

The first proposal was recommended for refusal as it was considered overdevelopment 
of the site, providing poor amenity standards to future and neighbouring residents, as 
well as unacceptable impacts on the trees.  

 
29.4 The scheme proposes 100 residential units, 100% affordable (social rent). There is a 

small reduction in units from 106 to 100. Although this is regrettable, it has also resulted 
in several improvements that, on balance,  result in the proposals being acceptable. 

 

Page 94



48 
 

29.5 The housing need in the borough is even more pressing than in March 2022. Therefore, 
the current offer of 100% affordable housing at social rent is significant and is attributed 
significant weight planning balance.  

 
29.6 The revised design creates improved quality of accommodation, minimal negative 

impact on trees, and an aesthetically pleasing design, with a stepped approach to the 
height, creating visual interest.  overall a better design.   

 
29.7 Daylight and sunlight levels within the development and neighbouring properties  are 

now acceptable. Where levels of change in daylight are more pronounced, this occurs 
in properties where windows are located beneath an access deck, or where there are 
double aspect rooms, or in bedrooms and kitchens (where BRE guidance confirms 
daylight is of less importance). Even in these instances, the retained daylight levels are 
considered appropriate in an urban context, and taking into account the tilted balance 
in favour of approving schemes for residential development. 

 
29.8 Therefore, considering the important benefits of the scheme in the form of 100 

affordable units, the numerous improvements on the previous scheme, the 
presumption in favour of approving sustainable development and the balance in favour 
of approving schemes for residential development, it is considered the 12 storey 
element can be accepted, in the context of the location and the 100% social rent 
affordable housing offer which would be secured through a legal agreement.  

 
29.9 Redeveloping this underused brownfield site provides an opportunity to make a 

positive contribution towards Borough and wider London housing needs – helping 
Enfield to support its growing population. 

 
29.10 To conclude, all the reasons for refusal of the previous scheme have been positively 

addressed and, subject to conditions and a satisfactory legal agreement being signed, 
the proposal is recommended for approval.  

 

Page 95



P
age 96



P
age 97



P
age 98



GEA
First Floor

GIA
NIA

690.90 m²
645.11 m²
592.88 m²

metres

2010864202

Approximate Direction North

Office
01/029 Office School Nurses

01/130 Office Health Visitors
01/131

R
ec

or
ds

 R
oo

m
01

/1
32

Stairs
01/133

Consulting Room 
01/127

Consulting Room 
01/120

Consulting Room F29
01/116

Consulting Room
01/115

Consulting Room
01/111

Kitchen
01/110Reception

01/109
Print Room

01/108

Stairs
01/101

Records Room
01/107

Acc wc
01/103Female wc

01/104

Male wc
01/105

Office
01/106

Baby Clinic
01/114

Kitchen
01/123

Consulting Room 
01/121

Consulting Room 
01/122

Elec
01/143 Lobby

01/102

Waiting Room
01/102

Lift
01/113

Store
01/134

Consulting Room
01/119

Corridor
01/135

Elec
01/136

Treatment Room
01/117

WC
01/118

Store
01/138

Lobby
01/137

Corridor
01/142

Corridor
01/139

Corridor
01/140

Room Name
GF/141A

Cleaners
01/128

Corridor
01/141

R
oo

m
 N

am
e

G
F/

12
4A

Female WC
GF/124

Print Room
01/126

Male WC
01/125

Room Name
GF/125A

02200 NIA 242.35 m²

NIA 282.66 m²

45.59 m²

NHSPS Shared Area NIA 60.93 m²

NHSPS Common Parts

NHSPS Vacant

GIA

N

H

e

a

l
t
h

 
C

e

n

t
r
e

2

a

n

d

 
D

a

y

 
N

u

r
s

e

r
y

2

5

3

19.2m

2

4

9

2

4

3

2

4

5

2
3

3
5

FIRST FLOOR

1:200 @ A3

Floor/Level

Notes:

Rev.CommentsDate

 Site Address

Location Plan

Scale 1:1250
Building Outline

Care should be taken when drawings are printed to avoid image
distortion. This plan has been compiled from client supplied drawings.

This drawing is issued for lease registration purposes only and further
copies should be printed under the appropriate licence.

This drawing contains Ordnance Survey data which has been
reproduced with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office, Crown copyright 2016.

This Ordnance Survey data has been obtained and reproduced by
Plowman Craven Ltd under Contractor Licence in agreement with NHS
Property Services PSMA member Licence dated 18th December 2015.

CAD EXERCISE ONLY
This drawing has been made compliant by Plowman Craven using
drawings supplied by NHS Property Services.

Plowman Craven accept no responsibility for floor plan inaccuracies.
This floor plan has not been verified by on-site measurements.

OCTOBER 2018

FP R04

Scale

Date

01CADPC

Orig. Role Rev.TypeLevelSite

MRHC01B01

MOORFIELD ROAD HEALTH CENTRE
MOORFIELD ROAD
ENFIELD
EN3 5TU

P
age 99



GEA
Ground Floor

GIA
NIA

690.96 m²
654.83 m²
537.07 m²

metres

2010864202

Approximate Direction North

B
in

 S
to

re
G

F/
04

7

Group Room 5
GF/018

Staff Room
GF/017

Group Room 4
GF/020

Store Room
GF/019

Group Room 3
GF/021

Corridor
GF/016

Stairs
GF/042

Store
GF/039

Office
GF/036

Plant Room 
GF/033

Corridor
GF/030

Group Room 1
GF/032

Group Room 2
GF/022

Play Room
GF/028

Corridor
GF/040

Entrance Lobby
GF/001

Office
GF/002

Reception
GF/003

Waiting Area
GF/048

Office
GF/004

Staff Room
GF/005

Office
GF/006

Store
GF/041

Li
ft 

M
ac

hi
ne

ry
 

G
F/

03
5

Electric
GF/031

Lift
GF/034

Print Room
GF/029

Corridor
GF/027

Corridor
GF/043

Acc WC
GF/026Store

GF/024WC
GF/023

Store
GF/044

S
to

re
G

F/
04

5

Office
GF/007

Elec
GF/046

Staff WC
GF/015

C
up

bo
ar

d
G

F/
01

3

Stairs
GF/014

Corridor
GF/012

Store
GF/011

Utility
GF/008

Lobby
GF/010

Elec
GF/009

75.11 m²

NHSPS Retained Area

NHSPS Vacant

GIA 26.84 m²

537.1 sq m

NHSPS Common Parts

NIA

GIAN

H

e

a

l
t
h

 
C

e

n

t
r
e

2

a

n

d

 
D

a

y

 
N

u

r
s

e

r
y

2

5

3

19.2m

2

4

9

2

4

3

2

4

5

2
3

3
5

Floor/Level

Notes:

Rev.CommentsDate

 Site Address

Location Plan

CAD EXERCISE ONLY

Scale

Date

Orig. Role Rev.TypeLevelSite

MOORFIELD ROAD HEALTH CENTRE
MOORFIELD ROAD
ENFIELD
EN3 5TU

GROUND FLOOR

1:200 @ A3

Scale 1:1250
Building Outline

Care should be taken when drawings are printed to avoid image
distortion. This plan has been compiled from client supplied drawings.

This drawing is issued for lease registration purposes only and further
copies should be printed under the appropriate licence.

This drawing contains Ordnance Survey data which has been
reproduced with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office, Crown copyright 2016.

This Ordnance Survey data has been obtained and reproduced by
Plowman Craven Ltd under Contractor Licence in agreement with NHS
Property Services PSMA member Licence dated 18th December 2015.

This drawing has been made compliant by Plowman Craven using
drawings supplied by NHS Property Services.

Plowman Craven accept no responsibility for floor plan inaccuracies.
This floor plan has not been verified by on-site measurements.

OCTOBER 2018

FP R02GFCADPCMRHC01B01

P
age 100



M
O

O
R

FIELD
 R

O
AD

CARTERHATCH LANE

CARTERHATCH ROAD

H
ER

TF
O

R
D

 R
O

AD

1:50

1:50

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

36
.6

m
²

Corridor slopes
between 19.85 & 17.78

P1

P1

P2

P2

P2
P2

P3

P2

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P3

E3

E2

E2

E2

E3

E1

E3

E1

R1

R1

E3

E3

E3

E3

W1

E3

E1

E1

L1

E1

R1

E2

R1

L2

L2

L2

L2

E2

R1

R1
R1

R2

W1

R2

F2

P1

P1

Ex: 19.80
Pr: 19.85

Ex: 19.66
Pr: 19.66

Ex: 19.78
Pr: 19.78

Ex: 19.50
Pr: 19.50

Ex: 19.71
Pr: 19.85

Ex: 19.78
Pr: 19.78

19.91

19.85 19.81

19.62

19.70

19.62

19.50

19.5519.55

19.63

19.800

19.800

19.800

19.800

20.080

19.800

19.650

19.700

19.780

19.800

19.800

19.800

19.800

19.800

20.080

19.800

19.650

19.700

19.780

19.800

1:50

1:50

SU
BS

TA
TI

O
N

36
.6

m
²

Corridor slopes
between 19.85 & 17.78

P1

P1

P2

P2

P2
P2

P3

P2

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P3

E3

E2

E2

E2

E3

E1

E3

E1

R1

R1

E3

E3

E3

E3

W1

E3

E1

E1

L1

E1

R1

E2

R1

L2

L2

L2

L2

E2

R1

R1
R1

R2

W1

R2

F2

P1

P1

Ex: 19.80
Pr: 19.85

Ex: 19.66
Pr: 19.66

Ex: 19.78
Pr: 19.78

Ex: 19.50
Pr: 19.50

Ex: 19.71
Pr: 19.85

Ex: 19.78
Pr: 19.78

19.91

19.85 19.81

19.62

19.70

19.62

19.50

19.5519.55

19.63

19.800

19.800

19.800

19.800

20.080

19.800

19.650

19.700

19.780

19.800

19.800

19.800

19.800

19.800

20.080

19.800

19.650

19.700

19.780

19.800

+

EVACUATION
LIFT

RISER

Riser

MECHANICAL
EXTRACT

+

-

+ -

NATURAL
SMOKE
SHAFT

-

-

FIRE
FIGHTING

LIFT

EVACUATION
LIFT

11
00

lt
Eu

ro
bi

n

FF

W
M

M
EC

H
AN

IC
AL

EX
TR

AC
T

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin 1100lt

Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

1100lt
Eurobin

11
00

lt
Eu

ro
bi

n

1100lt
Eurobin

11
00

lt
Eu

ro
bi

n

11
00

lt
Eu

ro
bi

n

11
00

lt
Eu

ro
bi

n

MECHANICAL
EXTRACT

W
M

FF

WM

FF

WM

FF

FF

W
M

±

FF
W

M

FF
W

M

Bin store
door
relocated

Legend:

  Surfaces

P1  Large Unit Paving

P2   Small Unit Paving for Vehicles

P3   Existing Footpath Paving

  Edges, Walls & Boundaries

E1   Concrete Pin Kerb
E2   Upstand Concrete Kerb

E3   Flush Concrete Kerb
W1   Brick Dwarf Wall
R1   Railing 1.5m ht

R2   Railing 1m ht

Lighting

L1   Tree Up-lighter

L2  Column lighting

Existing trees retained

Proposed trees

Extend of works on public highway

Areas of hand dig construction,
sub base re-use and/or permeable
make-up to be agreed with
arboriculturalist and approved
through condition

Existing level Ex: 00.00
Proposed levels Pr: 00.00

Legend:

Existing trees retained

Proposed trees

Extend of works on public highway

Areas of hand dig construction,
sub base re-use and/or permeable
make-up to be agreed with
arboriculturalist and approved
through condition

Existing level Ex: 00.00
Proposed levels Pr: 00.00

19.55
19.70019.700

Legend:

  Surfaces

P1  Large Unit Paving

P2   Small Unit Paving for Vehicles

P3   Existing Footpath Paving

  Edges, Walls & Boundaries

E1   Concrete Pin Kerb
E2   Upstand Concrete Kerb

E3   Flush Concrete Kerb
W1   Brick Dwarf Wall
R1   Railing 1.5m ht

R2   Railing 1m ht

Lighting

L1   Tree Up-lighter

L2  Column lighting

Existing trees retained

Proposed trees

Extend of works on public highway

Areas of hand dig construction,
sub base re-use and/or permeable
make-up to be agreed with
arboriculturalist and approved
through condition

Existing level Ex: 00.00
Proposed levels Pr: 00.00

Legend:

Existing trees retained

Proposed trees

Extend of works on public highway

Areas of hand dig construction,
sub base re-use and/or permeable
make-up to be agreed with
arboriculturalist and approved
through condition

Existing level Ex: 00.00
Proposed levels Pr: 00.00

19.55
19.70019.700

Metres

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 100 1 2

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions only.
Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be read in
conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or reproduced in
part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP. Drawing to be read
in conjunction with specification.

Social Capital Partners
Moorfield Road

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

DescriptionDrawnDateRev

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

status

client / project

drawing title

drawing number

originated by

revision

project code

PLANNING ADDENDUM

Landscape
General Arrangement Plan

SHP-MRE_HTA-L_DR_2900 PA1
1:200 MSA SHP-MRE
scale @ A1

NORTH

Planning IssueJKE10.09.20P01
Planning AddendumDBI22.08.23PA1

P
age 101



+

R
iser

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

+

-

+

-

N
A

T
U

R
A

L

S
M

O
K

E

SH
AFT

-

-

FIR
E

F
IG

H
T

IN
G

LIFT

E
V

A
C

U
A

T
IO

N

LIF
T

3
B

5
P

9
0
.
8
m

²

W

M

F

F

M
E

C
H

A
N

I
C

A
L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

1
B

2
P

5
1
.
6
m

²

1
B

2
P

5
2
.
6
m

²

3
B

5
P

8
9
.
0
m

²

M
O

O
R

F
I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

CARTERHATCH LANE

C

A

R

T

E

R

H

A

T

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

R

T

F

O

R

D

 
R

O

A

D

1
B

2
P

 
(
W

C
)

6
2
.
3
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
4
.
1
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
0
.
3
m

²

1
B

2
P

5
1
.
1
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
4
.
1
m

²

W
M

F

F

W
M

F
F

W
M

F
F

W

M

F
F

F
F

W
M

F
F

W
M

±

F

F

W

M

W

M

F
F

0
5 10 15 20 25

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions

only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be

read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or

reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.

Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP

www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS

MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

PROPOSED 3RD - 7TH FLOORAP03 P05

1:200

scale @ A1

SHP-MRE RSH

DRAFT

- 10.09.20 RSH PLANNING ISSUE

NORTH

P01 10.09.20 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P02 15.12.21 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P03 13.04.22 AKE UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P04 03.08.22 RSH FIRE UPDATE

P05 28.03.23 UNA DRAFT REDESIGN

P
age 102



W
M

F

F

W
M

F
F

W
M

F
F

W

M

F
F

F
F

W
M

±

R
iser

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

+

-

+

-

N
A

T
U

R
A

L

S
M

O
K

E

SH
AFT

-

-

FIR
E

F
IG

H
T

IN
G

LIFT

E
V

A
C

U
A

T
IO

N

LIF
T

H
E

A
T

 P
U

M
P

(A
S

H
P

)

P
L
A

N
T

3
8
S

Q
M

H
E

A
T

 P
U

M
P

(A
S

H
P

)

P
L
A

N
T

3
8
S

Q
M

2
B

4
P

7
4
.
1
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
4
.
1
m

²

M
O

O
R

F
I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

CARTERHATCH LANE

C

A

R

T

E

R

H

A

T

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

R

T

F

O

R

D

 
R

O

A

D

2
B

4
P

7
0
.
5
m

²

1
B

2
P

5
1
.
1
m

²

1
B

2
P

 
(
W

C
)

6
2
.
3
m

²

0
5 10 15 20 25

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions

only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be

read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or

reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.

Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP

www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS

MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

PROPOSED 8TH - 11TH FLOORAP08 P05

1:200

scale @ A1

SHP-MRE RSH

DRAFT

- 10.09.20 RSH PLANNING ISSUE

NORTH

P01 10.09.20 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P02 15.12.21 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P03 13.04.22 AKE UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P04 03.08.22 RSH FIRE UPDATE

P05 28.03.23 UNA DRAFT REDESIGN

P
age 103



client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

East Elevation (AA) AE250 B

1:100
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE JWF

FOR PLANNING

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Parapet +/- 200mm

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

A 21.08.20 LSM DRAFT PLANNING ISSUE
B 05.04.23 JWF DRAFT REDESIGN

Plant

Parapet

Roof

Ground Floor
FFL +19.800

1st Floor

2nd Floor

3rd Floor

4th Floor

5th Floor

6th Floor

7th Floor

8th Floor

9th Floor

10th Floor

11th Floor

Roof Terrace

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

Key
West + North

- A

1:200
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE LSM

DRAFT

A 18.08.20 LSM INITIAL ISSUE Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

West

North

AA

BB

CC

DD

FF
EE

1 - Light Buff stretcher brickwork
2 - Light Buff soldier course brickwork
3 - Dark Buff stretcher brickwork
4 - Dark Buff soldier course brickwork
5 - Powder coated aluminium windows - grey/green
6 - Powder coated metal balustrade - off white

7 - Grey/green louvred doors
8 - Grey/green metal panel
9 - Plant

9123 4

6

8

5

7

P
age 104



+

E
V

A
C

U
A

T
IO

N

LIFT

R
iser

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

+

-

+

-

N
A

T
U

R
A

L

S
M

O
K

E

SH
AFT

-

-

FIR
E

F
IG

H
T

IN
G

LIFT

E
V

A
C

U
A

T
IO

N

LIF
T

+

-

R
IS

E
R

M
E

C
H

A
N

I
C

A
L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

M
E

C
H

A
N

I
C

A
L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

3
B

5
P

8
8
.
6
m

²

M
O

O
R

F
I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

CARTERHATCH LANE

C

A

R

T

E

R

H

A

T

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

R

T

F

O

R

D

 
R

O

A

D

W
M

F

F

W
M

F
F

W
M

F
F

1
B

2
P

5
1
.
1
m

2
B

4
P

7
4
.
1
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
4
.
1
m

²

W

M

F
F

F
F

W
M

F
F

W
M

±

F
F

W
M

F
F

W
M

F
F

W
M

F
F

O
V

N

D
W

W

M

F
F

OVN

W
M

D
W

3
B

5
P

9
2
.
4
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
0
.
7
m

²

2
B

3
P

6
9
.
2
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
2
.
4
m

²

1
B

2
P

5
3
.
7
m

²

1
B

2
P

5
2
.
1
m

²

1
B

2
P

5
2
.
6
m

²

1
B

2
P

5
1
.
6
m

²

1
B

2
P

 
(
W

C
)

6
2
.
3
m

²2
B

4
P

7
0
.
2
m

²

F

F

W

M

F
F

W
M

F
F

W
M

0
5 10 15 20 25

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions

only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be

read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or

reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.

Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP

www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS

MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

PROPOSED 1ST-2ND FLOORAP01 P05

1:200

scale @ A1

SHP-MRE RSH

DRAFT

- 10.09.20 RSH PLANNING ISSUE

NORTH

P01 10.09.20 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P02 15.12.21 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P03 13.04.22 AKE UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P04 03.08.22 RSH FIRE UPDATE

P05 28.03.23 UNA DRAFT REDESIGN

P
age 105



M
O

O
R

F
I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

CARTERHATCH LANE

C

A

R

T

E

R

H

A

T

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

R

T

F

O

R

D

 
R

O

A

D

M
O

O
R

F
I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

CARTERHATCH LANE

C

A

R

T

E

R

H

A

T

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

R

T

F

O

R

D

 
R

O

A

D

+

E
V

A
C

U
A

T
IO

N

LIFT

P
l
a
n
t

3
7
.
5
m

²

P
l
a
n
t

7
0
.
7
m

²

R
IS

E
R

C
y
c
l
e
s

5
0
.
8
m

²

R
iser

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

+

-

+

-

N
A

T
U

R
A

L

S
M

O
K

E

SH
AFT

-

-

1
2
0
0

FIR
E

F
IG

H
T

IN
G

LIFT

E
V

A
C

U
A

T
IO

N

LIF
T

6
4
 
C

Y
C

L
E

S

R
e
s
i
 
E

n
t
r
a
n
c
e

2
3
.
7
m

²

3
0
 
C

Y
C

L
E

S

C
y
c
l
e
s

2
5
.
5
m

²

A
S

H
P

 
P

U
M

P

&
 
B

U
F

F
E

R

V
E

S
S

E
L

R
O

O
M

T
B

C
 
s
q
m

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
O

R
S

T
B

C
 
s
q
m

C
O

L
D

W
A

T
E

R

T
A

N
K

T
B

C
 
s
q
m

R
e
s
i 
E

n
tr

a
n
c
e

1
8
.8

m
²

S
t
o
r
e

5
.
0
m

²

1
1
0
0
l
t

E
u
r
o
b
i
n

F
F

W
M

3
B

5
P

8
8
.
1
m

²

M
E

C
H

A
N

I
C

A
L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

1
B

2
P

5
2
.
6
m

²

3
B

5
P

9
2
.
6
m

²

1
B

2
P

 
(
W

C
)

6
2
.
3
m

²

2
B

4
P

7
4
.
1
m

²

R
e
f
u
s
e
 
S

t
o
r
e

5
1
.
8
m

²

3
B

5
P

8
8
.
7
m

²

3
B

5
P

9
2
.
4
m

²

M
O

O
R

F
I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

CARTERHATCH LANE

C

A

R

T

E

R

H

A

T

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

R

T

F

O

R

D

 
R

O

A

D

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
l
t

E
u
r
o
b
i
n

1
1
0
0
lt

E
u
ro

b
in

1
1
0
0
l
t

E
u
r
o
b
i
n

1
1
0
0
l
t

E
u
r
o
b
i
n

1
1
0
0
l
t

E
u
r
o
b
i
n

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

E
X

T
R

A
C

T

W

M

F
F

W
M

F
F

W
M

F
F

F
F

W
M

±

F
F

W

M

F
F

W
M

8
6
 
C

Y
C

L
E

S

C
y
c
l
e
 
S

t
o
r
e

6
4
.
2
m

²

S
U

B
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

3
6
.
6
m

²

0
5 10 15 20 25

0
5 10 15 20 25

0
5 10 15 20 25

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions

only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be

read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or

reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.

Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP

www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS

MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

PROPOSED GF PLAN AP00 P05

1:200

scale @ A1

SHP-MRE RSH

DRAFT

- 10.09.20 RSH PLANNING ISSUE

NORTH

P01 10.09.20 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P02 15.12.21 RSH UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P03 13.04.22 AKE UPDATED PLANNING ISSUE

P04 03.08.22 RSH FIRE UPDATE

P05 28.03.23 UNA DRAFT REDESIGN

P
age 106



client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

Proposed Long Elevations
West + North

AE257 B

1:200
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE JWF

DRAFT

A 21.08.20 LSM DRAFT PLANNING ISSUE Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Parapet +/- 200mm

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

B 05.04.23 JWF DRAFT REDESIGN

South

West

P
age 107



client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

Proposed Long Elevations
West + North

AE257 B

1:200
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE JWF

DRAFT

A 21.08.20 LSM DRAFT PLANNING ISSUE Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Parapet +/- 200mm

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

B 05.04.23 JWF DRAFT REDESIGN

South

West

P
age 108



client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

North Elevation (DD) AE253 B

1:100
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE JWF

FOR PLANNING

A 21.08.20 LSM DRAFT PLANNING ISSUE Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Parapet +/- 200mm

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

B 05.04.23 JWF DRAFT REDESIGN

Plant

Parapet

Roof

Ground Floor
FFL +19.800

1st Floor

2nd Floor

3rd Floor

4th Floor

5th Floor

6th Floor

7th Floor

8th Floor

9th Floor

10th Floor

11th Floor

Parapet

Roof Terrace

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

Key
West + North

- A

1:200
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE LSM

DRAFT

A 18.08.20 LSM INITIAL ISSUE Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

West

North

AA

BB

CC

DD

FF
EE

1 - Light Buff stretcher brickwork
2 - Light Buff soldier course brickwork
3 - Dark Buff stretcher brickwork
4 - Dark Buff soldier course brickwork
5 - Powder coated aluminium windows - grey/green
6 - Powder coated metal balustrade - off white

7 - Grey/green louvred doors
8 - Grey/green metal panel
9 - Plant

912 3 4

5 6

P
age 109



M
O

O
R

FIELD
 R

O
AD

T1

HEAT PUMP
(ASHP)
PLANT
38SQM

HEAT PUMP
(ASHP)
PLANT
38SQM

M
O

O
R

FIELD
 R

O
AD

CARTERHATCH LANE

CARTERHATCH ROAD

H
ER

TF
O

R
D

 R
O

AD

EVACUATION
LIFT

Riser

-

NATURAL
SMOKE
SHAFT-

FIRE
FIGHTING

LIFT

EVACUATION
LIFT

+ -

RISER

M
EC

H
AN

IC
AL

EX
TR

AC
T

F3 F3F5

E1

E4

F1

F2

E1

F4 F5

F1

E2

E3

E3

F2E2

E3

E3

F1

F1

F1

F1

F4
F1

F5

F2

E1

E4

P1

P1

P2

P2

P2 P2

Al

Bp Bp

Bp
Al

Al

M1
M1

M2

M1

M3 M3

M3
M3

MECHANICAL
EXTRACT

-

-

Bp

F6

Proposed trees
Bp - Betula pendula
Al - Amelanchier lamarckii
(Multi stem)

  Play Equipment

E1   Play boulders

E2   Sensory chime

E3   Sensory play panel

E4   Log piles

Legend:

  Surfaces

P1   Arrento Porcelain Paving Type1

P2   Arrento Porcelain Paving Type2

  Edges

M1   Raised metal planter

M2   Flush metal edge

M3   Porcelain Edging

  Furniture and Lighting

F1   Long timber seat

F2   Cube timber seat
F3   Table and chair set
F4   Table
F5   Assorted small planters

F6

Pergola with PV panels (indicative,
lightweight construction to allow
south facing planters to thrive
below, refer to drawings by HTA-A).

Ornamental Planting:
Aucuba japonica
Stipa tenuissima
Euphorbia seguieriana niciciana
Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote'

Green Roof - Biosolar Roof System
with ZinCo Pre-cultivated Mat
"Sedum Carpet"

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions only.
Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be read in
conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or reproduced in
part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP. Drawing to be read
in conjunction with specification.

Social Capital Partners
Moorfield Road

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

DescriptionDrawnDateRev

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

status

client / project

drawing title

drawing number

originated by

revision

project code

PLANNING ADDENDUM

Landscape
Roofs Plan - General Arrangement & Planting

SHP-MRE_HTA-L_DR_2902 PA1
1:200 MSA SHP-MRE
scale @ A1

NORTH

Planning IssueJKE10.09.20P01
Planning AddendumDBI22.08.23PA1

P
age 110



client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

South Elevation (BB) AE251 B

1:100
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE JWF

FOR PLANNING

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Parapet +/- 200mm

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

A 21.08.20 LSM DRAFT PLANNING ISSUE
B 05.04.23 JWF DRAFT REDESIGN

Plant

Parapet

Roof

Ground Floor
FFL +19.800

1st Floor

2nd Floor

3rd Floor

4th Floor

5th Floor

6th Floor

7th Floor

8th Floor

9th Floor

10th Floor

11th Floor

Parapet

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

Key
West + North

- A

1:200
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE LSM

DRAFT

A 18.08.20 LSM INITIAL ISSUE Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

West

North

AA

BB

CC

DD

FF
EE

1 - Light Buff stretcher brickwork
2 - Light Buff soldier course brickwork
3 - Dark Buff stretcher brickwork
4 - Dark Buff soldier course brickwork
5 - Powder coated aluminium windows - grey/green
6 - Powder coated metal balustrade - off white

7 - Grey/green louvred doors
8 - Grey/green metal panel
9 - Plant

91 2 4 653

P
age 111



client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

West Elevation (CC) AE252 B

1:100
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE JWF

FOR PLANNING

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Parapet +/- 200mm

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

A 21.08.20 LSM DRAFT PLANNING ISSUE
B 05.04.23 JWF DRAFT REDESIGN

Plant

Parapet

Roof

Ground Floor
FFL +19.800

1st Floor

2nd Floor

3rd Floor

4th Floor

5th Floor

6th Floor

7th Floor

8th Floor

9th Floor

10th Floor

11th Floor

Roof Terrace

Parapet

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

Key
West + North

- A

1:200
scale @ A1

SHP-MRE LSM

DRAFT

A 18.08.20 LSM INITIAL ISSUE Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions
only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be
read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or
reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.
Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP
www.hta.co.uk

SOCIAL CAPITAL PARTNERS
MOORFIELD ROAD

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

West

North

AA

BB

CC

DD

FF
EE

1 - Light Buff stretcher brickwork
2 - Light Buff soldier course brickwork
3 - Dark Buff stretcher brickwork
4 - Dark Buff soldier course brickwork
5 - Powder coated aluminium windows - grey/green
6 - Powder coated metal balustrade - off white

7 - Grey/green louvred doors
8 - Grey/green metal panel
9 - Plant
10 - Brick Colour-matched Service doors
 

9 1 2 34

65

10

P
age 112



L
A

W
S

O
N

 R
O

A
D

S

H

E

R

B

O

R

N

E

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

C

A

R

T

E

R

H

A

T

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

CARTERHATCH LANE

M
O

O
R

F
I
E

L
D

 
R

O
A

D

client / project

drawing title drawing number revision

originated byproject number

status

Site Location Plan 0001 P01

1:1250

scale @ A3

SHP-MFC LSM

Concept

P01 24.02.20 LSM Initial Issue

NORTH

Metres

30 40 50 60 70 80 90 1000 10 20

Do not scale from drawings unless by agreement with HTA. Use figured dimensions

only. Check all dimensions on site prior to commencing the works. Drawing to be

read in conjunction with other relevant consultant information.

This drawing is the copyright of HTA Design LLP and must not be copied or

reproduced in part, or in whole, without the express permission of HTA Design LLP.

Drawing to be read in conjunction with specification.

Parapets allow a tolerance of +/- 250mm on every elevation.

Notes: LegendRev Date Drawn Description

HTA Design LLP

www.hta.co.uk

London     |     Edinburgh     |     Manchester     |     Bristol

Social Capital Partners

Moorfield Road

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

   PLANNING COMMITTEE Date: 19 September 2023 

   Report of 

Director of Planning & 
Growth 
Brett Leahy 

 Contact Officers: 

 Karolina Grebowiec-Hall 
 Claire Williams 

Category 

Full Application 

   Ward 

   Town, Whitewebbs, 
  Southbury 

      Councillor Request 

      No 

 LOCATION:  Land Adjacent to The New River Extending from Tenniswood Road to
 Bullsmoor Lane 

   APPLICATION NUMBER: 22/04095/RE3 

PROPOSAL: Provision of a new shared pedestrian and cycle path alongside the New 
River and associated hard and soft landscaping. Works to the Grade II Listed Bridge at 
Turkey Street. 

 Applicant Name & Address: 

  London Borough of Enfield, Journeys
  and Places 

Agent Name & Address: 

  Turley  
Brownlow Mews 
12 Roger Street 
London 
WC1N 2JU 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992 the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT 
planning permission subject to conditions.

2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to 
finalise the wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation 
section of the original report dated 18 April 2023.

Page 115 Agenda Item 6



Ref: 22/04095/RE3 LOCATION: Land Adajcent To The New River Extending From Tenniswood Road To Bullsmoor Lane, , ,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Scale 1:1250 North

Page 116



2 
 

 
1. Note for Members 

 
 

1.1. This application was presented to Planning Committee on 18 April 2023.  The 
Committee voted to defer a decision on the application in order to allow: 
 
a. A site visit by Committee members to the site, particularly the section 

between Tenniswood Road and Carterhatch Lane; 
 

b. An exploration by the applicant of mitigation of any loss of privacy to 
properties between Tenniswood Road and Carterhatch Lane, and the re-
routing of the path along Ladysmith Road; and 

 
c. A report on progress of discussions between the applicant and St. Ignatius 

College with respect to the steeply-graded section of path adjacent to the 
school. 

 
1.2. A site visit was held on 20 June 2023.  The site visit was attended by LPA 

officers, members of the Enfield Journeys & Places team (the applicant) and 
Planning Committee members. 
 

1.3. This report is an update to the 18 April 2023 Committee report in satisfaction of 
reasons for deferral items b. and c., above.  In summary, the applicant has 
submitted information and proposed revisions to the application as follows: 

 
• A discussion of the benefits and challenges of re-routing the path from the 

river bank between Tenniswood Road and Carterhatch Lane to Ladysmith 
Road (these are detailed in sections below) 
 

• Along the river bank between Tenniswood Road and Carterhatch Lane: 
 

o Removal of benches and rest stops from this section of the path 
o Increased screening at the southern-most end of the path to the 

gardens of property fronting Tenniswood Road with the addition of 
three trees and 12 metres of hedgerow 

o Computer-generated imagery to demonstrate the proposed planting 
 

• Minor changes to the location of a number of benches between Tenniswood 
Road and Bullsmoor Lane following detailed design of the earthworks. 
 

• Minor updates to the red line boundary to ensure that all land required for the 
proposals (including rest stop areas), as well as potential land required for 
any future-proofing amendments (i.e. land at St Ignatius College discussed in 
paragraph 3.6) is included. 

 
1.4. Officers are satisfied that the revisions to the application made since 18 April 

2023 are minor and are not material changes to the application.  These revisions 
are enhancements of the original proposal – the red line is rectified to capture all 
areas of improvement and future-proofed to include land belonging to St. Ignatius 
College, and the planting is additional to what was proposed. 

 
 
 

Page 117



3 
 

 
 
 

2. Design 
 

Amenity and privacy 
 
2.1. At the Committee Meeting and at the Committee’s site visit, members discussed 

the potential for including species of trees that would provide year-round foliage.  
Foliage was considered a mitigative measure to provide additional screening and 
privacy to adjacent properties, particularly along Sinclare Close and Tenniswood 
Road.  Residents of Sinclare Close and Ladysmith Road raised concerns about 
visibility by users into their gardens and rear windows at the Committee meeting. 

 
2.2. Upon review of options, the applicant is maintaining the proposal for deciduous 

native trees while also providing evergreen hedgerow that can be grown to the 
height of an adult person.  Thirteen trees are proposed along the boundary with 
Sinclare Close (this is unchanged) and three trees are proposed nearest 
Tenniswood Road (these trees are additional to original proposal). 

 
2.3. To reinforce the height and growth of the proposed deciduous trees, native holly 

hedgerow, which is evergreen, is proposed for the length of the residential 
properties along the boundary with Sinclare Close and 12 metres of hedgerow 
are added to the boundary with Tenniswood Road rear gardens. 

 
2.4. The applicant has provided the following computer-generated imagery (verified 

visuals) that demonstrate the extent and growth of the proposed trees in the 
summer and winter periods at year 5. 

 
Sinclare Close 
 

 
Existing Sinclare Close, looking south 
 

Page 118



4 
 

 
Proposed Sinclare Clare, looking south, summer at year 5 
 

 
Proposed Sinclare Clare, looking south, winter at year 5 
 

 
Existing Sinclare Close, looking north 
 

 
Proposed Sinclare Close, looking north, summer at year 5 
 

Page 119



5 
 

 
Proposed Sinclare Close, looking north, winter at year 5 
 
 
Tenniswood Road 

 
Existing Tenniswood Road, looking south 
 

 
Proposed Tenniswood Road, looking south, summer at year 5 
 

 
Proposed Tenniswood Road, looking south, winter at year 5 

Page 120



6 
 

 

 
Existing Tenniswood Road, looking north 
 

 
Proposed Tenniswood Road, looking north, summer at year 5 
 

 
Proposed Tenniswood Road, looking north, winter at year 5  

 
2.5. Within the 18 April 2023 report to Committee, officers were satisfied that the 

applicant had adequately considered neighbour amenity, and that the proposed 
planting was sufficient to safeguard neighbour privacy.   
 

2.6. The addition of trees and hedges along the boundary with Tenniswood Road 
property gardens is supported.  This planting provides further screening from 
private residences.  Although the computer-generated imagery is indicative, it 
does provide a useful approximation of the extent of growth of the proposed trees 
and hedges.  The graphics evidence generous screening of properties on 
Sinclare Close by the proposed planting.  While these images are only indicative, 
planting plans with the number, species and location of plants that these images 
reflect, will be approved.  Officers are satisfied that the planting provides good 
screening of properties along the stretch of riverbank path between Tenniswood 

Page 121



7 
 

Road and Carterhatch Lane.  At the height of growth at five years, the plants 
provide privacy to residents.  

 
2.7. The proposed mitigation is reasonable and minimises impact to neighbours.  Any 

remaining unforeseen impact, or impact in the early years of plant growth, is 
significantly outweighed by the benefit of the provision of a pedestrian and cycle 
path along the New River. 

 
3. Transport 

 
Path alignment 

 
3.1. Planning Committee had requested that the applicant explore the re-routing of 

the path from the western riverbank between Tenniswood Road and Carterhatch 
Lane to Ladysmith Road.  This was requested to understand the potential for the 
alternative route to mitigate privacy concerns of residents bordering this section 
of the New River.  The potential to resolve concerns about visibility by planting 
are addressed in the preceding section of this report. 
 

3.2. The applicant has undertaken an assessment and does not suggest revision of 
the original alignment.  The proposal is to maintain the path on the riverbank. 

 
3.3. The applicant has weighed up the decision as follows, with the benefits and 

challenges of each option set out in respective columns:  
 

 Along the New River 
 

 Along Ladysmith Road 

Pro Providing access to a key green 
space and Green Chain Corridor in 
the borough, in accordance with 
London Plan Policy G1 and Enfield 
Policy DMD77. 

Pro Retention of current arrangement of 
New River Path in this section as 
inaccessible enabling the amenity 
situation to remain the same as 
existing for neighbouring residents. 

Pro Delivering on the Council’s 
aspirations set out in the Council’s 
recently adopted Blue and Green 
Strategy (2021-2031) which 
identifies the New River (including 
this section) as a Green Link (in 
accordance with its designation as 
a Green Chain Corridor in the Local 
Plan)- a strategic link between 
Broxbourne and Enfield Town to 
expand the cycle and pedestrian 
network and establish green 
corridors. 

Con Does not deliver on policy 
aspirations to provide key 
pedestrian and cycle links along 
Green Chain Corridors and the New 
River, or provide access to open 
space (London Plan Policy G1 and 
Enfield Policy DMD77 and Enfield’s 
Blue and Green Strategy (2021-
2031)), and does not deliver as 
many benefits in accordance with 
the Mayor’s Healthy Streets 
Indicators, accordingly. 

Pro Achieves one of the key project 
objectives, which is to open up the 
New River for the enjoyment of the 
public. 

Con Requires highways works to ensure 
a safe and segregated cycleway 
and potential relocation of bus stop 
on Carterhatch Lane. 

Pro More straightforward desire line and 
wayfinding for path users, 
encouraging use and uptake of the 
proposed path. 

Con Route less accessible for all users, 
with Ladysmith Road representing 
narrow path widths with associated 
dropped kerbs, driveways and 
street clutter including bins for 

Page 122



8 
 

wheelchairs users and other 
physically impaired to navigate, 
including increased distance which 
could discourage elderly/ less 
mobile users. 

Pro Provision of accessible path for all 
users including wheelchairs as well 
as off-carriageway cycle access, in 
accordance with guidance on 
inclusive mobility. 

Con Potential reduction in users of the 
route due to lack of desire line and 
provision of a less direct route, 
further distancing access to the 
New River path from the key 
transport connections at Enfield 
Town. 

Pro More straightforward route crossing 
at Carterhatch Lane, with clear 
visibility of traffic in both directions. 

Con No provision of biodiversity gain (in 
this part of the route) and limited to 
no opportunity for additional 
planting along Ladysmith Road. 

Pro Screening planting along the New 
River, resulting in a minimum 10% 
biodiversity net gain for the entire 
route. 

  

Pro Compliance with the Mayor’s 
Healthy Streets Indicators (in 
accordance with London Plan 
Policy T2) providing inclusive 
access, ease of access, respite 
from road noise, new opportunity to 
cycle along the New River, security 
measures, historic interest, fresh air 
and an opportunity for leisure. 

  

Con Perceived overlooking of 
neighbouring properties and 
gardens unless appropriately 
mitigated. 

  

Con Perceived security risk unless 
appropriately mitigated. 

  

 
3.4. As in the original report to Committee, officers recognise the corporate and policy 

aspirations that the present alignment fulfils.  Officers also believe that any 
potential impact of overlooking or loss of privacy has been mitigated through 
planting.  The path along the New River at this section is supported. 

 
Access and design 
 
3.5. In line with Inclusive Mobility, A Guide to Best Practice on Access to Pedestrian 

and Transport Infrastructure, the proposed path maintains compliant grades of 
<8%.  The only exception is the north side of the footway adjacent to St. Ignatius 
College, which is at a grade of 15.9%, making it inaccessible to wheelchairs. The 
present application continues the path through this steep section and proposes a 
signed diversion off the path for users for whom the grade is not conducive.  
Although this portion of the path is not fully accessible, the larger proposal is 
acceptable in terms of accessibility as it opens up the New River path to a high 
standard to a multitude of users to whom it’s been off limits.  Still, the applicant is 
seeking to fully resolve this section so that a diversion is no longer necessary.  
Correcting the steep grade relies on utilising land owned by St. Ignatius College 

Page 123



9 
 

and the applicant has been in consistent communication with the school since 
before Planning Committee.   
 

3.6. The Planning Committee requested an update from the applicant of discussions 
with St. Ignatius College.  The applicant has provided the following: 

 
Since the April 2023 committee, further work and discussions have taken place 
with both St Ignatius College as well as the Council’s tree officer in regard to 
feasibility for potential options available. A topographical survey of the area and 
site visit (with the Council’s tree officer) have been undertaken to assess the 
impact on trees for two potential accessible path locations. This still requires 
ongoing discussion and negotiations regarding a number of key issues including 
access, maintenance, landscaping and tree protection as well as commercial and 
legal negotiations. These discussions continue with St Ignatius College. 
 
As such, in order to future-proof the scheme to allow for an amendment to come 
forward once it is deemed feasible, the applicant has submitted a revised site 
location plan and drawings to show an increased red line for the site in August 
2023. [Drawing 19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-009 Rev 7] This area provides for a 
maximum area considered necessary to accommodate any future amendment for 
the path using St Ignatius College’s land.  

 
4. Green Infrastructure 
 

 
Trees 

 
4.1. At the submission stage of the application, the proposal included the removal of 

nine trees and 121 new trees.  Since 18 April 2023, the applicant has added 
three more trees to the proposal, totalling 124 new trees.  These new trees are 
located at the southern-most end of the application site to screen the rear 
gardens of property fronting Tenniswood Road.  In addition to the three trees, 
further screening includes 12 metres of hedgerow. 
 

4.2. At the Committee Meeting and at the Committee’s site visit, members discussed 
the potential for including species of trees that would provide year-round foliage.    
Upon review of options, the applicant is maintaining the proposal for deciduous 
native trees while also providing evergreen hedgerow that can be grown to the 
height of an adult person.  13 trees are proposed along the boundary with 
Sinclare Close (this remains unchanged) and three trees are proposed nearest 
Tenniswood Road (these trees are additional to what was previously proposed). 

 
4.3. While deciduous trees lose foliage during the cold season, varieties of native 

trees provide the greatest benefits to insects, birds and other wildlife, and best 
support biodiversity.  In the UK, native trees are mostly deciduous.  Non-native 
trees would diminish the Biodiversity Net Gain of the proposal.   

 
4.4. To reinforce the height and growth of the proposed deciduous trees, native holly 

hedgerow, which is evergreen, is proposed for the length of the residential 
properties along the boundary with Sinclare Close and 12 metres of hedgerow 
are added to the boundary with Tenniswood Road rear gardens. 

 
4.5. Officers welcome the addition of further trees and hedgerow, and support the 

selection of native species to maximise wildlife benefit. 
 

Page 124



10 
 

Biodiversity and Ecology 
 

4.6. With the additional three trees and 12 metres of native hedgerow proposed along 
the river bank nearest Tenniswood Road, the Biodiversity Net Gain generated by 
the proposal results in at least a 10.83% increase in Habitat Units for the entirety 
of the path.  This remains above the required minimum 10% increase in 
Biodiversity Net Gain within the red line. 

 
 
 

5. Conclusion 
 

5.1. The applicant has made enhancements to the proposal since Committee Meeting 
on 18 April 2023.  The addition of planting and adjustment to the red line are not 
material – for this reason, officers’ assessment and recommendations have not 
changed.  The additional information requested by members is presented in this 
report.  This information further supports the proposal and the recommendations 
by officers.   
 

5.2. Officers are encouraged that the applicant is actively seeking to make the entire 
path accessible to wheelchairs by resolving the one area of grade non-
compliance.  

 
5.3. The proposed pedestrian and cycle path realises a Council objective to expand 

the cycle network and provide Enfield’s communities with additional active travel 
choices.  This route is identified in Enfield’s Blue and Green Strategy and its 
delivery significantly improves an existing, underutilised public path and Local 
Open Space, allowing enjoyment of the New River by users of a diversity of 
needs. 
  

5.4. Officers are satisfied that, subject to the recommended conditions in the report to 
Committee on 18 April 2023, the proposal meets policy objectives. 

 
5.5. On balance, the pedestrian and cycle path presents a major asset for Enfield’s 

communities and sets an example for infrastructure that promotes connectivity, 
health, ecological and heritage benefits.  

 

Page 125



 
 

 
 LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

 
   PLANNING COMMITTEE Date:  18th April 2023 

 
   Report of 
    
   Head of Planning 

 
       Contact Officers: 
 
       Karolina Grebowiec-Hall 
      Sharon Davidson 
 

 
Category 
 
Major 

    
   Ward 
 
   Town, Whitewebbs, 
   Southbury 

        
      Councillor Request 
 
      No Request 
 

 
  LOCATION: Land Adjacent to The New River Extending From Tenniswood Road  
                       To Bullsmoor Lane 

 
 
   APPLICATION NUMBER:  22/04095/RE3 

 
PROPOSAL: Provision of a new shared pedestrian and cycle path alongside the 
New River and associated hard and soft landscaping. Works to the Grade II Listed 
Bridge at Turkey Street. 

 
 Applicant Name & Address: 
 
London Borough of Enfield,  
Journeys and Places 

 
Agent Name & Address: 
 
Turley Associates 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1.  That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992 the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT 
planning permission subject to conditions. 
 
2 That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to finalise the 
wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the Recommendation section of this report.  

 
 

Page 126



Ref: 22/04095/RE3 LOCATION: Land Adajcent To The New River Extending From Tenniswood Road To Bullsmoor Lane, , ,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Scale 1:1250 North

Page 127



2 

2.2. That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Development Management to 
finalise the wording of the recommended conditions as set out in this report. 

1. Time limit
2. Approved drawings (compliance)
3. Construction Management Plan compliance [construction

logistics/transport/contamination]
4. Planting plans compliance
5. Kingfisher survey
6. Otter survey
7. Water vole survey
8. Construction Environmental Management Plan [management of

ecological impact]
9. Landscape management and monitoring plan [trees, hedges, soft planting

and retaining walls and litter]
10. Biodiversity Net Gain compliance
11. Light monitoring
12. Bird and bat box installation
13. Vegetation clearance outside of nesting season
14. Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan compliance
15. Signage notifying of area with grade increase and alternative route
16. Scheme of heritage interpretation, including location of information posts
17. Details of street furniture, cycle stands, benches, lighting, bollards,

signage and information posts
18. Details of new bridge at Turkey Brook
19. Details of CCTV locations
20. Rain gardens capacity
21. Turkey Street Bridge details and drawings, including surfacing
22. Gate and railing repair and re-use

3. Executive Summary

3.1. The application is for the off-carriageway portion of the Enfield to Broxbourne 
cycle and pedestrian path.  The section subject to planning permission is 2.5 km 
and extends along the bank of the New River from Tenniswood Road to 
Bullsmoor Lane.  The entire portion of the path in Enfield is 4.7 km, which 
includes an on-carriageway segment of 1.8km on existing highway.  

3.2. The path is proposed to be self-binding gravel and shared use, it is 3 metres in 
width for the majority of the route.  The application includes construction of a new 
bridge over Turkey Brook, a comprehensive landscaping strategy, planting of 
trees and hedges, the addition of seating, lighting, information posts, bollards, 
cycle stands and rain gardens.  The red line includes the Grade II listed Turkey 
Street Bridge which is proposed to be resurfaced and bollards either side of the 
bridge will be replaced – this is subject to an application for Listed Building 
Consent that being considered separately under the Scheme of Delegation. 

3.3. This application is brought by the Journeys and Places team within Enfield 
Council.  The responsibility of Journeys and Places, formerly named the Healthy 
Streets team, is to promote and implement sustainable transport infrastructure in 
the borough, focused on delivering a walking and cycling network, enhancing 
town centres and public realm, improving road safety and informing the 
community of active travel options. 

Page 128



3 
 

3.4. The Journeys and Places team has been awarded funding by National Highways 
specifically aimed at restoring connections that were historically lost due to 
construction of the M25.  The M25 bounds the northern border of Enfield and 
severs connection to the borough of Broxbourne and connectivity to Broxbourne 
town.  This proposal to improve paths along the New River to enable cycling and 
walking will provide commuters and those seeking recreation alternative access 
to Broxbourne. 

 
3.5. The principle of the proposal is strongly supported.  The formalisation of the 

existing path enables active travel, expands the borough’s cycle network, and 
allows access to a significant waterway.  The principle of delivering a cycle and 
pedestrian route at this location is in line with corporate aspirations, the Mayor’s 
Transport Strategy and the development plan. 

 
3.6. The proposal realises the Development Site’s designation as a Green Chain 

Corridor and Green Chain Missing Link to improve access to this Local Open 
Space.  Ecological assessment has been undertaken and recommends further 
mitigation to ensure protected species are safeguarded within the Wildlife 
Corridor and Metropolitan Site of Importance for Nature Conservation.  121 trees 
will be planted (with the removal of nine existing trees) and 585 metres of 
hedgerow provided to promote the biodiversity of the site, resulting in a net gain 
of over 10%.  In order to make the route usable after dark, lighting is proposed to 
be installed.  The applicant has been careful to explore all viable lighting options 
that create a safe environment for users but will, with mitigation, minimise impact 
on light-sensitive species, including bats.  

 
3.7. Ease of access and use of the present path is greatly improved through a 

programme of digging and filling to level the route to the extent possible.  One 
section nearest St. Ignatius College remains at a grade that is above inclusive 
standards. Officers recognise the applicant’s efforts to explore alternative 
solutions and engage with the College to acquire land that would resolve this 
condition. 

 
3.8. The application proposes a cohesive design approach to unify the style of 

furniture, signage, information posts, cycle stands, bollards and lighting.  Seating 
areas are provided to allow opportunities for rest.  Heritage benefits are provided 
through improvements to the Grade II listed Turkey Street Bridge and an 
information scheme that draws public attention to the historic, ecological and 
engineering significance of the New River. 

 
3.9. The primary public benefits of the scheme can be summarised as follows: 

 
• Enables active travel where connectivity is presently dominated by vehicles 
• Expands the borough’s cycle network 
• Allows access to a significant waterway, the New River 
• Improves a presently inaccessible and unsafe footpath to allow access by a 

diversity of users 
• Delivers on the Development Site as a Green Chain Corridor and Green 

Chain Missing Link 
• Reinforces the existing Wildlife Corridor 
• Provides 10.83% net gain in biodiversity 
• Landscape improvements of 121 trees (replacing nine trees that are 

removed), 585 metres of hedges, grasses, wildflowers and rain gardens 

Page 129



4 
 

• Installation of furniture and fixtures that are unified in style, more sympathetic 
and appropriate to the setting of the New River and its heritage value 

• Appropriate improvements to the Grade II listed Turkey Street Bridge 
 

 
4. Site and surroundings 

 
4.1. The Development Site is a narrow strip of land along the bank of the New River 

from Tenniwsood Road at the south to Bullsmoor Lane at the north that passes 
through the areas of Enfield Town, Forty Hill and Bullsmoor in northern Enfield. 
The area of proposed development that requires planning permission is just the 
river bank (owned by Thames Water) and excludes junctions where the river path 
interfaces with highways.  Corresponding improvements to highways are subject 
to separate highway orders and are not the subject of this planning application. 

 
4.2. The entirety of the Enfield to Broxbourne cycle and walking path that is within the 

borough of Enfield is 4.7 km long and extends from Enfield Town at Southbury 
Road, runs along existing highway, then joins the New River at Tenniswood Road 
and continues along the river bank for 2.9km to the M25.  This application is for 
the section along the river which measures 2.5km in length.  The riverside 
segment crosses Carterhatch Lane, Goat Lane/Hoe Lane and Turkey Street 
before reaching Bullsmoor Lane. 

 
4.3. While the present application is for improvements up to Bullsmoor Lane at the 

north, the path has been designed to extend to the Enfield borough boundary at 
the M25.  This last 400-metre length of path from Bullsmoor Lane to the M25 will 
be the subject of a separate planning application. 

 
4.4. The New River is an engineered watercourse built in 1613 to supply water. The 

river was re-routed and straightened in the 19th Century using aqueducts and 
tunnels.  These works are evident today with the Dowcra Aqueduct, an asset of 
local heritage value, within the red line of the proposal. 

 
4.5. Areas that adjoin the New River and proposed path are predominantly residential, 

ranging between three- to four-storey apartment buildings and attached and 
semi-detached one-family homes.  The path runs alongside several institutional 
and educational uses, including Worcesters Primary School, Capel Manor 
Primary School and St Ignatius College (without direct access into these sites) as 
well as the large public open spaces Forty Hall Estate, Lee Valley Regional Park, 
and Capel Manor College Gardens at the northern end. 

 
4.6. The continuation of the route in the borough of Broxbourne is the subject of a 

separate approvals process in that locality. 
 

5. Proposal  
 

5.1. A cycle and pedestrian path is planned that extends from Enfield Town to 
Broxbourne.  The segment of the path that is in Enfield is 4.7 km in length.  The 
Enfield segment comprises two sections in terms of approvals processes.  The 
section from Enfield Town to Tenniswood Road is 1.8km and entirely on-
carriageway, subject to highways consents.  It is shown in the lower box in the 
map below, cited “Proposed Cycle Route/On-Carriageway”.  The subject of this 
application for planning permission is the 2.5km section in the upper box labeled 
"Proposed Cycle Route/Off-Carriageway", from Tenniswood Road to Bullsmoor 
Lane only. 

Page 130



5 
 

 
5.2. Where the proposed riverside path crosses highway, the junctions on 

carriageway are subject to highways orders and are also excluded from this 
planning application. 

 
5.3. The path is proposed to be self-binding gravel and shared use, it is 3 metres in 

width for the majority of the route.  The proposal also includes construction of a 
new bridge over Turkey Brook, works to Grade II listed Turkey Street Bridge, a 
comprehensive landscaping strategy, planting of trees and hedges, the addition 
of seating, lighting, information posts, bollards, cycle stands and rain gardens. 

 
6. Environmental Review 

 
6.1. The proposed development, when assessed in accordance with the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and 
National Planning Practice Guidance, does not constitute Schedule 2 
development. It is not therefore ‘EIA development’ and no scoping exercise or 

Page 131



6 
 

any Environmental Statement is required.  The Council issued screening opinion 
reference 22/04219/SO.  
 

6.2. On the basis of the assessment undertaken, the proposed development would 
not give rise to significant effects on the environment such that it would trigger the 
requirement for an Environmental Impact Assessment having regard to the above 
Regulations, National Planning Practice Guidance and relevant case law.  

 
 
7. Consultations  

 
Pre-Application Consultation  

 
7.1. Following receipt of funding from National Highways in early 2020, the applicant 

held two workshops in February 2020 with fourteen stakeholders, including 
environmental groups, disability representatives, residents’ associations and 
cycling groups. 
 

7.2. A pre-application meeting was held with the LPA 4 August 2021, where officers 
acknowledged the constraints of the site and asked that there be consideration 
of: 

 
• The design of the bridge and whether this would be applied for in outline or 

full  
• Accessibility Lighting and how this will balance considerations regarding user 

safety, impact on bats and light spill  
• Further details around the decision not to segregate the path and details on 

maximum path widths achievable  
• Safety and security  
• Biodiversity and mitigations for introduction of hardstanding  
• Details of the interfaces at key access points to the route  

 
7.3. Regular updates and relevant documents have been available on the publicly 

available engagement site Let’s Talk Enfield. 
 

7.4. Shifts in funding available from National Highways led to the applicant team 
having to accelerate the design process in the second half of 2022, meeting with 
planning officers again on 20 October 2022 with an update. The applicant held a 
public webinar on 13 December 2022 with an attendance of 4 after having sent 
1,200 letters to neighbours.  Following receipt of comments during the planning 
application neighbour consultation period, letters were sent notifying neighbours 
of three more sessions to focus on the roads from which the most comments 
were received.  The applicant team presented clarifications with respect to 
alternative routes, distances to properties, screening, security and ecological 
assessment.  Two sessions were held on 13 March with two and one attendees 
respectively; one was held 15 March with two attendees. 
 

7.5. The applicant’s Statement of Community Involvement is set out in the Planning 
Statement, February 2023.  

 
Enfield Place and Design Quality Panel (DRP): 

 
7.6. The proposed development was brought to the Enfield Place and Design Quality 

Panel (hereby referred to as DRP) on 20 December 2022. A summary of the 

Page 132



7 
 

conclusions made, along with officer comment as to the degree to which the 
applicant has addressed DRP conclusions, is outlined below:  

 
• Overall, this is a positive scheme and is broadly supported. Resolution of 

outstanding issues (as listed in the detailed comments below) through 
amended drawings and conditions will result in a fully supported scheme. 
 

• This is a needed and useful direct active travel route going through and out of 
the borough and provides new opportunities to connect to destinations local 
and borough wide. This generally aligns with the councils and GLA objectives 
to promote active travel. 

 
• The new connections to the New River and landscape are welcomed and will 

provide an increase to biodiversity including new trees. More residents will 
have access to this space following implementation. 

 
• Improvements to heritage assets and increasing their visibility is welcome. 

 
• The proposal creates a new access point to Worcesters Ave, which is 

supported in principle. However a single entrance does not sufficiently open 
up views and uninterrupted access to the cycle path. 

 
Officer comment: The applicant considered removing the fence that separates 
grassed area along Worcesters Avenue from the proposed path to open up this 
entire section to the river, however, Thames Water, the owner of the riverbank, 
would be unable to close access for health and safety reasons if the need arose. 
 

• The proposed design for Turkey Street Bridge could be simplified. 
Seating, cycle storage and road blocking should be consolidated into multi 
use items to de-clutter the bridge and allow a greater appreciation of its 
heritage value. 

 
Officer comment: Following advice by the DRP, the applicant has revised the 
design of the Grade II listed Turkey Street Bridge to remove the ‘clutter’ and limit 
works to the bridge to a re-surfacing and replacement of bollards with slim profile, 
black bollards.  No additional furniture is proposed on the bridge. 
 

• Whilst not subject to the planning application, opening up the southern 
section of the new river to connect off route to Enfield Town station would 
be strongly supported. 

 
Officer comment: This suggestion falls outside of the scope of the present project 
and application. 
 

• Across the proposal there are missed opportunity for places of rest and 
relaxation. These could be introduced along the route and marked with 
benches and heritage interpretation panels. 

 
Officer comment: The applicant has introduced integrated opportunities for rest 
with seating in the form of benches with backrests and informal gravel boulders.  
The applicant has given consideration to the location of seating, along with 
broader landscape factors, and has set the locations and type of seating within a 
Placemaking Strategy and series of Placemaking Drawings.  The drawings 
indicate the proposed location of bench seats, cycle stands and information signs 

Page 133



8 
 

that will display a map of the path, as well as information on the heritage and 
engineering of the river and historic features along it.  While the applicant has 
provided drawings with locations of this furniture, the Placemaking Strategy and 
Placemaking drawings are recommended to be approved as indicative, with a 
condition requiring further review by officers of the historic features that have 
been identified, the design of information posts, benches, cycle stands, bollards 
and any other furniture being installed. 
 

• More detail should be provided on the treatment of land adjacent to the 
path. The maximisation of SuDS features, wild planting and biodiverse 
planting would be supported. 

 
Officer comment: The applicant submitted planting plans showing a robust 
planting strategy with a greater number of trees and additional hedgerow, 
grasses and wildflowers to increase biodiversity and provide further screening for 
neighbour privacy and further drainage details. 
 

• The proposed street furniture, benches and bollards are utilitarian and 
represent a missed opportunity to enhance the character of the project 
and to create a sense of place. Simple and inexpensive changes to these 
products could help achieve better placemaking. 

 
Officer comment: The applicant has provided a Placemaking Strategy that shows 
indicative furniture in a neutral black finish – this includes Harrogate cycle stands, 
information posts, black metal bench seats, black lighting poles and black steel 
bollards.  This unobtrusive and practical selection of finish and materials is clean 
and does not undermine the historic and organic qualities of the site.  While these 
are viewed to be positive, final selection of materials and furniture is proposed to 
be conditioned. 
 

• The proposed bridge is utilitarian and could be easily improved to create a 
sense of place using references to the heritage of the new river and a 
simple but interesting design. Changes to the shape, colour spacing, 
design of balustrade and material could all be employed to provide a cost 
effective but unique piece of interest. 

 
Officer comment: The proposed new bridge over Turkey Brook remains as 
presented to the DRP given budgetary constraints.  The bridge is designed and 
finished to be a neutral element and is in a location of moderate visibility.  The 
Placemaking Strategy integrates the present design.  The DRP suggested a 
design competition for this bridge, but the budget is too constrained to enable 
this. 
 

• It is noted as per DAS 6.4.2 that the ramp to the north of the St Ignatius 
path is too steep at 15.9% as opposed to the preferred limit of 8% for 
accessible use. This is not supported as it limits the use of the path to 
able bodied users only. 

 
Officer comment: The applicant has provided drawings further demonstrating the 
challenge around resolving the steep grade adjacent to St. Ignatius College.  
However, the applicant is in discussions with the college to utilise some of the 
school’s land to reduce the grade of this ramp.  It is understood that this element 
will not be resolved as part of this application, but officers are supportive of 
continued efforts to make this location fully accessible. 

Page 134



9 
 

 
Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees 
 
7.7. Environment Agency: The Environment Agency does not object to the proposal 

but does request that an informative is included requiring a Flood Risk Activity 
Permit for any activities that take place within certain parameters. 
 

7.8. Natural England: Natural England did not comment. 
 

7.9. Historic England (GLAAS): The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service 
Historic England concluded that the proposal is unlikely to have a significant 
effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest and no further assessment or 
conditions are therefore necessary. 

 
7.10. Historic England: Historic England, in its role as a heritage authority, notified that 

it would not be offering advice on this application.   
 

7.11. SuDS Highways: SuDS officers have reviewed the drainage strategy and do not 
object to the proposal.  Officers have asked for a condition confirming the level of 
rainfall proposed that rain gardens will accommodate before works are carried 
out. 

 
7.12. Transportation: Transportation officers do not object to the application and 

recognise the significant active travel benefits of the proposal.  Officers have 
comprehensively reviewed the Equalities Impact Assessment to understand the 
implications of the 15.9% grade path adjacent to Saint Ignatius College accessed 
by all users.  Although the applicant has explored several alternative 
configurations within the constraints of the site, officers accept that users can 
divert from this segment of path and that the applicant is communicating with St. 
Ignatius College about the acquisition of some land to bring this segment to a 
compliant grade. 
 

7.13. Conservation: Conservation officers do not object to the proposal and works to 
the Grade II listed Turkey Street Bridge acknowledging that the proposal brings 
heritage benefits and an enhancement to the present condition of Turkey Street 
Bridge.  Officers recommend conditions for further details concerning bridge 
materials, furniture, lighting, information posts, fencing, gates and a survey of 
historic assets. 

 
7.14. Trees: The tree officer raises no objection to the application and recommends 

conditions to ensure compliance with the Arboricultural Method Statement and 
Tree Protection Plan. 

 
7.15. Environmental Health: The Environmental Health officer does not object to the 

application for planning permission and finds there is no significant adverse 
impact that cannot be addressed through mitigation measures that have been 
conditioned. A condition is recommended to require a contamination plan. 

 
7.16. Metropolitan Police (Secured by Design): The Secured by Design officer made 

two comments to prevent criminal damage and arson: that bicycle stands should 
be placed diagonally to reduce leverage options and timber benches could invite 
damage and arson.  The applicant now proposes metal bench seats. 

 
7.17. Thames Water Authority: Thames Water did not comment. 

 

Page 135



10 
 

7.18. Broxbourne Council: Broxbourne Council did not comment. 
   

7.19. Lee Valley Regional Park Authority: The Lee Valley Regional Park Authority did 
not comment. 

 
Public Consultation  

 
7.20. Public consultation as a result of this planning application involved notification 

letters being sent to 1,247 neighbouring properties 16 December 2022, a press 
advert in the Enfield Independent was published 21 December 2022 and 10 site 
notices were erected 12 January 2023. 

 
7.21. As a result of public consultation, 16 representations were received, 12 objecting 

to the proposal and 4 neither objecting to nor supporting the proposal.  A 
summary of reasons for comment is below:  

 
• Benefit of having a cycle lane along the river is not evident; the priority should 

be making the current road safer for cyclists 
 
Officer comment: The Development Site is designated a Green Chain Corridor, 
supported by policy to be a linked open space for pedestrians and cyclists.  
Within adopted policy and Enfield’s Blue and Green Strategy (2021), this section 
of the New River is assigned the function of a cycle route.  The application 
consists of a Healthy Streets Assessment, which uses the Mayor of London’s 
Healthy Streets indicators to evaluate how the proposed route meets criteria and 
how alternative, on-highways routes would meet criteria for a safe and accessible 
route.  The route proposed by this application scores a total of 83, while an on-
highways route scored a total of 50.  Given all of the policy objectives that the 
proposal meets, including delivery of a pedestrian and cycle path along a Green 
Chain Corridor and improving access to a significant borough watercourse, it is 
appropriate that priority is given to providing the piece of cycle infrastructure as 
proposed. 
 
• Secluded and peaceful character of the properties that back onto the river will 

be lost as a result of this proposal 
 

Officer comment: The Development Site is designated a Green Chain Corridor, 
Green Chain Missing Link, Wildlife Corridor, is partially within Green Belt, Local 
Open Space, and Metropolitan Site of Importance for Nature Conservation.  
While these designations seek to maintain a verdant, open character that is 
conducive to species habitats, the Green Chain Corridor and Local Open Space 
designations mean that the riverbank has been identified for active use and 
access by users.  To date, this section of the New River has not been delivered 
and maintained to allow the level of access that is supported by local policy.  
These are the same designations that apply to other sections of the New River in 
Enfield Town.  There is an increase in usership anticipated as a result of this 
proposal, however, the Traffic Impact Assessment provided states approximately 
150 cyclists or pedestrians would be using the path in peak hours.  For the length 
of the route, this is a moderate number of users.  Users are expected to be 
cyclists and pedestrians using the path for commuting and recreational purposes, 
which are not disruptive uses.  The applicant has incorporated hedges and trees 
into the landscape plan to provide further separation and screening between 
homes and activity on the path.  
 

Page 136



11 
 

• Privacy will be lost when users of the path are able to see onto the rears of 
residential properties from the riverbank 

 
Officer comment: Further detail regarding individual streets is provided in this 
report.  Assessment by the applicant of distances from the path to windows 
demonstrates that, in most instances, there is a minimum of 18 metres from the 
rears of properties to the path – in most instances the distance is between 20 and 
25 metres, sometimes more.  Although there is no standard for distances 
between open spaces and residential properties, a distance that has been 
commonly used between rears of residential buildings is 18 metres.  Enfield 
Policy DMD 10 applies a distance of between 22 and 25 metres.  Although not 
strictly applicable in this instance, these standards serve as an indication of 
adequate distances from residential windows.  The nature of the path and its 
users is also worth noting. The window-to-window distances assume stationary 
outlook.  Users of the path are transient, they are passing.  The applicant has 
incorporated hedges and trees into the landscape plan to provide further 
separation and screening between homes and activity on the path.  
 
• There will be an increase in anti-social behaviour along the path, particularly 

resulting from the installation of furniture/seating 
 
Officer comment:  The formalisation of the walking and cycling route will open the 
area to the public and encourage recreational use of the amenity. Improving the 
path will encourage increased usage of the path, which provides passive 
surveillance and is likely to discourage and prevent irresponsible behaviour. Rest 
areas with seating are proposed to enable enjoyment of the path by a diversity of 
users.  The opportunities to sit provide additional eyes on the path to support the 
intended use of the route. 
 
• There will be an increase in anti-social behaviour on Turkey Street Bridge 

from the installation of furniture/seating  
 
Officer comment: The applicant amended the proposal to remove furniture, 
including seating, from the proposal for Turkey Street Bridge. 
 
• There will be an increase in the rate of crime originating from drug dealers 

and thieves on the path 
 
Officer comment: The formalisation of the walking and cycling route will open the 
area to the public and encourage recreational use of the amenity. Improving the 
path will encourage increased usage of the path, which provides passive 
surveillance and is likely to discourage and prevent criminal behaviour.  
 
• The incidence of burglaries will increase from individuals climbing over the 

fence into rear gardens 
 
Officer comment: There is presently a footpath on the majority of the route with 
pedestrian access.  The proposal is to formalise this existing path with self-
binding gravel.  The formalisation of the walking and cycling route will open the 
area to the public and encourage recreational use of the amenity. Improving the 
path will encourage increased usage of the path, which provides passive 
surveillance and is likely to discourage and prevent criminal behaviour.  The 
applicant has incorporated hedging along the boundaries with residential gardens 
to deter climbing over fences.  

Page 137



12 
 

 
• Can the path be on the opposite side of the river where there are fewer 

bounding residential properties? 
 
Officer comment: The location of the path relative to the New River has been 
informed by the density of residential properties as well as the width, natural and 
built features of the riverbanks.  In most instances, the proposed self-binding 
gravel path is being maintained where there is presently a footpath.   
 

o Tenniswood Road to Carterhatch Lane: The western side of the New 
River was preferred over the eastern side because it avoids the need to 
cross the river from the on-carriageway section at Tenniswood Road and 
because there are fewer properties on the western side of the New River. 
It also avoids extensive interventions at Carterhatch Lane to join the New 
River, including a segregated cycle facility on Carterhatch Lane, removal 
of the existing concrete raised island on the bridge and relocation of a bus 
stop.  
 

o Carterhatch Lane to Goat Lane: There is an existing towpath on the 
eastern bank and there is sufficient width to maintain the path on this side. 

 
o Goat Lane to the Turkey Brook: There is an existing towpath on the 

eastern bank between Goat Lane and the existing footbridge and there is 
sufficient width to maintain the path on this side.  The path on the western 
side has insufficient width. 

 
o Turkey Brook to Turkey Street: There is an existing towpath on the 

eastern bank, where there is sufficient width for the shared path to be 
constructed.  The path remains on the eastern side and there is no 
change to public access.  

 
o Turkey Street to Bullsmoor Lane: The existing towpath is on the western 

bank. There is a small channel on the western bank which would create 
unsafe conditions for the shared path. It is therefore proposed on the 
eastern bank.  

 
• Evergreen, “spikey” planting is needed on the path side to deter climbing over 

fences into private properties 
 
Officer comment: The application incorporates 585 metres of hedgerow, much of 
it alongside rear fences in order to create a separation from the path and 
residences. 
 
• There will be an increase in noise, particularly from motorised vehicles like 

mopeds 
 
Officer comment: Motorised vehicles are prohibited from accessing the path; 
there will be signage restricting use.  Only pedestrians, bicycles, e-bikes, 
scooters and personal mobility vehicles will be permitted access. 
 
• There will be light pollution as a result of the light poles being installed 

 
Officer comment: The lighting strategy has been informed through consultation 
with Enfield street lighting officers to appropriately light for safety and to minimise 

Page 138



13 
 

light overspill, as well as ecologists to minimise the risk of disruption to light-
sensitive species. The lighting columns will use light shields to minimise light 
spillage into adjacent properties; they will be directed away from properties, onto 
the path.   
 
The lights will be programmed to set illumination to the minimum necessary to 
make the path feel safe.  From dusk until 10:00 pm, when they are not triggered, 
lights will be dimmed to 10% output.  Between 10:00 pm and dawn, illumination 
will be at 0%.  Only when someone passes will the 10 columns be lit to 100% 
illumination, and will switch off after one minute.  A condition is recommended to 
monitor the frequency of light triggers and sensitivity to being triggered, and 
adapting operation of the lights accordingly. 

 
• Vegetative screening along the path will block sunlight into gardens 
 
Officer comment: The applicant’s landscape consultant has located trees and 
selected species that will provide the benefit of screening while growing to a 
height and density that will minimise overshadowing of gardens. 
 
• Construction process could be damaging to existing species habitats and 

presence of wildlife 
 
Officer comment: Any impact to ecology has been set out in the ecology section 
of this report following preparation of an Ecology Assessment by the applicant 
and rigorous review by an ecology expert on behalf of the LPA.  A condition is 
recommended securing a Construction Environmental Management Plan to 
memorialise the mitigation that has been identified during review. 
 
• The path is too narrow to accommodate shared use by pedestrians and 

cyclists 
 

Officer comment: The path is generally 3 metres in width with several sections 
exceeding this width.  The 3-metre width is dictated by two sets of standards: 
Government cycle infrastructure guidance and Inclusive Mobility, A Guide to Best 
Practice on Access to Pedestrian and Transport Infrastructure.  The Traffic 
Impact Assessment (April 2020) expects approximately 150 cyclists or 
pedestrians at peak hours; this is a moderate level of usership. Cycle 
infrastructure design (LTN 1/20) is the guidance by the Department of Transport 
that sets standards for safe, high quality infrastructure. It recommends a 
minimum width of three metres for cycle flows of 300 cyclists or less per hour. 
Inclusive Mobility recommends a minimum 2 metre width for a footpath to allow 
enough space for two wheelchair users to pass even if they are using large 
electric mobility scooters.  There are two pinch points that the applicant is 
seeking to address through further discussions with the adjacent private 
landowner. 

 
• There may be insufficient budget to clean up litter and dog waste 
 
Officer comment: Enfield Council will enter an agreement with Thames Water, the 
landowner of the vast majority of the Development Site.  Enfield Council will be 
responsible for maintaining the proposed path.  Enfield Council will maintain the 
path in line with maintenance of sites designated as Local Open Space 
 
• Properties along the path will be devalued 

Page 139



14 
 

 
Officer comment: Designations of the development site are not being amended.  
It will remain, as presently, a Green Chain Corridor, Green Chain Missing Link, 
Wildlife Corridor, Green Belt, Local Open Space, and Metropolitan Site of 
Importance for Nature Conservation.  The path is presently accessible to the 
public.  The proposal is to deliver a piece of infrastructure and recreational 
amenity in line with planning designations.  While impacts to property values are 
not a planning consideration, there is no evidence that the development proposal 
will be detrimental and will harm the value of adjacent properties. 

 
• An increase in visitors to the path will exacerbate adjacent road parking for 

residents 
 
Officer comment: The path is being proposed to give users the option of an active 
mode of travel, as pedestrians or cyclists.  It is not expected that there will be an 
increase in motorists driving to the path to then walk or cycle along it. 
 
• Who will be legally responsible for the security, health and safety of the path? 
 
Officer comment: Enfield Council will enter an agreement with Thames Water, the 
landowner of the vast majority of the Development Site.  Enfield Council will be 
responsible for maintaining the proposed path. 
 
• How will the works to the path disrupt roads and road access? 
 
The construction period and phasing are not yet known.  The on-highways 
construction (at junctions) is subject to separate permissions and noticing to give 
highways users notification of disruptions.  The proposed development is subject 
to a Construction Management Plan that is recommended to be complied with by 
condition. 

 
 

8. Relevant Policy  
 

National Planning Policy Framework 2021 
 

8.1. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) introduces a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development.  In this respect, sustainable development is 
identified as having three dimensions - an economic role, a social role and an 
environmental role.  For decision taking, this presumption in favour of sustainable 
development means: 

 
a) an economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right 
places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved 
productivity; and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure;  
 
b) a social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by 
ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet 
the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed 
and safe built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect 
current and future needs and support communities’ health, social and cultural 
well-being; and  
 

Page 140



15 
 

c) an environmental objective – to contribute to protecting and enhancing our 
natural, built and historic environment; including making effective use of land, 
helping to improve biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising 
waste and pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including 
moving to a low carbon economy.  
 

8.2. The NPPF recognises that planning law requires that applications for planning 
permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF does not change the 
statutory status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making. 
 

8.3. Paragraph 48 of the NPPF details when weight may be given to relevant 
emerging plans. This guidance states that the stage of preparation, the extent to 
which there are unresolved objections and the degree of consistency of relevant 
policies to the Framework are relevant.  
 

8.4. The NPPF sets out at Para 11 a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. For decision taking this means: 
 
“(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date 
development plan without delay; or 
 
(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out-of-date (8), granting 
permission unless: 
 

(i) the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development 
proposed); or 
 
(ii) any adverse impacts of so doing would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework 
taken as a whole.” 

 
 

8.5. The London Plan 2021 
 

GG1 Building Strong and Inclusive Communities  
GG2 Making the Best Use of Land 
GG3 Creating a Healthy City  
GG6  Increasing efficiency and resilience 
D1   London’s form, character and capacity for growth 
D2  Infrastructure Requirements for Sustainable Densities 
D4  Delivering Good Design  
D5  Inclusive Design  
D8  Public Realm   
D11 Safety, Security and Resilience to Emergency  
D12 Fire Safety 
D14 Noise 
S1   Developing London's social infrastructure  
HC1 Heritage conservation and growth  
HC3 Strategic and Local Views 
G1  Green Infrastructure  
G2  London’s Green Belt 
G4  Open space  

Page 141



16 
 

G5  Urban greening  
G6  Biodiversity and access to nature  
G7  Trees and woodland 
SI12 Flood Risk Management  
SI13 Sustainable Drainage  
SI16 Waterways – use and enjoyment 
SI17  Protecting and enhancing London’s waterways 
T1  Strategic Approach to Transport 
T2  Healthy Streets  
T3  Transport Capacity, Connectivity and Safeguarding  
T4  Assessing and Mitigating Transport Impacts  
T5  Cycling 
T7  Deliveries, Servicing and Construction  
T9  Funding Transport Infrastructure through Planning  
DF1  Delivery of the Plan and Planning Obligations 

 
Mayoral Supplementary Guidance  

 
8.6. Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment (October 2014)  

The strategy sets out to provide detailed advice and guidance on the policies in 
the London Plan in relation to achieving an inclusive environment.  
 

8.7. Planning for Equality and Diversity in London (October 2007) 
Explores how key spatial planning issues can impact upon equality and diversity. 
 

8.8. Public London Charter (September 2021) 
The Public London Charter sets out eight principles owners and managers of 
public spaces need to follow to ensure that any new public spaces in London are 
safe, accessible, attractive and inclusive. London Plan Policy D8, on the public 
realm, requires all development that creates new public space to be managed in 
accordance with the Public London Charter. 
 

8.9. Character and Context (June 2014) 
Sets out a process for acquiring knowledge of character and context, so that 
change is brought about in a way which is responsive to individual places and 
locations. 
 

8.10. Sustainable Transport, Walking and Cycling (November 2022) 
Helps support planning authorities and applicants in meeting the requirements of 
London Plan Policy T3, as well as also supporting delivery against other policies 
including T1 Strategic approach to transport, and T2 Healthy Streets. It provides 
guidance to explain how Development Plans and development proposals should 
support walking, cycling and public transport. 

 
8.11. The Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition (July 

2014)  
The aim of this supplementary planning guidance (SPG) is to reduce emissions 
of dust, PM10 and PM2.5 from construction and demolition activities in London.  

 
 

8.12. Local Plan – Core Strategy 
 

Core Policy 1 Strategic Growth Areas 
Core Policy 9 Supporting Community Cohesion   
Core Policy 11 Recreation, culture, leisure and arts 

Page 142



17 
 

Core Policy 21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage 
infrastructure 
Core Policy 24 The road network 
Core Policy 25 Pedestrians and cyclists 
Core Policy 28 Managing flood risk through development  
Core Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 
Core Policy 31 Built and landscape heritage   
Core Policy 32 Pollution 
Core Policy 33 Green Belt and countryside 
Core Policy 34 Parks, playing fields and other open spaces 
Core Policy 35 Lee Valley Regional Park and waterways 
Core Policy 36 Biodiversity 

 
8.13. Local Plan – Development Management Document  

 
DMD37: Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 
DMD38: Design Process 
DMD44: Conserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets 
DMD47: New Road, Access and Servicing 
DMD48: Transport Assessments  
DMD49: Sustainable Design and Construction Statements 
DMD57: Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste Minimisation and Green 
Procurement  
DMD58: Water Efficiency  
DMD59: Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk 
DND60: Assessing Flood Risk 
DMD61: Managing surface water  
DMD62: Flood Control and Mitigation Measures 
DMD64: Pollution Control and Assessment  
DMD65: Air Quality 
DMD66: Land Contamination and Instability 
DMD68: Noise 
DMD69: Light Pollution 
DMD70: Water Quality 
DMD71: Protection and Enhancement of Open Space 
DMD75: Waterways 
DMD76: Wildlife Corridors 
DMD77: Green Chains 
DMD78: Nature conservation 
DMD79: Ecological Enhancements 
DMD80: Trees on development sites 
DMD81: Landscaping 
DMD82: Protecting the Green Belt 
DMD89: Previously Developed Sites in the Green Belt 
 

8.14. Other Material Considerations  
 

Enfield’s Blue and Green Strategy (2021-2031) 
Enfield Climate Action Plan (2020) 
Enfield Biodiversity Action Plan 
Enfield Local Heritage List (May 2018) 
Enfield S106 SPD (2016) 
Making Enfield: Enfield Heritage Strategy 2019-2024 SPD (2019) 

Page 143



18 
 

The Setting of Heritage Assets – Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in 
Planning: 3, Historic England (2017)  
TfL London Cycle Design Standards (2014) 
Healthy Streets for London (2017) 
Manual for Streets 1 & 2, Inclusive Mobility (2005) 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
National Design Guide (2019) 

 
8.15. Enfield Draft New Local Plan and Draft Proposals Map 

 
8.16. The Council consulted on its early Issues and Options Local Plan in December 

2018. This document represented a direction of travel and the draft policies within 
it will be shaped through feedback from key stakeholders. As such, it has 
relatively little weight in the decision-making process.  

 
8.17. As the emerging Local Plan progresses through the plan-making process, the 

draft policies within it will gain increasing weight, but at this stage it has relatively 
little weight in the decision-making process. 

 
8.18. Key local emerging policies from the plan are listed below: 

 
Strategic Policy SP SE1: Responding to the climate emergency 
Policy DM SE2 – Sustainable design and construction  
Policy DM SE8 – Managing flood risk 
Policy DM SE9: Protection and improvement of watercourses 
Policy DM SE10 – Sustainable drainage systems 
Strategic Policy SP SC1: Improving health and wellbeing of Enfield’s diverse 
Communities 
Strategic Policy SP BG1: Enfield’s blue and green infrastructure network 
Strategic Policy SP BG2: Protecting nature conservation sites 
Strategic Policy SP BG3: Biodiversity net gain, rewilding and offsetting 
Strategic Policy SP BG4: Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land 
Strategic Policy SP BG5: Green Belt and edges of the countryside/urban areas 
Policy DM BG6: Protecting open space 
Policy DM BG7: Watercourses 
Policy DM DE1 – Delivering a well-designed, high-quality and resilient 
environment 
Policy DM DE2: Design process and Design Review Panel 
Policy DM DE3: Inclusive design 
Strategic Policy SP DE4: Putting heritage at the centre of place making 
Policy DM DE7 – Creating liveable, inclusive and quality public realm 
Policy DM DE10 Conserving and enhancing heritage assets 
Policy DM DE11 – Landscape design 
Strategic Policy SP T1: Promoting sustainable transport 
Policy DM T2: Making active travel the natural choice   

 
  

Page 144



19 
 

ANALYSIS 
 

9. Main Planning Issues 
 

9.1. The main planning issues raised by the Proposed Development are: 
 

• Principle of Development 
• Green Infrastructure 
• Transport 
• Design 
• Flood Risk and Drainage 
• Heritage and Archaeology 
• Environmental Health 
• Health and Equalities Impacts 

 
10. Principle of Development  

 
10.1. The London Borough of Enfield’s Journeys and Places programme, previously 

called the Healthy Streets programme, was established to encourage Enfield’s 
communities to make more sustainable transport choices that benefit the climate, 
health, encourage physical activity, promote inclusion, reduce congestion and 
improve road safety. The programme continues to be underpinned by the 
Mayor’s Healthy Streets approach. This work builds on progress achieved during 
the previous ‘Cycle Enfield’ project, which saw significant improvements made to 
help enable people in Enfield to walk, wheel and cycle. 
 

10.2. The Enfield Council Plan 2020-22 A Lifetime of Opportunities, includes as one of 
its priorities “safe, healthy and confident communities” with goals to: “Make our 
neighbourhoods safer, healthier and better places to live by working with 
communities to reduce and slow down traffic…”, “Work with partners to reduce 
reliance on cars and increase the number of journeys taken by walking, cycling 
and public transport” and “Create opportunities to get more people visiting  
and enjoying our parks and open spaces.” 
 

10.3. The Mayor’s Transport Strategy 2018 is based around the Healthy Streets 
approach, which prioritises human health and calls for a change to London’s 
transport mix so the city’s street network encourages walking, cycling and public 
transport, improves the public transport experience and locates growth around 
walking and cycling.  The Strategy’s central aim is for 80 per cent of all trips in 
London to be made on foot, by cycle or using public transport by 2041.  Enfield’s 
Transport Plan 2019 brings together the Enfield Council Plan and the Mayor’s 
Transport Strategy by building health outcomes into its policies.  Enfield’s 
Transport Plan includes, among its objectives, the delivery of Cycle Enfield, 
measures which encourage more cycling and walking and promoting safe, active 
and sustainable transport to and from schools and maintaining and improving the 
transport network. 
 

10.4. More recently adopted, Enfield’s Blue and Green Strategy (2021-2031), sets out 
a framework for protecting, enhancing and managing the borough’s 
multifunctional network of blue and green infrastructure.  It identifies the New 
River as a strategic link to Broxbourne and Enfield Town as a strategic node to 
expand the cycle and pedestrian network, and establish green corridors.  It 
identifies the New River Link as a Green Link to deliver. 

 

Page 145



20 
 

10.5. London Plan policies SI16 and SI17 expressly promote cultural, education and 
leisure facilities that incorporate – appropriately – waterways, improved access to 
waterways and protection of the open character and heritage of waterways and 
their settings.  The proposal meets the objectives for the New River in Policy SI17 
C to “respect [its] local character, environment and biodiversity and should 
contribute to [its] accessibility and active water-related uses. Development Plans 
should identify opportunities for increasing local distinctiveness and recognise 
these water spaces as environmental, social and economic assets.” 

 
10.6. The proposed Enfield to Broxbourne walking and cycle path presents several 

benefits, both strategic and specific, to the communities through which it passes.  
The path reinstates a link with Broxbourne to the north, which is specifically the 
purpose for which National Highways has awarded funding.  The delivery of the 
path also fulfils the New River Green Link identified in the Blue and Green 
Strategy.  The route strengthens the cycle network by linking with the Green 
Loop, the Enfield Town to Ponders End walking and cycling route, and a future 
east-west route connecting to the A1010.  The route also reinforces 
improvements made as part of the Enfield Town Liveable Neighbourhoods 
project.  

 
10.7. While there is existing pedestrian access through the vast majority of the 

proposed route, much of the present path is impassable, unlit and unsafe – with 
limited users and no natural surveillance to make the path feel secure and 
provided for purposeful use.  The proposed path, for both pedestrians and 
cyclists, will enable safe and sensitively-designed enjoyment of the New River, a 
key borough natural and historic asset.  The Grade II listed Turkey Street Bridge 
and the Dowcra Aqueduct, a Local Heritage Asset, are both within the red line. 
These assets, along with the engineering of the New River itself, cannot presently 
be appreciated as a result of poor access.  Enfield’s Blue and Green Strategy 
sets out objectives to ensure residents can access blue and green spaces within 
15 minutes walking distance of their homes, and make places more inclusive, 
healthier and attractive.  The subject section of the New River is designated a 
Green Chain Corridor, a Site of Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation, 
a Wildlife Corridor and a Local Open Space.  The proposal will allow communities 
to enjoy and make better use of the river in accordance with its designations. 

 
10.8. For the reasons set out above, the proposed path fundamentally delivers on 

Enfield’s strategic goals to deliver a healthy, safe and community-orientated 
travel network and is fully in line with London Plan policies GG1 Building Strong 
and Inclusive Communities, GG2 Making the Best Use of Land, GG3 Creating a 
Healthy City, G1 Green Infrastructure, T1 Strategic Approach to Transport and T2 
Healthy Streets. 

 
10.9. Although in draft, and accordingly having limited policy weight, the emerging 

Enfield Local Plan includes strategic policies that support the proposed 
development, Strategic Policy SP T1: Promoting sustainable transport and 
Strategic Policy, Strategic Policy SP BG1: Enfield’s blue and green infrastructure 
network, and SP SC1: Improving health and wellbeing of Enfield’s diverse 
Communities. 

 
 

11. Green Infrastructure 
 
Green Infrastructure and Open Space 
 

Page 146



21 
 

11.1. London Plan Policy G1 recognises the benefits of integrating green infrastructure 
into localities – the proposed walking and cycle path has the potential to achieve 
all of these benefits, including promoting health, mitigating the impacts of climate 
change, encouraging sustainable movement, supporting landscape and heritage 
conservation, learning about the environment, and enhancing biodiversity and 
ecology. 

 
11.2. The entirety of the development site is designated a Green Chain Corridor, with 

only a small section designated a Green Chain Missing Link immediately to the 
south and north of Turkey Brook. Enfield Policy DMD77 aims to protect and 
improve the role of Green Chains as accessible, linked open spaces for 
pedestrians and cyclists.  To date, the subject stretch of the Green Chain and 
Missing Link have not fully provided the amenity that the designation supports.  
While the majority of the application site carries a trodden path through grasses, 
many sections are narrow, overgrown, underutilised, unlit and inaccessible for 
use by bicycles and challenging for other user needs.  The proposal will fulfil the 
designation of the development site as a Green Chain by providing a functional 
pedestrian and cycle path, and additionally increasing access to and quality of 
the designated Local Open Space for greater enjoyment by communities in line 
with Enfield Core Policy 34 Parks, playing fields and other open spaces and DMD 
71 Protection and Enhancement of Open Space.  

 
11.3. London Plan Policy G5 encourages major proposals to include urban greening 

measures as a central part of the development.  Given the nature of the proposal, 
with the entirety of the site within a Local Open Space, Green Chain, Wildlife 
Corridor and Site of Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation, the site is 
already inherently green and, as set out in preceding paragraphs, an integral 
piece of green infrastructure in the borough.  The proposal aims to deliver the 
new pedestrian and cycle path alongside several green and blue measures, 
including the planting of 121 new trees, 585 metres of hedgerow, grasses and 
wildflowers, and raingarden.  This additional landscaping, that is of greater 
ecological value than areas of trees, shrubs and grasses being removed, 
enhances the urban greening value of this open space asset and meets Policy 
G5. 

 
Biodiversity and Ecology 

 
11.4. Planning Authorities have a legal duty to consider biodiversity when assessing 

planning applications; this duty was introduced in the 2006 Natural Environment 
and Rural Communities Act (The NERC Act). Where there is a reasonable 
likelihood that a planning application might affect important protected sites, 
species or habitats, information on the species, habitat or site likely to be 
affected, together with an assessment of the impacts of the proposals, will likely 
be required. 
 

11.5. NPPF (Para.174) requires planning decisions to protect and enhance sites of 
biodiversity value, providing net gains for biodiversity and establishing resilient 
ecological networks. London Plan policies G5 and G6 require developments to 
incorporate urban greening, manage impacts on biodiversity, secure a net 
biodiversity gain and provide access to nature. At a local level, policy CP36 of the 
Core Strategy requires development to protect, enhance, restore or add to 
existing biodiversity including green spaces and corridors. Development 
Management Document policy DMD 76 requires the protection and enhancement 
of Wildlife Corridors, and DMD 78 requires major development to maximise 
opportunities for nature conservation. Draft Local Plan policy GI4 refers to the 

Page 147



22 
 

need to promote qualitative enhancement of biodiversity sites and networks and 
encourage the greening of the Borough.  The emerging Local Plan, although of 
lesser policy weight, includes Policy BG3 which refers to a minimum of 10% net 
gain. 
 

11.6. Using the DEFRA 3.1 Metric to calculate habitat losses or gains, the Biodiversity 
Net Gain Report arrives at a 10.83% increase in Habitat Units for the entirety of 
the path, including the 400 metres up to the M25, resulting from the proposal.  
The calculation factors the loss of grassland that will be replaced by hoggin path, 
as well as the removal of trees further discussed in the trees section, below.  The 
landscaping strategy for the development introduces 121 new trees, 585 m of 
hedgerow and a mix of grasses and wildflowers.  Based on these calculations, 
the development results in a net gain in biodiversity, in line with policy.  A 
condition is recommended that requires planting is installed in accordance with 
planting plans, and that the planting results in a minimum 10% increase in 
Biodiversity Net Gain within the red line. 

 
11.7. The entirety of the application site is designated a Wildlife Corridor.  Wildlife 

Corridors are continuous strips of wildlife habitat allowing wildlife to connect with 
larger areas of wildlife in a built-up, urban context.  Within the development site, 
the New River is designated a Site of Metropolitan Importance for Nature 
Conservation (SINC) for its running water, scrub and grassland habitats. 

 
11.8. The applicant submitted an Ecological Assessment (23 February 2023) that sets 

out any impacts to the ecological assets by the proposal.   
 

11.9. With respect to impacts to the ecology of the SINC, the application proposes 
removal of a portion of habitats (scrub and grasses), but given the relatively small 
portion of habitat that is proposed to be removed and the habitat values 
presented in the Biodiversity Net Gain report, the losses of habitat through the 
removal of these grasses is considered to be minimal.  Further, there is extensive 
planting proposed that will offset any habitat losses to the SINC itself.  Conditions 
are recommended: construction/pollution control measures need to be secured 
through a CEMP and a habitat enhancement and management and monitoring 
strategy/plan to ensure the new planting maximises its potential for biodiversity.  

 
11.10. The Ecological Assessment identifies the following protected species and the 

mitigation necessary to ensure safeguarding of these species. 
 

Bats  
 

11.11. The applicant undertook 13 surveys and recorded activity over 275 nights to 
identify bat roosts in trees, bat roosts in structures and bat commuting and 
foraging. As the proposal does not affect the superstructure of any built 
structures, this category was not investigated. At least eight bat species were 
recorded.  Among these, common pipistrelle and soprano pipistrelle bats were 
the most common, accounting for 71% of calls recorded during transect surveys.  
These pipistrelle bats are common and widespread in the UK.  Myotis bats 
accounted for 21% of calls recorded during transect surveys; these particular 
myotis bats were identified to be Daubenton’s bats. Daubenton’s bats are 
relatively common and widespread. Globally and across the Great Britain 
Daubenton’s bats are classified as Least Concern on the IUCN Red List.  Among 
bat species recorded, myotis bats are the most sensitive to light pollution.  The 
remaining species of bats were recorded infrequently, therefore, there is unlikely 
to be an impact on these species by the proposal. 

Page 148



23 
 

 
11.12. The applicant has considered a lighting strategy that balances user safety, 

neighbour amenity and a level of illumination that is sensitive to wildlife habitats.  
The applicant proposes 5m tall lighting columns spaced at approximately 30-35 
metres of a Lighting Class of P3, for “Moderate night-time use by pedal cyclists or 
pedestrians”.  This class of lighting was recommended by the Council’s street 
lighting officer in support of a safe night-time environment.  A sensor will 
illuminate 10 columns to full power when someone passes.  From dusk until 
10:00 pm, when they are not triggered, lights will be dimmed to 10% output.  
Between 10:00 pm and dawn, illumination will be at 0%.  Only when someone 
passes will the 10 columns be lit to 100% illumination, and will switch off after one 
minute.   

 
11.13. Lighting can affect bats by alternating their behaviour or impacting the diversity of 

invertebrates that bats feed on.  With the introduction of lighting on the proposed 
path, the Ecological Assessment is unable to conclude that bats will not be 
affected by the proposal. 

 
11.14. In order to minimise the impact of lighting on light-sensitive species within and 

adjacent to the Development Site, the applicant has incorporated several 
mitigative measures. 

 
• The lights will have a colour temperature of 2200k. This is a warmer colour 

light which has been found to be less harmful to bats. 
• Shields and baffles will be installed to reduce light spill. 
• Between dusk and 22:00 lights will be dimmed down to approximately 10% 

output.  
• Between 22:00 and dawn, lights will be set at 0% output. 
• Between dusk and dawn, only when lights are triggered, will they light to 

100% output, and will dim or turn off again after one minute.  Based on the 
limited use of the path expected after dark, it is not expected that the lights 
will be lit to full illumination for long periods in the night. 

• The lighting will be connected to a monitoring platform operated by the 
Council that will review the sensitivity of the lights to smaller animals and has 
the capacity to adjust the lighting accordingly.  This monitoring is 
recommended to be secured by condition.  

• The LPA’s ecology consultant has advised that a significant proportion of the 
habitat remains unlit (<0.5 lux).  The applicant has provided light studies to 
show the level of illuminance of the proposed lighting when it is lit at 100% 
and 10% output.  10% output is the level of lighting that the lighting will be set 
at between dusk and 22:00.  In the models below, demonstrating illuminance 
at ground level, the river is to the left of the New River Path. The results 
indicate that at 100% illumination, when someone triggers the lights to come 
on to full output, the illuminance is at up to 1.5 lux and 0.75 lux nearest the 
river bank and between 0.75 lux and 0.1 lux over the river.  When the lighting 
is set to 10% output, between dusk and 22:00, the level of illuminance is 
between 0.75 lux and 0.1 lux over the majority of the path itself, with almost 
no illuminance over the river.   
 
 

  

Page 149



24 
 

100% Illuminance – At Ground Level 

 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 150



25 
 

10% Illuminance – At Ground Level 
 

  
 

11.15. Before arriving at the proposed lighting strategy, the applicant considered several 
alternative approaches to lighting: 
• Road marker uplighters: Gives upward light spill, requires additional 

maintenance as will be obscured by leaves, and insufficient eye-level light to 
make a user feel safe. 

• Low-level bollard lighting: Insufficient eye-level light to make a user feel safe, 
requires greater maintenance, requires greater number of units, much higher 
risk of vandalism and damage. 

• Red light output from proposed columns: While the use of red light is being 
trialled in environments with bat habitats, the recognised connotation and 
general atmosphere of red lighting is not seen to be appropriate at this 
location.  Locations where red lights have been trialled are vehicular 
roadways where the lighting is used at higher levels of illumination with good 
visibility.  In a pedestrian and cycle environment, at lower levels, the visibility 
and feeling of safety would be compromised. 
 

11.16. In accordance with the Council’s duty to consider biodiversity, the LPA’s ecology 
consultant acknowledges that the risks and options of lighting versus nocturnal 
wildlife have been considered.  Officers accept that the applicant has considered 
all reasonable measures to light the proposed path for user safety and comfort, 

Page 151



26 
 

while also minimising impact to species habitats.  Officers recommend a 
condition to require a thorough bat monitoring strategy and resulting remedial 
measures.  To form baseline data, an early spring survey is required – the 
applicant is presently undertaking this survey.  The condition will require suitable 
mitigation arising from any significant impacts identified during monitoring.  
Remedial measures would be reviewed by Council lighting engineers and an 
ecologist.  Measures may include amendments to the timings and lighting levels. 
 

11.17. A further condition is recommended to monitor and assess the settings of the 
lighting such as sensitivity and light level settings and timings, presented to 
officers to consider an adjustment in lighting levels should it be necessary. 
 

11.18. The application proposes the installation of 30 bird and 30 bat boxes (in suitable 
locations specified by an ecologist).  A condition is recommended that a strategy 
with exact locations is prepared by an ecologist and is submitted to officers for 
review prior to commencement, and that the installation of the bird and bat boxes 
is completed prior to route completion.  

 
Reptiles 
 

11.19. There is a small risk that areas of taller grasses may have common species of 
reptile such as slow worm and grass snake.  In order to deter reptiles from the 
areas of works, a condition is recommended to keep grass cut short in advance 
of construction.  
 
Badgers 
 

11.20. No badger setts were discovered during the applicant’s survey work, but as a 
precautionary measure, a condition is recommended requiring a pre-
commencement badger sett survey.  Should badger setts be found that will 
conflict with the proposed works, it may be necessary to apply to Natural England 
for license to close the sett in line with Natural England requirements. 
 
Nesting Birds 

 
11.21. The trees and dense scrub are likely to be used by nesting birds. As such, a 

condition is recommended requiring that vegetation removal be undertaken 
outside of the bird nesting season. 
  

11.22. Kingfishers were recorded during surveys.  Kingfishers nest in holes that they 
excavate in sandy banks close to a watercourse - holes were not seen during 
surveys of the New River.  A condition is recommended requiring nesting bird 
checks as well as a pre-commencement survey for kingfisher nesting sites.  If 
kingfisher nests are discovered during the survey, mitigation may be put in place, 
including restrictions on timing of works, fencing or other safe working practices. 
 
Otters 
 

11.23. No signs of otters were detected during the survey work. The LPA’s ecology 
consultant advises that the presence of holts is unlikely given the absence of 
structures and dense vegetation, however, the presence of otter foraging and 
commuting is likely.  As a precautionary measure, a condition is recommended 
that a pre-commencement survey is undertaken to confirm the absence of holts 
or rest sites.  Should any sites be identified, mitigation may be put in place, 
including restrictions on timing of works, fencing or other safe working practices.  

Page 152



27 
 

Otters are often found in urban areas and are unlikely to be impacted by lighting, 
especially as the river will remain unlit for the majority of the time and lighting will 
be minimised in line with the measures being recommended for the safeguarding 
of bats. 
 
Water voles 
 

11.24. No signs of water voles were detected during the survey work.  The Development 
Site does not include the habitat conditions that are likely to host water voles, 
such as reedbeds or similar marginal vegetation.  The LPA’s ecology consultant 
advises that water voles can use man made banks and, as a precautionary 
measure, a pre-commencement survey should be undertaken.  Should the 
survey identify burrows within 5 metres of ground works, impacts should be 
avoided using fencing or other safe working procedures.  If impacts to the 
burrows cannot be avoided, it may be necessary to apply to Natural England for 
license to lawfully proceed. 
 

11.25. A Construction Environmental Management Plan setting out the requirements 
and mitigating procedures for each of the species discussed above should be 
submitted to officers.  
 

11.26. A Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan is also recommended by 
condition to include: 
• An Invasive Species Control Plan 
• Management and monitoring of enhanced and newly created habitats will be 

required to ensure they establish as intended and in line with the SINC 
citation. 

• A habitat monitoring plan in line with the Biodiversity Net Gain report to 
achieve a minimum of 10% increase above the habitat unit baseline.  

 
11.27. Officers are satisfied that due consideration has been given to conserving 

biodiversity as part of the proposed works.  Where there is the potential of 
impact, and all alternative measures have been sufficiently explored, surveys and 
remedial work are recommended.  In most instances, surveys are recommended 
as a precaution.   

 
Green Belt 
 
11.28. The segment of the development site north of Goat Lane/Hoe Lane and up to 

Bullsmoor Lane is in the Green Belt.  London Plan Policy G2 protects the Green 
Belt from inappropriate development and harm.  NPPF Paragraphs 147 to 151 
discuss the types of development that may be considered to cause harm in a 
Green Belt, although “harm” in itself is not defined in the NPPF.  The proposal 
does not include the construction of new buildings.  Paragraph 150 of the NPPF 
sets out other forms of development that require consideration, including c) “local 
transport infrastructure which can demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt 
location”.   
 

11.29. The proposed pedestrian and cycle path may be considered a form of local 
transport infrastructure, keeping in mind that a pedestrian path presently exists 
on the majority of the development.  Paragraph 150 classifies these forms of 
development as inappropriate unless “they preserve its openness and do not 
conflict with the purposes of including land within it.”  The formalisation of the 
path to allow cyclists and improved access to the New River by recreational users 

Page 153



28 
 

does not involve the construction of structures that would in any way alter the 
“openness” of the development site or conflict with the purpose of the Green Belt, 
as set out in NPPF Paragraphs 137 and 138.  Therefore, the proposal is not seen 
to cause harm to the Green Belt that would conflict with the NPPF or London 
Plan. 

 
11.30. Enfield Policy DMD 89 requires that development on Green Belt will not be 

permitted unless all criteria are met: 
 

• New development does not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green 
Belt 
Response: As discussed above in the consideration of NPPF guidance, the 
proposal to formalise the existing path for cyclists and pedestrians does not 
introduce construction or a type of use that would impact the present openness of 
the Green Belt 
 

• The proposal does not lead to an increase in the developed proportion of the site; 
Response: The proposal does not increase the developed proportion of the site.  
In some areas, the existing path is re-located to the opposite side of the New 
River (the majority of the proposed path will be on the east side of the river), 
however, this doesn’t not increase the amount of the site that is occupied by a 
path. 
 

• The proposal does not lead to any significant increase in motorised traffic 
generation, as evidenced through a suitable traffic modelling tool 
Response: The proposal does not enable the use of the path by motorised 
vehicles that would generate traffic or a level of use that changes the character of 
the path for travel by cyclists and recreation. For reasons of promoting inclusive 
access, personal mobility vehicles that may be motorised will not be restricted. 
 

• The proposal contributes towards the aims of sustainable development. 
Response: The proposal to provide a cycle and pedestrian path that will offer an 
alternative and active means of travel north of Enfield Town and connecting to 
Broxbourne is a sustainable form of development. 

 
11.31. On the basis that the proposed development meets all of the criteria of Enfield 

Policy DMD 89, it is an appropriate form of development in the Green Belt. 
 

Trees 
 

11.32. Policy G7 of the London Plan requires existing trees of value to be retained, and 
any removal to be compensated by adequate replacement, based on the existing 
value of benefits. The Policy further sets out that planting of new trees, especially 
those with large canopies, should be included within development proposals.  
 

11.33. At a local level, Policy DMD80 of the Development Management Document 
stipulates that developments do not result in any loss or harm to trees of 
significant biodiversity or amenity value, or adequate replacement must be 
provided whilst the Draft Local Plan outlines the benefits that trees offer to people 
and the environment by improving air quality, reducing noise pollution, 
contributing to climate change adaptation and reducing the urban heat island 
effect. Additionally, Policy DMD 81 of the Development Management Document 
refers to landscaping. 

 

Page 154



29 
 

11.34. Following consultation with the Council’s tree officer, the applicant reviewed tree 
plans to limit, to the maximum degree, removal of trees that are directly in conflict 
with the proposed path to nine trees.  The applicant has submitted an 
Arboricultural Planning Report (November 2022) that includes an Arboricultural 
Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan.  Of the nine trees proposed to be 
removed, eight are small-to-medium category C trees and one category B 
Hawthorn.  A further two trees are being removed for reasons of safety.  The 
planting strategy includes the planting of 121 new trees along the length of the 
route.  While this number of trees more than compensates for the loss of trees, 
the trees are also intended to provide screening to preserve the privacy of 
residents whose properties bound the path, and to augment the potential for 
wildlife habitats along the corridor.  The proposal meets and exceeds the 
requirements of applicable tree policies and officers are comfortable with the 
proposal for tree planting. 

 
11.35. A condition is recommended to require compliance with the Arboricultural Method 

Statement and Tree Protection Plan. 
 
 

12. Transport 
 

12.1. As set out in the Principle of Development, the proposed pedestrian and cycle 
path, by its nature, fulfils a strategic connectivity function and contributes to the 
Mayor’s Transport Strategy core objective to move away from vehicular travel 
and enable sustainable travel.   
 

12.2. London Plan Policy T2 requires proposals to support the 10 Healthy Street 
Indicators, Policy T3 seeks to identify transport infrastructure that eliminates 
physical barriers to movement, thereby creating transport links, Policy T4 
requires proposals to demonstrate sufficient network capacities, and Policy T5 
supports the delivery of an integrated network of cycle infrastructure. 

 
12.3. Core Strategy policies aim to ensure that planned growth is supported by 

adequate transport infrastructure that promotes sustainable transport choices. 
Specifically, Core Policy 25 supports the implementation of improvements to 
walking and cycling, giving priority to projects that overcome physical severance.  
Development Management Document Policy DMD 47 requires that pedestrian 
routes should be attractive, safe, clearly defined, convenient and accessible to 
those with disabilities.  New provision is welcomed and should link with existing 
routes.  Cycle routes should be designed to provide a desirable alternative to car 
use and, where possible, should be segregated.  

 
12.4. The segment of the pedestrian and cycle path from Enfield Town to Broxbourne 

that is the subject of this planning application is off-carriageway, except at 
junctions where the path crosses highways at four points: Carterhatch Lane, Goat 
Lane/Hoe Lane, Turkey Street and Bullsmoor Lane.  The off-carriageway path 
begins at the south end at Tenniswood Road where it is on the west side of the 
New River, then crosses to the eastern bank of the New River at Carterhatch 
Lane.  It continues on the east side of the river up to Bullsmoor Lane.   
 

12.5. The alignment of the path has been informed by the location of the present 
pedestrian path, the bank widths and the natural and built features of either side 
of the river. 

 

Page 155



30 
 

• Tenniswood Road to Carterhatch Lane: The western side of the New River 
was preferred over the eastern side because it avoids the need to cross the 
river from the on-carriageway section at Tenniswood Road and because there 
are fewer properties on the western side of the New River. It also avoids 
extensive interventions at Carterhatch Lane to join the New River, including a 
segregated cycle facility on Carterhatch Lane, removal of the existing 
concrete raised island on the bridge and relocation of a bus stop.  
 

• Carterhatch Lane to Goat Lane: There is an existing towpath on the eastern 
bank and there is sufficient width to maintain the path on this side. 

 
• Goat Lane to the Turkey Brook: There is an existing towpath on the eastern 

bank between Goat Lane and the existing footbridge and there is sufficient 
width to maintain the path on this side.  The path on the western side has 
insufficient width. 

 
• Turkey Brook to Turkey Street: There is an existing towpath on the eastern 

bank, where there is sufficient width for the shared path to be constructed.  
The path remains on the eastern side and there is no change to public 
access.  

 
• Turkey Street to Bullsmoor Lane: The existing towpath is on the western 

bank. There is a small channel on the western bank which would create 
unsafe conditions for the shared path. It is therefore proposed on the eastern 
bank. 

 
12.6. The path is shared between pedestrians and cyclists in two directions with no 

separating features.  In order to achieve accessible grading, areas of the path will 
be cut and filled to adapt slopes.   

 
12.7. Although not part of this planning application, junctions have been re-designed to 

accommodate the additional pedestrian and cyclist movement.  The crossing at 
Carterhatch Lane is being adapted to include a designated zebra crossing and 
Goat Lane/Hoe Lane will include a build-out into the roadway to give priority to 
pedestrians and cyclists.   

 
12.8. A new bridge is proposed to be constructed over Turkey Brook as the present 

bridge is only two metres wide, insufficient to meet requirements for a minimum 
three-metre width.  The new bridge is four metres wide and is also shared.  The 
existing bridge will remain in place to the west of the new bridge and path.  This 
is subject to further discussion with Thames Water. 

 
12.9. The Turkey Street junction is distinctive in that it includes the Grade II listed 

Turkey Street Bridge.  The bridge is presently closed to vehicles by bollards on 
the east and west sides.  The bollards are proposed to be replaced with steel 
cylindrical bollards that are more sympathetic to the historic bridge.  The bridge 
will be resurfaced with resin bound surfacing and the on-carriageway markings 
“KEEP CLEAR” will be reinstated on the approaches to the bridge to give further 
warning that the bridge is inaccessible to motorised vehicles. 

 
12.10. An existing access point from Worcesters Avenue onto the existing path is being 

reinforced through widening and landscaping on either side of the access. 
 

Impacts to vehicle movements 

Page 156



31 
 

 
12.11. The subject of this planning application is the creation of a pedestrian and cycle 

route that promotes active travel and enables access to a major natural asset in 
the borough.  Given the interaction of the riverbank path with highways, a 
Transport Impact Assessment (April 2020), has been submitted which evaluates 
use forecasts and any impacts to roads and traffic movements resulting from the 
introduction of the path and associated amendments to junctions.  Officers are 
satisfied that the assessment concludes that the path does not result in any 
significant impacts to traffic or highways operations. 
• Carterhatch Lane junction: Some queueing and delays may occur as a result 

of the crossing, but queues will not block back to the preceding Zebra 
crossings on either approach. 

• Goat Lane: The introduction of a priority junction, to enable footway widening 
will not have a significant impact of queues, or delays. 

• Turkey Street: The existing and retained road closure across the Turkey 
Street Bridge means there will be no impact to vehicular movements. 

• Bullsmoor Lane: Some queueing and delays will occur as a result of the 
crossing, but queues will not block back to the preceding Zebra crossings to 
the west or affect the junction with the A10 to the east. 

 
Materials 
 
12.12. The path will be surfaced with hoggin, which is a mix of clay, gravel and sand.  

The particular mix selected for this project is dense, firm and self-binding, 
resistant to grooving and ponding and so fine, that any eroding particles should 
not obstruct wheels.  It has been used across other Enfield sites, including a path 
along Turkey Brook. The surface is semi-permeable and will aid in drainage and 
prevention of surface-run off into the New River. 
 

12.13. The Design Review Panel highlighted concerns about hoggin, that it could impair 
ease of movement by wheelchairs with loose particles.  Alternatives were 
evaluated that would either introduce issues of impermeability and runoff into the 
river, or would be inappropriate to the historic and natural character of the New 
River.  This specific hoggin has been selected for its fine texture, self-binding 
qualities and permeability. 

 
12.14. The use of hoggin is accepted and supported as being suitable to all users, 

appropriate for the setting of the path and allowing a level of permeability 
supports sustainable drainage. 

 
Access and design 
 
12.15. The path is generally 3 metres in width with several sections exceeding this 

width.  The 3-metre width is dictated by two sets of standards: Government cycle 
infrastructure guidance and Inclusive Mobility, A Guide to Best Practice on 
Access to Pedestrian and Transport Infrastructure.  The Traffic Impact 
Assessment (April 2020) expects approximately 150 cyclists or pedestrian users 
along the entire length of the path at peak hours; this is a moderate level of 
usership. Cycle infrastructure design (LTN 1/20) is the guidance by the 
Department of Transport that sets standards for safe, high quality infrastructure. It 
recommends a minimum width of three meters for cycle flows of 300 cyclists or 
less per hour. Inclusive Mobility recommends a minimum 2 metre width for a 
footpath to allow enough space for two wheelchair users to pass even if they are 
using large electric mobility scooters. 

Page 157



32 
 

 
12.16. There are two pinch points where the path narrows to less than 3 metres in width.  

This includes a 300-metre section with a width of 2.5 metres near Saint Ignatius 
College, as well as another discrete section that is 2.25 metres wide. Through 
discussions with Saint Ignatius College, there is potential that an acquisition of 
some of the school’s land could reduce the length of the narrow section adjacent 
to it. 

 
12.17. The entirety of the path has been designed and levelled through a combination of 

digging, filling and installation of retaining walls to support ramps alongside 
crossings.  In line with Inclusive Mobility, A Guide to Best Practice on Access to 
Pedestrian and Transport Infrastructure, the path maintains compliant grades of 
<8%.  The only exception is the north side of the footway adjacent to St. Ignatius 
College, which is at a grade of 15.9%, making it inaccessible to wheelchairs.  The 
applicant has demonstrated extensive review of this section, exploring various 
alternative configurations.  Correcting the steep grade relies on utilising land 
owned by St. Ignatius College.  Encouragingly, the applicant has had 
conversations with St. Ignatius College, and the school is amenable to exploring 
solutions.  Officers support further discussions and efforts to amend the route to 
include a compliant grade.  

 
12.18. If it is not possible to acquire land from Saint Ignatius College, wayfinding 

signage would be installed at entrance points north and south of the 15.9% 
gradient indicating conditions on this portion of the path and suggesting the 
alternative accessible route.  The alternative route is 850 metres, whereas the 
direct route along the New River is approximately 450 metres.  This alternative 
route utilises the surfaced greenway south of the Turkey Brook, the footpath 
along the A10 and the footpath on Turkey Street to re-join the New River. 
 

 

Page 158



33 
 

 
12.19. The Cycle infrastructure design (LTN 1/20) guidance limiting crossfall (the slope 

of the footpath at right angles to the direction of travel) to no more than 2.5% is 
accommodated for the majority of the route. 

 
12.20. Officers are satisfied that the path configuration has considered ease of access 

for a diversity of user needs.  The section of higher grade adjacent to Saint 
Ignatius College has not been resolved, but officers are reassured that the 
Council and school are in discussions and any resolution would be formalised via 
a planning application. 

 
Speed management 

 
12.21. The applicant has undertaken a review of guidance for maintaining safe user 

speeds on a 3-metre wide path that is shared by both pedestrians and cyclists.  
Additionally, several ‘calming’ features have been assessed in the context of this 
proposed path.  In conclusion, the location of rest areas with benches, design of 
crossings and anticipated numbers of pedestrians on the path will together 
manage speeds. 
 

12.22. The following features were considered: 
• Hump: A hump of effective length would have to be 3.6 metres, which 

presents a long distance for physically impaired users, wheelchairs and push 
chairs to negotiate.  A hump may not be sufficiently visible in the proposed 
lighting, leading to accidents. 

• Chicane: Creates a pinch point and is challenging to construct over hoggin 
• Rough surfacing: Can be uncomfortable and difficult for younger users, 

smaller bicycles or wheelchairs 
• Change in colour/pattern: Challenging to construct over hoggin 
• Bench seats along path: Potential conflict between cyclists and users of 

bench if not placed appropriately 
 

12.23. 43 bollards are proposed within the off-carriageway route.  These are 
predominantly at crossings and have been spaced to allow access by 
wheelchairs.  Shared paths at crossings are highlighted with the use of block 
paving and the addition of signage to warn users of the shared use space. 
 

12.24. Given the constraints of the path design and need to maintain inclusive and safe 
access for all users, officers are satisfied that “side friction” with the introduction 
of bench seats, as well as the need to slow around crossings and bollards, were 
found to be the most effective and practical forms of speed management. 

 
Restrictions on users 
 
12.25. According with current legislation, shared paths can only be used by non-

motorised vehicles, such as cyclists and scooters, as well as pedestrians and e-
bikes. E-scooters and mopeds are not allowed to use the path.   

 
Inclusive access 

 
12.26. London Plan Policy D5 Inclusive Design requires proposals to achieve the 

highest levels of inclusive design.  Spaces should facilitate interaction for all 
needs, have no disabling barriers and be accessed safely and conveniently.   
 

Page 159



34 
 

12.27. The application has been prepared using Inclusive Mobility, A Guide to Best 
Practice on Access to Pedestrian and Transport Infrastructure (December 2021) 
published by the Department of Transport.  The applicant has also submitted a 
Design and Access Statement (February 2023) and Equalities Impact 
Assessment and Annex (February 2023) that set out how the path has been 
designed to be inclusive. 

 
12.28. These elements are discussed in more detail in respective sections of this report.  

To enable access for a diverse set of users, the following considerations have 
been made as part of the proposal: 

 
• Path grade: the entirety of the path meets a grade of <8%, with the exception 

of a segment of footway along Saint Ignatius College, where the grade is 
15.9%.  Enfield Council Journeys and Places, the applicant for this 
application, are in the process of discussing acquisition of a segment of land 
that would bring this portion of the route into compliance – officers are 
satisfied that the applicant is pursuing a solution to this condition.  In the 
absence of a reduction of this grade, a condition is recommended to include 
signage at access points to the north and south of this section notifying of this 
grade condition and directing to an alternative route to return onto the path.  It 
is recognised this is below standard, but the applicant has demonstrated 
extensive exploration of configurations within the constraints of the site and 
has not arrived at an alternative solution. 
 

• Path width: for its entire length, the path meets a minimum width of 2 metres 
to allow two mobility scooters or wheelchairs to pass one another.  In line with 
Cycle infrastructure design (LTN 1/20) the vast majority of the path is 
designed to 3 metres in width. Two narrow areas have been described, 
including one that narrows to 2.5 metres along Saint Ignatius College.  If 
discussions with the school are successful, an acquisition of land would 
reduce the length of this narrow section. 

 
• Access points: access is shared and will be paved with block paving and 

include signage to warn users of the shared use space. 
 

• Surfacing: a particular mix of hoggin has been selected for its fine texture and 
self-binding properties, which has been used in open spaces in the borough 
and has been found to be suitable for use by wheelchairs and pushchairs. 

 
• Rest areas: rest areas have been integrated into the design of the path, 

spaced at a maximum of 500 metres, with bench seats and surfaced to allow 
ease of access. 

 
Healthy Streets 

 
12.29. The proposal is designed to be consistent with the Ten Healthy Streets Indictors 

adopted by the Mayor of London referenced in London Plan Policy T2, providing 
inclusive access, ease of access, places to rest, respite from road noise, new 
opportunity to cycle along the New River, security measures, historic interest, 
fresh air and an opportunity for leisure. 

 
Construction Management Plan 

 

Page 160



35 
 

12.30. The applicant has submitted a Construction Management Plan (November 2022) 
that is found to be satisfactory.  A condition is recommended that requires 
compliance with the Construction Management Plan. 

 
13. Design 
 
High-quality design 

 
13.1. Paragraph 126 of the NPPF underscores the central value of good design to 

sustainable development.  The Framework expects the planning process to 
facilitate “high quality, beautiful and sustainable buildings and places”.  As in 
Paragraph 130, the assessment of a scheme should take into account the 
endurance of the design, visual appeal, sensitivity to local context, sense of 
place, optimisation of the site and contribution to health and wellbeing. 
 

13.2. London Plan Policy D4 aims for proposals to go through a complete design 
process to encourage a high-quality outcome. Design scrutiny, through the use of 
Design Review Panels is encouraged.  

 
13.3. Enfield Policy DMD 37 sets out objectives for achieving good urban design: 

character; continuity and enclosure; quality of public realm; ease of movement; 
legibility; adaptability and durability; and diversity. 

 
13.4. The applicant has prepared a Placemaking Strategy and a set of placemaking 

drawings to support the application and help to inform the holistic design of the 
path.  The strategy acknowledges the “historic route with engineering assets that 
should be celebrated.”  These features need to be both highlighted and treated 
sensitively. 

 
13.5. The proposal introduces several elements to give character and enhanced 

purpose to the path – beyond its function as a pedestrian and cycle path. 
 

13.6. Eight bench seats with backs set within seating areas are provided along the 
length of the route.  These are spaced a maximum of 500 metres apart, located 
away from houses and busy roads, surfaced in hoggin and sufficiently large to 
accommodate a pushchair or wheelchair. 

 
13.7. Several cycle stands are proposed at seating areas to allow cyclists an 

opportunity to secure bicycles while resting.  The stands will be placed as 
individual stands, rather than grouped.  Harrogate stands with rounded profile tie 
in with the cylindrical bollards and reference the balustrades on the Grade II listed 
Turkey Street Bridge. 

 
13.8. Following advice from the Design Review Panel, Historic England GLAAS, design 

and heritage officers, the applicant proposes to install information posts at key 
locations along the path as a form of wayfinding and to convey historic and 
ecological information.  A condition is recommended that the applicant further 
consult officers on the final location of the information posts once historic assets 
have been collated and prioritised. 

 
13.9. The Placemaking Strategy recommends that all of the street furniture, cycle 

stands, benches, lighting, bollards and signage are black in colour to provide 
consistency along the route. While this is generally acceptable, a condition is 
recommended to require the details of street furniture, cycle stands, benches, 
lighting, bollards, signage and information posts. 

Page 161



36 
 

 
13.10. The proposed new bridge over Turkey Brook is of a functional design and modest 

relative to other bridges along the New River.  It is acknowledged that the bridge 
is not in a visually prominent location.  However, moderate changes to the shape, 
colour spacing, design of balustrade and material could better connect the design 
of this bridge to its context.  A condition is recommended for further design details 
of this bridge. 

 
Landscaping 
 
13.11. The application includes sets of planting and landscape and ecology plans. In 

total, the planting comprises 121 new trees, 585 metres of hedgerow, grasses 
and wildflowers, and raingarden.  The trees, hedges and soft landscaping are 
proposed to enhance the biodiversity of the Development Site, as a designated 
Wildlife Corridor, metropolitan SINC, local open space and Green Chain Corridor.  
The planting raises the level of Biodiversity Net Gain above the 10% increase 
supported by policy.  Hedges are located on fence boundaries where private 
gardens back onto the route as a safety measure.  Where there is sufficient 
planting width, trees will be planted against private home boundaries to provide a 
form of screening from passers-by on the path. 
 

13.12. The application proposes a generous planting strategy to address several 
important purposes: creating new opportunities for habitats and enhancing the 
ecology of the New River, providing an attractive route and installing measures to 
support the safety and privacy of residents along the path. 

 
13.13. A Landscape Management and Monitoring Plan is recommended by condition 

that includes maintenance of trees, hedges, soft planting and retaining walls. 
 

 
Amenity and privacy 
 
13.14. While privacy is often discussed in the context of residential proposals, good 

design should ensure suitable amenity and privacy is secured.  There is no 
specific privacy policy related to the development of infrastructure or open space 
assets, however, any impact on neighbouring properties requires consideration.  
 

13.15. Some residents of neighbouring homes have expressed concern that the 
formalisation of the path will introduce visibility by users into their gardens and 
rear windows.  In many points along the riverbank, the path is raised above the 
level of the gardens.  There is also concern that there will be increased 
opportunity to climb over private rear fences into properties.  

 
13.16. The applicant has provided information to demonstrate conditions of the path 

relative to neighbouring homes.  The applicant has identified the general distance 
to properties for segments of the path that have been raised during the statutory 
consultation period for the planning consent.  These are listed with distances to 
rear windows below: 

 
• Sinclare Close: 20-25 metres from path to rear windows 
• Ladysmith Road: ~45 metres from path to rear windows 
• Severn Drive: ~24 metres from path to rear windows 
• Capel Road: >18 metres from path to rear windows 

 

Page 162



37 
 

13.17. The pre-consultation draft of the Mayor of London’s Housing Design Quality and 
Standards (2020) acknowledges the 18-21-metre distance between backs of 
homes has been used as a standard measure to seek sufficient distances.  The 
guidance argues for a more considered approach that includes sunlight, acoustic 
distances and outlook. The guidance says, “Private gardens with high fences that 
back onto a communal garden may deliver privacy for the occupant but could 
undermine passive surveillance and even the sense of community of the shared 
space.” 
 

13.18. The majority of the identified distances between the path and existing rear 
windows of homes are a minimum of 18 metres, the generally accepted distance 
to support privacy.  Notably, the Housing Design Quality and Standards 
recognises the value of surveillance over public outdoor amenity and that visibility 
may help to deter misuse of space or anti-social behaviour. 

 
13.19. To give further assurance to residents, the applicant is proposing a planting 

strategy that incorporates hedges as a safety buffer along rear fences and, where 
there is adequate planting width, trees to provide screening. 

 
13.20. The proposal formalises a path that presently exists and allows public access.  

The paving of the path is intended to allow easier use of the path for commuting 
and recreational purposes for a diversity of users.  Officers are content that the 
applicant has given comprehensive thought to privacy concerns and has 
addressed privacy in a balanced manner. 

 
Secured by Design  

 
13.21. London Plan Policy D11 and Core Policy 9 promote the integration of design 

measures that create safe and secure environments for the community.  This is 
seen as integral to good design. 
 

13.22. The applicant engaged with the Designing Out Crime Office of the Metropolitan 
Police during the design phase, and Enfield consulted the Met during this 
application review.   

 
13.23. The Designing Out Crime Officer raised two issues: that bicycle stands be placed 

diagonally to reduce leverage positions between stands and that seating not be 
timber to avoid arson.  The few bicycle stands that are proposed will be located 
individually.  The bench seats that have been selected are entirely metal, 
addressing the officer’s concerns. 

 
13.24. Since consulting with the Metropolitan Police, the applicant has decided to 

introduce CCTV cameras on the path.  This was not recommended by the Met, it 
is proposed as an additional layer of safety, both to deter criminal activity and to 
help in investigations, if necessary.  A condition is recommended requiring the 
details of the location of CCTV. 

 
 

14. Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
14.1. London Plan Policy SI 12 outlines development proposals should ensure that 

flood risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. Policy 
SI 13 outlines that development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-
off rates and ensure that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source 

Page 163



38 
 

as possible. It also states there should also be a preference for green over grey 
features, in line with an outlined drainage hierarchy. 
 

14.2. Core Strategy Policies CP21, CP28 and CP29 and Development Management 
Document Policies DMD59 – DMD63 outline the requirements for major 
development from the perspective of avoiding and reducing flood-risk, the 
structure and requirements of Flood Risk Assessments (FRAs) and Drainage 
Strategies and maximising the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
(SuDS). 
 

14.3. Approximately 95% of the Development Site is in Flood Zone 1 and 5% is in 
Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The applicant prepared a Flood Risk Assessment 
(February 2023) that was reviewed by the Environment Agency and Lead Local 
Flood Authority.  The proposal was found to be acceptable and not introduce any 
additional flood risk that requires mitigation.  The EA was specifically interested to 
ensure that the construction of the new bridge over Turkey Brook did not 
introduce additional flood risk.  This was resolved through additional information 
presented by the applicant in the Flood Risk Assessment.  The EA has requested 
final bridge drawings and specifications via an informative for the purposes of 
record-keeping. 

 
14.4. Officers have reviewed the drainage strategy, which includes rainwater gardens 

at the north of the Development Site adjacent to Bullsmoor Lane.  Officers find 
the proposal to be appropriate, but recommend a condition requiring information 
on the level of rainfall event the rain gardens have capacity for before works are 
carried out. 

 
 

15. Heritage and archaeology 
 
Heritage 

 
15.1. NPPF paragraph 197 states that in determining applications, local planning 

authorities should take account of:  
 

(a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 
 

(b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and 

 
(c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local 

character and distinctiveness. 
 

15.2. Within and adjacent to the red line boundary are several heritage assets: 
• The Grade II Bridge Over the New River at Turkey Street was constructed in 

1827  
• The Forty Hill Conservation Area forms the eastern boundary of the route at 

the north section  
• The Dowcra Aqueduct was constructed in 1859 to bypass the Whitewebbs 

Loop of the New River and thereby provide a more direct route. It is included 
on Enfield’s Local Heritage List 

 

Page 164



39 
 

15.3. The New River is recognised as an important landscape feature within Enfield 
and is an exceptional example of a long-distance water-supply system. The New 
River was constructed between 1609 and 1613 to bring a supply of drinking water 
into London from springs in Hertfordshire. It is widely accepted as one of the 
most significant and ambitious developments in water supply in England. 
 
Listed Buildings 
 

15.4. Turkey Street Bridge over the New River is a Grade II Listed Building. 
 
15.5. Sections 16(2) and 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990 place a statutory duty on Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to 
pay special regard to the desirability of preserving the special architectural and 
historic interest of listed buildings and their settings. 
 

15.6. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF states that great weight should be given to the 
conservation of a designated heritage asset when considering the impact on the 
significance of that asset and the more important the asset, the greater that 
weight should be. Paragraph 200 confirms that the significance of a designated 
heritage asset can be harmed by development within its setting. 
 

15.7. Paragraph 202 states that where a development proposal will lead to less than 
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm 
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including where 
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use. Any harm to significance must 
therefore be clearly and convincingly justified and outweighed by the delivery of 
public benefits if it is to be in accordance with Paragraphs 199 - 202 of the NPPF. 
In the case of harm to non-designated heritage assets in accordance with 
paragraph 203 a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale 
of any harm of loss and the significance of the heritage asset. 

 
15.8. The Turkey Street bridge over the New River has been negatively affected by 

previous unsympathetic traffic interventions. The proposed scheme introduces 
new surfacing and the replacement of unsympathetic bollards.   

 
15.9. The propose resin bound gravel surfacing is favourable, as is the removal of 

existing traffic barriers. A condition is recommended requiring the detail of the 
surfacing material before the works are undertaken. 

 
15.10. There remain details of approach to bridge fencing and railings that need further 

resolution.  On this basis, a condition is recommended that requires further 
drawings and details of the bridge prior to the commencement of works.  

 
15.11. In the round, the proposed changes represent heritage benefit to the listed 

bridge. As such, the ‘balancing act’ required by paragraph is 202 is not engaged. 
 

Setting of Conservation Area 
 

15.12. The site is located in the Forty Hill Conservation Area.  
 

15.13. Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
sets out the general duty regarding conservation areas in the exercise of planning 
functions: special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of that area. Paragraph 131 of the NPPF 
sets out matters which should be taken into account when determining planning 

Page 165



40 
 

applications, including sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets (which include conservation area) and the desirability of new development 
making a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness. 

 
15.14. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) recognises conservation areas 

as designated heritage assets Paragraph 189 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework makes clear that great weight should be given to the conservation of 
designated heritage assets and to their setting. 
 

15.15. Policy 31 of the Core Strategy and DMD44 of the Development Management 
Policies 2014, accord with the NPPF in seeking to sustain and enhance the 
significance of heritage assets, which include conservation areas, through 
development which makes a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness.  

 
15.16. The proposal is in the setting of the Forty Hill Conservation Area. Given that the 

proposal formalises an existing use and is generally discreet relative to the 
conservation area, officers are confident that the proposal will not impact the 
conservation area.  As such, the ‘balancing act’ required by paragraph is 202 is 
not engaged. 
 
Non-Designated Heritage Assets 

 
15.17. The Dowcra Aqueduct was constructed in 1859 to bypass the Whitewebbs Loop 

of the New River and thereby provide a more direct route. It is included on 
Enfield’s Local Heritage List. For the purposes of Planning, it is a non-designated 
heritage asset. 
 

15.18. The proposed scheme will greatly improve access to the non-designated heritage 
asset whilst the new heritage interpretation signage will better reveal its 
significance. As such the scheme will result in a heritage benefit and cause no 
harm. 

 
15.19. The New River is an important landscape feature within Enfield and an 

exceptional example of a long-distance water-supply system. The New River was 
constructed between 1609 and 1613 to bring a supply of drinking water into 
London from springs in Hertfordshire. It is widely accepted as one of the most 
significant and ambitious developments in water supply in England. For the 
purposes of Planning, it is a non-designated heritage asset. 
 

15.20. There is at present a consistent style of railing and gate along the length of the 
New River which forms part of its coherent historic character. The style of estate 
railing – in particular the posts – was established in the early-mid nineteenth 
century with later sections continuing to reference the original. It is important to 
maintain this character and fabric. 

 
15.21. To ensure the historic character and fabric of the New River is maintained, a 

condition is recommended to ensure gates and railings are repaired and re-used 
where possible and replaced appropriately where necessary. 

 
15.22. The proposed scheme will greatly improve access to the non-designated heritage 

asset whilst the new heritage interpretation signage will better reveal its 
significance. As such the scheme will result in a heritage benefit and cause no 
harm. 
 

Page 166



41 
 

15.23. The proposal to include informational posts is strongly supported as it will 
underpin the heritage interpretation of the route and reinforce local identity.  
Additional consultation with officers is encouraged to make the most of the 
locations of the informational posts in the most historically significant locations.  A 
condition is recommended that requires a scheme of heritage interpretation 
informed by work with local interest groups and further review of historic features 
along the route.  On this basis, the locations of informational posts shown on 
drawings is indicative and the exact location will be secured by condition. 

 
Archaeology 
 
15.24. London Plan Policy HC1 indicates that development proposals should identify 

assets of archaeological significance and use this information to avoid harm or 
minimise it through design and appropriate mitigation. 
 

15.25. The application site is located within the Tier 3 Archaeological Priority Areas of 
Whitewebbs Hill, Bulls Cross and Forty Hill.  The submitted Archaeological Desk 
Based Assessment (YEAR) concludes that the site has low archaeological 
potential for all periods of human activity. Historic England GLAAS were 
consulted on the application and advised that the proposal is unlikely to have a 
significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest and that No further 
assessment or conditions are necessary.  Through its review, GLAAS did note 
the historic value of the route and suggested finding opportunities to convey the 
heritage of the New River to users.  As discussed in the Heritage and Design 
sections of this report, the applicant is proposing information boards at points 
along the path to bring attention to history of the New River and its features. 

 
16. Environmental Health 

 
Environmental Health 
 
16.1. Officers are content that the proposal is unlikely to result in a negative 

environmental impact. Specifically, the development is not expected to introduce 
air quality or noise impacts. 
 

16.2. The potential for ground contamination during construction of the new path is 
recommended to be mitigated by a condition requiring a Contamination Plan 
setting out a strategy for identification and removal of contamination. 

 
Waste Management 

 
16.3. The proposed path is on Thames Water property but will be managed and 

maintained by Enfield Council through an agreement between the two parties.  
With regard to waste, the applicant proposes not to provide waste bins or 
dedicated waste receptacles along the path in an effort to encourage path users 
to take any waste with them and dispose of it elsewhere.  It is recommended that 
the Landscape Management and Monitoring Plan includes a requirement for 
monitoring of litter for a period.  Should there be a build-up of waste, bins would 
be provided. 

  
 

17. Health and Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

Page 167



42 
 

17.1. In accordance with the Public Sector Equalities Duty, an Equalities Impact 
Assessment was submitted as part of the application.  
 

17.2. The transport section of this report details consideration of access for all users.  It 
is acknowledged that the applicant has comprehensively reviewed alternatives to 
the grade non-compliance adjacent to St. Ignatius College to reduce the grade 
from 15.9%, which is in excess of the 8% grade required to ensure accessibility.  
Officers are encouraged that the applicant is in discussions with the College to 
potentially acquire a segment of land that would enable this segment of the path 
to be delivered to a compliant grade.  Absent this solution, the segment of path 
will be signed to direct users to a paved, level route that will bring them back 
around to the route along the New River. 

 
17.3. Apart from the outstanding matter of the section adjacent to St. Ignatius College, 

it is considered the proposal would not further disadvantage people who share 
one of the different nine protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 
2010 compared to those who do not have those characteristics. 

 
Health Impact Assessment 
 
17.4. London Plan Policy GG3 outlines that to improve Londoners’ health and reduce 

health inequalities, those involved in planning and development must adhere to 
an outlined criteria.  

 
17.5. This application is not accompanied by a Health Impact Assessment (HIA). The 

HIA should be based on the Healthy Urban Development Unit (HUDU) Rapid HIA 
Assessment Tool.  

 
17.6. The HUDU Rapid HIA Assessment Tool provides 11 determinants of health: 

 
• Housing design and affordability 
• Access to health and social care services and other social infrastructure 
• Access to open space and nature 
• Air quality, noise and neighbourhood amenity 
• Accessibility and active travel 
• Crime reduction and community safety 
• Access to healthy food 
• Access to work and training 
• Social cohesion and inclusive design 
• Minimising the use of resources 
• Climate change 

 
17.7. Based on the proposal, and assessment undertaken in reports that accompany 

this application, officers are comfortable that an evaluation pursuant to HUDU 
Rapid HIA Assessment Tool would yield positive health outcomes for surrounding 
communities and users in all of the 11 categories.  This is particularly true of the 
categories of measure that the application directly delivers: “Access to health and 
social care services and other social infrastructure”, “Access to open space and 
nature”, “Air quality, noise and neighbourhood amenity”, and “Accessibility and 
active travel”, as well as making contributions to the remaining categories. 
Officers, again, are comfortable that the evident benefits of the proposal, and 
demonstrated positive health impacts evidenced in accompanying reports, that 
the development satisfactorily addresses Policy GG3’s outlined criteria.   

 

Page 168



43 
 

 
 

18. Conclusion 
 

18.1. The proposed pedestrian and cycle path realises a Council objective to expand 
the cycle network and provide Enfield’s communities with additional active travel 
choices.  This route is identified in Enfield’s Blue and Green Strategy and its 
delivery significantly improves an existing, underutilised public path and Local 
Open Space, allowing enjoyment of the New River by users of a diversity of 
needs. 
  

18.2. Officers are satisfied that, subject to the recommended conditions, the proposal 
meets policy objectives around green infrastructure, transport, design, flood risk 
and drainage, heritage and archaeology, environmental health and health and 
equalities impacts. 

 
18.3. The applicant has satisfied officers that all reasonable approaches to lighting 

have been explored that support safety and security for users, limit light spill to 
neighbours and minimise impact to light-sensitive species inhabiting or migrating 
through the Development Site.  Further monitoring and resulting mitigation is 
recommended to safeguard protected species.   Officers are also encouraged 
that the applicant is actively seeking to make the entire path accessible to 
wheelchairs by resolving the one area of grade non-compliance.   

 
18.4. While the matter of complete accessibility requires additional work by the 

applicant, the proposal opens up considerably improved access from what exists 
today.  On balance, the pedestrian and cycle path presents a major asset for 
Enfield’s communities and sets an example for infrastructure that achieves 
connectivity, health, ecological and heritage benefits.  

 

Page 169



Page 170

kghall
Rectangle



Page 171

kghall_1
Rectangle



Page 172



Page 173

kghall_2
Rectangle

kghall_3
Rectangle



NEW RIVER

TEN
N

ISW
O

O
D

 R
O

AD

B

B

B

6.0

LC

LC
LC LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

3

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

TEN
N

ISW
O

O
D

 R
O

AD

3.0

2.0

SHARED SPACE SIGN ON
PROPOSED LAMP POST

RAMP TO JOIN SHARED SPACE AND SHARED USE PATH

NEW RIVER

LC LC LC LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 5

NEW RIVER

3.
0

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

6 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 174



1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

C
AR

TE
R

H
AT

C
H

 L
AN

E

NEW RIVER

B

B

B
FB

B
FB

FB

B

B

B

B

FB

BB

BB

BB

BB

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC LC
LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

4

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W
NEW RIVER

4.00

3.
0

4.0

4.00
4.0

3.
0

3.0

3.0

3.
0 PROPOSED BUILD-OUT

PROPOSED BUILD-OUT

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

WIDEN EXISTING RAISED ISLAND FOR FORMAL CROSSING

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

R=7.5

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

PROPOSED PARALLEL CROSSING
ON CARRIAGEWAY LEVEL

E

E

E

PG01

NEW RIVER

LC LC LC LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 6

NEW RIVER

4.0

REMOVE FENCE AND PROVIDE ACCESS
TO ORTON GROVE ESTATES

EXISTING PALISADE FENCING

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

7 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-005 05
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 06/06/2022 FOR APPROVAL AB DD AG

05 17/02/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD

P
age 175



NEW RIVER

LC LC LC
LC LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

5

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

4.0

NEW RIVER

G
O

AT LAN
E

H
O

E LAN
E

WORCESTERS PRIMARY
SCHOOL

FB

B

B

B

B

B

FB

SLOW

SLOW

SP

SPB

B

B

2.7

LC
LC

LC
LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 7

NEW RIVER

G
O

AT LAN
E

H
O

E LAN
E

WORCESTERS PRIMARY
SCHOOL

3.4 3.0

3.3

4.0

4.
0

PROPOSED BUILD-OUT

RESTRICT PARKING ON GOAT LANE TO IMPROVE VISIBILITY OF CROSSING

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

R=48

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW

GIVE WAY TO ONCOMING VEHICLES SIGN

PRIORITY OVER ONCOMING VEHICLES SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

1.6

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

8 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-006 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 176



NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

LC LC LC LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

6

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

4.0

NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

LC

LC
LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 8

NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

4.0

4.0

3.0

REMOVE FENCE AND PROVIDE ACCESS TO WORCESTERS AVENUE

LOW-LEVEL PLANTING TO BE
SPECIFIED BY OTHERS

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

9 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-007 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 14/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 177



NEW RIVER

LC
LC

LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

7

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

3.0

NEW RIVER

THE DELL

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 9

NEW RIVER

THE DELL

3.0 4.0

3.0

NEW RIVER CULVERT

R=4.5

R=6.5

R=27

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

10 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-008 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 14/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 178



TU
R

KEY BR
O

O
K

G
R

EEN
W

AY

THE DELL

B

B

B
B

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

8

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

TU
R

KEY BR
O

O
K

G
R

EEN
W

AY

THE DELL

3.0

4.0

3.
0

4.0

NEW BRIDGE REQUIRED OVER TURKEY BROOK

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

R=26

R=18

R=15

R=15.5

SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

THAMES WATER
MAINTENANCE FACILITY

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

B
B B

B

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 10

THAMES WATER
MAINTENANCE FACILITY

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

2.
5

3.0SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

CONNECTION WITH EXISTING FOOTPATH TO ST IGNATIUS COLLEGE

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

R=50

R=30

R=20

R=50

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

11 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-009 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 14/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 179



NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS COLLEGE

BBB

B
B

B
B

KEEP
CLEAR

KEEP
CLEAR

LC

LC

LC LC

LC

LC

LCFO
R CO

NTINUATIO
N PLEASE REFER TO

 DRAW
ING

 ABO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 11

NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS COLLEGE

TU
R

KEY STR
EET

2.
5

2.0

PLACE MAKING ON TURKEY STREET BRIDGE,
INCLUDING STREET FURNITURE

R=20

PROPOSED BOLLARDS TO CLOSE OFF
TURKEY STREET TO THROUGH TRAFFICR=20

R=20

NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

LC
LC

LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

9

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

2.5

R=20
R=50

SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

R=30

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

12 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-010 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 180



NEW RIVER

LC LC LC LC
LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 12

NEW RIVER

3.0

NEW RIVER

OLD IGNATIUS
FOOTBALL CLUB

LC

LC

LC

LC

FO
R 

CO
NT

IN
UA

TI
O

N 
PL

EA
SE

RE
FE

R 
TO

 S
HE

ET
 1

0

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

OLD IGNATIUS
FOOTBALL CLUB

3.0

R=71.5

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

13 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-011 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 181



1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

MANOR COURT
ESTATES

NEW RIVER

LC
LC LC

LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

11

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

MANOR COURT
ESTATES

NEW RIVER

3.0

CAPEL MANOR
PRIMARY SCHOOL

NEW RIVER

LC LC LC
LC

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

NEW RIVER

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 13

CAPEL MANOR
PRIMARY SCHOOL

3.0

C2

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

14 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-012 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 182



BULL
SMOOR LA

NE

NEW R
IVER

CAPEL M
ANOR

COLL
EGE G

ARDENS

B

B
B

FB
FB

FB

B

FB

FB

FB

B

B

BB

BB

BB

BB

B

B

B
SCHOOL

KEEP
CLEAR

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO SHEET 12

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO DRAW
ING BELOW

NEW R
IVER

MAN
OR F

AR
M R

OAD

CAPEL M
ANOR

COLL
EGE G

ARDENS

BULL
SMOOR LA

NE

4.
6

1.
7

1.
8

4.1
9.8

4.0
4.0

3.00
3.00

3.00

2.4

3.1

3.0

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE
AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

REMOVE INFORMAL CROSSING

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

REMOVAL OF 120 METRES OF ON-STREET PARKING

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

REMOVE GATE AND CLEAR SHRUBS TO PROVIDE AT
GRADE CONNECTION WITH SHARED USED PATH

EXTEND NO PARKING ZONE

PROPOSED BUILD OUT

R=7.5

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE
AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

E

E

E

E

R02

R03

PG02

C3

C2

C1

PG03

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

15 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-013 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

CAPEL MANOR
PRIMARY SCHOOL

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 183



NEW RIVER

LC

LC

LC LC

FO
R CO

NTINUATIO
N PLEASE REFER TO

 DRAW
ING

 BELO
W

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

13

CAPEL MANOR
COLLEGE

NEW RIVER14
3.0

R=198

NEW RIVER

BULLSMOOR LANE

CAPEL MANOR

COLLEGE

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

FO
R 

CO
NT

IN
UA

TI
ON

 P
LE

AS
E 

RE
FE

R 
TO

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
AB

OV
E

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO SHEET 14

NEW RIVER

BULLSMOOR LANE

CAPEL MANOR

COLLEGE

13 14
3.

0

R=52

R=52

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

16 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-014 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 184



M
25

NEW RIVER AQUEDUCT

LC

M
25

THAMES WATER
MAINTENANCE FACILITY

M
25

NEW RIVER AQUEDUCT15 FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 B
R

O
XB

O
U

R
N

E
C

YC
LE

W
AY

 D
ES

IG
N

CONNECTION WITH BROXBOURNE WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

LAND UPTAKE REQUIRED FROM DEPOT

PATH JOINS WITH EXISTING
MAINTENANCE PATH FOR THAMES

WATER

R=8

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSSComment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle SettsBrindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Paving
 Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Ro
ad Tarma

c

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IBIB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Se
tts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery

97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

11
5

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP SP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard WayOrchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SPSP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas GasGas

GasGasGas

TW

CATV

32.763 32.789 32.804 32.798 32.794

32.815 32.803 32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.772 32.775

32.762

32.840 32.746

32.745

32.834 32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.695
32.77332.676

32.670
32.737

32.650
32.73432.735

32.645 32.739 32.754 32.77432.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.60432.55532.540 32.545 32.566 32.604 32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787

32.800 32.811 32.818

32.838 32.871

32.882

32.98332.998

32.782

32.832

32.909
32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801 32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805 32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075 32.998

33.054 32.972

32.95833.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904 32.824

32.79932.895

32.850 32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734

32.656

32.463
32.562 32.58032.467 32.499

32.585 32.592
32.529

32.542
32.551 32.567

32.568
32.649

32.659

32.581

32.600
32.678

32.697
32.617

32.625

32.707

32.728
32.646

32.73232.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706

32.721 32.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846 32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650 32.66232.675

32.657
32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.83632.749

32.715 32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640
32.738 32.656
32.738

32.742

32.675

32.673
32.755 32.77332.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664
32.799 32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805 32.78232.80132.80432.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.71332.696

32.83232.758
32.66732.766

32.637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.65832.77932.777
32.66232.651

32.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.66632.75732.724
32.65132.62632.69932.676

32.626

32.58332.65432.696

32.61632.622 32.705

32.706

32.686

32.747 32.83232.82032.732

32.778 32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.860

32.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844

32.834

32.755

32.711
32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683

32.768

32.739
32.679

32.680
32.769 32.769

32.662

33.05332.974

32.939 33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.98532.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.931

32.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016
32.927 32.873

32.979

32.936

32.838

32.780
32.886

32.846

32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643 32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736

32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.65832.64032.76932.766

32.64732.60632.77332.746

32.66132.665 32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730

32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts Tactiles

Setts

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB IB

TFL

TFLTFL BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

SKANSKA DEPOT
WATER WORLD AND

AQUATIC GARDEN CENTRE

LC LC

LCFO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

THAMES WATER
MAINTENANCE FACILITY

SKANSKA DEPOT
WATER WORLD AND

AQUATIC GARDEN CENTRE 15
FO

R
 C

O
N

TIN
U

ATIO
N

 PLEASE R
EFER

 TO
 D

R
AW

IN
G

 BELO
W

3.
0

LAND UPTAKE REQUIRED FROM DEPOT

PATH JOINS WITH EXISTING
MAINTENANCE PATH FOR THAMES

WATER

R=37

R=8

R=98

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND 
INFILL

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB

PROPOSED PCC EDGING

PCC QUADRANT KERB R305

PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND
SURFACING

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH
GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET
FENCING
PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING
EXISTING GULLY 
PROPOSED GULLY
EXISTING GULLY TO BE RAISED
TO SUIT NEW LEVELS
SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC

PG
E

C#
This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

17 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-014 04
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

P
age 185



CS
CS

CS

NEW RIVER

6.1

B

B
B

CS
CS

CS

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

3

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

TEN
N

ISW
O

O
D

 R
O

AD

3.0

2.0

SHARED SPACE SIGN ON
PROPOSED LAMP POST

RAMP TO JOIN SHARED SPACE AND SHARED USE PATH

LC

LC
LC LC

LC

NEW RIVER

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 5

NEW RIVER

3.
0

LC LC LC LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

6 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD

06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB AB DD

P
age 186



1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

C
AR

TE
R

H
AT

C
H

 L
AN

E

NEW RIVER

E

E

E

PG01

B
B

B
FB

B
FB

FB

B

B

B
B

FB

BB

BB

BB

BB

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

4

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W
NEW RIVER

4.00

3.
0

4.0

4.00
4.0

3.
0

3.0

3.0

3.
0

PROPOSED BUILD-OUT

PROPOSED BUILD-OUT

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

WIDEN EXISTING RAISED ISLAND FOR FORMAL CROSSING

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

R=7.5

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

PROPOSED PARALLEL CROSSING
ON CARRIAGEWAY LEVEL

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC LC
LC

LC

HCS

NEW RIVER

HCS

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 6

NEW RIVER

4.0

REMOVE FENCE AND PROVIDE ACCESS
TO ORTON GROVE ESTATES

EXISTING PALISADE FENCING

LC LC LC LC

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

7 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-005 07
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 06/06/2022 FOR APPROVAL AB DD AG

05 17/02/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD

06 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL
AB

AB
DD07 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL

DB
AB

DD

P
age 187



NEW RIVER

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

5

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

4.0

LC LC LC
LC LC

NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS PRIMARY
SCHOOL

2.7

FB

B

B

B

FB

SLOW

SLOW

SP

SP
B

B

B

B

B

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 7

NEW RIVER

G
O

AT LAN
E

H
O

E LAN
E

WORCESTERS PRIMARY
SCHOOL

3.4 3.0

3.3

4.0

4.
0

1.6

PROPOSED BUILD-OUT

RESTRICT PARKING ON GOAT LANE TO IMPROVE VISIBILITY OF CROSSING

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

R=48

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW

FLECTABOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW

GIVE WAY TO ONCOMING VEHICLES SIGN

PRIORITY OVER ONCOMING VEHICLES SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

PROPOSED DOUBLE YELLOW ROAD MARKING
TO MAINTAIN VISIBILITY OF THE CROSSING

PROPOSED DOUBLE YELLOW ROAD MARKING
TO KEEP CARRIAGEWAY CLEAR OF PARKED VEHICLES
AND TO GIVE WAY TO OPPOSING VEHICLES

LC
LC

LC

LC
LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

8 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-006 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 188



NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

6

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

4.0

LC LC LC LC

HCS

NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

HCS

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 8

NEW RIVER

WORCESTERS AVENUE

4.0

4.0

3.0

REMOVE FENCE AND PROVIDE ACCESS TO WORCESTERS AVENUE

LOW-LEVEL PLANTING TO BE
SPECIFIED BY OTHERS

LC

LC
LC

LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

9 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-007 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 14/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 189



NEW RIVER

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

7

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

3.0LC
LC

LC

LC

HCS

NEW RIVER

THE DELL

HCS

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 9

NEW RIVER

THE DELL

3.0 4.0

3.0

NEW RIVER CULVERT

R=4.5

R=6.5

R=27

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

10 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-008 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10/05/2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG

04 14/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 190



G
=0.50m

S=10.00m

CS CS CS

CS CS CS

TU
R

KEY BR
O

O
K

G
R

EEN
W

AY

THE DELL

B

B

B

B

CS CS CS

CS CS CS

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

8

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

TU
R

KEY BR
O

O
K

G
R

EEN
W

AY

THE DELL

3.0

4.0

3.
0

4.0

NEW BRIDGE REQUIRED OVER TURKEY BROOK

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

R=26

R=18

R=15

R=15.5

SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

25.0

G
=0.80m

S=8.00m

G
=0.60m

S=10.00m

G
=0.10m

S=4.00m

H
C

S

THAMES WATER
MAINTENANCE FACILITY

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

B

B

B

B

H
C

S

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 10

THAMES WATER
MAINTENANCE FACILITY

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

2.
5

3.0SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

CONNECTION WITH EXISTING FOOTPATH TO ST IGNATIUS COLLEGE

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

R=50

R=30

R=20

R=50

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

11 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-009 07
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 14/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD

06 06/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL JVG AB DD
AB DD07 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 191



G=0.80m

NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS COLLEGE

BBB

B

B

B
B

KEEP
CLEAR

KEEP
CLEAR

B B

FO
R CO

NTINUATIO
N PLEASE REFER TO

 DRAW
ING

 ABO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 11

NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS COLLEGE

TU
R

KEY STR
EET

2.
5

2.0

PLACE MAKING ON TURKEY STREET BRIDGE,
INCLUDING STREET FURNITURE

PROPOSED BOLLARDS TO CLOSE OFF
TURKEY STREET TO THROUGH TRAFFICR=20

LC

LC

LC LC

LC

LC

LC

C
L30.80

IC

30.78

30.78

30.71

30.7230.70

LG
08

E/X=534478.969

N
/Y=198982.102

H
t/Z=30.967

G
=0.70m

S=10.00m

G
=0.40m

S=10.00m

30.21 30.16

30.11

30.21

30.27
30.30

NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

9

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

ST IGNATIUS
COLLEGE

2.5

R=20
R=50

SHIFT OVER THAMES WATER FENCE

R=30

LC
LC

LC

LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

12 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-010 07
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD

06 06/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL JVG AB DD
AB DD07 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 192



NEW RIVER

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 12

NEW RIVER

3.0

LC LC LC LC
LC

HCS

NEW RIVER

OLD IGNATIUS
FOOTBALL CLUB

HCSFO
R 

CO
NT

IN
UA

TI
O

N 
PL

EA
SE

RE
FE

R 
TO

 S
HE

ET
 1

0

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

NEW RIVER

OLD IGNATIUS
FOOTBALL CLUB

3.0

R=71.5

LC

LC

LC

LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

13 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-011 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 193



1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

MANOR COURT
ESTATES

NEW RIVER

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

11

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 BELO

W

MANOR COURT
ESTATES

NEW RIVER

3.0

LC
LC LC

LC

CAPEL MANOR
PRIMARY SCHOOL

C2

3.1

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

NEW RIVER

FO
R

 C
O

N
TIN

U
ATIO

N
 PLEASE R

EFER
 TO

 SH
EET 13

CAPEL MANOR
PRIMARY SCHOOL

3.0

LC LC LC
LC

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

14 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-012 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 194



CS CS
CS

CS

NEW R
IVER

CAPEL M
ANOR

COLL
EGE G

ARDENS

E

E

E

E

PG02

C3

C2

C1

PG03

6.1

4.2

3.1

2.9

4.0

B

B
B

FB

FB

FB

B

FB

FB

FB

B

B

BB

BB

BB

BB

B

B

B

CS CS
CS

CS

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO SHEET 12

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO DRAW
ING BELOW

NEW R
IVER

MAN
OR F

AR
M R

OAD

CAPEL M
ANOR

COLL
EGE G

ARDENS

BULL
SMOOR LA

NE

4.
6

1.
7

1.
8

4.1
9.8

4.0
4.0

3.00

3.00

2.5

3.0

3.0

3.00

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE
AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

REMOVE INFORMAL CROSSING

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE AND NO CYCLING SIGN

REMOVAL OF 120 METRES OF ON-STREET PARKING

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

REMOVE GATE AND CLEAR SHRUBS TO PROVIDE AT
GRADE CONNECTION WITH SHARED USED PATH

EXTEND NO PARKING ZONE

PROPOSED BUILD OUT

R=7.5

BOLLARD WITH SHARED SPACE
AND NO CYCLING SIGN

BOLLARD WITH DIRECTIONAL ARROW SIGN

RAISED TABLE TO REMAIN

NEW PEDESTRIAN PARALLEL
CROSSING AT CARRIAGEWAY LEVEL

EXISTING FLOWERBED TO BE REMOVED

PROPOSED NO STOPPING AT ALL TIMES
SIGN ON NEW SIGN POST

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

15 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-013 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

CAPEL MANOR
PRIMARY SCHOOL

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 195



NEW RIVER

FO
R CO

NTINUATIO
N PLEASE REFER TO

 DRAW
ING

 BELO
W

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 S
H

EE
T 

13

CAPEL MANOR
COLLEGE

NEW RIVER14
3.0

LC

LC

LC LC

NEW RIVER

BULLSMOOR LANE

CAPEL MANOR

COLLEGE

FO
R 

CO
NT

IN
UA

TI
ON

 P
LE

AS
E 

RE
FE

R 
TO

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
AB

OV
E

FOR CONTINUATION PLEASE REFER TO SHEET 14

NEW RIVER

BULLSMOOR LANE

CAPEL MANOR

COLLEGE

13 14
3.

0

R=52

R=52

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

16 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-014 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 196



M
25

M
25

NEW RIVER AQUEDUCT

M
25M

25

NEW RIVER AQUEDUCT15 FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

FO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 B
R

O
XB

O
U

R
N

E
C

YC
LE

W
AY

 D
ES

IG
N

CONNECTION WITH BROXBOURNE WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

1. THIS DRAWING SHALL BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD DRAWINGS AND ALL OTHER
RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S, ENGINEER'S AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEV3000 SHOWN ARE IN METRES
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

4. LAYOUTS ARE A COMBINATION OF BOTH TOPOGRAPHICAL
SURVEY AND ORDINANCE SURVEY. CLARIFICATION AND
DISCREPANCIES TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF
THE SITE ENGINEER.

5. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CHECK
INVERT LEV3000 AND POSITIONS OF ALL EXISTING DRAINS,
SEWERS, INSPECTION CHAMBERS AND MANHOLES AGAINST
DRAWINGS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE
ENGINEER.

6. IN CASE OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, DETAILS OR
BILLS, REFER TO ENGINEERS FOR CLARIFICATION:
UNILATERAL DECISION BY THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED.

7. WHERE DIGITAL MOD3000/FILES ARE ISSUED, THESE ARE
PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY TO ASSIST OTHER
PARTIES DEVELOP THEIR DESIGNS/DRAWINGS
DOCUMENTATION. METIS CONSULTANTS LTD ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DIGITAL DATA
SUPPLIED.

8. THE CONTRACTUAL DRAWINGS/INFORMATION PRODUCED BY
METIS CONSULTANTS LTD UNDER OUR APPOINTMENT ARE
LIMITED TO THE 2D PDF DRAWING FILES/PAPER COPIES,
WITH RESPECT TO DESIGN COORDINATION AND
DIMENSIONAL SETTING OUT.

NOTES

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat

WatWat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat Wat

WatWat

Wat

WatWatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

MP

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATVCATVCATV

CATV

197400N 197400N

197650N 197650N

533400E
533400E

533650E
533650E

Title : G:\SHARED DRIVES\PROJECTS\1008 - ENFIELD CYCLEWAY\DRAWINGS ISSUED\WORKING DRAWINGS\ROUNDABOUT REVISION 1\ROUNDABOUT MERGEDSubject : ROUNDABOUT SCAN LSS

Comment : created using LSS v10.01.11Comment : created on 2020.01.31 09:33Comment : units of survey are metres

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Grass

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Willow Road
 Tarmac

Tenniswood Road Tarmac

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Bin

IB

IB

IB IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

Concrete

Concrete

Grass

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Brindle Setts

Tactiles

Concrete

GY

GY

Wat

Brindle Setts

Concrete

Concrete

147

11
3

Post

114

86

135

136

62

134

73

61

139

119

122

Surgery
97

95

131

66

64

96

102

1

10
1

146

115

BT

BT

BT

CATV

BT

CATV

FH

TFL

CATV

CATV

CATV

CATV TFL

CATV

BT

BT

CATV

CATV

CATV

Tactiles

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatTW

CATV

CATV

Bollard

LP

LP

LP

SPSP SP

SPSP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

BT

BT

CATV

Wat

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

CATV

BT

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Concrete

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving SlabsGrey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pavi
ng Slabs

Grey Pav
ing Slabs

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Tarmac

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Tarmac Tarmac

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Concrete

Tarmac

CATV

Orchard Way

Orchard Way

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

Churchbury Lane

RE

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

BollardBollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

Bollard Bollard Bollard

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SPSP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

GY

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

WatWat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

Wat

FH

FH

GasGas Gas

Gas

Gas

GasGas

Gas

TW

CATV

32.763

32.789 32.804 32.798

32.794

32.815 32.803

32.806 32.694

32.797

32.821 32.842

32.898

32.955

33.036

33.068

33.076 33.082

33.094

33.127

32.79932.743

32.713 32.747 32.834

32.777

32.77232.775

32.762

32.840

32.746

32.745

32.834

32.742

32.745

32.719

32.71532.69532.77332.676

32.670

32.737

32.650

32.73432.735

32.645

32.739 32.754 32.774

32.762

32.787

32.802

32.807

32.719 32.745

32.585 32.604 32.55532.540 32.545

32.566 32.604

32.648 32.681

32.718

32.711

32.707

32.706

32.955

32.918

32.919

32.967

32.950

32.819

32.745 32.79832.783

32.766 32.787 32.800 32.811 32.818

32.83832.871

32.88232.983

32.998

32.782

32.832

32.909

32.970

32.935

32.820 32.811 32.784 32.801

32.803 32.814 32.802 32.805

32.788 32.797

32.786

33.075

32.998

33.054 32.972

32.958

33.033

32.93333.006

32.995 32.916

32.90032.977

32.946 32.875

32.83932.925

32.904

32.824

32.799

32.895

32.850

32.757

32.741

32.854

32.749

32.725

32.686

32.75032.734
32.656

32.463

32.562 32.58032.467 32.499
32.585 32.592

32.529 32.542

32.551

32.567

32.568

32.649 32.659 32.581 32.600

32.678

32.697

32.617

32.625
32.707 32.72832.646

32.732

32.663 32.668

32.760

32.776

32.681

32.720 32.79832.700 32.706 32.72132.729

32.810

32.830 32.745

32.764

32.846

32.784

32.79632.861

32.887 32.814

32.873 32.826

32.80732.821

32.826 32.794

32.650

32.66232.675
32.657

32.665

32.633

32.82232.730

32.767 32.859

32.88832.784

32.768 32.898

32.836

32.749

32.715

32.779

32.658

32.618

32.695 32.695

32.630 32.604 32.640

32.738 32.656
32.738 32.74232.675 32.673

32.755 32.773

32.664 32.656

32.779 32.659
32.805 32.664

32.799

32.667

32.787 32.80032.655

32.68332.805

32.78232.801

32.804

32.824

32.80632.839

32.74332.733

32.837
32.713

32.696

32.832

32.758
32.66732.76632.

637

32.956

32.742

32.759

32.75232.730

32.823

32.818

32.778

32.804 32.84432.842

32.746 32.735

32.73432.729
32.757 32.757

32.763 32.951

32.692

32.759

32.752

32.747 32.752

32.658

32.77932.777

32.66232.65132.74532.652

32.66832.73532.747

32.69732.666

32.75732.724

32.65132.62632.69932.676
32.626

32.58332.654

32.696

32.616

32.622

32.705

32.70632.686

32.747 32.832

32.82032.732

32.778

32.847

32.839

32.815

32.87332.800

32.863

32.753

32.86032.851

32.855 32.902

32.787

32.864

32.849 32.762

32.844 32.834

32.755 32.711

32.825

32.772

32.697

32.683
32.768 32.73932.679 32.680

32.769 32.769

32.662

33.053

32.974

32.939

33.033

33.03032.951

32.959 33.036

32.98032.925

32.985

32.97932.92632.905

32.895

32.93132.87532.923 33.028

32.981

32.904 32.950

32.989

32.905 33.016

32.927 32.873

32.979 32.936

32.838

32.780

32.886

32.846
32.753 32.75032.838 32.838
32.763 32.73732.828 32.788

32.693

32.643

32.726

32.719

32.674 32.686

32.697 32.711

32.736 32.708

32.690

32.61632.76132.807
32.658

32.64032.76932.766
32.64732.60632.77332.746
32.66132.665

32.727

32.843

32.729

32.75432.73132.73932.742

32.943

32.963

32.796

32.841

32.755

32.730 32.68432.72532.727

32.680

Bin Postbox Postbox

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Grey Paving Slabs

Brindle Setts

Bin

Bin

Southbury Road (Tarmac)

St Andrews Road (Tarmac)

Genotin Road (Tarmac)

Tarmac

Buff Block Paving

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Setts

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

TactilesBuff Block Paving

TactilesTactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Tactiles

Block Paving

BT

IBIB

IB

IB

TFL

TFL

TFL

BT

BT

BT

BT

IB

IB

IB

IB

LP

1

2 3 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
13

14

15

SKANSKA DEPOT
WATER WORLD AND

AQUATIC GARDEN CENTREFO
R

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

AT
IO

N
 P

LE
AS

E 
R

EF
ER

 T
O

 D
R

AW
IN

G
 A

BO
VE

THAMES WATER
MAINTENANCE FACILITY

SKANSKA DEPOT
WATER WORLD AND

AQUATIC GARDEN CENTRE 15
FO

R
 C

O
N

TIN
U

ATIO
N

 PLEASE R
EFER

 TO
 D

R
AW

IN
G

 BELO
W

3.
0

LAND UPTAKE REQUIRED FROM DEPOT

PATH JOINS WITH EXISTING
MAINTENANCE PATH FOR THAMES

WATER

R=37

R=8

R=98

LC LC

LC

KEY
PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY 
RESURFACING

PROPOSED TEGULA BLOCKS AND EDGING  
HARVEST COLOUR

PROPOSED HOGGING CYCLEWAY

PROPOSED ASPHALT RAMP

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED GRANITE SETTS

PROPOSED ASPHALT FOOTWAY/ISLAND INFILL

PROPOSED CORDUROY PAVING
CHARCOAL GREY

PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, RED
        
PROPOSED TACTILE PAVING, BUFF

PROPOSED FULL HEIGHT PCC KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED PCC KERB

PROPOSED TRANSITION PCC KERB
PROPOSED PCC EDGING
PCC QUADRANT KERB R305
PCC QUADRANT KERB R455

 PROPOSED RESIN BOUND SURFACING

PROPOSED GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN

PROPOSED GROUND FILL WITH GRASS SEEDING

PROPOSED GROUND CUT

PROPOSED YELLOW ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD MARKINGS

EXISTING LAMP COLUMN TO REMAIN

PROPOSED LAMP COLUMN

PROPOSED BELISHA BEACON

PROPOSED SIGN FACE AND SIGN POST

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED FLECTABOLLARD

PROPOSED BENCH

PROPOSED CYCLE STAND

PROPOSED GROUND PLANTING

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

PROPOSED INFORMATION BOARD

PROPOSED BOULDER SEAT

PROPOSED GUARD RAIL

PROPOSED GREEN PALISADE FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK PARAPET FENCING

PROPOSED BLACK ESTATE FENCING

EXISTING GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY

SCHEME BOUNDARY

SP

FB

B

BB

LC

LC CS

PG

E
C#

This drawing is not to be used in whole or part other than for the intended
purpose and project as defined on this drawing. Refer to the contract for full
terms and conditions.

Drawing Status

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Rev

Project

Scale

Sheet
DO NOT SCALE

E   info@metisconsultants.co.uk

23 Sheen Road, Richmond

Metis Consultants Ltd

4th Floor, Spencer House

T  +44 (0)20 8948 0249

London TW9 1BN

REV REV. DATE PURPOSE OF REVISION DRAWN CHKD APPRVD

17 OF 17

1:200 @ A1

ENFIELD TOWN TO BROXBOURNE
WALKING AND CYCLING ROUTE

DETAILED DESIGN

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

FOR APPROVAL

19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-014 06
00 26/02/2020 RSA1 MP AG HM/LM

01 31/03/2020 FOR APPROVAL MP AG HM/LM

02 12/11/2021 FOR INFORMATION DD AG AG

03 10//2022 FOR APPROVAL DD AG AG
04 17/02/2023 FOR COMMENT DB AB DD

05 28/04/2023 FOR APPROVAL DB AB DD
AB DD06 21/07/2023 FOR APPROVAL AB

P
age 197



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

   PLANNING COMMITTEE Date: 19 September 2023 

   Report of 

  Director of Planning & 
Growth - Brett Leahy 

 Contact Officers: 

       Michael Kotoh-Mortty 
       Claire Williams 

Category 

Full Application 

   Ward 

   Southgate 

      Councillor Request 

      Cllr Elisa Morreale 

  LOCATION:  55 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1NR 

   APPLICATION NUMBER: 23/00770/FUL 

PROPOSAL: Redevelopment of site involving demolishment of existing bungalow 
and erection of 2-storey dwelling house with basement. 

 Applicant Name & Address: 

Mr Ismail Aydemir   
55 Eversley Park 
Road   London  
N21 1NR 

Agent Name & Address: 

Mr Murat Aydemir 
IntelliArch Ltd 

  47 Eversley Park Road 
  London  
  N21 1JJ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT
planning permission subject to conditions.

2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority
to agree the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the
‘Recommendation’ section of this report.

Page 199 Agenda Item 7



Ref: 23/00770/FUL LOCATION: 55 Eversley Park Road, London, N21 1NR,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Scale 1:1250 North

Page 200



1.0 Note for Members:    

1.1 Although an application of this scale and nature would normally be determined under 
delegated authority, the application has been reported to committee for determination 
at the request of Cllr Elisa Morreale due to the level of local interest.  

 

2.0 Executive Summary 

2.1 The applicant seeks planning permission to demolish the existing bungalow and erect 
a two storey 4bed 7person replacement dwelling with basement. 

2.2 The scheme is considered acceptable for the following reasons: 
 

1) The proposal would add a new family unit of accommodation to the Borough’s 
housing stock. 

2) The quality of accommodation that would be provided is of an acceptable 
standard.  

3) There is no identified adverse impact on neighbouring residential amenity. 
4) There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation. 
5) The reasons for the objection / concerns regarding the previous refusal 

22/02609/FUL which detailed a larger basement have been acceptably 
overcome with the revised submission which features a basement of a reduced 
scale. The proposed basement would not be visible from the street and the 
replacement two storey dwelling would assimilate into the existing character of 
the streetscene which features two storey dwellings within the setting. 
 
 

3.0 Recommendation 

3.1 That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning 
permission subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Three-year time limit 
2. In accordance with plans.  
3. External finishing materials as detailed within the approved drawings / application 

form.  
4. No additional fenestrations (all elevations) 
5. Groundwater flood risk assessment  
6. Flood management / evacuation plan 
7. Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 
8. Water consumption 
9. Energy statement 
10. Energy Performance Certificate 
11. Cycle parking 
12. Refuse 
13. Construction Management Plan 
14. Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM) 
15. Tree Protection 
16. Soft Landscaping 
17. Biodiversity enhancements 
18. Boundary treatment 
19. Hard Surfacing 
20. Removal of Permitted Development Rights 

• Article 3, Schedule 2, Part 1 Classes A, B, D, E, F, G and H 

Page 201



• Article 3, Schedule 2, Part 2, Class A 
 
 
3.2 That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to agree 

the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the ‘Recommendation’ 
section of this report. 

 
4.0 Site and Surroundings 

4.1 The application site comprises a bungalow along Eversley Park Road. The subject 
property is situated at the junction between Oakwood Crescent and Eversley Park 
Road. To the north of the site is 55A, a bungalow with a pitched roof and to the south 
of the site is No. 57, a two storey dwellinghouse with a front gable and hipped roof 
form. Within the front garden is hardstanding to accommodate the parking of cars. The 
land level at the application site is relatively flat with a minor recline towards the south. 
The adjoining property at no. 53 to the south sits on a slightly lower ground level when 
compared to the application site and the bungalow at no. 55A to the north sits on a 
slightly higher ground level than the application site. 

 
 
 
4.2  The property is not listed or within a Conservation Area.  
 

  
          Image 1: Front elevation of 55 Eversley Park Road, as outlined in red 

Page 202



 

 
Image 2: Aerial view of the site 

 
 
 
 
4.3 The streetscene features a mix of detached bungalows and two storey dwellings. The 

development pattern within the vicinity features a variety of build forms, scale and 
designs.  

 
 
 
5.0       Proposal  

5.1 The applicant seeks planning permission to demolish the existing 2bed 3person 
bungalow and replace it with a 4 bed 7person two storey detached dwelling that would 
feature brickwork to match the existing house. The house would measure 15 - 16m in 
depth at ground floor level and 11.5 – 12.5m at first floor level; 9m in width at ground 
floor level and 8m at first floor level. The dwelling would measure 9.24m in height and 
comprise a pitched roof form. At ground floor, the replacement dwelling would be built 
up to the shared boundary with No.53 and would feature a 1m inset at first floor. While 
maintaining a 1.5m separation to the side boundary with no. 55A to the north at both 
ground and first floor level.  

5.2  The dwelling would feature an integrated garage, alongside a 3.65m deep single storey 
rear projection (10.3m deep from the rear of the existing garage at the site and 7m 
deep beyond an alignment with the neighbouring rear projection at no. 53). A basement 
with front lightwells is proposed. The basement would measure 8m wide and a 
maximum depth of 8.2m and have a 2.5m floor to ceiling height. The basement would 
serve a play area and utility space. Solar panels are proposed to the south elevation 
of the main roof. 

5.3  The application also involves associated front, side and rear permeable block paving 
alongside landscaping, a 1.8m rear fence and a front vehicle charging point. The 
proposal would not involve any alterations to the existing crossover and the frontage 

Page 203



would be able to accommodate two car parking spaces as per the existing 
arrangement. 

 

Image 3: Proposed street elevation. 
 

 

5.4  The following amendments have been made to the scheme to overcome the previous 
refusal under application reference number 22/02609/FUL:  

• The previously proposed gable ends to the main roof have been replaced with a 
pitched roof which would appear more coherent on the streetscene. 

• The basement car park previously proposed at 117sqm that could accommodate up to 
4 car parking spaces alongside cycle parking has been scaled down to 57sqm to serve 
a play and utility area. 

• An enclosed garage is proposed to serve a single car parking space. 
 
 
6.0 Relevant Planning History  

Application Site   

6.1 23/01590/FUL - Redevelopment of site involving demolishment of existing bungalow 
and erection of 2-storey dwelling house with rear dormer and front and side rooflights 
and side roof solar panels. – pending consideration.  

The proposal removes the basement and introduces accommodation in the roof with 
front rooflights and a rear dormer.  

 

6.2  22/02609/FUL - Redevelopment of site involving demolition of existing bungalow and 
erection of a 2-storey dwelling house with basement: REFUSED on 07.10.2022 for 
the following reasons: 

i. The proposed scheme, due to its poor design at front and rear and due to the excessive 
height, scale, bulk and massing of the building, exacerbated by the incongruous 
basement storey garage and ramp and because of the top-heavy nature of the dual 

Page 204



gable ended roof form, would not fit in with or assimilate with the character and 
appearance of the houses on either side, rather it would appear as an overbearing 
form of development which would be detrimental to the character and appearance of 
the street scene in this location. As a result, it fails to comply with policy D4 of the 
London Plan (2021), with policies DMD 6, 8 and 37 of the Development Management 
Document (2014), with policy CP30 of the Core Strategy (2010) and with paragraphs 
130 and 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

ii. The proposed scheme would result in an unjustified overprovision of car parking 
spaces. As a result, it fails to comply with policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021) and 
with policy DMD 45 of the Development Management Document (2014). 

 
6.3 22/03838/PREAPP - Proposed household extensions: Pre-application advice given 

on 31.01.2023. 

 
 

7.0 Consultation 
 
7.1  Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees 

 
a) Internal  

 
Environmental Health - Conditions suggested for non-road machinery emissions 
control and construction management plan. 
 
SuDS – The developer must submit a site-specific groundwater FRA. A Flood 
Management / Evacuation Plan must also be provided.  
 
Officer comment – pre-commencement conditions will be attached to any permission 
to address the concerns. 
 
Traffic and Transportation - Insufficient information submitted. Cycle parking and 
construction management plan required for assessment. 
 
Highways - The applicant needs to provide a construction management plan and will 
need a heavy-duty crossover. 

 
 
7.2  Public 
 

Consultation letters dated 20.03.2023 were sent to four neighbouring and nearby 
properties. In response, two representations were received which in summary, raise 
the following points 
 

 
Summary of responses 

• The previous application was for a 3 bedroom house and the current one is 
for a 4 bedroom house. This would tower over the neighbouring bungalow. 

 

Page 205



Officers' response 

The scheme has been revised and has been informed by the concerns raised during 
public consultation, the previous refusal under 22/02609/FUL as well as the pre-
application advice under 22/03838/PREAPP.  

 
Summary of responses 

• The soil is clay, possible subsidence may result due to the basement proposed 
 
Officers' response 

Issues pertaining to the structural integrity of the proposal in view of concerns over 
subsidence are not material planning considerations but rather, one for Building 
Control under the building regulations. 

 
Summary of responses 

• The proposed basement would be unprecedented in the area. 
• The scheme is proposed to make a profit.  
• The proposal would detract from the area and set a precedent. 
• The proposal is too ambitious for the locality. 

 
Officers' response 

• The matters raised are assessed in the ‘Character and Appearance’ section 
of the report.  

• Property profit is not a material planning consideration.  

 
Summary of responses 
 
• Lighting and overshadowing impact to neighbouring conservatory. 
• Noise, vibration and dust impact emanating from building works. 
• The first floor extension and roof would have a shadowing impact on the 

neighbouring habitable rooms. 
• Overlooking impact to near neighbour. 
• The proposed basement is too close to the boundary. 
 
Officers' response 
 
The matters raised are assessed in relevant sections of the report.  
 

 

Page 206



 
 
 
 
 
 

8.0 Relevant Policies 
 
8.1 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the Committee 

have regard to the provisions of the development plan so far as material to the 
application: and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be made in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate  otherwise.  

 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 

8.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) introduces a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development. In this respect, sustainable development is identified as 
having three dimensions - an economic role, a social role and an environmental role. 
For decision taking, this presumption in favour of sustainable development means: 

 
a) an economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right 
places and at the right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity; 
and by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure;  

 
b) a social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring 
that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of 
present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe built 
environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and future 
needs and support communities' health, social and cultural well-being; and  

 
c) an environmental objective – to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, 
built and historic environment; including making effective use of land, helping to 
improve biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and 
pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate change, including moving to a low 
carbon economy.  

 
8.3 The NPPF recognises that planning law requires that applications for planning 

permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF does not change the statutory 
status of the development plan as the starting point for decision making. 

 
8.4 In relation to achieving appropriate densities Paragraph 124 of the NPPF notes that 

planning policies and decisions should support development that makes efficient use 
of land, whilst taking into account:  

 
a) the identified need for different types of housing and other forms of development, 
and the availability of land suitable for accommodating it;  

 
b) local market conditions and viability;  

 

Page 207



c) the availability and capacity of infrastructure and services – both existing and 
proposed – as well as their potential for further improvement and the scope to 
promote sustainable travel modes that limit future car use;  

 
d) the desirability of maintaining an area's prevailing character and setting (including 
residential gardens), or of promoting regeneration and change; and  

 
e) the importance of securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places.  

 
8.5  Paragraph 48 of the NPPF details when weight may be given to relevant emerging 

plans. This guidance states that the stage of preparation, the extent to which there 
are unresolved objections and the degree of consistency of relevant policies to the 
Framework are relevant. 
 
 

 The London Plan (2021) 
 
8.6 The London Plan is the overall strategic plan for London setting out an integrated 
 economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the development of 
 London for the next 20-25 years. The following policies of the London Plan are 
 considered particularly relevant: 
 

GG1 Building strong and inclusive communities 
 GG2 Making the best use of land 
 GG3 Creating a healthy city 
 GG5 Growing a good economy 
 GG6 Increasing efficiency and resilience 
 D1 London’s form, character and capacity for growth 
 D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach 
 D4 Delivering good design 
 D6 Housing quality and standards 
 D10 Basement development 

D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency 
 D12 Fire safety 
 D14 Noise 
 H1 Increasing housing supply 
 SI12 Flood risk management 
 T2 Healthy Streets 

T5 Cycling 
T6.1 Residential parking 

 
Local Plan - Overview  
 

8.7 Enfield's Local Plan comprises the Core Strategy, Development Management 
Document, Policies Map and various Area Action Plans as well as other supporting 
policy documents. Together with the London Plan, they form the statutory development 
plan for the Borough. Enfield's Local Plan sets out planning policies to steer 
development where they align with the NPPF and the London Plan 2021. Whilst many 
of the policies do align with the NPPF and the London Plan, it is noted that these 
documents do in places supersede the Local Plan in terms of some detail and  as 
such the proposal is reviewed against the most relevant and up-to-date policies within 
the Development Plan. 

Page 208



 
 
 

Core Strategy (2010) 
 
8.8 The Core Strategy was adopted in November 2010 and sets out a spatial planning 

framework for the development of the Borough through to 2025. The document 
provides the broad strategy for the scale and distribution of development and 
supporting infrastructure, with the intention of guiding patterns of development and 
ensuring development within the Borough is sustainable. The following is considered 
particularly relevant: 

 
       CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes  
       CP4 Housing quality 
       CP5 Housing types 
       CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists 
       CP28 Managing flood risk through development 
       CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment 
       CP32 Pollution 
       CP46 Infrastructure contributions 
 

Development Management Document (2014) 
 

8.9 The Council’s Development Management Document (DMD) provides further 
 detail and standard based policies by which planning applications should be 
 determined. Policies in the DMD support the delivery of the Core Strategy. 

The following local plan Development Management Document policies are 
considered particularly relevant: 

 

DMD3 Providing a mix of different sized homes 
DMD5 Residential conversions 
DMD6 Residential character 
DMD8 General standards for new residential development 
DMD9 Amenity space 
DMD11 Rear extensions 
DMD37 Achieving high quality and design-led development 
DMD38 Design process 
DMD45 Parking standards and layout 
DMD47 Access, new roads and servicing 
DMD51 Energy efficiency standards 
DMD56 Heating and cooling 
DMD58 Water efficiency 
DMD59 Avoiding and reducing flood risk 
DMD60 Assessing flood risk 
DMD 61 Managing surface water 
DMD 68 Noise 
DMD Appendix 7 London Plan parking and cycle standards  

8.10 Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG, 2018) 
Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS, 2015) 
London Plan Housing, Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016) 

Page 209



Enfield ‘Waste and Recycling Storage’ Planning Guidance (2019) 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
 
Enfield Local Plan (Reg 18) 2021 

 
8.11 The Reg 18 document sets out the Council’s preferred policy approach together with 

draft development proposals for several sites. It is Enfield’s Emerging Local Plan.  
 
8.12 As the emerging Local Plan progresses through the plan-making process, the draft 

policies within it will gain increasing weight, but at this stage it has relatively little weight 
in the decision-making process. 

 
8.13 Key local emerging policies from the plan are listed below: 

 
Policy DM SE2 – Sustainable design and construction  
Policy DMSE4 - Reducing energy demand 
Policy DMSE6 - Renewable energy development 
Policy DM SE7 – Climate change adaptation and managing heat risk 
Policy DM SE10 – Sustainable drainage systems 
 
Policy DM DE1 – Delivering a well-designed, high-quality and resilient 
environment 
Policy DM DE11 – Landscape design 
Policy DM DE13 – Housing standards and design  

 
 
9.0  Assessment  
 
9.1. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 seek to establish that planning decisions are taken in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Furthermore, 
paragraph 11 (c) of the NPPF goes on to state that development proposals that accord 
with the development plan should be approved without delay. 

 
9.2      The main issues arising from this proposal to consider are: 
 

1. Principle of development 
2. Character and appearance 
3. Impact upon the amenity of neighbours  
4. Quality of accommodation  
5. Parking and cycle parking 
6. Trees, access and landscaping 
7. Flood risk  

 
  Principle of development 
 
9.3  The NPPF and London Plan advise that local authorities should seek to deliver a wide 

choice of high-quality homes, widen opportunities for home ownership and create 
sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities. Policy CP 5 of the Core Strategy seeks 
to ensure that new developments offer a range of housing sizes to meet housing needs 
whilst ensuring that the quality and character of existing neighbourhoods is also 
respected. There is greatest need in the Borough for family sized housing with 3+ 
bedrooms, however the Borough requires housing of all sizes and an additional family 
dwellinghouse would add to the Borough’s housing stock and would contribute to the 
strategic objectives of the Borough.  

Page 210



 
9.4  It is recognised that the Council has failed the most recent Housing Delivery Test and 

therefore, residential development is subject to the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. The tilted balance therefore has to be applied in assessing and 
weighing up the benefits of the scheme and whether on balance the impacts of not 
granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole. 

9.5  Policy DMD4 sets out that proposals that result in the loss of existing residential units, 
particularly family homes, that can still be used, with or without adaptation, will only 
be permitted if there is no net loss of residential floorspace as a result of the 
redevelopment. The existing bungalow has a Gross Internal Area (GIA) of 82.39sqm. 
The proposed development would optimise the site through providing a two storey 4 
bed family residential unit and would result in a net gain of residential floor space of 
170.31sqm (gross internal area proposed is 255sqm) and therefore the proposal 
would be consistent with this policy. 

 
9.6  The proposed development is deemed acceptable in principle, subject to further 

planning considerations as outlined below. 
 
                                                                          
  Character and appearance 
 
9.7  Policy DMD6 of the DMD provides standards for new development with regard to scale 

and form of development, housing quality and density. Policy DMD8 provides general 
standards for new residential development and reiterates the requirement for a 
development to be of an appropriate scale, mass and bulk, provide high quality amenity 
space and provide access to parking and refuse areas. DMD37 encourages achieving 
a high quality and design led development, which is reiterated within policies D4 and 
D8 of the London Plan (2021). 

 
9.8   The streetscene features a mix of detached bungalows and two storey dwellings. The 

development pattern within the vicinity features a variety of build forms, scale and 
designs.  

 
9.9 The building lines of the dwelling would broadly match that of the existing dwelling 

and the design and form of the front elevation would be similar to the existing 
dwelling. The roof would have a similar profile as the original dwelling and the 
increase in height would not be excessive and is considered acceptable. The 
proposed ridge would be in line with no.53 and set 2.3m above No.55A. The new roof 
would not disrupt the building heights within the street scene; it would provide an 
appropriate transition between the two-storey dwelling at No.53  and the bungalow at 
No. 55A. Whist the building would be approximately 3m deeper than the existing 
house; it would not disrupt the rhythm of the neighbouring dwellings or have an 
overbearing impact on the street scene, given that, the proposed replacement 
dwelling would largely maintain a general alignment of front and rear building lines in 
view of the existing footprints of both adjoining neighbouring properties at nos. 53 
and 55A respectively. 

 
9.10 Although the proposed rear projection would exceed 3m, the proposed single storey 

rear projection from the original rear elevation at 3.65m deep (10.3m deep from the 
rear of the existing garage) would secure a common alignment with the neighbouring 

Page 211



bungalow at no. 55A and would accord with policy DMD11. Furthermore no. 53 has a 
single storey outbuilding along the boundary with the site which the rear elevation of 
the new dwelling would not protrude beyond. The first-floor rear extension would 
extend beyond an alignment of the rear wall at no. 53 by 3.22m, however, the first 
floor would be in line with the main rear elevation of no. 55A thus respecting building 
lines within the vicinity. 

 
9.11 The proposed basement would sit directly beneath the replacement dwelling.  The 

submitted Planning Statement cites some examples of basements within the area 
along Eversley Crescent, Cadogan Gardens and Green Dragon Lane. The proposed 
basement which would serve as an ancillary play space that would not be visible 
from the street and is not considered to detract from the existing development pattern 
within the area and the proposal would accord with policy DMD6.  
 

9.12 Having consideration to the fact that the recently refused basement under 
22/02609/FUL featured a floorspace of 117sqm to accommodate up to four cars 
alongside a front basement access gate that would have appeared prominent at the 
front elevation of the property, the current revised basement space to 57sqm to serve 
as utility and play space  which would feature front lightwells that would not appear 
conspicuous on the streetscene is considered acceptable. This revision addresses 
the earlier concerns that were raised on the recent refusal relating to the visual 
impact of the proposal on the streetscene. 
 

9.13 The proposed solar panels on the south roof slope would not be dominant on the 
streetscene in view of policy DMD6, DMD8 and DMD37 and would be a welcome 
sustainability feature of the new dwelling. In addition, the proposed 1.8m rear close 
boarded timber fence as well as the front vehicle charging point would not 
significantly alter the character of the streetscene at this location. The application 
proposes facing brickwork to match existing, grey natural slate roofing tiles, grey 
powder coated aluminium fenestrations, and grey permeable block paving at the 
front, side and rear of the replacement dwelling. The proposed materials would 
appear coherent at the site and it would enable the proposal to seamlessly assimilate 
into the character of the streetscene. 
 

9.14 Following revisions it is considered that the approved scheme would not harm the 
character and appearance of the street scene. The scheme has been sensitively 
designed to enhance the character and appearance of the area and be sympathetic 
in all aspects of siting, scale, form and design. Officers recommend that permitted 
development rights are removed from the new dwelling to ensure that the accepted 
form of the dwelling is not altered without written permission from the Council, also 
having regard to the amenity of neighbours and the character of the street. 

 

 Impact upon the amenity of neighbours 

9.15 The proposed replacement dwelling would largely maintain a general alignment of front 
and rear building lines in view of the existing footprints of both adjoining neighbouring 
properties at nos. 53 and 55A. The proposal is not considered to result in any 
significant loss of light or overshadowing impact to the near neighbours. The 
replacement dwelling would retain at least 1m insets to both side boundaries at first 
floor level and together with the pitched roof, this element of the proposal would lessen 
the amenity impacts to both adjoining neighbours, thereby according with policies 
DMD6, DMD8 and DMD14. 

Page 212



9.16 This site context would realise a replacement dwelling that would maintain a general 
alignment with the ridge height of the adjoining two storey dwelling at no. 53 to the 
south, whereas the bungalow at no. 55A to the north which sits on a slightly higher 
ground level than the application site would retain a ridge height that would be some 
2.3m lower than that of the proposed two storey replacement dwelling. 
 

9.17 The proposed ground and first floor rear elements of the scheme would not breach the 
30 or 45 degree rule to both neighbouring properties (with the exception of the 45 
degree line at No.53). With regard to No. 53, although there would be an intrusion into 
the 45 degree line, the window closest to the application site serves a utility room, a 
non-habitable room. The ground floor would be sited up to the shared boundary 
however would only project 3.65m beyond that of the rear elevation of the existing 
house which is not excessive in depth and would also comprise a flat roof. Furthermore 
no. 53 has a single storey outbuilding along the boundary with the application site and 
the site is located to the south of the application which would further reduce any undue 
impact on this neighbour in terms of appearing overbearing and loss of light. 
 

9.18 The replacement dwelling would retain some 40m separation to the rear façade of the 
neighbouring properties along Eversley Close and this would accord with policy 
DMD10. 
 

9.19 The submitted plans indicate that the flank windows would be finished in obscure 
glazing which would mitigate any impacts of overlooking to the neighbouring 
properties. It is also noted that the existing property to be replaced has flank windows 
and, in this regard, the proposal would not conflict with policy DMD10. A condition 
would be attached to any permission to ensure the first floor level side windows are 
obscure glazed. It is noted that the south facing flank elevation windows at no. 55A to 
the north could realise a shadowing impact during some part of the day given the north 
orientation in relation to the application property, however, officers consider that this 
impact partly exists by virtue of the ridge height of the existing bungalow to be 
demolished and therefore, the envisaged shadowing impact to no. 55A as a result of 
the additional floor proposed would not exacerbate this amenity impact to suggest a 
reason for refusal. Furthermore, the side windows are secondary windows providing 
additional light to primary windows located to the front and rear of the neighbouring 
dwelling.  

  

  Unit size and standard of accommodation 
 
9.20 Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) Table 3.1 refers to the Technical Housing 

Standards - nationally described space standards, which stipulates the minimum 
space  standards for new development. The proposed dwelling would be expected to 
meet and where possible exceed these minimum standards and those contained within 
the Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance SPG (March 2016). 

 
   

Unit Dwelling type 
(bedroom 
(b)/persons-
bedspaces (p)) 

Required GIA 
(sq.m) in London 
Plan 

Proposed GIA 
(sq,m) 

Replacement 
dwelling 

4b7p 121 252.7 

 

Page 213



 
9.21 The submitted plans indicate that the gross internal area of the proposed replacement 

dwelling would be 252.7sqm. This exceeds the minimum London Plan floorspace 
standard of 121sqm for a 4b7p dwelling in line with policy D6 of the London Plan 
(2021), CP4 of the Core Strategy and the Technical Housing Standards – Nationally 
Described Space Standard (March 2015). It should also be noted that any area with a 
headroom of less than 1.5 metres is not counted within the Gross Internal Area unless 
used solely for storage. A section drawing has been provided on the submitted plans 
which shows the internal height of the replacement dwelling would range from 2.5m - 
2.6m on all three floors including the basement with a front lightwell and therefore the  
stated head heights would accord with the minimum requirement of 2.3m in line with 
policy D6. The submission shows that there would be reasonable space to stand in the 
main areas of the new dwelling and the habitable rooms would gain sufficient natural 
lighting and ventilation. The proposal would therefore realise good quality 
accommodation that would contribute towards the Council’s housing stock. 

  
  Amenity space 
 
9.22  DMD9 of the Development Management Document seeks to ensure that new 

development retains sufficient amenity space. The submitted floorplans indicate that 
the proposed amenity space for the replacement dwelling would be 134.5sqm which 
would accord with the minimum requirements under policy DMD9 of the DMD. 

 

 Transportation and parking 

9.23 The site is located within a public transport accessibility level of 1b (very poor) and the 
site is not located within a CPZ. The site has hardstanding to park at least two cars 
within the front garden and this parking area will be retained. The proposed garage 
measuring 2.5m in width and 5m in depth would fall short of the standard size for 
garages which is 3m x 7m. However two parking spaces is sufficient and is broadly in 
line with policy requirements for a 4 bed house which is 1.5 parking space.  

9.24  Limited information on the proposed cycle parking has been provided. To encourage 
the use of sustainable transport modes, a condition would be required for further details 
on the proposed cycle parking. Further details on refuse and recycling will also be 
required.  

9.25  To protect the highway and highway users a condition requiring the submission of a 
construction management plan is suggested and application for a heavy-duty 
crossover will be required as part of this.  

 

Impact on trees at the site and Landscaping  

9.26    There are trees located on the site and on the adjoining neighbouring curtilages which 
are not protected by virtue of a Tree Protection Orders (TPOs). The submitted Tree 
Survey indicates that 1 rear garden tree (T4) and 1 rear garden mixed shrub (G3) 
would be removed to facilitate the proposal and that the proposed demolition would 
not impact the root protection areas of the trees listed in the report. Trees (T1) and 
(T5) on third party land at no. 53 would not be significantly affected by the proposal 
and the Tree Survey recommends some pruning to the overhang of tree (T5) along the 
boundary with no. 53. A landscaping and biodiversity enhancement conditions are 
suggested to enhance the landscaping on the site and add to the local character, 

Page 214



benefit biodiversity, help mitigate the impacts of climate change and reduce water run-
off. This aspect of the proposal would accord with policies DMD80 and DMD81. 

 
 Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 
 
9.27  The application site is not located within a groundwater flood risk area, however, the 

proposal includes a basement level with useable habitable space and therefore a 
groundwater flood risk assessment and details of a flood management / evacuation 
plan will be secured through a condition.  

 
9.28 A green roof is proposed to the single storey rear projection, together with grey 

permeable block paving to the front, side and rear of the proposed replacement 
dwelling.  The Council’s DMD Policy, sets out that all minor developments must 
achieve as close to Greenfield runoff rates for 1 in 1 year and 1 in 100 year (plus 
climate change) year events and maximise the use of SuDS in accordance to the 
London Plan Drainage Hierarchy and the principles of a SuDS Management Train. A 
condition will be attached to any permission to maximise SuDS on the site.  

 
Energy and Sustainability 

 

9.29  London Plan Policy SI states that development proposals should make the fullest 
contribution to minimising carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions in accordance with the 
following energy hierarchy: 

 
1. Be Lean: use less energy; 
2. Be Clean: supply energy efficiency; and 
3. Be Green: use renewable energy. 
 
9.30 Enfield’s DMD policy 49 requires the highest sustainable design and construction 

standards, having regard to technical feasibility and economic viability. These policies 
require new developments to address the causes and impacts of climate change by 
minimising energy use, supplying energy efficiently and using energy generated from 
renewable sources (Core Strategy Policy 20 and DMD51). Solar panels are currently 
proposed to be sited on the new roof. To ensure that a sustainable new house is 
achieved on the site an energy statement condition would be attached to any planning 
permission.  

 
 
   
10.0 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  
 
10.1  The proposed development would provide a replacement residential dwelling and 

would therefore be liable to pay CIL at borough and mayoral levels. 

Mayoral CIL 
 
10.2 Mayoral CIL is collected by the Council on behalf of the Mayor of London. The 

amount that is sought for the scheme is calculated on the net increase of gross 
internal floor area multiplied by an Outer London weighting (increased to £60per sqm 
as of 1st April 2019). 

 

Page 215



 Enfield CIL 
 
10.3  The Council introduced its own CIL on 1st April 2016. Enfield has identified three 

residential charging zones, and the site falls within the higher rate charging zone 
(£120/sqm) which equates to a CIL amount of approximately £30,324.00. 
 
 

 
11.0  Public Sector Equalities Duty 
 
11.1 In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to the 

need to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. Section 149 of the Act requires public authorities 
to have due regard to several equality considerations when exercising their functions 
including decision making on planning applications. These considerations include: 
Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act; Advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic (explained in detail below) and persons who 
do not share it; Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
11.2 The main objective of the duty has been to ensure public policies and programmes are 

implemented fairly, in particular with regard to their impact on the protected 
characteristics identified above. In making this recommendation, due regard has been 
given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant protected characteristics (age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage / civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation). 

 
11.3 When determining the planning application (and thereby accounting for the 

representations resulting from public consultation), the Council has considered the 
potential effects of the proposed development on those with protected characteristics 
as defined under the Equality Act 2010. In doing this, the Council has had due regard 
to equality considerations and attribute appropriate weight to such considerations. In 
providing the recommendation to Members that planning consent should be granted, 
officers have considered equalities impacts in the balance, alongside the benefits 
arising from the proposed development. The Council has also considered appropriate 
mitigation to minimise the potential effects of the proposed development on those with 
protected characteristics.   

 
11.4 There are no statutory or regulatory requirements for the form or content of an 

equalities assessment. The scale and significance of such impacts cannot always be 
quantified, and it is common to address this through descriptive analysis of impacts 
and identifying whether such impacts are adverse or beneficial. The key elements of 
the Proposed Development which have an impact that could result in an equalities 
effect include the design and physical characteristics of the proposals subject to the 
planning application.  Officers do not consider there would be a disproportionate 
equalities effect.  

 
11.5 In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a 

way which is incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention 
on Human Rights. The human rights impact has been considered, with particular 
reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of property), Article 8 (Right to 
respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) of the 
Convention.  

 

Page 216



11.6 The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions 
and enforce laws as deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is 
considered appropriate in upholding the council's adopted and emerging policies and 
is not outweighed by any engaged rights.  

  
 
12.0 Conclusion  
 
12.1 Having regard to the assessment in this report, the development would provide a larger 

replacement family dwelling at the site. This would contribute towards the Borough’s 
strategic objectives in terms of delivering new homes. The quality of accommodation 
that the proposed replacement dwelling would provide is acceptable, based on the 
housing quality standards outlined in The London Plan (2021). The development would 
not result in in harm to the amenity and living conditions of neighbours or the wider 
setting. 

 
12.2 It is acknowledged that the consideration of this report has involved some balanced 

judgements, for example in relation to the scale of the development including the 
basement. Yet, it is considered that the form, design and appearance of development 
would not be significantly dissimilar to the neighbouring two storey dwellings and thus 
the proposed scheme would acceptably relate with the character of the surrounding 
area. 

 
12.3 The above assessment against the development plan policies has produced the 

following conclusion: 
 

- The proposal would provide a larger replacement dwelling with an acceptable 
standard of accommodation that would contribute to the housing stock in the 
borough. 

 
- The proposed development is considered appropriate in form and design and 

would not result in detrimental harm to the character and appearance of the 
setting. 

 
- The proposal, by virtue of its form and small scale, would not significantly harm 

the amenity of occupying and neighbouring residents. 
 

- There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation. 
 

- The reasons for the objections to the initial planning application have been 
acceptably overcome by the revised scheme. 

 
12.4 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions and the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development, it is considered that the benefits 
of the development would outweigh any identified impacts. When assessed against 
the suite of relevant planning policies, it is considered that planning permission 
should be granted subject to conditions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 217



450mm SQUARE SLIDE OUT
COVER AS SAINT GOBAIN
'INTER-AX'

COVER TO BE 'HOWE GREEN'
AIR AND WATER TIGHT AS 7500
SERIES.

LOCATION FINISH DUTY

EXTERNAL PAVED

COVER TYPE

FACTA B 450mm SQUARE RECESSED
COVER AS SAINT GOBAIN
STEELWAY 'BRIPAVE' RANGE

EXTERNAL BLACKTOP D400

INTERNAL TILED/VINYL FACTA B

1. ALL SIZES OF CLEAR OPENINGS SHOULD BE AT LEAST SIZE OF

INSPECTION CHAMBER FOR 300Ø PPACs AND 450Ø PPICs.

2. FOR LARGER CONCRETE AND BRICK MANHOLE CHAMBERS MIN
SIZE SHOULD BE 600 x 600 - REFER TO MH DATA BOX ON PROJECT
DRAWINGS

BASE = -0.6m
BELOW

OUTLET IL:

OUTLET

INLET

COVER LEVEL:

FLEXIBLE
CONNECTIONS AS
CLOSE TO CONCRETE
AS PRACTIBLE.

SEE TABLE FOR MANHOLE
COVER, SIZE AND DUTY
DETAILS

DETAIL No. 5 - POLYPROPYLENE
STORM WATER CATCHPIT (PP SW CP)

MAKE GOOD ALL HOLES
AND JOINTS WITH
HYDROPHILIC SEALANT.

OUTLET LEVEL TO BE 50mm
BELOW THE INLET AND
BELOW WATER LEVEL.

DIPPED ACCESS
BEND

GENERAL SIZING OF CHAMBER (SEE PROJECT
DRAWINGS FOR ACTUAL SIZES)

DEPTH INT SIZE

< 1.0m 750Ø

1.0 - 1.5m 900Ø
> 1.5m USE PCC SW CP DETAIL

TWIN WALL PLASTIC PIPE AS
POLYPIPE OR EQUAL APPROVED
PRODUCTS TO BE CUT TO SUIT WITH
PIPE HOLES DRILLED TO SUIT LEVELS
REQUIRED WITH PIPE CAST AND
SURROUNDED IN MIN 150mm THICK
ST2 CONCRETE UPON A 20Omm
THICK ST2 CONCRETE BASE - SEE
ABOVE AND PROJECT DRAWINGS
FOR SIZES

NOTES:
1. 25mm EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL TO
FULL AREA OF CONCRETE BED & SURROUND
AT ALL PIPE JOINTS

2. FINAL FORMATION TO BE DISHED TO GIVE
FULL DEPTH OF CONCRETE BED AROUND PIPE
COLLAR.

3. WHEN USING CONCRETE REFER TO THE
SOIL REPORT FOR SULPHATE CONTENT.

4. ALL TRENCH FILL MATERIAL MUST BE
INERT.

5. CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY GRADING
CERTIFICATES FOR ALL GRANULAR MATERIAL
TO PROJECT MANAGER FOR APPROVAL.

NOMINAL MAXIMUM AGGREGATE SIZE OF
STONE (mm) TO BS 882 GRADING

PIPE BORE
(mm)

100

150

AGGREGATE
TYPE

SINGLE SIZE
GRADED

SINGLE SIZE
GRADED

GRANULAR
BEDDING

CLASS 'B' or 'S'

10
N/A

10 or 14
5 - 14

15
0

Y

DN

Bc

Bd

100mm THICK GRADE GEN1
MASS CONCRETE TOPPING TO
BEDDING MATERIAL.

15
0

Y

Bd

PIPE BEDDING GRANULAR
MATERIAL  - SEE TABLE

BACKFILL WITH APPROVED AS
DUG SELECTED MATERIAL, WELL
COMPACTED IN NO LESS THAN
200mm THICK LAYERS - REMOVE
ALL VEGETATION AND STONES
AND DEBRIS.

25mm EXPANSION JOINT
MATERIAL TO FULL AREA OF
CONCRETE BED & SURROUND
AT ALL PIPE JOINTS

FINAL FORMATION TO BE
DISHED TO GIVE FULL DEPTH
OF CONCRETE BED AROUND
PIPE COLLAR

DIMENSION 'Y'
FOR UNIFORM

SOILS
(mm)

ASSUMED MAX.
PERMISSIBLE

TRENCH WIDTH
Bd (mm)

ASSUMED
EXTERNAL

DIA
Bc (mm)

NOMINAL
INTERNAL DIA

DN (mm)

150 600

 550

150

100 150

 190

 130

DETAIL No. 2 - EXTERNAL DRAINAGE
FLEXIBLE PIPE BEDDING DETAILS -

PLASTIC, DUCTILE IRON

CLASS A BEDDING DETAIL (CONCRETE
BED & SURROUND - WHERE COVER LESS

THAN 0.9m - BEDDING FACTOR = 4.5)

CLASS S BEDDING DETAIL (GRANULAR
BED & SURROUND - WHERE GREATER
THAN 0.9m - BEDDING FACTOR = 2.5)

DN

Bc

22
5

PLASTICS CHAMBER BASE AS
HEPWORTH WAVIN SYSTEMS
UNIVERSAL PPIC WITH CODES TO SUIT
INLETS AND SIZES ALL MANUFACTURED
TO BS 7158 WITH BRANCHES AT HALF
CHANNEL LEVEL

150mm ST2 CONCRETE CAST
IN SITU AROUND CHAMBER

CONCRETE TO BE
TO ST2 MIN.

150mm ST2
CONCRETE BASE

SEE COVER TYPE
TABLE ABOVE

SEAT FRAME UPON COVER

SLAB/BRICK USING ONLY
RESIN CEMENT

CHAMBER SECTION

DETAIL No. 4 - WATER BUTT AND
EXTERNAL RAINWATER PIPE (RWP)

FOUNDATION ARRANGMENTS -
REFER STRUCTURAL SERIES OF
DRAWINGS

DRAIN INVERT LEVEL min
0.400m BELOW EXTERNAL GROUND
LEVEL

100mm SWD TO RUN IN CLASS S
BED AS DETAIL No. 4

RWP INSTALLATION BY OTHERS.
WHERE REQUIRED ADAPTOR
COUPLINGS TO BE USED. PIPE TO HAVE
ACCESS DOOR ON BOTTOM LENGTH.

100mmBEND WITH HEEL
REST BEDDED AND
HAUNCHED ON 100mm
THICK GEN1 CONCRETE.

FFL

WATER BUTT AS FLOPLAST LIMITED
ECOFLO WATER STORAGE SYSTEM
WB210 - 210L STANDARD WATER BUTT
STAND ST200

PROVIDE ACCESS ON
BOTTOM LENGTH OF
PIPE

PIPE SUPPORT TO BE STRICTLY TO
MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS

PROPRIETARY PIPE ADAPTOR
AT BASE FROM 100mm TO
RAINWATER DOWNPIPE
SIZE.

DETAIL No. 6

450Ø POLYPROPYLENE INSPECTION
CHAMBER (PPIC)

DETAIL No. 1 - INTERNAL DRAIN POINT - NOT
OVER BASEMENT

100mm DRAIN POINT FINISHES 50mm ABOVE
SSL WITH PROPRIETARY CAP AND EXTENDED

AS SOIL VENT PIPE/STUB STACK BY M & E
CONTRACTOR.

100mm TELESCOPIC HEEL REST
BEDDED AND HAUNCHED ON
150mm THICK GEN1 CONCRETE

185mm FLOOR MAKE UP TO
ARCHITECTS DETAILS

PROVIDE FLEXIBLE
CONNECTIONS AT 150mm
AND 750mm FROM FACE
OF GROUND BEAM EDGE.

PROVIDE FLEXIBLE CONNECTIONS AT
150mm AND 750mm FROM FACE OF
GROUND BEAM EDGE.

GROUND BEAM TO BE DETAILED
BY STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
DRAWINGS.

110mm PVCu FOUL WATER DRAIN UNDER
BUILDING AT 1:50 IN CONC BED & HAUNCH.

LINTOLS AS STRUCTURAL SERIES
DRAWINGS

DRAIN PIPE TO HAVE 25mm THICK COMPRESSIBLE
BOARDS AS FLEXCELL TO SEAL THE HOLE TO
PREVENT VERMIN ENTRY AND WATERPROOFED TO
THE ARCHITECTS SPECIFICATION WITH  HOLE
THROUGH BOARD SEALED WITH COMPRESSSIBLE
FILLER AROUND THE PIPE. PIPE SUPPORTED EITHER
SIDE OF HOLE THROUGH FOUNDATION.

PROVIDE 25mm THICK
COMPRESSIBLE BOARDS AT ALL PIPE
JOINTS WHERE HAUNCHED IN
CONCRETE.

DETAIL No. 3 - DRAINAGE PASSING THROUGH MASS
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

100

CONCRETE LINTOLS FOR BOTH
INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SKINS TO BE
DESIGNED BY THE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEER.

FILL ANNULUS OF PIPE THROUGH
OPENING WITH COMPRESSIBLE
MATERIAL AND VERMIN &
WATERPRROOF TO ARCHITECTS
DETAILS.

PROVIDE MIN 50mm ABOVE PIPE
AND 100mm BELOW PIPE AND
TO SIDES OF PIPE - HOLE TO BE
AGREED WITH STRUCTURAL
ENGINEER.

MASS CONCRETE FOOTING BY
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

100

WHERE HOLE IN MASS CONCRETE
IS LOWER, ANY FOUNDATION
THICKENING TO BE AS AGREED
WITH STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

CONCRETE LINTOLS FOR BOTH
INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SKINS TO BE
DESIGNED BY THE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEER.

FILL ANNULUS OF PIPE THROUGH
OPENING WITH COMPRESSIBLE
MATERIAL AND VERMIN &
WATERPRROOF TO ARCHITECTS
DETAILS.

100

CONCRETE LINTOLS FOR BOTH
INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SKINS TO BE
DESIGNED BY THE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEER.

FILL ANNULUS OF PIPE THROUGH
OPENING WITH COMPRESSIBLE
MATERIAL AND VERMIN &
WATERPRROOF TO ARCHITECTS
DETAILS.

PROVIDE MIN 50mm ABOVE PIPE
AND 100mm BELOW PIPE AND
TO SIDES OF PIPE - HOLE TO BE
AGREED WITH STRUCTURAL
ENGINEER.

GROUND BEAM TO STRUCT
ENG DETAILS

GROUND LEVEL

PROPRIETARY ADAPTOR
FROM FROM PERFORATED
TO SOLID WALL PIPE

100Ø SWD TO BE PROTECTED IN
150mm THICK ST4 CONCRETE
SURROUND BENEATH EDGE
RESTRAINT.

DETAIL No. 7 - PERMEABLE DRIVEWAY
CONSTRUCTION WITH UNDERDRAINS (UD)

380mm MIN THICK SIZE 10-63mm
CLEAN RAILWAY BALLAST CLINKER/CRUSHED

GRAVEL/CRUSHED ROCK TO BS EN 13242 WITH
6F5 CAPPING LAYER BENEATH WHERE
REQUIRED FOR CBR VALUE OR INCREASE STONE
DEPTH TO 450mm - REFER MAIN GAs FOR
ACTUAL LEVELS WHERE STONE IS CRITICAL FOR
SuDS FEATURE.

GEOTEXTILE AS
GEOTEX 225 FABRIC.

UNDERDRAIN - TWIN RUNS OF
AQUADRAIN 100 BY ALDERBURGH
ESS ON END WRAPPED IN GEOTEX
225 FLEECE.
DENOTED AS
ON DRAWING 100

IMPORTANT NOTE - MAKE
UP DEPTHS ARE SUBJECT
TO CBR TESTS

BODPAVE 85 PERMEABLE
SURFACING SYSTEM.

50mm THICK 5mm STONE
REGULATING BEDDING LAYER
LAID UPON GEOTEXTILE AS 4mm
TO 15mm (BS EN 13242)

EDGE RESTRAINT BY
OTHERS

300mm DEEP GEOCELLULAR HEAVY
DUTY STORAGE STRUCTURE AS
WAVIN OR EQUAL APPROVED
PRODUCT.

This is drawing is copyright and remains in the ownership of Simon Dent Associates
(SDA)

This drawing should be read in conjuncIon with the design team's relevant
documents,  drawings & details.

ExisIng public & private uIlity services and drainage locaIons shown have been
derived from non-intrusive survey techniques. Their locaIon is not accurate and the
contractor must saIsfy himself using open excavaIon where the locaIon of such
plant and apparatus is criIcal in construcIon.

If the contractor has constructed from this drawing without necessary approvals from
Local Planning AuthoriIes, Building Control, Sewerage Undertakers, Environment
Agency etc then any aborIve work shall be at his own financial risk and not the
responsibility of SDA.

If the contractor has constructed from this drawing whilst the drawing remains
'PRELIMINARY status, then any aborIve work shall be at his own financial risk and not
the responsibility of SDA.

The contractor should NOT construct any works should there be any doubt with
informaIon shown from any of the source. ALWAYS USE GIVEN DIMENSIONS ONLY.
ALWAYS ASK IF IN DOUBT.

ALWAYS PRINT THIS DRAWING IN COLOUR

P1 PRELIMINARY ISSUE 08/03/23 SAD

200 P1
A1 - 1:10

A3 - 1:20

Civil - Infrastructure - SuDS - Flood Risk - Drainage -  Rainwater  - Sanita�on - Public Health

Consulting Engineers

Shoreham by Sea Office

simondent@live.co.uk
0754 658 3150

Gosport Office

Rev

Project no Scales Drawing no Rev

Descrip�on Date Chkd

1792

PLANNING

Project

Drawing �tle

Drawing status

Client Mr Ismail Aydemir

55 Eversley Park Road London N21 1NR

Drainage details sheet

P
age 218



Existing Front Elevation

(East Elevation)

Existing Rear Elevation

(West Elevation)

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Existing Side Elevation

(South Elevation)

Existing Side Elevation

(North Elevation)

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

1486-30

Existing Elevations

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

14th July 2022

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 219

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Living Room

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Hall

WC

Bathroom

Kitchen

Garage

S

S

S

Existing Ground Floor Plan

82m²

No.53 No.55a

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

1486-10

Existing Ground Floor Plan

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

14th July 2022

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 220

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Flat Roof

Existing Roof Plan

No.53

No.55a

Flat Roof

Flat Roof

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

1486-20

Existing Roof Plan

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

14th July 2022

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 221

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



0 5 10m 15 20m 25 30m

Scale: 1:1250

50m40m

0 5m 10m 15m 20m 25m

Scale: 1:500

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

1486-00

Site Plan

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

14th July 2022

1:500 & 1: 1250 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 222

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



 
 
 
 
 
 

Plant Schedule 
 
for 
 
 
55 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1NR 
 
 
 
 
 
19th July 2022 
 
 
Ref no: 1486-ps 
 

P
age 223



 2 

Trees No Height at least Girth  Pot Size Root 
Existing trees to be retained      

 
Shrubs No Height/Spread Density Pot Size Root 
Citus x corbariensis 4 450-600mm 2/m² 5l CG 
Euonymus Emerald Gaiety 10 450-600mm 5/m² 3l CG 
Hebe rakiensis 2 450-600mm 5/m² 3l CG 
Juniperus Sabina Tamariscifolia 8 450-600mm 5/m² 5l CG 
Phormium Duet 2 450-600mm 2/m² 3l CG 
Pinus mugo  1 450-600mm 2/m² 5l CG 
Pinus mugo pumilio 2 450-600mm 2/m² 3l CG 
Rosmarinus prostratus 2 450-600mm 2/m² 5l CG 

 
 

Climbers No Height/Spread Density Pot Size Root 
Parthenocissus tricuspidata 2 900-1200mm  5l CG 
      

 
Herbaceous No Height/Spread Density Pot Size Root 
Anemone honorine jobert 4  8/m² 2l  
Alchemilla molis 2  8/m² 2l  
Asplenium scolopendrium 4  8/m² 2l  
Blechnum spicant 6  8/m² 2l  
Carex bowles golden 1  5/m² 2l  
Heuchera greenfich 6  8/m² 2l  
Iris sibirica white swirl 4  8/m² 2l  
Libertia grandiflora 2  8/m² 2l  
Liriope muscari big blue 4  8/m² 2l  
Luzula nivea 1  5/m² 2l  
Miscanthus Yukushima dwarf 2  5/m² 2l  
Phlomis russelliana 2  5/m² 2l  
Polystichum braunii 2  8/m² 2l  

 

P
age 224



Proposed Basement Floor Plan

54.7m²

Ancillary /

Play Area

34.7m²

A A

B
B

FFL

45.693

Plant / Utility

11.1m²

Lightwell

cylinder

Heat

Recovery

Manifold

Battery for

PV

Softner

CCU

CCTV

Entertainment

L C

FCU

WC / Shower

5.4m²

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1486-110

Proposed Basement Floor Plan

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 225

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Study

16m²

Hall

Living Room

Kitchen /

Dining

73m²

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

124m²

No.53 No.55a

WC

2.7m²

Outline of Existing Property

O
u
t
l
i
n
e
 
o
f
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
P

r
o
p
e
r
t
y

O
b
s
c
u
r
e
d

O
b
s
c
u
r
e
d

A A

B
B

FFL

48.443

Car Charging

Garage

12.2m²

Glass walk on

Lightwell

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1486-120

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 226

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Proposed Side Elevation

(North Elevation)

Obscured

Obscured Obscured

Obscured

Ground Floor

Basement Floor

48.443

53.913

51.293

45.693

57.38

Lightwell

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1289-230

Proposed Side Elevation (North)

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 227

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Proposed Section A-A

Ground Floor

Basement Floor

48.443

53.913

51.293

45.693

57.38

Study Hall

Master Bedroom En-suite

Garage

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1289-240

Proposed Section A-A

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

15th December 2022

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 228

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



The permeable paving surface works by allowing
water to soak through the surface into the ground
below via open voids across the surface or and
around the edges as it is constructed over a
permeable sub-base system.

50 to 80mm permeable block paving

200mm open grated aggregate sub-base

Permeable fabric - geotextile

50mm laying course

Soil

0

Scale: 1:20

1m500 Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

1486-500

Proposed SUDS Paving

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

14th July 2022

1:20 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 229

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Proposed Side Elevation

(South Elevation)

Obscured

solar panels

Ground Floor

Basement Floor

48.443

53.913

51.293

45.693

57.38

Lightwell

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1289-220

Proposed Side Elevation (South)

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 230

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Master Bedroom

16m²

Bathroom

7.1m²

Bedroom 4

7.5m²

Bedroom 3

11.5m²

Bedroom 2

16.1m²

Proposed First Floor Plan

74m²

No.53
No.55a

En-suite

3.3m²

Hall

O
b
s
c
u
r
e
d

O
b
s
c
u
r
e
d

Flat Roof

Flat Roof

A A

B
B

FFL

51.293

green roof

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1486-130

Proposed First Floor Plan

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 231

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Ground Floor

First Floor

Loft Floor

Roof

Basement Floor

Proposed Front Elevation

(East Elevation)

48.443

53.913

51.293

45.693

57.38

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1289-200

Proposed Front Elevation (East)

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 232

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Proposed Rear Elevation

(West Elevation)

Ground Floor

Basement Floor

48.443

53.913

51.293

45.693

57.38

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1289-210

Proposed Rear Elevation (West)

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 233

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



DETAIL  1  1800mm CBF FENCE

0

Scale: 1:20

1m500 Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

1486-501

Proposed Rear Fence

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

14th July 2022

1:20 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 234

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
127 x 127mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
housed into posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
150x25mm feather

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
edged boarding

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
Concrete foundations 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
struct engineers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
150x25mm 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
75x75mm Arris rails

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
127x127mm concrete posts.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
housed into posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
Line of 75x75 arris rails

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
75x50 splayed arris rail

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
to be as per

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
150x25 concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
with 25mm lap

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
150x25 feather

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
edged boarding

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
c/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
c/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
Elevation

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
gravel board

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
gravel board.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
Access for

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
small animals

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
75x50 continuious

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
capping

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
p.p.c. edging kerb to BS7263 type EF.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
50x150 (or otherwise shown)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
DETAIL  4  TARMAC TO TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
Mass concrete C20P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
bed and haunch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
of car parking area.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
Tarmac finishes on surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
50x150 (or otherwise shown)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
Top to be set flush

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
p.p.c. edging kerb to BS7263 type EF.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
DETAIL  3  TARMAC TO SOFT LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
soft landscaping level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
DETAIL  2  EDGING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
Mass concrete C20P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
bed and haunch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
bed and haunch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
soft landscaping level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
Mass concrete C20P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
Top to be set flush

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
50x150 (or otherwise shown)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
p.p.c. edging kerb to BS7263 type EF.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
finished paving level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
50x150 (or otherwise shown)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
p.p.c. edging kerb to BS7263 type EF.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
Top to be set flush

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
DETAIL  5  PAVING TO TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
finished paving level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
Mass concrete C20P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
bed and haunch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
Top to be set flush

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
of car parking area.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
Tarmac finishes on surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
Tarmac finishes on surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
of car parking area.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
Tarmac finishes on surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
of car parking area.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



Proposed Roof Plan

A A

No.53
No.55a

Flat Roof

Flat Roof

B
B

solar panels

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

Scale: 1:100

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

B1289-140

Proposed Roof Plan

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

31st January 2023

1:100 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 235

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



O

u

t

l

i

n

e

 

o

f

 

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

P

r

o

p

e

r

t

y

Street Scene

(East Elevation)

57.38

Full site boundaries (430m²)

Proposed new house

Existing house

other properties

Possible parkingP

0 1m 2.5 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

7.5

Notes

All dimensions to be checked by the Contractor before construction
proceeds.

This drawing is the copyright of IntelliArch Limited and shall not be anyway
used or reproduced without their prior written consent.

drg no.

scale

date

title

project

rev

dwn

chk

rev. date. dwn.

IntelliArch Ltd
47 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ

T: 0208 4435882 M: 07956 296 076 E: info@i-arch.co.uk

W: www.i-arch.co.uk

C1289-260

Proposed Street Scene

London N21 1NR
55 Eversley Park Road

15th March 2023

1:200 @ A3 MA

FOR PLANNING

P
age 236

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
FGL = 49.125M

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
High Roof Ridge = 55.200m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
Low Roof Ridge = 54.155m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
High Ceiling Eaves = 51.940m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
Entrance Ceiling Eaves = 51.490m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
Window Lintel = 51.775m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
Garage Lintel = 51.500m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
Top of Chimney Flue cover = 55.060m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
Dwarf Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
Sloping Ground Outline

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
No. 55A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
Garage Roof Coping = 51.975m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
High Roof Ridge = 57.050m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
Low Roof Ridge = 55.660m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
No. 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
Window Lintel = 53.060m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
Window Lintel = 52.930m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
Window Cill = 51.750m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
FGL = 47.655m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
Top of Chimney Flue cover = 56.500m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
Intelligent Architecture and Surveying



 LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

   PLANNING COMMITTEE Date: 19 September 2023 

   Report of 

 Director of Planning &
 Growth - Brett Leahy

 Contact Officers: 

   Michael Kotoh-Mortty 
       Claire Williams 

Category 

Full Application 

   Ward 

   Grange 

 Councillor Request  

 Cllr Dey 

  LOCATION:  59 Langham Gardens, London N21 1DL 

   APPLICATION NUMBER: 23/01144/FUL 

PROPOSAL: Conversion of a single-family dwelling house to a House of Multiple 
Occupation for 6 residents (C4 use class)- RETROSPECTIVE. 

Applicant Name & Address: 

Mr Mohamed Baksh 
59 Langham Gardens   
London  
N21 1DL 

Agent Name & Address: 

Ms Monica Gigli 
MGA 
38 Hazelwood Lane 
London 
N13 5EX 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning 
permission subject to conditions.

2. That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to
agree the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the
‘Recommendation’ section of this report.

Page 237 Agenda Item 8



Ref: 23/01144/FUL LOCATION: 59 Langham Gardens, London, N21 1DL,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

Scale 1:1250 North

Page 238



 

1.0 Note for Members:    

1.1 Although an application of this scale and nature would normally be determined under 
delegated authority, the application has been reported to committee for determination 
at the request of Cllr Dye due to the level of local interest.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 That the Head of Development Management be authorised to GRANT planning 
permission subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be maintained in accordance with the 
following approved plans and documents: 

 
Location Plan received 26.04.23 
  
Location and Block Plan received 26.04.23 
 
 Existing (retrospective) Floor and Roof Plan received 01.09.23 
 
Existing (retrospective) Elevations Plan received 06.04.23 

   
 

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

2. C4 HMO use- 6 persons only 
 
The use of the property as a House in Multiple Occupation hereby approved shall be 
occupied by a maximum of 6 people at any one time and shall not be subdivided or 
occupied as self-contained units.  
 
Reason: To accord with the stipulations of definition as a House of Multiple Occupation 
and to safeguard the residential character of the surrounding area. 
 

 
3. HMO facilities 
 
No independent cooking or laundry facilities shall be installed in any of the respective 
bedrooms, and the communal kitchen/breakfast room, storage room and lounge shall 
be retained in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: To accord with the stipulations of definition as a House of Multiple Occupation 
and to safeguard the residential character of the surrounding area. 
 
 
4. Cycle Parking 
 
Within three months of the date of the decision hereby approved, details of the siting, 
number and design of secure/covered cycle parking spaces shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall 

Page 239



thereafter be installed within three months of the decision date of the approved details 
and permanently retained for cycle parking.  
 
Reason: To ensure the provision of cycle parking spaces in line with the Council's 
adopted standards. 
 
5. Refuse storage 
 
Within three months of the date of the decision hereby approved, details of refuse 
storage facilities including facilities for the recycling of waste shall be provided within 
the development in pursuance of the HMO hereby approved and in accordance with 
the London Borough of Enfield Waste and Recycling Planning Storage Guidance ENV 
08/162. This shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details within 
three months of the decision date of the approved details and maintained as such 
thereafter. 

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and the recycling of waste materials in support of 
the Boroughs waste reduction targets. 
 
6. C24 – Obscured glazing 
 
Within three months of the date of the decision hereby approved, the loft flank elevation 
rooflights of the development indicated on drawing No.  LG 02 shall be in obscured 
glass with an equivalent obscuration as level 3 on the Pilkington Obscuration Range 
and non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 
1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed. The glazing 
shall not be altered without the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining and neighbouring 
properties. 

 
  

2.2 That the Head of Development Management be granted delegated authority to 
agree the final wording of the conditions to cover the matters in the 
‘Recommendation’ section of this report. 
 
 

3.0 Executive Summary 

3.1 The applicant seeks retrospective planning permission for a change of use from the 
single family dwellinghouse (C3 use) to a 6 person House in Multiple Occupation 
(HMO). 

3.2 The scheme is considered acceptable for the following reasons: 
 

1) The proposal would provide a form of accommodation that would contribute 
towards the Borough’s housing stock. 

2) The quality of HMO accommodation that would be provided is of an acceptable 
standard.  

3) There is no significant adverse impact on neighbouring residential amenity. 
4) There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation. 

 

Page 240



 

4.0 Site and Surroundings 

4.1 The site is a two-storey semi-detached property which is sited in a well-established 
residential area comprising two storey single family dwellings. The property is not 
listed or within a Conservation Area and the ground level falls to the east. There is a 
single car parking space at the frontage and the crossover is shared with the 
adjoining property at no. 57.  

4.2 The development pattern within the vicinity features a variety of build forms, scale 
and designs. There have been no residential conversions along the street.  

 

 

 

Figure 1 

  

Page 241



 

Figure 2 

Figures 1 and 2: Front elevation of 59 Langham Gardens, outlined in red. 

 

 

Fig. 3: Aerial view of the site indicated in red. 

 

 

Page 242



 
 
5.0 Proposal 
 
5.1 The applicant seeks planning permission for the retrospective conversion of the 

single-family dwelling into a 6 person HMO. The HMO comprises 6 bedrooms, a 
storage room, a communal kitchen, lounge area, 1 shower room and 1 bathroom. All 
occupants have access to communal amenity space at the rear of the building. 

 
5.2  The initial submission indicated 7 bedrooms and following discussions with the agent, 

the floor plan has been amended to reflect 6 bedrooms. The agent has clarified that 
the initially indicated bedroom 4 is in use for maintenance storage and rental 
administration filing only and it does not constitute an additional bedroom at the site. 

 
 
6.0 Relevant Planning History  

6.1 TP/93/0269 - Construction of car port at side of existing house together with formation 
of canopy at side and front and erection of first floor extension over to provide 
additional living accommodation; extension of roof and formation of rooms in roof 
space involving the installation of a rear dormer: GRANTED with Conditions on 
27.07.1993. 

 

7.0 Consultation 
 
 
7.1 Public 
 
  
Number notified 5 
Consultation start date  20.04.23 
Consultation end date  14.05.23 
Representations made 25 
Objections  25 
Other / support comments  0 

  
 
In summary, the objections raise the following concerns: 
 
 
• Loss of parking and inadequate parking provision 
 
• Out of keeping with character of area 

 
• Obstruction to driveway. 
 
• The property has been in use as HMO since 2018 and it is surprising to see that an 

application has now been submitted. The property had HMO license in 2021 and 
there have been significant neighbouring impacts since then. 
 
 

Page 243



• Not enough information given on the submission.  
 

• Legal action would be taken should the Council grant permission. 
 

• Litter and general untidiness of the front and rear gardens. 
 

• Use of the garden as a storage base for other properties within the agent's portfolio. 
 

• Any approval would set a precedent for other properties in the area - this is a quiet 
residential street. 

 
• Loss of privacy and overlooking due to previously implemented extensions. 

 
• The property is not well maintained. Both the front and rear gardens are unkempt and 

overgrown with grass. 
 

• Loss of family home. Multiple occupancy renting is likely to increase deterioration of 
the property further. 

 
 

• Increase of pollution. 
 
 

• Overdevelopment and overcrowding with visitors.  
 

 
• Strain on community resources such as GP and transport services. 
 
 
Officer response: The matters raised will be assessed in the analysis section of the report.  
 
 
7.2 Internal and third-party consultees 
 

Consultee Objection Comment 
 
Licensing and 
Enforcement 
 

 
No 
 

 
The property is the only HMO on the street 
and the internal layout is acceptable. 

 
Sustainable Drainage 
 

 
No 

 
Source control SuDS measures should be 
incorporated within the scheme. 
 
 

 
Environmental Health 
 

 
No 

 
There are no significant impacts. 
 

 
Thames Water 
 

 
No 

 
There are no comments to make. 

 
Metropolitan Police  
 

 
No 

 
Secured by design condition and 
informative suggested. 

Page 244



 
   

8.0 Relevant Policies 
 
8.1 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the Committee 

have regard to the provisions of the development plan so far as material to the 
application: and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be made in accordance 
with the development plan unless material considerations indicate  otherwise. 

 
8.2 For the purposes of Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004, the development plan in force for the area comprises the Enfield Core Strategy 
(2010); the Enfield Development Management Document (2014); and The London 
Plan (2021).  

 
 National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 
8.3 The National Planning Policy Framework sets out at Paragraph 11 a presumption in 
 favour of sustainable development. For decision taking, this means: 
 
 “(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to date 
 development plan without delay; or 
 

(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which  are 
most important for determining the application are out-of-date (8), granting 
permission unless: 

 (i) the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of 
 particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development 
 proposed; or 

(ii) any adverse impacts of so doing would significantly and demonstrably  outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole. 
 

8.4 Footnote (8) referenced here advises “This includes, for applications involving the 
provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot 
demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, 
as set out in paragraph 74); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates  that the 
delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the  housing 
requirement over the previous 3 years.” 

8.5 In the three years to 2021 Enfield only met 67% of its housing requirement and this 
means we now fall into the “presumption in favour of sustainable development” 
category. 

8.6 This is referred to as the “tilted balance” and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) states that for decision-taking this means granting permission unless any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole – 
which also includes the Development Plan. Under the NPPF paragraph 11(d) the 
most important development plan policies for the application are deemed to be ‘out of 
date’. However, the fact that a policy is considered out of date does not mean it can 
be disregarded, but it means that less weight can be applied to it, and applications for 
new homes should be considered with more weight (tilted) by planning committee. 

Page 245



The level of weight given is a matter of planning judgement and the statutory test 
continues to apply, that the decision should be, as section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires, in accordance with the development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

8.7 The NPPF (2021) advises that local authorities should seek to deliver a wide choice of 
high quality homes, widen opportunities for home ownership and create sustainable, 
inclusive and mixed communities. Policy 5 of the Core Strategy seeks to ensure that 
new developments offer a range of housing sizes to meet housing needs whilst 
ensuring that the quality and character of existing neighbourhoods is also respected. 

 

 The London Plan (2021) 
 
8.8 The London Plan is the overall strategic plan for London setting out an integrated 
 economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the development of 
 London for the next 20-25 years. The following policies of the London Plan are 
 considered particularly relevant: 
 
 D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach 
 D6 Housing quality and standards 
 D14 Noise 
 H1 Increasing housing supply 
 T2 Healthy Streets 
 T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts 

T5 Cycling 
T6.1 Residential parking 

 
Core Strategy (2010) 

 
8.9 The Core Strategy was adopted in November 2010 and sets out a spatial planning 

framework for the development of the Borough through to 2025. The document 
provides the broad strategy for the scale and distribution of development and 
supporting infrastructure, with the intention of guiding patterns of development and 
ensuring development within the Borough is sustainable. The following is considered 
particularly relevant: 

 
       CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes  
       CP4 Housing quality 
       CP5 Housing types 
            CP22 Delivering sustainable waste management 
       CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists 
       CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment 
 

Development Management Document (2014) 
 

8.10 The Council’s Development Management Document (DMD) provides further 
 detail and standard based policies by which planning applications should be 
 determined. Policies in the DMD support the delivery of the Core Strategy. 

The following local plan Development Management Document policies are 
considered particularly relevant: 

 

Page 246



DMD3  Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes 
DMD4  Loss of Existing Residential Units 
DMD5  Residential Conversions 
DMD6  Residential Character 
DMD8  General Standards for New Residential Development 
DMD9  Amenity Space 
DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 
DMD45 Parking Standards and Layout 
DMD47 Access, New Roads and Servicing 
DMD68 Noise 
 

8.11 Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), 2021 
Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS, 2015) 
London Plan Housing, Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016) 

 
8.12 Enfield Local Plan (Reg 18) 2021 
 

The Reg 18 document sets out the Council’s preferred policy approach together with 
draft development proposals for several sites. It is Enfield’s Emerging Local Plan.  

 
As the emerging Local Plan progresses through the plan-making process, the draft 
policies within it will gain increasing weight, but at this stage it has relatively little 
weight in the decision-making process. 

 
Key local emerging policies from the plan are listed below: 
 
Policy DM DE1 – Delivering a well-designed, high-quality and resilient environment 
Policy DM DE13 – Housing standards and design  
 

 
9.0  Assessment  
 
            The main issues arising from this proposal to consider are: 
 

1. Principle of development 
2. Quality of accommodation 
3. Character and appearance within the setting 
4. Impact upon the amenity of neighbours   
5. Parking and cycle parking 
6. SuDS 

 
  Principle of development 
 
9.1 Policy DMD 5 of the Development Management Document at paragraph 2.3.7 states 

that Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO) are houses occupied by members of more 
than one household who share basic amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom. 
Amendments to legislation in 2010(3) allowed changes of use from single 
dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) to Houses in Multiple Occupation (Use Class C4) to 
take place without the need for planning permission. However, in October 2013, the 
Council confirmed an Article 4 Direction covering the whole borough, withdrawing 
permitted development rights for this change of use. 

 

Page 247



9.2 Policy DMD 5 is used to assess planning applications for the conversion of single 
family dwellings into HMOs and it states that development involving the conversion of 
existing units into self-contained flats and House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) or 
any other residential conversions will only be permitted if the following criteria are 
met. All development must: 

 
a) Provide a high quality form of accommodation which meets internal floor space 

standards in the London Plan; 
b) Not harm the residential character of the area or result in an excessive number or 

cluster of conversions. 
c) Not lead to an unacceptable level of noise and disturbance for occupiers and 

adjoining properties. 
d) Incorporate parking and refuse storage arrangements that do not, by design or 

form, adversely affect the quality of the street scene. 
 
9.3  The C4 use class is a residential use referring to small houses which are used by 

between 3 and 6 unrelated residents as a house for multiple occupation where they 
share basic amenities such as a kitchen or bathrooms. The planning agent has 
confirmed to the LPA that the HMO is occupied by a maximum of 6 people. As a 
result, the application is considered on this basis. It should be noted that a condition 
would be attached to any permission to ensure that no more than 6 people live in the 
HMO at any one time. If more than 6 persons are to occupy this dwelling, planning 
permission would be required for a larger HMO which, in planning terms, has a Sui 
Generis use (outside use Class C4). 

 
9.4   Although the conversion has resulted in the loss of a single family dwelling, the HMO 

would not result in an excessive number or cluster of conversions in the immediate 
area or along Langham Gardens as a whole; this would be in accordance with Policy 
DMD5 and is therefore acceptable. The conversion is the only conversion that has 
occurred along the street. The retrospective 6 person HMO provides accommodation 
for residents with this particular type of housing need and it is deemed acceptable in 
principle, subject to further planning considerations as outlined below.. 

 
  Quality of accommodation 
 
9.5 The HMO has six bedrooms for a maximum of six people. The HMO comprises 6 

bedrooms, storage room, a communal kitchen, lounge area, 1 shower room and 1 
bathroom. The bedrooms meet the minimum nationally described space standard 
which require a single bedroom to have a minimum gross internal area of 7.5sqm 
and a width of at least 2.15m. Each of the bedrooms has a window providing natural 
light, ventilation and outlook. Furthermore, there is a garden to the rear which 
provides private amenity space of adequate quantity and quality.  

 
9.6  The minimum floorspace requirement for a three storey 6b7p unit as detailed in the 

London Plan (2021) is 129sqm. The submitted plans indicate that the proposed HMO 
would retain a floorspace of 150sqm, which meets the above requirement. 

 
   

Unit GIA (sq,m) 
Room 1 15.8 
Room 2 11.4 
Room 3 18.9 
Office and storage 9.79 
Room 4 9.58 

Page 248



Room 5 9.5 
Room 6 15.92 

 
 
 
9.7  The revised floor plans submitted indicate that the storage room at first floor would be 

used for property management only and not as an additional bedroom at the site, as 
the application is for 6 bedrooms and not for a 7 person HMO sui generis. A suitably 
worded condition is recommended above to ensure that the storage room remains in 
perpetuity and is not used as a bedroom.  

 
  
  Amenity space 
 
9.8  DMD9 of the Development Management Document seeks to ensure that new 

development retains sufficient amenity spaces. The submitted floorplans indicate that 
the proposed amenity space for the development would be circa 200sqm which is 
acceptable. 

 
 
  Character and appearance 
 
9.9  Policy DMD6 of the DMD provides standards for new development with regard to scale 

and form of development, housing quality and density. Policy DMD8 provides general 
standards for new residential development and reiterates the requirement for a 
development to be of an appropriate scale, mass and bulk, provide high quality amenity 
space and provide access to parking and refuse areas. DMD37 encourages achieving 
a high quality and design led development, which is reiterated within policies D4 and 
D8 of the London Plan (2021). 

 
9.10 The existing development pattern on the streetscene features a variety of properties 

that generally maintain a uniformity in scale and character.  

9.11 The retrospective HMO does not involve any extensions to the property and given this 
arrangement, the retrospective works are not considered to have altered the existing 
character of the property or the streetscene in view of policy DMD5 and DMD8. 

 

 Impact upon the amenity of neighbours 

9.12 Policies DMD8, DMD10 and DMD11 of the Development Management Document 
seek to maintain residential amenities in regard to levels of outlook, sunlight and 
daylight. The HMO involves no extensions to the footprint of the property and is not 
considered to impact neighbouring amenity in view of daylight/sunlight. 

9.13 The existing first floor flank window at the site retains obscure glazing and would have 
no impacts on the near neighbour. Although this existing first floor flank window retains 
obscure glazing, it has not been annotated as such on the elevation plans. To reduce 
any actual and perceived overlooking from the flank rooflights that previously served a 
storage space, a condition is suggested to ensure that these flank rooflights retain 
obscure glazing to mitigate the impact of overlooking to the near neighbour in view of 
policy DMD8.  

 

Page 249



9.14  Notwithstanding the objections received, the conversion with a maximum of 6 people 
living in the property would not lead to an unacceptable level of noise and disturbance 
for occupiers and adjoining properties. A total of 6 occupants is not dissimilar o the 
number of occupants that can live in a single family dwellinghouse, The Environmental 
Health Officer was also consulted on the application and raised no concerns in terms 
of noise and disturbance.  

 

 Transportation, servicing and parking 

9.15 The site retains a single car parking space which is served by a shared crossover with 
no. 57. It is observed that the street has off-street parking spaces, however, there is 
capacity along the street to park and the site is not located in a CPZ. Furthermore, the 
Transportation team have not raised an objection to the scheme. To encourage the 
use of sustainable transport and ensure adequate recycling and waste facilities are 
provided, appropriate conditions would be attached to any permission. 

 

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 
 
9.16  The application site is not located within a flood risk area and no extensions or 

landscaping alterations are proposed to the scheme. It is therefore considered 
appropriate to attach an informative to encourage the use of SuDS on the site.  
 

 

 Other Matters  
 
9.17 The following concerns regarding the impact of the proposal have been raised by 

residents: 
 
• Noise nuisance, doors slamming, cars horning at 3am, loud music etc 
• Anti-social behaviour and the smoking of illicit substances impacts a quiet residential 

neighbourhood and impacts on the younger community.  
• The proposal would affect house prices on the street. 
• Sense of insecurity when children are returning from school. 

 
 
9.18  Officers consider that issues pertaining to antisocial behaviour and house prices are 

not material planning considerations and these need to be discussed with the 
relevant Council departments that oversee such resident concerns. An informative 
would be attached to any permission to encourage the applicant to seek advice of the 
Metropolitan Police Service Designing Out Crime Officers with regard to matters such 
as CCTV, lighting and visitor access.  
 

 
 
 
10.0 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  
 
10.1 The proposed development would not be liable to pay CIL at borough or mayoral 

levels.  
 
 

Page 250



11.0 Public Sector Equalities Duty 
 
11.1 In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to the 

need to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. Section 149 of the Act requires public authorities 
to have due regard to several equality considerations when exercising their functions 
including decision making on planning applications. These considerations include: 
Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act; Advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic (explained in detail below) and persons who 
do not share it; Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
11.2 The main objective of the duty has been to ensure public policies and programmes are 

implemented fairly, in particular with regard to their impact on the protected 
characteristics identified above. In making this recommendation, due regard has been 
given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant protected characteristics (age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage / civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation). 

 
11.3 When determining the planning application (and thereby accounting for the 

representations resulting from public consultation), the Council has considered the 
potential effects of the proposed development on those with protected characteristics 
as defined under the Equality Act 2010. In doing this, the Council has had due regard 
to equality considerations and attribute appropriate weight to such considerations. In 
providing the recommendation to Members that planning consent should be granted, 
officers have considered equalities impacts in the balance, alongside the benefits 
arising from the proposed development. The Council has also considered appropriate 
mitigation to minimise the potential effects of the proposed development on those with 
protected characteristics.   

 
11.4 There are no statutory or regulatory requirements for the form or content of an 

equalities assessment. The scale and significance of such impacts cannot always be 
quantified, and it is common to address this through descriptive analysis of impacts 
and identifying whether such impacts are adverse or beneficial. The key elements of 
the Proposed Development which have an impact that could result in an equalities 
effect include the design and physical characteristics of the proposals subject to the 
planning application.  Officers do not consider there would be a disproportionate 
equalities effect.  

 
11.5 In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a 

way which is incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention 
on Human Rights. The human rights impact has been considered, with particular 
reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of property), Article 8 (Right to 
respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) of the 
Convention.  

 
11.6 The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions 

and enforce laws as deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is 
considered appropriate in upholding the council's adopted and emerging policies and 
is not outweighed by any engaged rights.  

 
 
 
 

Page 251



12.0 Conclusion and Recommendation 
 
12.1 Having regard to the assessment in this report, the development would provide HMO 

accommodation at the site. This would contribute towards the Borough’s strategic 
objectives in terms of delivering a variety of housing needs. The quality of 
accommodation that the retrospective 6 person HMO would provide is acceptable, 
based on the up-to-date housing quality standards outlined in The London Plan (2021). 
The development would not result in the harmful overlooking of neighbours nor would 
it result in harm to the amenity and living conditions of neighbours. 

 
12.2 The above assessment against the development plan policies has produced the 

following conclusion: 
 

- The proposal would provide a 6 person HMO with an acceptable standard of 
accommodation that would contribute to the housing stock in the borough. 

 
- The proposed development is considered appropriate in form and design and 

would not result in detrimental harm to the character and appearance of the 
setting. 

 
- The proposal, by virtue of its form and small scale, would not harm the amenity of 

occupying and neighbouring residents. 
 

- There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation. 
 
 
12.3 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions it is 

considered that the benefits of the development would outweigh any identified 
impacts. When assessed against the suite of relevant planning policies, it is 
considered that planning permission should be granted subject to conditions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 252



P
age 253



P
age 254



P
age 255



This is a copy of the title plan on 13 FEB 2023 at 14:32:20. This copy does not take account of any application made after that time even if still pending in HM Land
Registry when this copy was issued.

This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the title plan. An official copy of the title plan is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person
is entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the HM Land
Registry web site explains how to do this.

HM Land Registry endeavours to maintain high quality and scale accuracy of title plan images.The quality and accuracy of any print will depend on your printer,
your computer and its print settings.This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries.  It may be subject to distortions in scale.
Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry, Wales Office.

© Crown Copyright.  Produced by HM Land Registry.  Further reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance
Survey.  Licence Number 100026316.

Page 256


	Agenda
	3 Report of the Head of Development Management
	4 20/01982/FUL - Land rear of Ellington Court, Southgate N14 6LB
	20 01982 FUL - Land rear of Ellington Court Final
	2.1  The starting point for the determination of any planning application is the development plan. Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and the application of the tilted balance means that planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of do...
	2.2 The development would provide additional residential units at the site. This would contribute towards the Borough’s strategic objectives in terms of delivering new homes. The quality of accommodation that the proposed 6 unit residential block woul...
	2.3 It is considered that the form, design and appearance of development would not be significantly dissimilar to the host residential block at Ellington Court and thus the proposed scheme would acceptably relate with the character of the surrounding ...
	2.4 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions and the presumption in favour of sustainable development it is considered that the benefits of the development would outweigh any identified impacts. When assessed against ...
	2.5 The report should be read in conjunction with the report prepared for the Planning Committee on 18 July 2023 which is appended to this report.

	20-01982-FUL front sheet
	Full Committee Report - Ellington Court 20 01982 FUL.pdf
	20 01982 FUL - Land rear of Ellington Court, Southgate N14 6LB Final 
	3.3 The scheme is considered acceptable for the following reasons:
	5) There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation.
	5.0 Proposal
	5.1 The applicant seeks permission to erect a two storey residential building with a flat roof to accommodate 6 flats at the rear of Ellington Court with associated car and cycle parking alongside amenity spaces. The new building would be sited to the...
	5.3  Cycle parking is proposed to the north of Ellington Court together with a new pedestrian access that leads to the proposed residential development at the rear garden space of Ellington Court. The Agent has clarified that there are 37 existing una...
	5.4   The initial proposal detailed a flat roofed three storey 9 unit residential development and following discussions with the agent regarding the scale and impact of the proposal on the setting, the scheme has subsequently been revised to feature a...
	7.0 Consultation
	Public
	7.1  A site notice was put up as the application falls within the Southgate Green Conservation Area. The proposal was also advertised in the Enfield Independent.
	In summary, the objections raise the following concerns:
	  Impact on existing rear communal space; little space would be left for residents.
	 The site is already densely populated with 40 flats.
	 Impact on existing rear trees which sustain wildlife. The application site is not a wasteland.
	7.2  An objection was received from Cllr Levy stating that the initial proposal had several concerns on policy grounds and that it was a departure from the Local Plan. The case was therefore called in to committee should Officers be minded to approve ...
	7.3  Officer response: The concerns will be discussed in more detail in the analysis section of the report.
	Internal and third-party consultees
	7.4
	8.0 Relevant Policies
	The London Plan (2021)
	GG1 Building strong and inclusive communities
	GG2 Making the best use of land
	GG3 Creating a healthy city
	GG5 Growing a good economy
	GG6 Increasing efficiency and resilience
	D1 London’s form, character and capacity for growth
	D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
	D4 Delivering good design
	D6 Housing quality and standards
	D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency
	D12 Fire safety
	D14 Noise
	H1 Increasing housing supply
	HC1 Heritage conservation and growth
	SI12 Flood risk management
	T2 Healthy Streets
	T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
	T5 Cycling
	T6.1 Residential parking
	9.1 Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and the application of the tilted balance means that planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the po...
	Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
	9.27 London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13 require the consideration of the effects of development on flood risk and sustainable drainage respectively. Core Policy 28 (“Managing flood risk through development”) confirms the Council’s approach to flood ri...
	9.28  DMD61 (“Managing surface water”) requires the submission of a drainage strategy that incorporates an appropriate SuDS scheme and appropriate greenfield runoff rates. The scheme proposes a permeable pedestrian path and a green roof to the new two...
	12.1 The starting point for the determination of any planning application is the development plan. Paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and the application of the tilted balance means that planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of do...
	12.2 Having regard to the assessment in this report, the development would provide additional residential units at the site. This would contribute towards the Borough’s strategic objectives in terms of delivering new homes. The quality of accommodatio...
	12.3 It is considered that the form, design and appearance of development would not be significantly dissimilar to host residential block at Ellington Court and thus the proposed scheme would acceptably relate with the character of the surrounding Con...
	12.4 The above assessment against the development plan policies has produced the following conclusion:
	- The proposal would provide 6 new flats with an acceptable standard of accommodation that would contribute to the housing stock in the borough.
	- The proposed development is considered appropriate in form and design and would not result in detrimental harm to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.
	- The proposal, by virtue of its form and small scale, would not harm the amenity of occupying and neighbouring residents.
	- There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation.
	- The reasons for the objections to the initial planning application have been acceptably overcome by the revised scheme.
	12.5 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions and the presumption in favour of sustainable development it is considered that the benefits of the development would outweigh any identified impacts. When assessed against...

	OS Map
	Block
	Sheets
	0100 - Existing Location Plan
	0101 - Existing Site Plan
	0102 - Proposed Site Plan


	ELC-LGA-00-XX-DR-A-0200-Proposed Ground Floor Plan_P06
	Sheets
	0200 - Proposed Ground Floor Plan


	ELC-LGA-00-XX-DR-A-0702-Revised North Elevation_P04B&W
	Sheets
	0702 - Proposed North Elevation


	ELC-LGA-00-XX-DR-A-0702-Revised North Elevation_P05
	ELC-LGA-00-XX-DR-A-0703-Revised West Elevation_P04B&W
	Sheets
	0703 - Proposed West Elevation


	ELC-LGA-00-XX-DR-A-0703-Revised West Elevation_P05
	Location
	Sheets
	0100 - Existing Location Plan
	0101 - Existing Site Plan
	0102 - Proposed Site Plan


	Prop First Floor
	Sheets
	0200 - Proposed Ground Floor Plan
	0201 - Proposed First Floor Plan


	Prop Roof
	Sheets
	0200 - Proposed Ground Floor Plan
	0201 - Proposed First Floor Plan
	0202 - Proposed Second Floor Plan
	0203 - Proposed Roof Plan
	0600 - Proposed Section A
	0601 - Proposed Section B
	0602 - Proposed Section C
	0603 - Proposed Section 1
	0604 - Proposed Section 2
	0700 - Proposed South Elevation
	0701 - Proposed East Elevation
	0702 - Proposed North Elevation
	0703 - Proposed West Elevation


	Prop. Block
	Sheets
	0102 - Proposed Site Plan


	Prop. East elev
	Prop. Landscaping
	Sheets and Views
	Detailed Planting


	Prop. South Elev


	5 20/03011/FUL - Moorfield Family Centre, 2 Moorfield Road, Enfield, EN3 5PS
	1. Note for Members
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendation
	4. Site & Surroundings
	5. Proposal
	6. Relevant Planning History
	Application site

	7.  Consultation
	Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees
	Public

	8. Relevant Planning Policies
	9.  Analysis
	10.  Principle of Development
	11. Land Use
	12. Housing Need, Mix and Delivery
	13. Affordable Housing
	14.  Character and Design
	15. Neighbouring Residential Amenity
	16. Quality of Accommodation
	17. Trees and Landscaping
	18. Biodiversity
	19.  Access, Traffic and Parking
	20.  Flood Risk and Drainage
	21.  Carbon Emissions and Sustainability
	22. Health
	23. Environmental Considerations
	24. Education
	25. Fire Safety
	26. Secure by Design
	27. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
	Mayoral CIL
	Enfield CIL

	28. Public Sector Equality Duty
	29. Conclusion
	Existing Floor Plan.pdf
	MRHC01B01_PC_CAD_01_FP_R04.pdf (p.1)
	MRHC01B01_PC_CAD_GF_FP_R02-A3 Plan.pdf (p.2)

	Proposed 3-7 Floor Plans.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	plotsheet


	Proposed 8-11 Floor Plans.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	plotsheet


	Proposed First and Second Floor.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	plotsheet


	Proposed GF Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	plotsheet


	Site Location Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Site Location Plan



	6 22/04095/RE3 - Land Adjacent to The New River Extending from Tenniswood Road to Bullsmoor Lane
	22-04095-RE3 - OS extract
	22-04095-RE3_New River Footpath final
	Full Planning Committee Report - ENF TO BROXBOURNE - 22-04095-RE3.pdf
	General Arrangement 1 of 4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-004
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-005
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-006
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-007


	General Arrangement 2 of 4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-008
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-009
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-010


	General Arrangement 3 of 4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-011
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-012
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-013


	General Arrangement 4 of 4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-014
	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015-015



	19119-MET-0100-DR-HE-004-015.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	004

	Sheets and Views
	005

	Sheets and Views
	006

	Sheets and Views
	007

	Sheets and Views
	008

	Sheets and Views
	009

	Sheets and Views
	010

	Sheets and Views
	011

	Sheets and Views
	012

	Sheets and Views
	013

	Sheets and Views
	014

	Sheets and Views
	015



	7 23/00770/FUL - 55 Eversley Park Road, London N21 1NR
	23 00770 FUL -   55 Eversley Park Road London N21 1NR Final
	2.2 The scheme is considered acceptable for the following reasons:
	4) There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation.
	4.3 The streetscene features a mix of detached bungalows and two storey dwellings. The development pattern within the vicinity features a variety of build forms, scale and designs.
	 The previously proposed gable ends to the main roof have been replaced with a pitched roof which would appear more coherent on the streetscene.
	 The basement car park previously proposed at 117sqm that could accommodate up to 4 car parking spaces alongside cycle parking has been scaled down to 57sqm to serve a play and utility area.
	 An enclosed garage is proposed to serve a single car parking space.
	7.0 Consultation
	7.1  Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees
	7.2  Public

	8.0 Relevant Policies
	The London Plan (2021)
	GG1 Building strong and inclusive communities
	GG2 Making the best use of land
	GG3 Creating a healthy city
	GG5 Growing a good economy
	GG6 Increasing efficiency and resilience
	D1 London’s form, character and capacity for growth
	D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
	D4 Delivering good design
	D6 Housing quality and standards
	D10 Basement development
	D11 Safety, security and resilience to emergency
	D12 Fire safety
	D14 Noise
	H1 Increasing housing supply
	SI12 Flood risk management
	T2 Healthy Streets
	T5 Cycling
	T6.1 Residential parking
	Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
	9.27  The application site is not located within a groundwater flood risk area, however, the proposal includes a basement level with useable habitable space and therefore a groundwater flood risk assessment and details of a flood management / evacuati...
	9.28 A green roof is proposed to the single storey rear projection, together with grey permeable block paving to the front, side and rear of the proposed replacement dwelling.  The Council’s DMD Policy, sets out that all minor developments must achiev...
	Mayoral CIL
	10.2 Mayoral CIL is collected by the Council on behalf of the Mayor of London. The amount that is sought for the scheme is calculated on the net increase of gross internal floor area multiplied by an Outer London weighting (increased to £60per sqm as ...
	Enfield CIL
	10.3  The Council introduced its own CIL on 1st April 2016. Enfield has identified three residential charging zones, and the site falls within the higher rate charging zone (£120/sqm) which equates to a CIL amount of approximately £30,324.00.

	12.1 Having regard to the assessment in this report, the development would provide a larger replacement family dwelling at the site. This would contribute towards the Borough’s strategic objectives in terms of delivering new homes. The quality of acco...
	12.2 It is acknowledged that the consideration of this report has involved some balanced judgements, for example in relation to the scale of the development including the basement. Yet, it is considered that the form, design and appearance of developm...
	12.3 The above assessment against the development plan policies has produced the following conclusion:
	- The proposal would provide a larger replacement dwelling with an acceptable standard of accommodation that would contribute to the housing stock in the borough.
	- The proposed development is considered appropriate in form and design and would not result in detrimental harm to the character and appearance of the setting.
	- The proposal, by virtue of its form and small scale, would not significantly harm the amenity of occupying and neighbouring residents.
	- There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation.
	- The reasons for the objections to the initial planning application have been acceptably overcome by the revised scheme.
	12.4 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions and the presumption in favour of sustainable development, it is considered that the benefits of the development would outweigh any identified impacts. When assessed agains...

	23-00770-FUL - OS extract
	Exist elevs.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-30


	Exist floor.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-10


	Exist roof.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-20


	Location and Block.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-00


	Prop basement.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-110


	Prop GF.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-120


	Prop north elev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-230


	Prop Section AA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-240


	Prop Section.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-500


	Prop south elev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-220


	Prop. first floor.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-130


	Prop. front elev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-200


	Prop. rear elev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-210


	Prop. rear fence.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-501


	Prop. roof.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-140


	Street elev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1486-260



	8 23/01144/FUL - 59 Langham Gardens, London N21 1DL
	23-01144-FUL - OS extract
	59 Langham Gardens N21 1DL - 23_01144_FUL Final
	3.2 The scheme is considered acceptable for the following reasons:
	4) There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation.
	4.2 The development pattern within the vicinity features a variety of build forms, scale and designs. There have been no residential conversions along the street.
	5.0 Proposal
	7.0 Consultation
	7.1 Public
	In summary, the objections raise the following concerns:
	 Loss of parking and inadequate parking provision
	 Out of keeping with character of area
	 Obstruction to driveway.
	 The property has been in use as HMO since 2018 and it is surprising to see that an application has now been submitted. The property had HMO license in 2021 and there have been significant neighbouring impacts since then.
	 Not enough information given on the submission.
	 Legal action would be taken should the Council grant permission.
	 Litter and general untidiness of the front and rear gardens.
	 Use of the garden as a storage base for other properties within the agent's portfolio.
	 Any approval would set a precedent for other properties in the area - this is a quiet residential street.
	 Loss of privacy and overlooking due to previously implemented extensions.
	 The property is not well maintained. Both the front and rear gardens are unkempt and overgrown with grass.
	 Increase of pollution.
	 Overdevelopment and overcrowding with visitors.
	 Strain on community resources such as GP and transport services.
	Officer response: The matters raised will be assessed in the analysis section of the report.
	7.2 Internal and third-party consultees
	8.0 Relevant Policies
	The London Plan (2021)
	D3 Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
	D6 Housing quality and standards
	D14 Noise
	H1 Increasing housing supply
	T2 Healthy Streets
	T4 Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
	T5 Cycling
	T6.1 Residential parking
	Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
	9.16  The application site is not located within a flood risk area and no extensions or landscaping alterations are proposed to the scheme. It is therefore considered appropriate to attach an informative to encourage the use of SuDS on the site.
	Other Matters
	9.17 The following concerns regarding the impact of the proposal have been raised by residents:
	 Noise nuisance, doors slamming, cars horning at 3am, loud music etc
	 Anti-social behaviour and the smoking of illicit substances impacts a quiet residential neighbourhood and impacts on the younger community.
	 The proposal would affect house prices on the street.
	 Sense of insecurity when children are returning from school.
	9.18  Officers consider that issues pertaining to antisocial behaviour and house prices are not material planning considerations and these need to be discussed with the relevant Council departments that oversee such resident concerns. An informative w...
	12.1 Having regard to the assessment in this report, the development would provide HMO accommodation at the site. This would contribute towards the Borough’s strategic objectives in terms of delivering a variety of housing needs. The quality of accomm...
	12.2 The above assessment against the development plan policies has produced the following conclusion:
	- The proposal would provide a 6 person HMO with an acceptable standard of accommodation that would contribute to the housing stock in the borough.
	- The proposed development is considered appropriate in form and design and would not result in detrimental harm to the character and appearance of the setting.
	- The proposal, by virtue of its form and small scale, would not harm the amenity of occupying and neighbouring residents.
	- There are no identified adverse effects on highway safety or traffic generation.
	12.3 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions it is considered that the benefits of the development would outweigh any identified impacts. When assessed against the suite of relevant planning policies, it is considere...





